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Creating a Home
for Success for

students.

A safe and welcoming home enables students to
engage, learn and thrive. That’s the philasophy
that underpins our core purpose, which is to
create a Home for Success for our students.

It’'s fundamental to everything we do.

We deliver this through our purpose,

supported by a values led culture.

Page references are shown throughout
for links ta important content.

View our 2020 Annual Report
& Accounts online at
unite-group.co.uk/ar2020
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A Home for Success
i during Covid-19
The safety of our students

and our teams remained a
priority during Covid-19.

32

| Qur Business Model

The way we operate
ensures we deliver for
students, University
partners, employees
and investors.

46

Sustainability
Strategy

A new Sustainability Strategy
will enable us to grow

and develop a long-term

. responsible and resilient
business.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EPRA Earnings per share' (p) Dividend per share (p)

38.1p 29.0p
34.1p

30.3p 22.7p
27.7p
25.5p 18.0p
12.75p
10.25p
2016 | | 2017 2018 2019 2016 (2017 2018 2019

25.5p 12.75p

Total accounting return’ (%) {Loss)/Profit before tax (€m)
2w Ak fa20m E246M
7% £201m
2016] |20t7| |2018| 2015 2020
2016| |2017] |2018| |2019] 2020
. £(101
(3.4)% 001 ¢ 120pm

(3.4)% £(120)m

EPRA NAV/NTA per share’ (p) Loan-to-value ratio’ (%)
847p 37%
7o0p — Z1BP 24% 1 2%
7200 [ 1 31%
646p 29%
2016 217 2018 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019 020

81 8p per share 34+

1. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The Group uses alternative performance measures (APMs), which are not defined or specified
under IFRS. These AFMs, which are not considered to be a substitute for IFRS measures, provide
additionai helpful information and are based on the European Public Real Estate Asscciation (EPRA)
best practice recommendations. A full glossary of definitions is available on pages 225 and 226.
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A HOME FOR SUCCESS DURING COVID-19

Safety is fundamental to our operations.
Covid-19 tested our ability to

respond and we demonstrated

our ability to deliver.

We are the only student accommodation
provider to hold a 5-star safety rating
from the British Safety Council (BSC).

We also hold a BSC Covid Secure
Workplace assurance confirming
our policies, procedures and
protocols meet Government
guidelines on best practice.

2019/20

Waived third term student
rents for the 2019/20
atademicyear ata
cost of c.£60m

Supporting

students

+ During Covid-19 we have undertaken regular
student pulse surveys to monitor sentiment

+ March 2020 - first in the sector to
waive rental payments for students not
returning for the third term of the 2019/20
academic year

« Offered free extensions on the 2019/20
academic year for those who needed to
stay in our accommodation and could
not go home

2027

Offered rental discounts
to reflect extended
national lockdowns

» Provided flexibility with student booking
dates including flexible check-in

* January to March 2021 - provided rent
discounts recognising extended national
24/7 lockdown restrictions
support through the
Unite Emergency Contact
Centre and a partnership
with Nightline

+ Provided free accommodation for care
experienced and estranged students via
the Unite Foundation scholarship scheme

02



Student wellbeing and

mental health support

Supporting our
employees

* Enhanced student welfare services,
including bespoke support for students
shielding, support for those self-isolating,
online welfare checks and a pilot peer-to-
peer scheme

* Online chat rooms for students in the
same building and online events run by
student ambassadors

* Provided links to University welfare teams

« MyUnite App helped students to
communicate when self-isolating ensuring
they were able to access services and
support

+ 24/7 support through the Unite Emergency
Contact Centre and a partnership with
Nightline

+ Enhanced night time staffing, providing
additional support during national
lockdowns

Covid-19 health and safety training focused
on personal hygiene, PPE and keeping our
teams safe in properties

Increased flexible working and additional
special leave to help employees juggling
family responsibilities or those simply needing
time away from work in light of Covid-19
pressures

'Working from home’ guidelines and support,
including training, to ensure the right home
working environment was created

Wellbeing support through partnering with
the Healthy Work Company. Additional
support was also available through the
Employee Assistance Programme, the
virtual Medicash GP and the menta!

health first aiders

All front-line employees received a bonus in
recognition of their efforts during Covid-19

No employees were furloughed during
Covid-19

1ioday x8ajens
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AT A GLANCE

We are the UK’s largest owner,
operator and developer of
purpose-built student
accommodation.

We provide a safe and secure home
which is affordable and helps students
to realise their academic potential
whilst enjoying student life.

We own the buildings we operate giving
us the flexibility to invest in and make
decisions, enabling us to deliver on

our brand promises.

Our regular drumbeat of student research
enables us to build a unigue insight and
understanding of students and their
needs, not just in a practical sense

but their emotional journey.

180

properties

across 27 cities in
England, Scetland
and Wales

76,000

beds

in properties
across the UK
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Creating room
for everyone

Being authentic

and striving for
a truly diverse
and inclusive
environment

OUR VALUES
Keeping Doing
us safe what's right
Safety is at Always

the heart of
our brand and
at the core of
everything we do

operate with
a highly ethical,

collaborative

and solution
driven mindset

Raising
the bar together

Continuously
focused on
improving
the way things
are done

Safe and Secure

Buildings and teams.

Everything we do
is designed to
protect students

OUR BRAND PROMISES

There when you need us

We provide support
24 hours a day,
365 days a year

Getting you settled

New place, new people,
new start. Helping
students settle in

**‘iﬁi'

W

We are the largest
provider of student
accommodation
in the UK

1,900

Employees

87%

of our portfolio is aligned
to high and mid-ranked

Universities

5-star

We are the only PBSA

provider to be accredited

with a 5-star rating by
the BSC

®
©®
£11bn

development capital
invested since 2015

5 @
£338m 100+

of value creation through commercial and
development since 2015 community spaces
developed and managed

60+

Universities choose
to partner with us
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WHY INVEST IN UNITE GROUP PLC

Sector leader in UK student
accommodation with a track
record of delivering

strong returns.

06

A best-in-class
platform

+ 76,000 beds across 27 cities

+ 30-years of experience and
insight into student needs

+ Sector leading operating
margins, reflecting scale
efficiencies from investment
in our PRISM operating
platform

- Strategic relationships with
over 60 University partners

+ Highly experienced property
development team

£18m

of annual cost synergies
from acquisition of
Liberty Living

Structurally
growing demand

for UK Higher
Education

+ Significant demographic
growth for UK 18 year olds -
potential 220,000 additiona!
students by 2030

* Rising participation rates
for Higher Education

+ Government support for
international student growth

« Supports positive rental
growth outlook

+5%

growth in University
acceptances for 2020/21




High visibility over
earnings growth

High-quality, well located
portfolio, 87% aligned to high
and mid-ranked Universities

Demand outlook supports
return to ¢.3% p.a. rental
graowth from 2022/23

60% of beds sold through
Nomination agreements
Re-bookers account for
araund a quarter of
direct-let bookings
Secured pipeline of 4,000
beds, generating a 6.4%
yield on cost

Confident in a rapid recovery
in earnings

/P

of EPS growth from secured
development pipeline

Substantial
growth

opportunities

» High-quality development
opportunities at attractive
returns

* Increasing demand for
University partnerships

+ Growth in accessing the
955,000 students living in
Houses of Multiple Occupancy

£300mMm

placing in 2020 to fund
continued investment in
our platform

Robust income
and capital
structure

» Strong balance sheet
+ Investment grade credit rating

+ Well diversified debt across
lenders and maturities

+ Access to capital through
funds and joint ventures

34%

LTV with a target
of around 35%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Throughout the pandemic,
the Board has been focused
on protecting the interests of
its key stakeholders.

“2020 was a uniquely challenging
year for the business due to the
significant disruption created by
the Covid-19 pandemic.”

Phil White Chairman

The pandemic has brought out the bestin our business,
showing the resilience of our operating platform. : am
proud of the hard work and dedication shown by our teams
in supporting students throughout this period. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank our colleagues for their
steadfast commitment.

Throughout the pandemic, the Board has been focused

an protecting the interests of its key stakeholders with a
particular focus on doing what's right for students whose
lives and studies have been significantly impacted. Unite
was the first Purpose-Built Student Accommodation (PBSA)
provider to forgo 2020 summer term rents for students
returning home due to Covid-19 during the initial lockdown.
We have since offered further flexibility and rental
concessions for the 2020/21 academic year to recognise
the ongoing disruption experienced by students. These
decisions were taken with consideration for the long-term
success of the business, our reputation and our desire to
show leadership within the student accommodation sector.




39.1p 29.0p

o [ ] ]

227p

30.3p
2770
25.5p 18.0p
2016 [2017] 2018} |2010] FRRE 2016 |2017] |2018

12.75p

10.25p

EPRA Earnings per share'(p)

25.5p 12.75p

Our financial performance has understandably been
impacted by Covid-19, with EPRA EPS down 35% to 25.5p
and total accounting return reduced to (3.4)%. This
performance reflects the impact of rent forgone for the
summer term of 2019/20, reduced occupancy for the first
term of 2020/21 and an associated valuation loss. This
resulted in an IFRS loss before tax of £120.1 million (2019:
loss of £101.2 million).

Over the years, the business has worked hard to reduce
its environmental impact, support the wellbeing of our
customers, and promote access to Higher Education
through the Unite Foundation, However, recognising

the need to do more around environmental and social
issues, the Board approved a new Sustainability Strategy
in late 2020. It includes targets for net zero carbon
operations and development by 2030, a commitment

to providing opportunities for all our employees
irrespective of their background, gender or ethnicity and
a pledge to raise standards across the student housing
sector. A Sustainability Committee of the Board has
been established to oversee the implementation and
development of this strategy.

As previously announced, | will retire as Chairman and
step down from the Board with effect from 31 March
2021. | will be succeeded as Chairman by Richard
Huntingford. My tenure as Chairman was extended to
oversee the integration of the Liberty Living acquisition,
which completed on schedule in September 2020, having

exceeded the cost synergies targeted from the transaction.

Dividend per share (p)

See our Sustalnability Report on page 46

1. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Group uses alternative
performance measures (APMs), which are not defined or specified
under IFRS. These APMs, which are not considered to be a substitute
for IFRS measures, provide additional helpful information and are
based on the Eurapean Public Real Estate Association (EPRA)
best practice recommendations. A full glossary of definitions
is available on pages 225 and 226.

Unite is a great business with fantastic peaple and it
has been a privifege to have played just a small role
in its success over the past decade,

While Covid-19 creates some uncertainty, the Higher
Education sector’s strong fundamentais, our high-guality
portfolio and pipeline, the strength of our University
relationships and our market-leading operating platform
provide the foundations for a rapid recovery and
significant future growth. Reflecting this confidence, the
Board is recommending the reinstatement of dividends
with a final dividend of 12.75p payable in May.

Phil White
Chairman
16 March 2021
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

During the pandemic we have
placed a particular focus on
supporting students, through
financial support totalling
over £100 million and a

focus on their health,

safety and wellbeing.

“Despite the challenges of the Covid-19
pandemic, | am proud that Unite has
emerged from a tough year showing our
operational resilience and building on our
commitment to doing the right thing to
support students.”

Richard Smith Chief Executive Officer

The resilience and flexibility of our response under
extremely difficult and changing circumstances has only
underlined the quality of our teams and value of our
operating platform, PRISM.

Our response to Covid-19

We recognise that the past year has been a particularly
challenging time for all students, which is why their
wellbeing, safety and security has been our priority since
the start of the Covid-19 pandemic. All our praoperties have
remained open and operational throughout the pandemic,
recognising that for many students our accommodation is
their anly home.

Following the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic in March,
most UK Universities chose to close their campuses,
suspending all face-to-face teaching for the remainder of
the 2019/20 academic year. In response, Unite was the first
corporate PBSA provider to offer to release students from
their tenancies for the summer term, We have subsequently
offered students further rental discaunts for the 2020/21
academic year, reflecting the challenges and disruption
students have faced during the latest lockdowns. We have
also offered students significant flexibility to manage their
changing circumstances, including the ability to extend their
stay during summer 2020 at no further cost and fiexible or
delayed check-ins for the 2020/21 academic year.



14.4% 3.8% 13%  71.7%
e 13-2% 3.4% 3.4% sram som TN
17% : o 62.1%
2018 | {2017} {2018 [2018| 20
20 2016 | |z017] [2mg| |2019] 2020
. 2016|2017 |2oia| [2019

(3.4)%

Total accounting return'

(3.4)%

Rental growth

(0.6)%

We were the first student accommodation provider to be
accredited with Covid-19 secure status by the British Safety
Council. We have also worked ¢losely with our University
partners to agree our approach, resulting in increased
provision and access to student wellbeing and mental health
support during the pandemic. This has included bespoke
support for students who are shielding, support for those
self-isolating, online welfare checks and a pilot peer-to-peer
scheme. We have also worked closely with Public Health
England and local authorities during Covid-19.

Financial resilience

The business delivered a resilient financial performance in
2020 with EPRA earnings of £97.3 million and EPS of 25.5p,
down 35% YoY. This reflects the impact of rent rebates for
the summer term of 2019/20 and lower occupancy in the
2020/21 academic year, partially offset by cost savings
made during the year. The loss before tax of £120.1 million is
primarily driven by the valuation loss resulting from income
reductions linked to Covid-19.

Despite the ongoing disruption created by Covid-19, we look
forward to the future with confidence. We have increasing
visibility over income thanks to the anticipated return

of students following the Easter break, the strength of
University applications and growing reservations for the
coming 2021/22 academic year. This provides us with the
confidence to reinstate dividends, through the payment of
a final dividend of 12.75p. This represents a payout ratio of
50% for FY2020, which we intend to increase to at least 80%
as market conditions stabilise.

Total accounting returns for the year reduced to {3.4)%,
reflecting the valuation loss in the year. Looking forward,
we expect a strong recovery in total returns from 2021,
underpinned by a return to full occupancy and 2-3% growth
for the 2021/22 academic year. We continue to target
delivery of attractive total returns, through a balance of
recurring income and capital growth,

(0.6)%

EBIT margin

62.1%

In response to Covid-19, the business delivered £15 million
of cost savings (Unite share) from insourcing of work over
the summer, savings to utility and broadband costs and

a four-month reduction in remuneration for Directors

and cancellation of bonuses for 2020. Reflecting our cost
discipline and the anticipated recovery in rental income, we
are targeting an improvement in our EBIT margin to 74% by
the end of 2023 (2020: 62.1%, 2019: 71.7%).

Our key financial performance indicators are set out below:

See our Financial review on page 42

Financial highlights 2020 2019
EPRA earnings £97.3m £110.6m
EPRA EPS 25.5p 39.1p
IFRS loss before tax £{(120.1)m £(101.2)m
IFRS basic EPS (31.8)p (31.5)p
Dividend per share 12.75p 10.25p
EPRA EPS yield 3.0% 4.9%
Total accounting return (3.4)% 11.7%
EPRA NTA per share 818p 847p
IFRS NAV per share 809p 845p
Loan to value 34% 37%

Areconciliation of loss before tax to EPRA earnings is set out in note 8 of the

1. The financial statemenits are prepared in accordance with International
Financizl Reparting Standards (IFRS). The Group uses alternative
performance measures (APMs), which are not defined or
specified under |[FRS. These APMs, which are not considered
to be a substitute for I[FRS measures, provide additional
heipful information and are based on the European
Public Real Estate Association (EPRA) best practice
recommendations. A full glossary of definitions
is available on pages 225 and 226.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

“l would like to thank our teams for their
dedication over the past year."

financial statements.

Return to University

The Government announced its plan for a phased return
of students to University on 22 February. From 8 March,
Universities are able to resume in-person teaching for
stucdents who are studying practical ar practice-based
subjects and require specialist equipment and facilities.
The Government will review the timing for the return

of remaining students by the end of the Easter holiday.
University campuses remain open, however we anticipate
that some Universities will choose to switch to online-
only teaching and assessment for the remainder of the
academic year.

We know from our recent student survey that the majority
want to return and enjoy University life. 86% students are
keen to get onto University campus once it is safe to do so.
Meanwhile, 79% of students said they wanted to receive
some face-to-face teaching in the third term, if restrictions
are eased. Approximately 65% of checked-in students
have now returned to our buildings, which we expect to
rise further following the end of the Government’s stay at
home rule on 29 March,

Qver the next six months, our financial priorities are ¢ash
callection for the 2020/21 academic year and sales for
2021/22. We have now collected 95% of rent due to date for
the 2020/21 academic year. As a result, we are confident in
maintaining headroom against all ICR covenants across the
Group and its funds and joint ventures.

Reservations for the 2021/22 academic year are
encouraging at 66%, which, as expected, is slightly below
the prior year level of 77%. We see strong demand for
accommodation this Autumn based on an 8.5% increase
in UCAS applications, but expect a fater sales cycle than
usual due to the uncertainty created by Covid-19. There
also remains some uncertainty over the easing of UK
travel restrictions later this year, which could affect some
international students’ ability to arrive in time for the start
of the Autumn term. Positively, we have seen a ¢.150%
increase in the daily rate of direct-let bookings since the
Government published its roadmap out of lockdown an 22
February, reflecting increased confidence from both UK
and international students.

12

Enduring appeal in the residential degree

Covid-19 has required Universities to develop new teaching
methods to adapt to nationatl lockdowns and social
distancing requirements on campus. Almost all Universities
provided in-person teaching in the autumn term of

2020/21 and delivered on a blended basis with face-to-face
tutorials, seminars and practical work complemented by
online lectures to observe sacial distancing guidelines. The
experience has accelerated Universities’ learnings around
both the opportunities and limitations of online delivery.

HEPI research of student experiences in 2020 revealed a
stronger percepticn of value-for-money before the move
to remote learning in March 2620. We also know from our
own surveys that students continue to see significant value
in the independence that comes from living away from
home and the friendships and interactions with their peers
at University. This is underlined by UCAS applications data
for 2021/22, which reveal a significant drop in the number
of students intending to live at home while studying.

Rather than replacing the residential degree, Universities
see the potential for online learning to enhance the
on-campus student experience. Learning will become
more personalised through higher quality face-to-face
interactions in smaller groups, tutorials and practical work,
supported by cnline content made available for students to
access at a time that best suits them.

Continued investment in our best-in-class platform

In June 2020, we successfully raised £300 million of gross
proceeds from an equity issue, equivalent to 9.5% of existing
shares in issue at a price of 870p. The placing proceeds
enable the Company to continue to invest in its market-
leading platform and drive earnings growth.

The net proceeds, coupled with debt up to our 35%

LTV target, provide around £400 million of investment
capacity to capitalise on new University partnership and
development opportunities in key cities. We have already
secured ¢.£175 million of new development opportunities
since the placing across two sites in central Londaon

and Edinburgh and have a healthy pipeline of further
opportunities under evaluation.

The placing proceeds were initially used to repay

£207 million of secured debt at a cost of 4.8% ahead of
being deployed into new developments. As a result, the
placing is immediately accretive to total accounting returns
and earnings neutral, with earnings accretion as new
development opportunities are delivered,



We are also in advanced discussions with GIC regarding a
long-term extension of our LSAV joint venture, which would
crystallise our performance fee during 2021.

Successful integration of Liberty Living

During 2020, we successfully completed the integration

of our £1.4 billion acquisition of Liberty Living's 24,000-

bed portfolio. All Liberty Living properties, customers and
employees were fully integrated into our operating platform,
PRISM, slightly ahead of planned timings. The Unite
customer offer has also been extended to all former Liberty
Living customers, including access te the MyUnite app and
the comprehensive range of student welfare and support
services we provide. | want to thank ali of the former Liberty
Living employees for their professionalism and commitment
throughout the transition, which was challenging given the
tirning of the pandemic.

We realised cost synergies of £11 million in 2020 and now
expect to achieve annual cost savings of £18 million from
2021 (increased from our initial target of £15 million}. We
incurred integration costs of £9.2 million in 2020, of which
almost the entirety were recognised in H1. There are
opportunities for further cost synergies to be realised over
time in areas such as procurement and energy efficiency in
the Liberty Living portfolio.

Creating a responsible and resilient business

A commitment to ‘doing what's right' is part of who we are
at Unite Students. Over the years, we've worked hard to
reduce our environmental impact, support the wellbeing
of our student customers, and promote access to Higher

OUR VALUES

Creating room for everyone

Keeping us safe

Doing what’s right

Raising the bar together

See pages 20 and 91

Education through the Unite Foundation. In late 2019, we
set out to develop a new, ambitious and comprehensive
Sustainability Strategy, building on what we had already
achieved to address the most materially significant
environmental, social and governance challenges we face.

During 2020, we engaged with key stakeholders to
understand the risks and opportunities, and how we

can do more to create a positive impact. Students are
concerned about a wide range of topics related ta both
climate change and how to make the world a fairer place,
while sustainability issues are of increasing interest to
investors, Universities and other stakeholders.

Having listened to our stakeholders, we have developed
five averarching sustainability objectives, defining our new
level of ambition and showing how we will work to make a
real difference:

+ Becoming net zero carbon by 2030 - we will reduce
carbon emissions from new and existing buildings in
line with climate science, ahead of the timescale set
out in the Paris Climate Agreement to avoid the worst
impacts of climate change. We will do this following
the net zero carbon hierarchy, with a strong focus on
reducing energy consumption through improving our
buildings, while also strengthening the way we buy
renewable energy and investing in certified carbon
offsets for any residual emissions

+ Creating resilient, resource efficient assets and
operations - we will reduce the environmental impact
of our new and existing buildings by improving energy
and water efficiency, and also help our students to
adopt lasting sustainable living habits

+ Enhancing the health and wellbeing of our
employees and students - driving real improvements
in physical and mental health and wellbeing based
on an understanding of their needs, through
improvements to our service model, physical assets
and employee support programmes

« Providing opportunities for all - including students,
employees and in the communities where we work,
where all can succeed, whatever their background,
gender or ethnicity

+ Leading the student housing sector - we will work to
raise standards across the student housing sector, and
deliver value to our customers and investors

13
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

“In response to Covid-19, we introduced a number of new and enhanced
Covid-19 secure operating practices for the 2020/21 academic year.”

This Annual Report includes detail of our commitments,
including targets, timescales and plans, and we are
committed to sharing information on our progress and
performance through regular and transparent reporting.

During 2020, we formally signed up as a supporter of the
Task Force aon Climate-Related Financial Disclosure (TCFD)
and wil] be publishing more details of our plan for full
adoption in 2021, including our net zero carbon pathway.
Our sustainability performance is measured by a range

of leading external benchmarks, including GRESB, CDP

and the EPRA sBPR and we achieved material year-on-year
improvements in our ratings for GRESB (4*, 81/100) and CDP
(B for Climate Change) in 2020.

Safe and secure

Safety forms a key part of how we operate as a responsible
business, underpinned by our commitment to go above
and beyond minimum standards to provide a safe and
secure environment for our students and employees,
Covid-19 has only underlined the importance of this
commitment.

In response to Covid-19, we introduced a number of new
and enhanced Covid Secure operating practices for the
2020/21 academic year. These inciuded enhanced cleaning
and new physical and social distancing measures such

as floor markings, signage, communication in reception
areas and repurposed common areas. Reflecting these
measures, Unite was also the first student accommodation
provider to be accredited with Covid Secure status by the
British Safety Council as well as achieving the Sword of
Honour for excelience in the management of occupational
nealth and safety.

Our investments in our sector-leading operating platform,
PRISM, and our MyUnite app have also helped to facilitate
digitai interactions between Unite employees and

students - such as bookings, maintenance requests,

parcel collections and logging of issues - and provide
oppaortunities for enhanced service to students. We used
the Unite app to manage arrivals and check-ins to ensure
students were welcomed in a safe and secure environment.

Fire safety is a critical part of our health and safety
strategy. Our fire safety plans involve engagement with our
primary authority, the Avan Fire & Rescue Service, and local
fire brigades as well as input from independent fire safety
experts who conduct annual assessments of our portfolio
and have confirmed that all our properties continue to be
safe for occupation.
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We also wark closely with the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to ensure
our properties comply with emerging guidelines. As part
of this, following the tragic events at Grenfell Tower, we
were ane of the first companies to take action to remove
Aluminium Composite Materials (ACM) cladding from our
buildings where needed, in line with Government advice.
During 202G, and in accordance with the Government’s
Building Safety Advice of 20 January 2020, we undertoak
a thorough review of the use of High-Pressure Laminate
(HPL) cladding on our properties,

We have identified 19 properties with HPL across our
estate, all but three of which are greater than 18 metres in
height. We are currently carrying out the replacement of
HPL cladding on these properties, with activity prioritised
according to our risk assessments, starting with those
over 18 metres in height. In line with our value of doing
what's right, we will remove this cladding where it fails to
meet regulations.

All of our properties have been confirmed as safe to operate
and occupy by independent fire safety experts, reflecting a
wide range of fire safety measures atross our portfolio as wel
as the special measures putin place at the affected buildings,
including increased building patrols by staff, additional
alarm measures and other property specific factors such

as sprinklers, fire prevention and evacuation plans.

The cost of replacing the HPL cladding is expected to

be £79.9 million {(Unite share: £33.8 million), which will
be incurred over the next 12-36 months. We have fully
provided for this spend in our year end balance sheet.

We are fully suppartive of the Government's actions to
improve fire safety in the UK, This is likely to result in more
stringent fire safety regulations over the coming years. As we
have done to date, we will ensure we are aligned to fire safety
regulations as they evolve and will continue to make any
required investment. We are seeking to mitigate the costs to
Unite of cladding replacement in our buildings through claims
from contractors under buiid contracts, where appropriate.
We also await further details of the Government’s recently
announced cladding levy for new residential developments.

Partner of choice for Universities

Our reputation with partner Universities is a key strategic
advantage for Unite. In a highly competitive environment,
Universities increasingly recognise the importance of high
quality, affordable accommodation in their ability to attract
and retain students and ensure their satisfaction,



2,257

new beds have been
opened during 2020

We believe the decisive actions taken by the business in
responsc to Covid 19 have enhanced our reputation with
Universities. Covid-19 has also intensified the operational
and financial pressures faced by Universities, which we
expect to create a growing appetite for partnerships

with leading PBSA operators in delivering their long-

term accommoadation strategies, We see opportunities

to capitalise on our brand and the goodwill created by

our response to Covid-19 to accelerate and enhance our
pipeline of University partnerships. Unite is already viewed
as a strategic partner by Universities, building on our best-
in-class operating platform and the commitment of 1,900
people whose understanding of students is informed by
our 30-year history in the Higher Education sector.

For the 2020/21 academic year 39,250 beds are let under
nomination agreements, representing 60% of total beds
sold (2019/20: 41,500 and 5%%). The reduction in beds
under nomination agreements for 2020/21 reflects the
impact of Covid-19 on occupancy and our willingness to
provide flexibility to highly valued University partnerson a
selective basis. With an average remaining life of six years,
our multi-year nomination agreements provide us with
visibility for average annual rental growth of 2% over the
next five years at current levels of inflation.

During 2020, we completed a new University Partnership
with the University of Bristol, covering around 3,000 beds.
We are also in active discussions with three high-tariff
Universities over potential partnerships, covering around
7,000 existing and new beds, which we are looking to
progress over the next 12-18 months. These discussions
cover a range of potential solutions on a city-wide basis,
including multi-year nomination agreements for our
existing operational assets, on-campus and off-campus
developments and stock transfer.

Operating quality buildings

The quality, location and scale of our portfolio is a key
component of our business model and long-term strategy.
We aim to operate high quality, affordable buildings

and offer a range of price points to meet the needs of
different students. OQur properties are located in and
arcund leading Universities where student demand is
strongest, supporting high levels of occupancy and rental
growth. Our portfolio activity is focused on increasing

our alignment to high and mid-ranked Universities and
being in the best locations. For the 2020/21 academic year,

39,250

beds are let
under Nomination
agreements

£4.9bn

investment portfolio
as at 31 December
2020

87% of our income is generated by students attending
such Universities (2019/20: 88%), increasing to 88%
on delivery of our secured development pipeline and
contracted disposals.

Value for money is the most important factor influencing
students’ decisions on where to live. Our accommaodation
is now cheaper than the private rented sector on a
comparable basis, inciuding bills and contents insurance.
That is hefore allowing for the hassle-free services we
also provide, including on-hand maintenance teams and
help when it's needed from our 24/7 customer support
centre and dedicated welfare teams. The significant
support and fiexibility we have offered during Covid-19
has also demonstrated to students and parents the value
of a trusted, institutional landlord.

During 2020, we opened 2,257 new beds and have sold
242 beds to third parties. Taking into account these
activities, together with valuation movements, the value
of our investment portfolio (including our share of USAF
and LSAV) is £4.9 billion as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
£4.7 billion).

Despite the disruption resulting from Covid-19 and
lockdown restrictions, we made excellent progress

in our development pipeline during the year. We
delivered three buildings for the 2020/21 academic year,
with approximately 40% of the beds secured under
nomination agreements with an average life of 22 years,
supporting our guality of income. Development of our
schemes at Middlesex Street in London and Old BRI in
Bristo! was suspended during the first national lockdown

to conserve cash and ensure the safety of workers on site.

We have now recommenced construction on both sites
for delivery in 2022,

We intend to maintain a development run-rate of
approximately 1,500-2,000 beds or £150-200 million

of annual capital expenditure, with opportunities once
again emerging in London as demand has weakened
from some competing asset classes. London remains our
most under-supplied market, with some of our strongest
University relaticnships.

Disposals remain an important part of our strategy and
we will continue to recycle assets out of our portfolio to
ensure that we increase our exposure to the UK's best

Universities, while generating capital to invest in further

development activity and other investment opportunities,

15

[LETENEEYS)

w
b
=
o
=
1]
=,
a
X
o
o
o
X
a3

UBLLIAARD)

SIUBWIIILIS (BB

UGNBLLIOI] 1340 | |




The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

we completed the disposal of one wholly-owned property
for £10 million in 2020 in line with book value. We are
targeting £200~300 million of disposals in 2021 (Unite
share) in anticipation of improving liquidity as greater
visibility emerges over occupancy and income for the
2021/22 academic year.

Our ongoing disposal plan will be used to keep LTV to our
rmedium-term target of 35% as we deliver our secured
developrnent pipeline. This disciplined approach to
portfolio optimisation underpins our ability to sustain
rental growth over a longer time horizan,

Government policy

The Government's final response to the Augar Report on
paost-18 education and funding is now expected later this
year alongside the next Comprehensive Spending Review.
The recent Skills for Jobs White Paper underlines the
Government’'s commitment to widen participation in post-
18 education and strengthen the global standing of the
UK Higher Education (HE) sector, We expect an increased
focus on the quality of HE provision and research, leading
to a further concentration of student numbers and funding
in high tariff, research-intensive Universities and leading
teaching-led Universities. We are confident that aur
strategic alignment to high and mid-ranked Universities
positions us to successfully navigate future changes to the
Government's HE policy.

Growing demand for Higher Education

The outiook for student accommodation remains positive,
with structural factors continuing to drive a demand-
supply imbalance for our product. Demographic growth
will see the number of UK 18 year olds increase by 178,000
by 2030. Participation rates also continue to grow and are
now at their highest ever level, reflecting the value young
adults place on & higher ievel of education and the life
experience and opportunities it offers. Applications data
for the 2021/22 academic year is very encouraging with an
8.5% increase in applicants as at the 29 January deadline.

The Government is targeting a ¢.80,000 increase in
international student numbers by 2030, aided by the
introduction of a new two-year post-study visa (three
years for postgraduates). This ambition is underpinned
by the UK Higher Education sector’s global standing and
the strength of its Universities. The UKis the second
most popular destination for international students
and 26 UK Universities feature in the top 200 of the

QS World University rankings, Unite works with 20 of
these Universities.

Given constraints on new supply of University-owned stock
and private-rented housing, the vast majority of this new
demand will need to be met by corporate PBSA providers.
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Brexit will have a negative impact on EU student numbers
from 2021/22, who account for 9% of our customers, due
to the loss of home fee status and access to a tuition fee
loan. We expect a 30-40% reduction in demand from

EU students, equating to 3-4% of our customer base by
2023/2024. However, we are confident in our ability to
absorb this impact thanks to the coinciding demographic
growth for UK students and the supportive environment
for the recruitment of non-EU students.

Board changes

Our Chairman, Phil White, will be stepping down from his
role with effect from 31 March 2021, The Board would like
to thank Phil for his service. During his Chairmanship, the
Group has, among other things, grown within the FTSE 250
and become aleading European REIT and, more recently,
completed the successful acquisition and integration of
Liberty Living. His leadership has been especially critical
as the Board navigated Covid-19 through 2020 and into
2021. Phil has ensured the business is ready and resilient
to embrace the risks and opportunities ahead. Phil will be
succeeded by Richard Huntingford who is the Chairman of
Future ple, a FTSE 250 global platform for speciafist media,
and who joined the Board in December 2020.

Outlook

The outiook for the business remains strong, reflecting
the underlying strength of student demand, our alignment
to the strongest Universities and the capabilities of our
best-in-class operating platform, There are significant
growth cpportunities for the business created by growing
student numbers, the ongoing shortage of high quality
and affordable purpose-built student accommodation,
Universities need to deliver an exceptional student
experience through their accommedation and the growing
awareness of the benefits of PBSA arnong non-1st year
students. In particular, we see opportunities for new
developments and University partnerships, building on
the strength of our enhanced reputatian in the sector.

Despite uncertainty ¢created by Covid-19, Brexit and the
review of Higher Education funding, we remain well
positioned for a rapid recovery in earnings, Positive
progress with Covid-19 vaccinations in the UK will enable

a full recpening of the UK ecanomy. Mareover, the early
strength of applications data and reservations for the
2021/22 academic year are supportive of a return to

full occupancy and positive rental growth. We are also
confident in the medium-term outlook for earnings growth,
driven by a return to sustainable ¢.3% p.a. rental growth,
our substantial secured development pipeline and further
opporiunities to deploy capital into new development and
University partnership opportunities at attractive returns.



OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group continues to report on an IFRS basis and
presents its performance in line with best practices as
recommended by EPRA. The Operations and Property
reviews focus on EPRA measures as these are our key
internal measures and aid comparability across the real
estate sector.

Sales, rental growth and profitability

The key strengths of our operating business are our
highly committed people, our PRISM operating platform,
our brand and the strength of our relationships with
Universities. These capabilities helped to deliver a resilient
financial performance in 2020, despite the significant
disruption created by Covid-19, delivering EPRA EPS of
25.5p (2019: 39.1p). The 35% reduction in EPS reflects our
decision to release students from their tenancies in term
three of 2019/20 in response to the national lockdown and
lower occupancy for term one of the 2020/21 academic
year, partially mitigated by savings in operating costs and
initial synergies from the acquisition of Liberty Living.

2020 2019
Summary income statement £m £m
Rental income 263.2 2139
Property operating expenses (82.9) (53.1)
Net operating income (NOI) 180.3 160.8
NOlImargin 68.5% 75.2%
Management fees 14.0 14.4
OCperating expenses (30.9) (21.7)
Finance costs (64.9) (43.9)
Acquisition and net performance fees 4.6 6.8
Development and other costs (5.8) (5.7)
EPRA earnings 97.3 110.6
EPRA EPS 25.5p 39.1p
EBIT margin 62.1% 71.7%
A reconciliation of loss after tax to EPRA earnings is set out in note 2.2b
to the financial statements.

Our acquisition of Liberty Living, which completed in
November 2019, and the disruption to income caused by
Covid-19 are the two key factors explaining the variance in
our profitability and operating performance between 2020
and 2019,

Rental income increased by £49.3 million, up 23%, as a result
of the acquisition of Liberty Living's 24,000 bed portfolio,
which was partially offset by £37 million of rental income
forgone through cancellations for the summer term of
2019/20in response to Covid-19 and lower occupancy for
term one of 2020/21. Net operating income also increased
by 12%, reflecting our increased scale. EPRA like-for-like
rental income reduced by 13.2% YoY for properties owned
througheut 2019 and 2020, which resulted in a reduction in
NOI margin to 68.5% (75.2%).

Overheads increased by £9.2 million, reflecting the impact
of the Liberty Living acquisition and £11 million of initial
cost synergies realised in the year. In response to Covid-19,
the business delivered £15 million of cost savings (Unite
share) from insourcing of work over the summer, savings
to utility and broadband costs and a four-month reduction
in remuneration for Directors and cancellation of bonuses
for 2020.

Recurring management fee income from joint ventures
reduced slightly to £14.0 million (?2019- £14.4 million),
reflecting the impact of lower NOI and property valuations
in USAF and LSAV. Performance and acquisition fees of
£4.6 million were received in the year (net of tax), relating
to further partial recognition of the LSAV performance fee
(2019: £6.8 million). Based on current expectations, Unite's
remaining share of the LSAV performance fee is expected
to be c.£15-20 million.

Our EBIT margin reduced to 62.1% in 2020 (2019: 71.7%),
reflecting the impact of lower income and partial mitigation
from cost savings. Reflecting our cost discipline and

the anticipated recovery in rental income from 2021/22
onwards, we are targeting an improvement in our EBIT
margin to 74% by the end of 2023. This reflects an increase
in the annual cost synergies to be realised from the Liberty
Living acquisition to £18 million from 2021, as well as
opportunities for further efficiencies over time in areas
such as procurement, enhanced use of technology and
energy efficiency.

Finance costs increased to £64.9 million {(2019: £43.9
million), reflecting the increase in average net debt during
the year primarily resulting from the acquisition of Liberty
Living. This impact was partially offset by a lower average
cost of finance in 2020 of 2.7% (2019: 3.6%) as we have
substantially drawn our revolving credit facilities at lower
average rates and repaid £207 million in secured loans at a
blended cost of 4.8%. Interest capitalised into development
schemes decreased from £9.1 million to £4.6 million,
driven by lower development spend following the pause
on construction at Middlesex Street and Old BRI, which will
now be delivered in 2022. We expect capitalised interest to
ingrease in 2021, albeit not to 2019 levels, as development
activity increases ahead of deliveries in 2022 and 2023.

Development (pre-contract) and other costs were broadly
stable remained broadly flat at £5.8 million (2019: £5.7
million), reflecting the cost of paused development activity,
the earnings impact of share-based incentives, deferred
and current tax and our contribution to our charitable
trust, the Unite Foundation.
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Occupancy, reservations and rental growth
2020/21 academic year

We [et 88% of bed spaces across the whole portfolio for
the 2020/21 academic year (2019/20: 98%), which reflected
a resilient performance in challenging circumstances.

This represents meaningful outperformance of our PBSA
peers, wha delivered average bookings of 75% for 2020/21
according to JLL. This reflects the benefit of our long-

term nomination agreements and the adaptability of our
operating platform in successfully shifting the focus of our
direct-let sales from international to domestic students,
many of whom wauld ordinarily stay in the HMO sector.

The reduction in our occupancy contrasts with a 5%
increase in accepted applicants to UK Universities for the
2020/21 academic year, Due to disruption and uncertainty
created by Covid-19, student demand for accommodation
has been temporarily impacted by some students either
choaosing to study from home, not trave! to the UK or defer
their place. We expect this demand to return from 2021/22,
as restrictions ease relating to Covid-19.

Checked-in occupancy is currently 80%, reflecting

those students who have now checked-in to their
accommodation and nomination agreements where

Unite receives rent directly from Universities, Customers
making up the remaining 8% of occupancy are now past
their scheduied check-in dates, of whom around 90% are
international. Around half of those international customers
yet to check-in have confirmed they still plan to arrive in
the coming weeks.

We have now collected 95% of rent due 1o date for the
2020/21 academic year. This reflects successful term one
rent collection of 96% and a positive start te term two rent
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collection at 93% to date. Collection rates for rents received
directly from students are 97% for the year to date and 85%
for rents paid directly by Universities. Scheduled payments
by Universities in the coming weeks will see the total
collection rate further improve 1o over 95%.

In response to the latest national lackdown in January
2021, we announced that students were able to apply

for a discount of 50% of their rent for a total of 10 weeks
and, in addition, will be given a four-week complimentary
extension of their tenancy agreement at the end of the
academic year to extend their stay into the summer.

The rental discount and tenancy extension were made
available to all students checked-in but not living in their
accommodation between 18 January and 28 March. Take-
up of the offer has been c.40% by eligible customers,
reflecting ¢.60% occupancy among checked-in students
during term two. The lass of rental income associated
with the rental discount and tenancy extension is
expected to resultin a reduction to EPRA EPS of up to
£10 million or 2.5p for the 2021 financial year.

Based an rent collection in the year to date, assumed
attrition in non-checked-in bookings and take-up of our
10-week rent discount, we expect to receive 90-95% of
contracted rental income of £268 million for the 2020/21
academic year (on a Unite share basis).

2020721 ¢ash collection Term 1 Term 2 Yeartodate
Payahle by Universities 92% 81% 85%
Payable by students’ 8% 96% §7%
Total 96% 93% 5%

1. Includes both direct-let and nomination referral customers.




Annual rents reduced by 0.6% on a like-for-like basis for
2020/21, reflecting contractual growth of 2.5% through
nomination agreements offset by a 3.2% reduction in
direct-let rents. The reduction in direct-let rents reflects
an increase in the share of direct-let sales to UK customers
(46% in 2020/21 vs 39% in 2019/20) as a result of our
success in attracting more domestic students and a lower
number of international student arrivals. On average, UK
customers pay 20% lower annual rents than international
customers, refiecting a preference for slightly shorter
tenancy lengths and lower cost room types. Rental growth
was also impacted by our flexible tenancy offer, which
allowed students to delay the start of their tenancy to
coincide with changes to University term dates. Occupancy
was broadly consistent across our wholly owned portfolio,
USAF and LSAV.

2020/21 rental growth and occupancy

LfL rental
By fund growth' Occupancy?
Nomination agreements 2.5%
Direct-let (3.2)%
Total {0.6)% 88%
Wholly owned {(1.7)% 88%
USAF {0.1)% 89%
LSAV 1.5% 85%
Leased (1.2)% 100%
Total (0.6)% 88%

1. Like-for-like properties based on annual value of core student tenancies.

2. Bedssold,

We have maintained a high proportion of income let to
Universities, with 39,250 beds or 60% of those sold for
2020/21 under nomination agreements (2019/20: 41,484
and 59%). The slight reduction in the number of beds under
nomination agreements reflects the decision of some
Universities not to renew rolling single-year agreements in
light of uncertainty over student numbers and occupancy
created by Covid-19, and flexibility offered to University
partners on a case-by-case basis.

55% of our nomination agreements, by income, are multi-year
and therefore benefit from annual fixed or inflation-linked
uplifts. These agreements are expected to secure average
annual rental growth of 2.1% over the next five years at
current low levels of inflation. The remaining agreements are
single year and we achieved a renewal rate of 76% on these
agreements for 2020/21 (2019/20: 85%). Enhanced service
levels and our extensive understanding of student needs
have resulted in longer term and more robust partnerships
with Universities over recent years. The unexpired term of
our nomination agreements is 6.4 years, up marginally from
6.2 years in 2019/20.

We expect the proportion of beds let to Universities to
remain at or around this level in the future. This balance of
nomination agreements and direct-let beds provides the
benefit of having income secured by Universities, as weli as
the ability to offer rooms to re-bookers and postgraduates
and determine market pricing on an annuat basis.

19

MBIARIAD

v
~+
=
1]
-
1
o,
[a]
-~
1]
=
=)
=
-~

3UBLISADD

SIUBWMPIS [EDUPUL

uonewlIou) 1330




The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Beds Beds % Income
Agreement length 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21
Single year 17,709 15,264 45
2-5years 5,748 11,214 16
6-10years 6,873 4,579 18
11-20 years 6,724 5,224 16
20+ years 2,196 5,203 5
Total 39,250 41,484 100

UK students account for 66% of our customers for 2020/21
(2019/20: 60%), making up a large proportion of the beds
under nomination agreements with Universities. In addition,
25% and 9% of our customers come from non-EU and EU
countries respectively (2019/20: 31% and 9%), reflecting the
relative appeal of our hassle-free product when compared
with alternatives in the private rented sector.

Re-bookers accounted for 25% of our direct-let bookings
for the 2020/21 year, contributing to the 65% of direct-let
bookings made to non-1st years. This reduces our exposure
to less predictable 1st year undergraduate customers and
puts less emphasis on Clearing following A-level results.

Postgraduates now make up 16% of our direct-let
customer base, driven by strong growth in UK
postgraduate numbers and increasing awareness
of the benefits of PBSA. As a result, we are trialling
ways to tailor our offer for postgraduates as part of
our wider review of customer segmentation.

2021/22 academic year

Reservations for the 2021/22 academic year are
encouraging at 66%, which, as expected, is slightly below
the prior year level of 77% given the ongoing uncertainty
created by Covid-19, We expect strong student demand for
2021/22 from both domestic and international students,
but anticipate a later sales cycle than a typical yearas a
result of current uncertainty relating to Covid-19. As a
result, we have increased our focus on retaining existing
direct-let customers, which has led to an increased share
of sales to domestic re-bookers.

We have good visibility over rental growth for the 2021/22
academic year, with nomination agreements in place on
alarge proportion of our beds. Falling UK inflation over
the past 12 months will result in a slight reduction in
rental growth from multi-year nomination agreements
with annual RPI-linked rental increases. However, we

still anticipate annual rental increases of just under 2%
from our nomination agreements. In addition, we see

a positive outlook for direct-let sales to re-bookers by
capturing market share from the HMO sector, We also
see growing demand from non-EU international and
postgraduate students, reflecting recent increases to the
UK's post-study visa and the international reputation of
the UK's Universities.
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Based on our expectation of an enhanced campus
experience for students, supported by an increase in face-
to-face course delivery and a relaxation of international
travel restrictions, we anticipate a return to full occupancy
and 2-3% renta! growth in 2021/22. However, there
remains greater risk and uncertainty over occupancy and
rental growth than a normal year as lockdown restrictions
are eased.

Delivering for our customers

Our best-in-class operating platform continues to drive
both service enhancements and operational efficiency. We
remain committed to reinvesting a significant proportion
of savings in enhanced customer services that deliver
value-for-money for students and support our purpose of
creating a Home for Success. This includes investment in
our Mylnite app, our Student Ambassador programme
and the provision of student welfare services,

Health, safety and security

We recognise that the past year has been a particularly
challenging time for a!l students, which is why their
wellbeing, safety and security has been our priority since
the start of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Unite Students was the first student accommodation
provider to be accredited with Covid Secure status
accredited by the British Safety Council, following the
introduction of a number of new and enhanced Covid-19
secure operating practices for the 2020/21 academic
year. These included enhanced cleaning and new physical
and social distancing measures such as floor markings,
signage, communication in reception areas and repurposed
common areas. Qur investments in our sector-leading
operating platform, PRISM, and our MyUnite app, also
enabled students to communicate remotely with Unite's
teams without having to leave their rooms.

To help foster a sense of community, we introduced a
Home Charter for 2020/21, which outlined the expectations
for students living together and the ways in which we will
assist, Qur aim is to create a positive culture for living

as a community and safe, respectful and harmonious
homes that help students get the most out of their

time at University. The Home Charter was intreduced

to reflect the new dynamics created by Covid-19 when
living in shared accommodation. Going forward, itwill be
reviewed annually.

We have also increased provision and access to student
wellbeing and mental health support through enhanced
student welfare services, including bespoke support for
students who are shielding, support for those self-isolating,
online welfare checks and a pilot peer-to-peer scheme. We
have dedicated welfare leads in each of our cities and also
provide 24/7 support through Unite's Emergency Contact
Centre and a partnership with Nightline.



Financial support during Covid-19

We have provided over £100 million in financial support
to students during the Covid-19 pandemic. We have
shown sector leadership in offering rent waivers and
flexibility, reflecting our focus on doing what's right for
all stakeholders and the importance of maintaining a
sustainable business. We were the first PBSA provider

te forgo 2020 summer term rents for students returning
home due to Covid-19 during the initial lockdown. We also
offered students the ability to extend their stay into the
summer at no extra cost.

Far the 2020/21 academic year, we extended the traditional
check-in period for Unite properties thereby reducing

the traditional peak and provided flexible check-in for
students during September/October 2020. We also allowed
international students to move to a January start date,
forgoing rent for the period from September to December,
and provided the option to check-in early, at no extra cost,
where students needed to quarantine having arrived from
a Covid-restricted area.

Following the announcement of a further national
lockdown in January 2021, we announced that students
were abte to apply for a rent discount of 50% for 10 weeks
and a four-week complimentary extension of their tenancy
into the summer.

We believe our response has strengthened our reputation
with students, parents, Universities and Government. This
goodwill creates opportunities to secure new University
partnerships as well as take market share from the 955,000
students living in the HMO sector, where the response

of private landlords has been inconsistent and less
accommodating overall,

Service enhancements

Our best-in-class operating platform continues to drive
both service enhancements and operational efficiency, We
remain committed to reinvesting a significant proportion
of savings in enhanced customer services that deliver
value-for-money for students and support our purpose of
creating a Home for Success.

This year, there has been a significant focus on improving
our digital capabilities to support our commitment of
keeping students and our staff safe and secure during
Covid-19, We enhanced our check-in solution by fully
digitalising the end-to-end customer journey, which

was used by 79% of customers, and also extended the
capability of uChat to allow customers to chat to other
residents on the same floor. This allowed students to
connect with others they would not usually have met

in regular circumstances and was used by ¢.18,500
customers. We also introduced a new feature in the
MyUnite app for customers to let us know if they were
self-isolating, allowing our staff to put measures in place to
protect both students and our staff.

In October 2020, we launched new features for our student
website. It delivers a more fiexible, user-friendly platform
that enables customers to self-serve. Key to this was the
delivery of our simplified booking journey, where we
reduced the length of the process by 50%. Simplifying

the booking journey resulted in a 47% improvement in
conversion rate YaY during November and December.

In Felrruary 2021, we launched a new group booking tool
and marketing campaign to target groups of students who
might atherwise look to house share in the private rented
sector. We have had encouraging early take-up, particularly
from new customers to Unite, supporting our ambitions to
capture market share from the HMO sector.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

“Universities increasingly recognise the impartance of high-
quality, affordable accommodation in their ability to attract
and retain students and ensure their satisfaction.”

PROPERTY REVIEW

EPRA NTA growth

EPRA NTA per share reduced by 3% to 818p at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: 847p) with IFRS net assets

per share down 4% to 809p (31 December 2019: 845p).

In total, EPRA net tangible assets were £3,266 million at

31 December 2020, up from £3,087 million a year earlier.

The main drivers of the 29p per share reduction in EPRA
NTA per share were:

The reduction in the value of the Group’s share of
investment assets due to income deductions relating to
Covid-19 disruption ({(30)p} and maodest yield expansion
{5)p)

+ A provision far the replacement of HPL cladding ((8)p)

+ Theimpact of the share placing at a premium to NAY
+1p)

* Swap cancellation and debt break fees ((8)p), primarily
related to repayment of the Group's secured debt
facilities

« Integration costs relating to the acquisition of Liberty
Living ((2)p}

+ The positive impact of retained profits and other items
(+23p)

Diluted pence

£m per share
EPRA NTA as at 31 Dec 2019 3,087.0 847
Rental growth {118.6) (30)
Cladding provision (33.8) (8}
Yield movement (18.5) (5)
Share placing 294.0 1
Swap cancellation and
debt break fees (30.1) (8)
tntegration costs (9.2) (2)
Retained prafits/cther 95.6 23
EPRA NTA at 31 Dec 2020 3,266.2 8138
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Changes in EPRA guidelines

In October 2019, EPRA issued updated best practice
recommendations, including new definitions of NAY
measures, which became effective for the Group on 1
January 2020. The revision includes the introduction of
EPRA Net Tangible Assets (NTA), which is now the most
relevant NAV measure for the Group, and will become our
primary NAV measure going forward. EPRA NTA adjusts
EPRA NAV, our existing key NAV measure, by excluding
intangible assets.

The table below summarises the difference in EPRA NTA
and EPRA NAV as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020. A full reconciliation of the EPRA measures, from the
old to new methodology can be found in note 2.3c to the
financial statements.

31December 31 December Change

2020 2019 from

EPRA NAV per share 823p 853p {4)%
EPRANTA per share 818p B47p {31%

Property portfolio

The valuation of our property portfelio at 31 December
2020, including our share of gross assets held in USAF

and LSAV, was £5,182 milliant (31 Decermber 2019: £5,225
million). The £43 million reduction in portfolio value (Unite
share) was attributable to:

* Vaiuation reductions of £164 million on the investment
and development partfolios, reflecting £ for £ reductions
in value for income shortfalls due to Covid-19

+ Capital expenditure on developments of £92 million,
including interest capitalised

+ Capital expenditure of £48 miltion on investment assets
relating to refurbishment, asset management initiatives
and warks to replace HPL cladding

*+ Disposals of £10 million

A net revaluation loss of £9 million on [eased properties
The see-through net initial yield of the portfolio was
5.0% at 31 Decemnber 2020 (December 2019: 5.0%). Yields

have remained broadly stable on investment assets held
throughout the year.



Ssummary balance sheet

31 Decemnber 2020

31 December 2019
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Wholly owned  Share of Fund/Jv Total Wholly owned  Share of Fund/|V Total
fm £m Em £Em £m £m
Rental properties 3,615 1,278 4,893 3,407 1,296 4,703
Rental properties (leased) 102 - 102 110 - 110
Properties under development 187 - 187 412 - 412 @
Total property 3,204 1,278 5,182 3,929 1,296 5,225 g
Net debt (1,326) {416) {1,742) (1,450) {434) (1,884) 2
Lease liability (96) - (96) (99) - (99) g
Qther assets/(liabilities) (40) (38) (78) (142) (13} {155)
EPRA net tangible assets 2,442 824 3,266 2,238 849 3,087
The proportion of the property portfolio that is income generating is 96% by value, up from 92% at 31 December 2019,
Properties under development have reduced to 4% of our property portfolio by value {31 December 2019: 8%) following
delivery of our 2020 development completions. Our development pipeline carries greater operational risk than the income
generating portfolia but delivers attractive risk-adjusted returns, which we expect to materially contribute to the group’s
future earnings growth. _n_
The investment portfolio is 35% weighted to London by value on a Unite share basis, which will rise to 41% on a built-out é
basis following completion of our secured development pipeline. a
{’_/r}
Unite investment portfolio analysis at 31 December 2020 =
Wholly owned USAF LSAV Lease Tatal Unite share '3
London Value (Em) 1,137 401 1.054 17 2,609 1,770 @
Beds 4,177 1,863 5,29 260 11,591 35%
Properties 12 5] 12 1 31
Prime provincial Value (Em) G49 647 - 25 1,621 1,117
Beds 7,645 5,337 - 618 13,600 22%
Properties 17 18 - 2 37 L
Major provincial Value {Em) 1,256 1,467 270 29 3,022 1,743 o
Beds 18,058 19,507 3,067 753 41,385 35% 7
Properties 37 48 1 2 88 =
Provincial Value (Em) 273 284 - 31 588 365 §:
Beds 4,958 3,520 - 1,059 9,537 7% g
Properties 1 10 - 3 24 g'
Total Value (Em) 3.615 2,799 1.324 102 7,840 4,995
Beds 34,838 30,227 8,358 2,650 76,113 100%
Properties 77 82 13 g 180
Unite ownership 100% 22% 50% 100%
share Value (£m) 3,615 616 662 102 4,995
23 L
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Development and University partnership activity

Development and University partnership activity continues
to be a significant driver of growth in future earnings

and NAV and is aligned to our strategic focus on high

and mid-ranked Universities. Our pipeline of traditionat
development and University partnerships includes 3,968
beds with a total development cost of £599 million, of
which 2,023 beds or 70% by development cost will be
delivered in central London.

We continue to identify new development and University
partnership opportunities that deliver our target returns
in both London and the regions. In particular, we see an
emerging development opportunity in London, following
a softening in land values and lower viahility for some
competing uses. We expect to add to our pipeline during
2021 and maintain a run-rate of ¢.1,500-2,000 new beds
per annum.

The anticipated yield on cost of this secured pipeline is
6.4%. Prospective returns on new direct-let schemes
remain attractive at around 8% in provincial markets.
We have lower hurdle rates for developments that are
supported by Universities or where another developer
is undertaking the higher risk activities of planning and
construction. The new London Plan requires student
accommodation to secure a nomination agreement
with one or more Universities for the majority of rooms,
meaning we expect new London developments to be
delivered as University partnerships with development
yields of 6.0-6.5%. University partnerships make up
around 75% by vaiue of our secured development pipeline.

We have contractually fixed our exposure to construction
costs on all schemes completing in 2022, which
substantially de-risks our cost risk. We have brought
forward the procurement of all critical items supplied from
European countries on our 2022 completions to mitigate
any potential risks from disruption to supply chains.

2020 compietions

We completed 2,257 beds across three new schemes
during 2020 despite disruption caused to construction
activity as a result of Covid-19 lockdowns and new social
distancing measures on site. Around 40% of these beds
are let to Universities under nomination agreements for
the 2020/21 academic year, with an average duration of 22
years, supporting our ongoing focus on quality of income.

Our 976-bed University partnership scheme at White Rose
View in Leeds, was completed on schedule in September,
just under 60% of the beds in the scheme are let to the
University of Leeds on a 30-year nomination agreement,
helping to strengthen our relationship with one of the UK’s
leading Universities.
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Our schemes at Artisan Heights in Manchester Arch View
House in Wembley, both saw defays to completions as a
result of disruption caused by Covid-19. The schemes have
since completed, allowing students to occupy the buildings
from early 2021. The delays were clearly communicated

to both student and University customers with students
offered the opportunity to move to alternative Unite
accommodation in the vicinity of both assets. Under the
terms of the forward fund agreement for Arch View House,
the shortfall in 2020/21 income fs covered by the devefoper,

2022 completions

The decision was taken in March to delay the delivery of
Middlesex Street in London and Qld BRI in Bristol from
2021 to 2022, reflecting the priority of conserving cash
during a period of significant uncertainty over income.
The decision resulted in a cash saving of £72 million
during 2020.

Development has now been recommenced across both
sites, supporting delivery for the 2022/23 academic
year. Old BRI is |et to the University of Bristol under a
15-year nomination agreement and we are working with
King's College London towards a long-term nomination
agreement at Middlesex Street,

Development pipeline

During the year, we used the proceeds of our share placing
to secure two new development and University partnership
schemes for a total development cost of ¢.£175 million for
delivery in 2023,

In July, we agreed to acquire a 300-bed development site in
central Edinburgh, which forms part of a wider mixed-use
redevelopment. We are targeting delivery of the direct-

let development for the 2023/24 academic year, having
secured planning in [ate 2020. Total development costs are
estimated to be £24 million, delivering a development yield
of 8.3%.

In November, we exchanged contracts to acquire a new
800-bed development site in Paddington, central London
on a subject to planning basis. Total development costs
are estimated to be ¢.£150 million, to be funded frem
the proceeds of our recent equity issue. The scheme

is targeted for delivery for the 2023/24 academic year,
subject to planning approval, and is expected to deliver
a development yield of 6.5%. The development will
target a BREEAM Excellent rating and incorporate a
range of design features to reduce its embodied and
operational carbon, supporting our transition to net
zero development and operations.



University partnerships pipeline

In addition to the significant number of our beds and
income underpinned by long-term University-backed
nomination agreements, we continue to make progress
with our strategy of delivering sustainable growth through
partnerships with Universities.

During 2020, we completed a new University partnership
with the University of Bristol, covering around 3,000 beds
in Bristol, This will include a large proportion of Unite's
existing operational assets in the city following targeted
investments as well as the 431-bed Old BRI development
and the 596-bed Temple Quay development in close
proximity to the University's new Temple Quarter campus.

Secured development and partnerships pipeline

Total

The long-term agreement strengthens our long-standing
and valuable relationship with the University.

At our new development site in Paddingtan, central
London we intend to deliver the scheme as a University
Partnership in line with requirements in the new London
Plan for the majority of new beds to be leasedto a

HE provider. The development will help to meet the
growing need for high quality, purpose-built student
accommodation in London and discussions are already
underway with University partners to support the scheme
through planning, with a view to agreeing a long-term
nomination agreement.

Total

completed development Capex in Capex Forecast NAY Forecast
Target Secured beds value costs period remaining remaining yield on
delivery No. £m £m £m £m £m cost %
Direct-let development
Derby Read, Nottingham' 2023 620 64 48 1 45 16 8.0%
Wyvil Road, London 2023 270 100 80 0 62 21 6.2%
Abbey Lane, Edinburgh 2023 298 33 24 1 22 9 8.3%
Total direct-let development 1,188 197 152 2 129 46 7.1%
University partnerships
Middlesex Street, London 2022 920 280 187 59 85 55 6.0%
Old BRI, Bristol 2022 431 59 44 4 19 9 6.2%
Temple Quarter, Bristol’ 2023 596 85 67 1 65 18 6.2%
TP Paddington, London! 2023 833 210 149 2 148 60 6.5%
Total University partnerships 2,780 634 447 66 317 142 6.2%
Total pipeline (Unite share) 3,968 831 599 68 446 188 6.4%

1. Subject to obtaining planning consent.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Future partnership opportunities

Reflecting the financial and operational constraints faced
by Universities, there is a growing appetite for partnerships
with leading operators. We see opportunities te capitalise
on our brand and the goodwill created by our response

to Covid-19 to accelerate and enhance our pipeline of
University partnerships.

Through our Higher Education Engagement team, we

are in discussions for new University partnerships with

a range of Universities. These discussions often cover a
range of potentiat solutions on a city-wide basis, refiecting
each University's specific accommodation needs. These
strategic discussions may include multi-year nomination
agreements for our existing operational assets, on-campus
and off-campus developments and stock transfer. We are

in active discussions with three high-tariff Universities for
around 7,000 existing and new heds, which we are looking to
progress over the next 12-18 months. |n addition, we have a
significant further pipeline of medium-term opportunities.

The nature of these discussions and the commitment
required by both parties means that some opportunities
wiil fall away. However, we strongly believe that the
operational complexity borne by Universities in dealing
with Covid-19 and the negative impact on their finances will
create new opportunities for University partnerships in the
near to medium term. There remains a compelling rationale
for Universities to work with us to deliver operational
efficiencies and provide the new accommodation required
to deliver their future growth ambitions.

26

Disposal activity

We continue to manage the quality of the portfolio and
our balance sheet leverage by recycling capital through
disposals and reinvesting into developments and
acquisitions of assets aligned to the best Universities.
During the year, the Group’s share of disposals was
£10 million, in line with book value,

We are targeting £200-300 million of disposals in 2021
{Unite share), slightly above historical levels, in anticipation
of improving liquidity as greater visibility emerges over
occupancy and income for the 2621/22 academic year.
These targat disposals, combined with rental growth, are
intended to ensure that we meet our target LTV of 35% and
underpin our abifity ta sustain rental growth over a longer
time horizon.

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
16 March 2021



MARKET REVIEW

The outlook for student numbers
remains strong with significant

demographic growth and

growing demand from
international students.

Growth in placed applicants (2020/21 vs 2019/20)

20%

15% - -

13.2%
10%
55 37%
1.1%
0%
UK Other EU Non-EU High Mediurm Low
Domicile Unlversity tarifi

Source: UCAS

Full-time student numbers reached record levels of two
million for the 2G19/20 academic year. The number of
applicants and the number of students accepted onto
courses in 2020 was 729,000 and 570,000 respectively
(2015: 706,000 and 541,000). A 5.4% YoY increase in
acceptances was driven by a record participation rate
among UK 18 year olds and a 17% increase in acceptances
from non-EU students.

The initial applications data for the 2021/22 academic year
is very encouraging, with overall applications up 8.5%. UK
applications are up by 12%, reflecting a record application
rate of 43% for school leavers (2020/21: 40%) as well as
strong growth from mature students. Non-EU applications
increased by 17% YoY, reflecting strong demand from China
and India, which substantially offset the 40% decline in EU
students following the loss of home fee status and access
to tuition fee loans post-Brexit.

Given disruption caused by Covid-19, the Government has
stated that A-Level students will not be in a position to sit
their exams fairly this summer. As a result, grades will be
awarded based on teacher assessments to allow students
to progress fairly.

The outlook for student numbers remains strong.
Demagraphic growth is significant over the next decade,
with the 18-year-old population returning to 2010’s height
by 2024 and continuing to grow strongly thereafter. This
would imply demand for argound 220,000 additional UK
undergraduate places by 2030 at current participation rates.
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MARKET REVIEW CONTINUED

We do not expect this new demand to be distributed
evenly, with growth likely to be concentrated in high-tariff
and teaching-led Universities delivering strong graduate
cutcomes. Regional differences in demographics are also
significant - London sees the greatest demographic growth
aver the next 10-15 years and is therefore expected to see
the greatest increase in places required (HEPI).

18-year-old participation rate

45% 37.0%

40% % 3260 330% ‘3‘”%
] :

' 31.9
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35%  28.3% 745 288% 298 I
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Source: UCAS

The UK Government’s international education strategy is
targeting growth in international student numbers to at
least 600,000 by 2030, representing at least an additional
80,000 international students. In September 2019, the
Government announced a new two-year post-study work visa
for international students (three years for postgraduates),
starting from the 2020/21 academic year. The change has
already aided the UK's international competitiveness in the
Higher Education sector, leading to significant growth in
demand from China and India over the past two years. The
Government is actively seeking to broaden the demand pool
from international markets with opportunities for the UK to
increase its market share of student arrivals from Africa and
Asian countries, outside of China.

Higher Education policy

In January 2021, the Gavernment published its interim
conclusions on the Augar review of post-18 education and
funding. The Government’s key objectives are to drive up the
quality of Higher Education provision, promote accessibility
for students and maintain a financiaily sustainable student
finance system. This will include consideration of the Augar
Report's recormmendations, including student finance
terms and conditions, minimum entry requirements and
the treatment of foundation years. The final conclusions

on the Augar review will be published alongside the next
Government Comprehensive Spending Review.

The Government also published its Skills for Jobs White
Paper in January 2021, setting out a blueprint for a post-
16 educatian system that enables every student with the
aptitude and desire to go to University to be able to do so,
alongside enhanced provision of technical qualifications,

28

Forecast growth in UK 18-year old population
and UK acceptances to University
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aligned to the needs of employers. This includes a new
Lifetime Skills Guarantee, giving access to a lifelong lean
entitlement equivalent to four years of post-18 education.

We are encouraged by the Government’s commitment to
post-18 education and remain confident that our strategy of
delivering high quality, affordable homes for students and
relationships with the best Universities in the UK pasitions us
to successfully navigate future policy changes in these areas.

Impact of Brexit

From 1 January 2021, EU students planning to study in

the UK will be required to apply far a student visa unless
exempt due to pre-settled status or Irish nationality. EU
students starting their courses in 2020/21 or before will
continue tq benefit from home fee status and have access
to tuition fee loans for the duration of their courses. £U
undergraduate students starting courses from 2021/22 will
no ionger benefit from home fee status, meaning tuition
fees are expected to rise by more than 50% on average
fram £9,250 to the higher rates paid on average by nan-EU
students. EU students will also no longer have accessto a
tuition fee loan.

The number of EU students studying in the UK
increased to 135,000 in 2019/20, made up by 100,000
undergraduates and 35,000 postgraduate students.
EU students account for 9% of our let bed spaces for
the 2020/21 academic year, UCAS applications for
2021722 report a 40% reduction in applications from
EU undergraduates, reflecting the impact of Brexit and
travel restrictions linked to Covid-19, If this reduction is
sustained over the coming years, it would equate to a
reduction of around 3% of total students by 2023.

The Government has announced a new £100 million
Turing Scheme for around 35,000 students to study and
wark abroad, which will replace the UK's participation in
Erasmus+ starting from September 2021. The trade and
cooperation agreement with the EU also enables the UK to
continue to participate in the EU's Harizon 2020 Research
and Innovation programmes,



Resilient occupancy and rental growth

The UK PBSA market delivered rental growth of 1.8%

for the 2020/21 academic year {(Cushman & Wakefield),

a reduction on the 2.6% delivered in 2019/20, reflecting
weaker occupancy as a result of disruption created by
Covid-19. [LLs Student Housing Leasing Survey reported

a reduction in occupancy to 83% in 2020/21 from 98% in
2019/20, with average tenancy lengths also reduced due to
operators offering flexible start dates in response to delays
to University term dates.

Across the sector, beds under nominatian or lease
agreements produced rental growth of 2.2% in 2020/21,
above the 1.5% rental growth delivered by direct-let beds.
This reflects short-term pressure on direct-let rents in
markets with a high dependence on international students,
where occupancy was more significantly impacted by
Covid-19. We remain focused on providing a cluster-led
ensuite product at more affordable price points, which
aligns with the requirements of our University partners.

Regional markets delivered rental growth of 1.9% for
2020/21, outperforming the 0.8% growth witnessed in
London where accupancy tends to over-index towards
internationaf students (CBRE). However, this masks a
significant spread in performance at a city level with Prime
regional markets delivering 3.0% rental growth, while
Secondary markets saw a 0.7% decline in rents.

Rental growth by geography (2020/21})

4%
3%

2% -

.

London

..

Super Prime Prime Regional Secondary

Source: CBRE

Current UK inflation implies a slight reduction in rental
growth from multi-year nomination agreements with fixed
or inflation-linked annual rental increases for 2021722

to around 2%. Based on our expectation of an enhanced
campus experience for students and a relaxation of
international travel restrictions, we anticipate a return to
full occupancy and positive rental growth in 2021/22.

Strong investment appetite

The PBSA sector's strong fundamentals and a track record
of consistent rental growth continues to attract significant
volumes of capital, despite a reduction in investment
volumes in the wider UK real estate sector due to political
uncertainties. Approximately £6 billion of assets traded

in 2020 (CBRE), in line with record transaction volumes
witnessed in 2015, In February 2020, Blackstone agreed to
acquire iQ’s 28,000-bed portfolio for £4.7 billion. The price
translated to a material premium to the underlying market
value of iQ’s property portfolio, illustrating the willingness
of investors to attribute value to the brand, operating and
development capabilities of major operators. We expect
the increasing focus on operating platforms and scale to
drive further continued consolidation of the PBSA sector
in the UK, The remaining £1.3 billion of assets traded in the
year were largely single small portfolios or single assets, in
line with previous years.

There remains a strong appetite to deploy capital in the sector,
with investment demand principaliy coming from international
or institutional investors. As the sector has matured, investors
have become more focused regarding strength of location, the
health of local Universities, building amenities and fire safety.
Given lower visibility over occupancy for the 2020/21 and
2021/22 academic years due to Covid-19, transaction pricing is
likely to be stronger where sellers are willing to provide a one-
year income guarantee to buyers.

For the 2020/21 academic year, average weekly ensuite
rents for carporate PBSA ranged from £125-175 per week
in major provincial markets and £238 per week in London
(Cushman & Wakefield). This compares to Unite's average
ensuite rent of £137 in provincial markets and £219in
London. The largest segment of PBSA demand remains
at a price point of between £100 to £150 per week, where
there is also the opportunity to attract more non-1st year
students from the private rented sector. More than two
thirds 69% of Unite beds in provincial markets are priced
below £150 per week.

UK student accommodation investment volumes

£bn
7

2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 2017 2018 2019 2020

Source: CBRE B Portfolos [ Single assets
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MARKET REVIEW CONTINUED

“The PBSA sector’s strong fundamentals and a track record of consistent
rental growth continues to attract significant volumes of capital.”

Stable property yields

Yields in the sector have remained stable over the past
year, reflecting continued investor demand and the resilient
income characteristics of the sector. However, we continue
to see a growing divergence in pricing between prime and
secondary markets. Landan and Prime regional assets saw
modest yield compression in 2020, reflecting valuation
evidence provided by Blackstone's acguisition of iQ and
other market transactions as wel! as the strong growth in
applications for high-tariff Universities.

Demand for secondary and tertiary assets has reduced,
resulting in yields in some provincial markets continuing

to drift higher. This reflects a weakening demand-supply
balance in some cities where student numbers are reducing
or significant new supply is yet to be fully absorbed. In
aggregate, these markets account for less than 10% of our
portfolio valuation on a see-through basis. However, we
consider income performance and asset pricing to be well
supported in good-quality secondary markets, providing
value-for-money accommodation with the potential to attract
students from the private rented sector.

Loaking forward, we see yields remaining broadly stable
in 2021, albeit with continuing polarisation between
prime and secandary markets in a competitive market for
student numbers.

An indicative spread of direct-let yields by location is
outlined below:

31Dgc 2020 31 Der 2012
London 3.90-4.25%  4.00-4.25%
Prime provincial 4.50-5.00% 4.50-5.00%
Major provincial 5.00-6.00% 5.00-5.50%
Provincial 6.25-7.50% 6.00-7.25%

New supply expected to slow

The PBSA sector now provides homes to over 680,000
students, representing around one-third of the UK’'s
student population. At this level, there still rernains a
¢.310,000 shortfall in beds compared to the numbers of
1st-year and international students, before taking account
of the increasing numbers of 2nd and 3rd-year students
who are choosing this type of accommodation.
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2020 saw the delivery of an additional 25,000 beds across 32
different UK markets, of which just over half was delivered in
the 27 cities in which Unite operates, New supply in London
remains very constrained, with fess than 2,000 beds delivered
in the year, reflecting limited land supply and more restrictive
planning requirements for student accommodation in the
new London plan,

A number of schemes planned for delivery in 2021 have

been delayed as a result of Covid-19. This includes our
developrnents at Middlesex Street in London and Old BRI in
Bristol, which will now be delivered for the 2022/23 academic
year. As a result of these delays, we expect new supply across
the UK to reduce to around 20,000 beds in 2021 and then
further thereafter due to funding constraints faced by some
smaller developers and more restrictive planning policy
towards PBSA.

The new London Plan requires new student
accommodation developments to secure a nromination
agreement with one or more Higher Education providers as
well as the provision of at least 35% of units at affordable
student rents. Moreover, local authorities are increasingly
keen to promote new supply in the Build to Rent (BTR)
sector, creating increased competition for development
sites in major UK cCities. We see a clear trend towards
mixed-use planning consents, incorporating BTR units
and co-living alongside student accommodation. These
factors increase barriers to entry for new PBSA supply,
however we remain confident in our ability to secure

new development opportunities thanks to cur (ong-held
University relationships, flexible operating platform and
highly experienced development team.

Development costs relatively stable

Activity in the UK construction sector was negatively
impacted by the first national lockdown in 2020, but has
since rebounded in line with wider business confidence.
Lower activity overall has seen tender cost inflation
moderate despite an increase in input cost inflation for
some materials. Overall, we anticipate build costs to remain
broadly flatin 2021 and with increases of 2-3% in 2022.



Land prices have softened slightly in regional markets
over the past year. This reflects some caution on the part
of developers given greater uncertainty around funding
in the current environment. Land price inflation has been
particularly muted for larger sites capable of delivering
greater than 500 beds, which remain the target for our
land purchasing. In London, land values have weakened
over the past year as a result of depressed activity in both
the office, hotel and built-for-sale residential sectors, This
has improved the viability of student accommodation in
zones 1 and 2 in central London, where we once again
see opportunities to acquire sites which meet our hurdle
rates for development. The scale and duration of this
opportunity is uncertain given resilient investment activity
in other sectors during H2 2020, which may create more
competition for development sites.

35,000
30,000
25,000

20,000

15000 -

10,600

5,000

New supply of PBSA beds

1,302 457
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

The way we operate ensures we
\ deliver for students, University

partners, employees and

investors.

OUR CORL PRINCIPLES

.

ocus on
UK student
accommodation

—

Alignment to
the strongest
Universities

]

High quality,
well-located purpose
built homes

HOW WE CREAIE VALUE WHAT WE DO
[

_—

Best-in-class
aperating
platform

Unrivalled scale
and efficiency across
76,000 beds

1,900 committed
people

=

Value-for-money
accommodation,
focused on
shared living

-

4

Leadership on
sustainability, health
safety and security

r

T

Disciplined capital
management, new
capital to pursue

3
]

growth opportunities \

K

e

Strategic
partnerships
with over 60
Universities

Significant and growing
development pipeline

—

—

— —

Unique student
insights
and expertise

Operate

01

We operate and manage 76,000

beds across the UK. Our scale and PRISM
operating platform aliows us to deliver
the best customer experience and

Lsectorleading operating margins.

_ |

Invest

02

We seek to continuously enhance

our portfclio through acquisition,
refurbishment and disposals, to ensure
we have the best buildings, aligned to
the strongest Universities.

Our development activity delivers new
beds in supply-constrained markets.

!
\
\
‘

——————

.TPartner

\

03

We partner with Universities to deliver

their long-term accommodation strategies.

Our Higher Education Engagement
Team work closely with Universities
to identify new opportunities for
University partnerships.

|
|

\

]

4



WHAT WE DELIVER

OUR STUDENTS

A Home for Success that is
safe and secure with support
when it's needed

OUR UNIVERSITIES

A trusted partner,
helping to attract and
retain students

QUR PEOPLE

Providing opportunities
for all, whatever their
background, gender

or ethnicity

OUR INVESTORS
Superior total returns

5-star
rating by
the BSC

Read more on
page 02

2,780

bed pipeline for
long-term University
partnerships
Read mare on
page 14

+/4

employee engagement
during the year

Read more on
page 41

19% p.a.

total shareholder
return since 2011

Read more on
page 42
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OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Our business focuses around our core purpose;
Home for Success supported by a values led
culture and underpinned by a focus on

the following areas.

STRATEGIC PILLARS CURRENT STRATEGIC FQCUS

—
. + Maintain high occupancy, while increasing year-

Quallty round utilisation

Service + Deliver sustainable value-driven rental growth

= Deliver efficiency improvements through our
p|atf0rm proprietary operating piatform

+ Researchinte the needs of today's students to

H O ] enhance the service we provide

| . * Portfolio optimisation through development,
Quallty disposal, acquisition and lifecycle investments to
. ensure we have the right properties in the right
propertles locations, aligned with the strongest Universities

*  Ensuring our buildings are safe and secure for

02 our customers and people

I.t 7 » Strengthen our partnerships with Universities
Qua I y i | *+ Growthe proportion of beds aligned to high and
University mid-ranked Universities

o » Continue to increase the guality of nomination
partnerships agreements

*  Pursue new oppaortunities for University

O 3 partnerships across existing and new beds
L

T . T + Becoming net zero carbon by 2030 —‘
A responSIbIe 1| = Creating resilient resource efficient assets
and resilient and operations
. * Enhancing the health and wellbeing of our
business i employees and students

+ Providing opportunities for all, including

students, employees and the communities
04 we work with

34



24,000
beds

Successful integration
of Liberty Living
portfolio

33%

Occupancy rate
across our portfolio
for 2020/21

38/7%

Beds now aligned to
high and mid-ranked
Universities

2020 IN REVIEW OBJECTIVES FOR 2021 LINKS TO PERFORMANCE

80% contracled veeupdncy and 1,1%
growth in weekly rents for 2020/21

All properties remained operational
throughout the Covid-19 pandemic

Covid Secure status accredited by the
British Safety Council

Delivered £15 million of cost savings over
surnmer 2020 in response to Covid-19
Successful integration of Liberty Living's
24,000 bed portfalio

Increased run-rate for Liberty Living cost
synergies to £18 millien

Return to full occupancy and
positive rental growth for the
2021/22 academic year

Mitigate income disruption from
Covid-19 through targeted cost
savings

Research and develepment of our
operating model of the future

1
Earnings Per Share

Like-for-like rental growth
EBIT margin

Higher Education Trust score
Customer Satisfaction score
Employee Engagement score
Safety

Read more about our Quality
service platform on page 17

2,257 new beds opened for 2020/21,
with 40% of beds secured under
nomination agreements

Full provision made for replacement of
HPL cladding on 19 properties

Targeting £200-300 million of
disposals to enhance the guality of
our portfolio

Increase alignment of cur portfolio
te high and mid-ranked Universities
Secure new sites for the
development pipeline

Secure planning on 2023
development completions

Earnings Per Share

NTA per share

Total accounting return
Higher Education Trust score

Customer Satisfaction score

Like-for-like rental growth

>

Read more about our Quality
properties on page 22 |

Reputation enhanced through our
response to Covid-19 and support for
students

87% of beds aligned ta high and mid-
ranked Universities

Completed 3,000 bed University
partnership with the University of Bristol

Pursue additional University
partnership schemes to deliver
further growth and iong-term
security of income

Increase beds under iong-term
namination agreements

Improve Higher Education
Trust score

Earnings Per Share
Total accounting return
WAULT of nomination agreements

9% alignment to high and mid-ranked
Universities

Higher Education trust score

&

Read more about our Quality
University partnerships on page 14

The first purpose-built student
accommedation provider to forgo 2020
summer term rents

First student accommodation provider to
be accredited Covid Secure by the BSC

Increased provision and access to
student weflbeing and mental health
support

Board approval for our new Sustainability
Strategy

Managed cash, liquidity and covenants
through Covid-19

LTV reduced to 34% through proceeds of
equity issue

Stakeholder engagement around
new Sustainability Strategy

New Sustainability Committee
formed to oversee implementation
of Sustainability Strategy
Publication of Sustainable Finance
Framewerk and net zero roadmap

Greater transparency around
diversity and inclusion data

BSC Health & Safety audit

CO, emissions per bed

Energy and water intensity per bed
EPCratings

Employee Engagement score |
Gender and ethnic diversity

Scholarships through the Unite |
Foundation

LTV
Average debt maturity

Read more about our Respaonsible
and resilient business on page 46
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DIRECTORS’ DUTIES AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Our Section 172 Statement.

Meeting the needs and expectations of our stakeholders

is fundamental to the delivery of our purpose, Home for
Success. Acting in the fong-term interests of all of our key
stakeholders, including students, our people, Universities, the
communities we operate in, our suppliers and our investors
is central to the Board's decision-making process and belps
shape the Group’s strategy. Ouy Board also considers the
impact of the Company's operations on the environment

and the long-term risks posed by climate change.

The Board maintains oversight of the Company's
performance, and reserves specific matters for approval,
including significant new strategic initiatives and major
decisions relating to capital raising and allocation.

The Board receives regular updates from the Executive
team, as weli as the wider senior management team
including the Group People Director, the Director of
Strategy and Investar Relations, the Group Energy &
Environmental Manager, the Higher Education Director,
Head of Fund Management and the Group Legal Director
and Company Secretary. Through measurement against
long-term ohjectives, the Board monitors that management
is acting in accordance with its agreed strategy and the
long-term interests of our key stakeholders.

The following sets out key examples of the Board's response
and its decision making through 2020 when performing its
duties under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006:

Section 172

Overview

Relevant links

The long-
term

Our people

Business
relationships
with
suppliers,
our students
and partners

Community
and the
environment

High
standards
of business
conduct

Qur
Investors

The Board is committed to acting in the long-term interests of all of our key stakeholders.

The decisions made in response to Covid-19 were taken with consideration for the long-
term success of the business, our reputation and our desire toa show leadership within
the student accommodation sector. The Company’s long-term business strategy was also
reviewed by the Beard during the year.

Our people are central to our success as a business.

The Board has kept up-to-date with the latest methods of employee engagement,
particulariy important given the challenges of Covid-19 and remote working. The Board
receives regular updates through our designated workforce engagement Non-Executive
Director, Elizabeth McMeikan, who attends Employee Panel Forum meetings.

The Board understands the importance of fostering business relationships with students,
University partners and suppliers.

The Board considered the impact on students and Universities when making decisions
to waive rent in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Consideration was also given to the
impact on our supply chain from delays to the delivery of property developments.

The Board recognises the increasing importance of climate change and the impact our
business has on the communities in which we cperate. Community engagement is an
important part of how we operate and design our buildings.

A new Sustainability Strategy was reviewed and approved by the Board during the year,
including new targets around our environmental impact and greater ambition around the
social vaiue we create in our communities.

Delivering our Company purpose of providing a Home for Success can only be achieved
through the highest standards of business conduct.

Qur values set our standards of conduct, These were refreshed following the Liberty
Living acquisition to include a new value Creating Room for Everyone.

The Board recognises that acting fairly in the interests of all shareholders improves the
Company's governance, increases investors' confidence and reduces our cost of capital.

This year we have regularly engaged with our investors on our performance through
the challenges of Covid-19 and also consulted with a significant number of sharehaolders
prior to the June 2020 share placing.

Business maodel page 32

Risk management report
page 64

Board Decision Making
pages 102 and 103

Emgployee engagement
page 94

Covid-19 case study
page 02

Sustainability report
page 46

Cur values page 90

Governance report
page 82

Shareholder engagement
pages 38 and 39
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Taking stakeholders views into account

in Board decision making

The Covid-19 pandemic resulted in significant disruption
to the Group's operational and development activities
with implications for all of the Group's key stakeholders,
The Board had regular videc conference calls with the
Executive team in addition to the scheduled Board
meetings to help oversee and agree the Company’s
response to Covid-19. This helped to ensure timely and
well-informed decision making in a period of rapidtly
changing circumstances. The Board considered the

long term implications for the business, and the views
of our wider stakeholders, when making the following
key decisions:

* The Board took the decision to forgo rent for students
who chose to return home for the remainder of the
2019/20 academic year and extend tenancies at no
cost for students unable to return home at the end of
their tenancies, The Board took this decision in light
of its responsibility to do the right thing for students,
while protecting the Group’s brand and reputation
with parents, Universities and Government, However,
the Board also considered the significant financial cost
of this move to investors, as well as the Company’s
ongoing ability to comply with covenants under
its debt facilities, With all our properties open and
operational throughout the first national lockdown,
the Board supported the decision to collect rent under
nomination agreements where the Group contracts
directly with Universities.

* The Board took the decision to cancel the 2019 final
dividend in March 2020 and later suspend the 2020
interim dividend to conserve cash in the business.
Throughout the year, the Board regularly re-visited
this decision, taking account of the Company’s
requirements to distribute dividends as part of its
REIT status and its objective of delivering sustainable,
growing dividends to sharehglders,

* The Board continues to manitor progress on the
planned works to remove HPL cladding on 19 affected
properties. All our buildings have been independently
confirmed as safe to occupy with special measures put
in place at the affected buildings, including increased
building patrols by staff, additiona! alarm measures
and other property specific factors such as sprinklers,
fire prevention and evacuation plans.

* Engagement with major shareholders also influenced
the Board's decision to proceed with a £300 million
equity issue in June 2020, to fund new opportunities
to add to the Company’s University partnership
and development pipeline at enhanced returns.

The Board agreed to proceed at an issue price at

a premium to prevailing NAV, ensuring no NAV
ditution to existing sharehoiders, and providing new
investment capacity to deliver earnings accretion as
new development opportunities are delivered.

In January 2021, following another national lockdown
and with the Government advising students to
remain at home, the Board recognised the difficulty
students were facing. The Board agreed to support
eligible students by providing a 50% rent discount
for a total of ten weeks and offering a four week rent
free extension to their tenancy agreement over the
summer for students to enjoy their University city
experience. This discount was extended for up to

10 weeks.

For more information on our Covid-19 response, see
pages 2 and 3.

New Sustainability Strategy

The Board understands the growing importance

of climate change and environmental, social and
governance issues for all our stakeholders. With this

in mind, development of a new and more ambitious
Sustainability Strategy was a key objective for the Board
during 2020:

The new Sustainability Strategy was developed
following a process of stakeholder engagement.

The Board reviewed the proposed new Sustainability
Strategy in September 2020 which helped validate

the focus and level of ambition in this strategy.
Subsequently, the Board approved the new strategy
in November 2020 including commitments and
aroadmap ta net zero targets in operations and
developments by 2030 and stronger commitments
around diversity and inclusion in our workforce. The
new Sustainability Strategy recognises the long-term
impact of the Group’s activities on our climate and
society, while also addressing the most material issues
facing our customers, employees, University partners
and communities.

The Board established a Sustainability Committee in
early 2021 to provide formal oversight and challenge
to the execution of the Group’s Sustainability Strategy
going forwards. Sustainability performance measures
are being included in Executive remuneration for the
first time in 2021.

For more information on our Sustainability Strategy,
including the feedback obtained through our stakeholder
engagement exercise, see pages 46 to 63 and for details
on our climate change risk, see page 79.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

OUR STUDENTS

OUR PEOPLE

—

|
|
|

WHO ARE QUR With aimost 30 years’ experience in the student sector, Cur people are at the heart of our business and
STAKEHOLDERS? we understand students’ evolving needs. This unique engaging with our people has been especially
perspective helps us to ensure our students get the most impartant during the Covid-19 pandemic.
out of their University experience and differentiates us
by delivering a better Home for Success.
For more infarmation on our Covid-19 response 3 Formore information on our workforce engagement
seapages2and3 and D&l strategy see pages 94 and 167
L 1
HOW WE * Day-to-day contact with in property teams + This year we adapted our people engagement
ENGAGE = Regular student pulse surveys | strategy given Covid-19 challenges
* Annual survey across the UK student body in partnership * Regular engagement and empioyee pulse surveys on
with the Higher Education Policy Institute a range of topics such as our suppert during Covid-19,
« Our MyUnite app connects flatmates before they move in d|ver%\ty a'er inclusion and develspment of our
* Student ambassadors help new students settle in Sus?tam.ablllty S‘trateg.y )
 Student life website ‘The Common Room’ with student- * Unite Live se.ss.\ons with our C‘EO and key semgr
leaders providing regular business updates with an
created content i X
. . apportunity for our people to ask any guestion
* A Home Charter designed to help foster a supportive .
community for students * Employee panels attended by Non-Executive
. Director, Elizabeth McMeikan
* Leapskills programme for school leavers which helps -
. o * A new employee Cultyre Matters group providing
students prepare for University life d ; .
employees with a dedicated employee driven forum
to discuss diversity and inclusion issues
i | o
« Walved 2019/20 third term rents for students during the * Provided additional special leave to employees with
HAT WE DID
FOLLOWING ' first national lockdown and in light of lockdowns in 2021 caring responsibilities, extending our cycle to work
ENGAGEMENT we offered 50% rent discounts together with a four week scheme all year around and a new flexible working !

complimentary extension into summer 2021
Implemented a range of Covid-19 specific measures

for our students and use of a range of communication
channels including sacial rmedia, text bursts and emails
Enhanced service features in the MyUniteApp including
. self-isolating notification and the ability to notify our

/ teams remotely of maintenance or other assistance

requests

Enhanced student we!fare services, inciuding bespoke
support for students shielding, support for those self-

} isolating, enline welfare checks and a pilot peer-to-pear

scheme

38

pbolicy to balance work with home priorities
* Commenced a programme of training for senior
| leaderswith an externa! diversity and inclusion
/ consultant to help our teams engage in supportive {
diversity and inclusion discussions

i * Launched our refreshed values, on the back of the
completion of the Liberty Living acquisition, with the
inclusion of a new value Creating Room for Everyone

i+ Refreshed our Diversity and Incjusion strategy with
new targets




QUR UNIVERSITIES

OUR INVESTORS

COMMUNITIES, PARTNERS

AND SUPPLIERS

We aim to be a strategic partner to the strongest
Universities, not just a supplier. This means we work
with University partners to deliver solutions which work
for them.

Qur investors and funders are a
key source of our efficient capital
that allows our business to invest
and grow.

We understand the importance of |
building trusted relationships with

our communities, partners and l
suppliers.

For more information on our University partnerships, see
pages 34 and 35

E For mare information on our
business modeiplease see page 32

For more information,
see our Sustainability Strategy
on pages 46 to 63

We investin understanding the long-term aspirations of
Universities including their accommedation requirements
and service expectaticns. This is achieved through:

* Our local management teams working closely with
University accemmodation and student services teams

¢+ Our dedicated Higher Education team engaging regularly
with Vice Chancellors and University leadership teams

* The Unite Foundation working in partnership with
27 Universities to provide suppaort to students from
challenging backgrounds

In light of Covid-19, this year the annual Higher Education

Trust Survey was not undertaken but regular dialogue was
maintained with Universities throughout the year.

We aim to produce balanced

and transparent reporting and
communications to allow our
investors to best understand our
business and strategy, key risks

and how we deliver leng-term
sharehaolder value. This year we
increased our communications to
Investors with regular trading and
business updates te keep investors
informed of our performance and
decisions made during the pandemic,
We significantly increased the
volume of meetings for investors
and lenders throughout 2020, often
in response to ad hoc requests, to
provide maximum transparency
around aur response to the changing
environment.

Throughout Covid-19 we have
engaged actively with Government
and laised with Public Health
England. We engaged with key
stakeholders including students,
Universities, our supply chain,
strategic partners, investors, and
our teams across the business to
understand the material issues

in developing our Sustainability
Strategy. We engage with local
decisicn makers including local
councillors and stakehelders during
the planning process for our new
property developments. We wark
closely with our contractors and
conducted a BSC Safety Council
construction audit to understand
areas of improvement.

The Universities we partner with recognise the decisions
we have made during Covid-19 including:

= Allowing students to arrive 14 days befare their 2020/21
tenancy start date rent-free for quarantine needs

*+ Providing delayed start dates for students to checkin
past the usual September start

This year, we have increased our support for Universities

by providing:

+ Our best practice Covid-19 guidelines and FAQs

* Amonthly newsletter to our University partners
outlining cur activity over the previous month and
sharing what we have planned

* Information on planned announcements on rent
refunds and rent discounts

* A Higher Education podcast - Accommodation Matters -
which is available on aur website, Spotify, Pedbean and
Apple Podcasts featuring invited guests from the Higher
Education sector to share learnings.

Our investors understand the
difficult year this has been as
aresult of the pandemic and
appreciate we have had to make
difficult decisions such as canceiling
the final dividend for 2019 and not
paying an interim dividend for 2020.

In June 2020, we consulted with a
significant number of our major
shareholders prior to a successful
£300 million share placing where
we received strong support from

both new and existing shareholders.

The principles of pre-emption
were respected insofar as possible
through the allecation process.

We have developed key themes which
we have incorporated into a new
Sustanability Strategy to address the
areas that matter mostto us and our
stakehofders. We engaged with local
leaders on our Paddington, Bristol
and Edinburgh developments and
keptlacal MPs aware of our actions
relating to Covid-19. Throughout the
pandemic, we warked closely with \
Our contractars to ensure our sites
remained safe and also worked with
our supply chain te mitigate delays

in product and material delivery to
our development sites. We now
provide mental health and counselling
support to contractors and their
sub-contractors.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The business delivered a resilient performance in 2020.

Financial KPIs

EPRA Earnings per share’ {p}

25.5p

Measure ‘
Cur EPRA measure of profit

© per share reflects the level
of income delivered by
operating activities.

’?omment

The business delivered

a resilient financial
performance in 2020 with
EPRA EPS of 25.5, down 35%
YaY. This reflects the impact
of rent rebates for the
summer term of 2019/20
and lower occupancy in

the 2020/21 academic year,
partially offset by cost
savings made during the
year,

- o ]

Target

Deliver meaningful and
sustainable growth in

EPS by achieving high
occupancy, rental growth,
improving operating

. margins and delivering the

development pipeline. '

| Alignment to strategy

—J

EPRA NAV/NTA per share' (p)

818p

Measure

|

Our EPRA NAVINTA per
share measures the market
value of rental properties
and developments less any
debt used to fund them plus
any working capital in the
business.

14.2%

14.4%

(3.47%

Total accounting return (%)

(3)%

F%

34%

Loan-ta-value ratio (%)

34

Measure

The tota! accounting return
to sharehaolders is the ratio
of growth in EPRA NAV/NTA
per share plus dividends
paid as a percentage of
opening EPRA NAV/NTA
per share,

Measure
Qur ratio of net debt to
property velues.

Comment

The NTA decrease has
principally been driven by a
reduction in the value of the
Group's property portfolic,
due to income deductions
in relation to Covid-19
disruption, modest field
expansion and debt exit fees
related to the repayment of
the Group's secured debt,

Further details of the change
in EPRA guidelines can be
i found on page 175.

Camment

The negative total
accounting return in 2020
reflects the valuation loss
in the year and lower EPRA
earrings.

Looking forward we
expect a strong recovery

1 intotal returns fram 2021,

underpinned by a return to
full occupancy and positive
rental growth for the
2020/21 academic year,

| Further details of the change

in EPRA guidelines can be
found on page 175.

Comment

The reduction in LTV during
the year was primarily
driven by the net proceeds
from the Graup's share
placing, which mare than
offset the impact of the
valuation loss.

Ffarget

. To deliver growthin NTA
through a tombination

of rental growth and

development profits.

i

Target

To deliver attractive total
returns, through a balance
of recurring income and
capital growth.

Target

To maintain LTV around the
' 354% level.

L L

L llgnment to strategy

|

Alignment to strategy

\
" Alignment to strategy

|

1. Results are based on the European Public Real Estate Assaciation Performance measures. Reconciliations to IFRS measures are disclesed in nicte 2.2b and 2.3¢.

2. The second block is the NPS score.
40




Operational KPIs

2020

Safety (Number of accidents)

12

Customer satisfaction?

+33

Strategic alignment key
Quality service platform
Quality properties
Quality University partnerships
@ Responsible and resilient business

78
75 +74

2020

Employee Engagement (%)

+74

Higher Education Trust

N/A

Measure

The number of RIDDOR
reportable accidents in
our operations each year
as a means of assessing
our success in approaching

Measure

In 2020 we made the
transition 1o a Net Promoter
Score (NPS) as a more
commercially relevant
customer experience

Measure

We undertake independent,
anonymous surveys
ameongst our employees te
gain regular and insightfui
feedback on who we are as

Measure

We undertake regular
surveys with our Higher
Education customers

to understand their
perception of Unite and
how we meet their needs.

The increasereflects the
enlarged portfolio following
the acquisition of Liberty
Living,

The largest contributor to
the number of reportable
accidents were five Covid-19
incidents which were
reported whilst Public
Health England supported
two cities through initial
unprecedented outbreaks
of Covid-19.

Three customer satisfaction
surveys are typically
undertaken per annum.
The 2020 autumn NPS
check-in survey achieved
ascore of +33, close to the
international benchmark
for heotels in non-Covid-19
times. Covid-19 has meant
further surveys have not
taken place. The chart
data for 2018-2019 reflects
a different measure of
customer satisfaction,
making it non-comparable

with the NPS score for 2020.

This year we changed the
provider to our employee
engagement surveys to
Glint as we helieve more
regular pulse surveys

for our teams provides
more useful management
information. During the
year three pulse surveys
were undertaken ensuring
we kept aware of employee
feedback during Covid-19.
Due to the change in survey
provider the 2620 employee
engagement score is not
directly comparable with
previous measures.

heatth and safety. measure, a company and how we can
continue to improve.
Comment Comment Comment Comment

In light of Covid-1%

and the exceptional
circumstances that
Universities encountered,
we did not undertake our
annual Higher Education
Trust survey. However,
regular engagement with
our University partners
took place throughout the
year providing guidance
and feedback on student
puise surveys and working
with them as Covid-19
developed. We aim to
return to the survey in
Autumn 2021.

MAIAIIAQ |

Target

We strive to reduce the
number of reportable
incidents year-on-year and
maintain our 5-star BSC
Safety rating.

Target

We will reset our NPS target
once the disruption caused
by the pandemic is over.

Target
We strive to improve our
score year-on year,

Target

We aim to reach the mid-80
point level within the next
three years.

Alignment to strategy

®O

Alignment to strategy

@O

Alignment to strategy

®@e0

Alignment to strategy

@O
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The business delivered a

resilient financial performance
in 2020 through all of the
challenges from Covid-19.

“Our performance reflects the acquisition
and integration of Liberty Living and the
loss of income and cost-savings resulting
from Covid-19."

Joe Lister Chief Financial Officer

Income statement

A reconciliation of loss before tax to EPRA earnings
measures is set out in summary below and expanded in
section 8 of the financial statements.

The performance of the business has been materially
impacted in the year by the effects of Covid-19. This
reflects the impact of rent rebates for the summer term
of 2019/20 and lower occupancy in the 202(0/21 academic
year, partially offset by cost savings made during the year.

2020 2019
£m £m

EPRA earnings 57.3 110.6
Valuation losses/gains and (178.8)  198.1
loss on disposal
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles - {384.1)
Integration/acquisition costs (9.2 {22.8)
Changes in valuation of interest (35.9) {(5.4)
rate swaps and debt break costs
Minority interest, tax and other items 6.5 24
IFRS loss hefore tax (120.1) (101.2)
EPRA earnings per share 25.5p 39.1p
IFRS basic earnings per share {(31.8)p (31.5)p

The loss before tax of £120.1 million (2019; £10%.2 million
loss) includes valuation losses and losses on disposal

of £178.8 million (2019: £198.1 million gainy), reflecting

the income shortfall resulting from Covid-19, as wel! as
£35.9 million of costs associated with the repayment of
the Group's secured debt facilities and changes in the
valuation of interest rate swaps (2019: £2.7 million), which
together more than offset EPRA earnings of £97.3 million
(2019: £110.6 miilion).



Share placing

We completed a placing of 34.5 million new ordinary shares
in June 2020 at a price of 870p per share, raising gross
proceeds of £300 million, The Company consulted with a
significant number of its shareholders prior to the Placing
and respected the principles of pre-emption through the
aliocation process insofar as possible.

The net proceeds, coupled with debt up to our 35% LTV
target, will be used to commit to new development or
University partnership opportunities in central London
and prime provincial markets for delivery in 2023 and
2024. We have already secured c.£175 million of new
development opportunities since the placing across two
sites in central London and Edinburgh and have a healthy
pipeline of further opportunities that we are evaluating,

The placing proceeds were initially used to repay

£207 million of secured debt at a cost of 4.8% ahead of
being deployed into new developments. As a result, the
placing is immediately accretive to total accounting returns
and earnings neutral, with earnings accretion as new
development opportunities are delivered.

Cash flow and net debt

The Operations business generated £57.3 million of net

cash in 2020 (2019: £85.4 million) and see-through net debt
reduced to £1,742 million {2019: £1,884 million). The key
components of the mavement in see-through net debt were:

Net proceeds from the share placing (E294 million)
+ Total capital expenditure of £140 million

+ QOperational cash flow of £65 million on a
see-through basis

« Swap cancellation and debt break fees of £30 miliion

« A £47 million gutflow for other items including lease
payments and integration costs

In 2021, we expect net debt to increase slightly as planned
capital expenditure on investment and development
activity will exceed anticipated asset disposais.

Pebt financing and liquidity

As at 31 December 2020, the wholly owned Group had
£379 million of cash and debt headroom (31 December
2019: £332 million) comprising of £329 million of drawn
cash balances, and £50 million of undrawn debt {2019:
£27 million and £305 million respectively).

The Group maintains a disciplined approach to managing
leverage, with see-through LTV of 34% at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: 37%).

The reduction in LTV during the year was primarily driven
by the net proceeds from the Group’s share ptacing, which
more than offset the impact of the valuation loss. We
intend to dispose of £200-300 million of assets in 2021 and
£150-200 million per annum on an ongeing basis (Unite
share basis) to fund our development activity and manage
our LTV target to 35% on a built-out basis.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

With greater focus on the earnings profile of the business,
we are continuing to monitor our net debt to EBITDA ratio,
which we target to return to 6-7x over the medium term.

The Unite Group PLC has maintained investment grade
corporate ratings of BBB from Standard & Poor's and Baa2
from Moody's, reflecting Unite's robust capital position,
cash flows and track record.

Debt covenants

We continue to monitor our banking covenants. Given the
disruption to income caused by Covid-19, our principal
focus is on our ICR covenants, which vary between
1.5-2.0x depending on the facility.

We remain compliant with all ICR covenants across the
Group and its funds and joint ventures. Qur tightest ICR
covenant requires us to collect 70% of contracted rent for
the 2020/21 academic year and we have collected 66%

to date,

This requires us to collect less than 10% of rents due

or outstanding for the balance of 2020/21 to maintain
covenant headroom at the March and june 2021 quarter
end tests. Given current progress on cash coliection,
scheduled payments by Universities and physical
occupancy in our buildings, we are confident in retaining
headroom under our ICR covenants.

From Q2 2021, headroom under our {CR covenants

is expected to increase materially as the impact of
cancellations in Q2 2020 are removed from the 12-month
historical ICR calculation.

Interest rate hedging arrangements and cost of debt

Our average cost of debt based on current drawn amounts
has reduced to 3.1% (31 December 2019; 3.3%) and the
Group has 75% of investment debt subject to a fixed or
capped interest rates (31 December 2019; 93%) for an
average term of 4.2 years (31 December 2019: 5.4 years).
The reduction in the average cost of debt during the year
reflected the drawdown of our revelving credit facilities
at a lower marginal cost, to ensure access to liquidity due
to the uncertainty created by Covid-19, This also resulted
in a reduction in the average term and hedge ratio on our
investment debt, which we expect to reverse in 2021 as
we refinance and repay our revolving credit facilities.

We will continue to proactively manage debt maturity
profiles, diversify our lending base and look to lock into
jonger-term debt at rates below our current average cost
of debt. Borrowings for the combined Group are well
diversified across lenders and maturities, with only
limited maturities before late 2022.

44

We plan to publish a sustainable finance framework in the
coming weeks, aligned to our new Sustainability Strategy,
which will enable future sustainable debt issuance and
provide the opportunity to further diversify our sources
of debt.

31December 31 December

Key debt statistics (Unite share basis) 2020 2019
Net debt £1,742m £1,884m
LTV 34% 7% |
Net debt:EBITDA ratio 101 6.8!
Interest cover ratio 25 3.5
Average debt maturity 4.2 years 5.4 years
Average cost of debt 3.1% 3.3%
Proportion of investment 75% 93%

debt at fixed rate

1. 2019 calculation based on average net debt, pro rata for completion of
Liberty Living acquisition in late November 2019,

Dividend

We are proposing a final dividend payment of 12.75p per
share (2019: nil), making 12.75p for the full year {2019:
10.25p). The fina! dividend will be fully paid as a Property
Income Distribution {PiD) of 12.75p which we expect to fully
satisfy our PID requirement for the 2020 financial year.

This represents a payout ratio of 50% for FY2020, which wil!
increase to at least 80% as market conditions stabilise.

Subject to approval at Unite’s Annual General Meeting on
13 May 2021, the dividend will be paid in either cash or new
ordinary shares (a ‘scrip dividend alternative’) on 21 May
2021 to shareholders on the register at close of business on
16 April 2021. The last date for receipt of scrip elections will
be 29 April 2021.

Further details of the scrip scheme, the terms and
conditions and the process for election to the scrip
scheme are available on the Company's website,

Tax and REIT status

The Group holds REIT status and is exernpt from tax

on its property business. During the year, we incurred

£1.5 million of corporation tax (2019: £2.5 million), relating
primarily to profits on our property management activities,
and a £0.3 million tax credit in respect of prior years (2019:
£2.4 million).



The table below summarises the key financials at 31 December 2020 for our co-investment vehicles.

MBIAIBAD

Unite share
Property Assets Net debt Other assets Net assets of NAV
£m £m £m £m £m Total return Maturity Unite share
USAF 2,798 (843) (60) 1,895 418 (3.9)% Infinite 22%
LSAV 1,324 {462) (49) 813 406 0.0% 2022/2027 50%
Funds and joint ventures Fees

USAF and LSAV have delivered a resilient performance in
the year, despite the challenging environment resulting
from Covid-19. USAF's total returns do not reflect retained
distributions which, if included, increase the effective total
return of the fund to {2.0)%. LSAV's stronger underlying
total return reflects a more modest reduction in property
valuations over the year, due to £ for £ income deductions
made in relation to Covid-19 having a less material impact
on its lower yielding properties.

USAF is fully invested at present, based on a year-end LTV
of 30%. Unitholders are supportive of further fundraising
by USAF later in the year when there is greater visibility on
the 2021/22 academic year, and we continue to monitor
acquisition opportunities for the fund from both Unite’s
own balance sheet and the wider market.

There have been no distributions by USAF since January
2020, however they are expected to be reinstated in April
to reflect positive progress around rent collection for the
2020/21 academic year and increasing confidence over
reservations for the 2021/22 academic year.

The secondary market for USAF units continues ta operate
effectively with £41 million of units trading in 2020 at a
modest average discount to NAV.

We are in advanced discussions with GIC for a long-term
extension of our LSAV joint venture, reflecting its success
since its creation in 2005 and subsequent extension and
expansion in 2012. As part of the extension, Unite intends
to maintain its stake in LSAV at 50%.

During the year, the Group recognised net fees of

£18.6 million from its fund and asset management

activities (2019: £21.2 million). The reduction was driven

by the reduction in NOI and asset valuations resulting

from Covid-19 and the absence of an acquisition fee in USAF
that was generated from the Liberty Living acquisition.

The London portion of our LSAV joint venture has a
scheduled maturity in 2022, at which point Unite is due to
receive a performance fee accrued over the life of the JV.
As part of the discussions with our joint venture partner
GIC over the future of the vehicle, we expect to crystallise
the performance fee during 2021 on completion of the
extension of the JV. The 2019 results recognised an initial
£5.7 million for Unite's share of this fee (£4.6 million net
of tax) and we have recognised a further £5.7 million of
this fee (£4.6 million net of tax) in 2020, bringing the total
amount to date to £11.4 million (£9.2 million net of tax).
Based on current expectations, Unite's remaining share of
the performance fee is expected to be ¢.£15-20 million,

2020 2019

£m £m

USAF asset management fee 10.7 11.2

LSAV asset and property 3.3 3.2
management fee

USAF acquisition fee - 2.2

Net performance fee 4.6 4.6

Totai fees 18.6 21.2

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer
16 March 2021
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Why sustainability matters.

Creating a responsible
and resilient business.

Operating sustainably means

acting in tine with our values.

We are creating a business which

will shape a positive future for
generations to come. Covid-19

has underlined the importance of
putting the health and wellbeing of
our employees and students first.

We are committed to ambitious
targets on net zero carbon, providing
opportunities for students, employees
and communities, and leading the
student accommodation sector by
piloting new initiatives which, working
with our partners, will showcase a
warld-class student experience.

As we progress on this journey,

we will be working to more closely
align ourselves with the Sustainable
Development Goals, a collection of
interlinked goals set by the United
Natians. The goals are designed as
a blueprint to achieve a better and
more sustainable future for all.

We have identified 11 goals that
directly relate to our business
and newly outlined cbjectives.

United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals

46

ENVIRONMENTAL

Net zero
carbon

B |

Becoming net zero carbon in our
operations and developments by
2030 - reducing the carbon emissions
from new and existing buildings in
line with climate science, ahead of the
timescale set out in the Paris Climate
Agreement to avoid the worst impacts
of climate change.

Baltic Wharf, Paddington,
London: Targeting

the highest levels

of environmental
performance

p51

—

Resource
efficient

Creating resilient, resource
efficient assets and operations ~
reducing the environmental impact
of our new and existing buildings
through investmentin energy and
water efficiency, moving away

from the use of fossil fuels, and
working with students to encourage
sustainable living habits.

Solar panels at
Stapleton House

p52




SOCIAL GOVERNANCE

Health &
wellbeing

Opportunities
for all

Raising
standards |

Enhancing the health and wellbeing
of our employees and students -
engaging and listening to improve
mental and physical health and
wellbeing.

Connecting
students digitally

p54

Providing opportunities for all -
including students, employees and

in the communities where we waork,
where all can succeed, whatever their
background, gender or ethnicity.

The Unite
Foundation

P58

Leading the student housing sector

- raising standards for our customers,
investors and employees will ensure we
further build on our reputation. This
will ensure we support Universities to
build on their reputation nationally

and internationally.

Disclosure on ESG
topics

060 to 63
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

We acknowledge the responsibility we have towards society and
therefore choose to operate sustainably. This reflects our values,
makes good business sense and is the right thing to do.

(— OUR VALUES W

\ Creatlng room for everyone \

i

Keeping us safe

N

Doing what's right

il

=

aising the bar togethe] \

B See pages 80 and 31
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Students make cholces based on

their values and passions and are
concerned about a wide range of
sustainability issues, including climate
change and social justice, and are
ready to make a stand for those
values through campaigns such as
Schoaol Strike for Climate and Black
Lives Matter.

Environmental, social and
governance issues are of increasing
importance to investors, partners
and other stakeholders, who
recognise that an organisation’s
ability to effectively manage risks and
opportunities in these areas plays a
key role in their long-term success.
All businesses have basic ethical

and legal responsibilities. However,
we understand the most successful
businesses go further, and strive to
balance the needs of shareholders
against a respansibility to a wider
group of stakehoiders including
customers, local communities and
the environment. The reguiatory and
legislative landscape is also changing
inthe UK, with the UK Governmant
increasing its ambition and
commitment to a green and resilient
recaovery from the current crisis.

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought
the importance of doing what's

right into sharper focus with many
businesses, including Unite, acting

ta support communities. We have
reached an important crossroads and
we are clear that building a business
that is more sustainable, in every
sense, presents the best way forward.

Reporting

We are committed to reporting

our progress in an accessible and
transparent way. This allows us to be
intentional and thoughtful about the
value we generate as a company - not
only for our sharehoiders, but also for
our people, aur planet, and society.

Details of mandatory non-financial
reporting can be found on pages

&0 to 63, and further details can be
found on our corporate website at
www.unite-group.co.uk. Some of the
schemes we disclose to and align with
are set out across the bottom of this
page. We are focused on ensuring our
approach and our progress are clear
and understandable.



Stakeholder materiality review

Environmental Secial Governance

¢

Importance to Stakeholders

Water

Biodiversity

\ Energy & Carbon

AN

AN

Resource use & reuse —@

Affardability
& accessibility —e

Wellbeing of students &
successful outcomes

¢

Sustainable
buildings
Health & Safety

Pallution Wellbeing of employees &
. * Climate change emplayee retention |
S adaption & resilience hd :

®— Equality & diversity

Local community
engagement & support ’
Transparency & disclosure

®— Responsible supply chain management

#— Charity programmes & networks

tmportance to Unite

Our energy consumption and carbon
emissions for 2020 are set out on
pages 61 and 62. These have been
independently verified by SGS UK in
line with 1IS014064. We also disclose
information in line with the European
Public Real Estate Association’s
Sustainability Best Practice Reporting
guidelines (EPRA sBPR) and have
secured a Silver Award for this for the
last two years,

in 2020, we formally signed up as

a supporter of the Task Force en
Climate-Related Financia! Disclosure
{TCFD) and are aligning our climate-
related risk management processes
with the TCFD guidelines. Details of
our approach are set out on page

63 and specific details of climate-
related risks are included in the Risk
Management report on page 79.

We know that the way we manage

and respond to environmental, social
and governance (ESG) issues is of
growing interest to our investors

and other stakeholders, who are
increasingly factoring ESG performance
and risk into their decision making.

We participate in a number of
independent assessments of

ESG performance including the
sector-leading Global Real Estates
Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB}) and
CDP, a not for profit running a global
disclosure system for investors. For
both we have achieved steady year-
on-year improvements culminating in
a four-star GRESB rating in 2020 and a
score of 81/100, well above the overall
average score of 70.

A new Sustainability Strategy

Qur new Sustainability Strategy heips
us bring together our activity in areas
where we are already performing
strongly, while also prioritising areas
of focus which are of most interest to
our stakeholders.

To inform the development of our
strategy, we engaged with key
stakeholders including students,
Universities, our supply chain,
strategic partners (including the

NUS and Greater London Authority),
investors, and employees across the
business to understand the important
sustainability topics for each group.

Based on this stakeholder feedback,
and taking account of current and
emerging regulation and best practice
across the sector, we completed a
materiality assessment of relevant
ESG issues as shown above.

Using these findings, we have
developed five clear sustainability
objectives addressing the areas

that matter most to us and our
stakeholders. The following pages
provide a more in depth view of our
ambitions in each of these five areas,
as well as progress made to date.

in addition to these five overarching
objectives, we will be setting
stretching and ambitious new targets
in the coming year. We know it will
take time, financial investment and
significant business change to achieve
them, and will provide updates on our
progress during 2021.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

ENVIRONMENTAL

Becoming net zero carbon by 2030

We recognise the threat posed by climate change and
the importance of reducing greenhouse gas emissions

in accordance with the Paris Climate Agreement. We are
aiming for net zero carbon emissions by 2030 for both
new construction and the operation of existing buildings,
We understand the huge scale of this challenge, and that
we will not meet our ambitions straight away. But we are
determined that doing what's right and are confident itis
achievable with the right commitment and investment.

We are developing our plan to achieve net zero carbon
operations and deliver net zero carbon new developments
in accordance with the carbon hierarchy and will produce a
Net Carban Pathway which will be published later in 2021.

To deliver net zero carbon new buildings, we will design
and build accommodation differently using alternative
materials and methods to reduce embodied carbon from
‘cradle to completion’, while also making sure that they
are net zero carbon in operation.

To achieve net zero carbon operations, we must significantly
reduce energy consumption in our existing bufldings,

by improving energy efficiency and generating as much
renewable energy on site as we can. We will also strengthen
our existing commitment to purchase certified renewable
energy, looking at new ways of doing so that support the
construction of new renewable energy generation. We have
already made good progress in this area, achieving a 60%
reduction in carkon emissions per bed since 2014.

PATHWAY TO NET ZERO CARBON

-

» We will deliver net zerce carbon new
developments, with meaningful
reductions in embodied carbon, by the
end of 2030

« We will achieve net zero carbon operations,
including significant reductions in energy
consumption by the end of 2030

KEY TARGETS

We will purchase 100% certified renewable
electricity that supports the development
of new renewable generation capacity by
2028 and stop using fossil fuels by the end

! of 2030
L |

Finally, we will need to use certified carbon offsets to tackle
any residual carbon that cannot be completely removed.

This new level of ambition reflects how seriously we take
the threat posed by climate change, and is in line with
the increased focus on this topic by students, Unriversity
partners and our shareholders.

PATHWAY TO NET ZERQ CARBON DEVELOPMENTS

REDUCE EMBODIED CARBON
Optimise design, use low carbon
materials and good construction

site practices

REDUCE OPERATIONAL ENERGY
Design for performance and
maximise efficiency over full life
of asset

MITIGATE RESIDUAL CARBON
Use of certified carbon offsetting

PATHWAY TO NET ZERO CARBON OPERATIONS

REDUCE ENERGY USE
Change behaviours to reduce
demand and improve property energy
efficiency

50

REDUCE CPERATIONAL ENERGY
Maximise on-site renewable
generaticn and buy certified

renewable power

MITIGATE RESIDUAL CARBON
Use of certified carban offsetting
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Baltic Wharf, Paddington, London:
Targeting the highest levels of environmental performance
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In 2021, we will submit plans for Baltic Wharf, a major
new development in London and plan to make it one

of our most sustainable buildings. We will be targeting
significant reductions in embadied carbon through
innovative design and the selection and sourcing of

low embodied carbon materials. Baltic Wharf will also
target the highest levels of environmental performance,
aiming for a BREEAM Excellent rating and low energy use
in operatian, and will include a strong focus on urban-
greening, rainwater harvesting, renewable energy and
promotion of green transport options.

BIUBUIDADD) |

D_ Read the full case study at www.unite-group._co.uk

|

Corporate Power Purchase Agreement:
Strengthening our commitment to renewable energy

Since 2017, all electricity purchased under our group supply i
contract with NPower {(around 73% of the total electricity
consumption across our buildings) comes from renewable sources
and is backed by REGOs (Renewable Energy Guarantee of Origin
Certificates) meaning it is zero carbon, However, to support our
net zero carbon ambitions we will need to go further, and purchase
energy in ways that directly support the creation of new renewable
energy generation - a feature often called ‘additionality’. In 2020
we took our first steps in this direction, signing a SMW corporate
power purchase agreement (PPA) meaning that around 20% of

our total electricity consumed wiil come from a specific wind farm
in Scotland, and we are already looking at ways to increase the
proportion energy we buy under similar arrangement in future,

S1UBLLIEIS [BDUBLILY

"Buying electricity through a corporate power purchase agreement creates a strong link between
the end user and a specific renewable generator. We were delighted to work with Unite and help
deliver real reductions in carbon emissions via a 5MW corporate PPA with the Galawhistle windfarm
in Scotland"

Npower

UOIIELLLIOM| JBYID |
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTINUED

Creating resilient and resource
efficient assets and operations

We know it is important to reduce the environmental
impact of our buildings and operations, including energy
and water consumption, carbon emissions, and waste
and resource use, We also have to ensure our business is
resillent and can withstand the impacts of climate change
and the transition to a low carbon economy over the
coming years.

In the last six years we have invested over £3¢ million in
energy efficiency projects, achieving a 10% reduction in our
energy intensity (total energy use per student bedroom
per year), but we know we must do much more. Therefore
in 2021 we will be announcing ambitious targets and

plans for further reductions in energy, water, waste and
resource use, as part of a fong-term focus on improving the
environmental performance and resilience of our buildings.

'
|
|
L

(— KEY TARGETS

* Reduce carbon emissions per bed
* Reduce water usage

+ Increase engagement with students
and our employees to embed lasting
environmentally responsible living habits

D_ Read the full case study about our Sofar panefs at Stapleton House at www.unite-group.ca.uk
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Enhancing the health and wellbeing
of our employees and customers

This is an area where we have a strong track record and
where we are well regarded by stakeholders across the
sector, especially for the lead we took in response to
Covid-19 to support hoth students and employees. We
know that the wellbeing of our students and our employees
should be a top priority because we have witnessed how
this brings real benefits to our business, as well as the
individuals involved.

A safe working environment for employees

During Covid-19, it has been especially important to fully
engage with all employees in light of the rapidly evolving
situation and the changing University calendar.

»  We have introduced new two-way channels to listen to
our employees and give them direct and frequent access
to senior leaders so we can respond to their questions.
This includes regular Unite Live forums and through
regular Covid-19 updates.

+ Woe have conducted regular pulse surveys with our teams
to understand their needs during this difficult time.

« We have supported all office-based employees to work
from home and this has been enabled by a health and
safety assessment of their workplace.

* We have doubled our Special Leave to support with
kalancing work life with home life.

+ We have not furioughed any employees.

Qur operational teams have continued to work in
challenging circumstances during the pandemic, especially
those providing direct support to students. We have put

in place a number of measures to support them so they
can continue to respond safely in a dynamic situation.

We have implemented a series of Covid Secure measures
which are accredited by the British Safety Council and have
worked with public health bodies nationally throughout the
pandemic.

More broadly, we also know from experience that when
our workforce is happy and engaged, they deliver better
customer services, improve productivity, with reduced
staff turnover and absenteeism.

Gender diversity

KEY TARGETS

* Improve employee engagement

» Reduce employee turnover and
absenteeism

« Increase successful outcomes from
student wellbeing interactions

Male Female
Board 7 3
Senior Management 29 15
Cther 1,019 879

1 Asat1 April 2021 after Phil White retires as Chairman on 31 March 2021,

Doing what's right for students

Year-on-year, we run a number of initiatives to help
students make the transition to University life and to settle
at the start of term, including the Leapskills programme, an
interactive workshop used with schools. We provide easy
access to extra support when students need it, all making
a censiderable difference to their experience at University
and how they perform in their academic studies.

We know going to University and moving away from home
is a significant life moment for students and with this in
mind we initiated and co-wrote the PBSA Wellbeing guide
for the British Property Federation in 2019, Regional
Student Services Managers coach and support teams to
identify and respond to student welfare issues, supported
by a network of approximately 69 Welfare Leads with
advanced training. Our student services team cperate to a
professional student welfare framework, working closely
with our University partners.

Read more about how we do what's right for our students
at www.unite-group.co.uk

53

M3IIAIIAQ |

ot
~
=
U
~+
{0
o,
[a]
3
m
-
=4
=
-

FIUBUIBAGE)

SIUBLUAIRIS RIDURULS

UoNEWIOU| JBY10 | |




The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

SOCIAL CONTINUED

Enhancing the health and wellbeing

of our employees and customers continued

To further support our students, we recently initiated
Students Supporting Students - a peer to peer ambassador
support programme - that focuses on current issues
specific to the student accommodation setting. This covers
five webinar topics including Settling into your City, Online
Learning Motivation and Stress and Anxiety Management.
We have drawn on specialist content developed by Student
Minds to develop these webinars.

The peer-based model aiso helps them to develop
friendship groups, which are fundamental to a successful
student experience, where peers play a practical as well as
emotional role in students’ lives.

We work in a way which is designed to help students feel
safe and secure in their accommodation, with well-trained
teams and student ambassadors on hand ta provide a vital
safety netif required. We also provide access to a national
helpline - Nightline - so that students have semeane to
speak to whatever their concern,

2020: a challenging year

In 2020 Covid-19 tested our business, like many others, and
as a responsible business we felt we had an ebligation to
‘Do what's right” particularly for students living with us.

Standing by our convictions required considerable
investment. Our decisions to waive the third term of

rent in 2019/20 and provide rental discounts for the
second term of 2020/21 resulted in a significant financial
cost to the business. But we believe this was the right
thing for students and their wellbeing and this decision
enhanced our reputation with our stakeholders, while also
underlining the importance of considering the long-term
sustainability of the business.

Actions taken during Covid-19 included:

First in the sector to refund students the cost of the
2019720 third term's accommodation fees if they left
accommeodation early because of the pandemic.

Providing a rent-free home for those students who did
not want to return home in the summer of 2020, ensuring
the continuity of a safe and secure living environment
during an otherwise uncertain time in their lives.

-
Connecting students digitally

Today's students are the first true digital generation.
Our MyUnite app helps them feel confident and
connected, before and during their stay. It allows us
to get them settled, to be there when they need us,
and keep them safe. During Covid-19 the app provided
a key channel to provide automated communications
to students and their flatmates while self-isolating
ensuring they remained connected.

The uChat feature provides a safe, secure and
moderated chatroom for students to meet prospective
flatmates. It enables students to contact the people
they are going to be living with before they arrive at
their accommodatian, get answers to questions and
alleviating some of the anxiety ahead of check-in

day. This year we also offered chat rooms to whole
floors, and for groups of students living in seli-
contained studios.

When living with us, students use the app to access
and pay for services such as laundry, log maintenance
requests, report complaints about noise or to access
24-hour help if they get locked out. They can also opt
to receive notifications, for example when a parcel

is delivered.
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Flexible booking particularly at the start of the new
academic year given regional lockdowns,

Conducting pulse surveys within the student community
during Covid-19 to understand how they were coping.

Providing rental discounts between January and March
2021.

Introducing a Home Charter providing guidance on
how to protect themselves and others, including advice
sheets for self-isolation, cleaning and hygiene.

Independent audit of policies, procedures and
arrangements for Covid-19 by the British Safety Council
(BSC). We are the only student accommodation provider
to hold the highest 5-star safety rating from the BSC and
are proud to have been one of the first UK companies
that has been accredited a Covid assured workplace by
the BSC.

Greater use of technology 1o assist social distancing;
digital check-in, self-service parcel collection, virtual
maintenance assistance and an enhanced MyUnite App
to help create student communities with safe social
distancing.

* Increased cleaning and social distancing regimes.

+ Trained and supervised Mental Health First Aid
accredited welfare leads in each city and an Emergency
Contact Centre available 24/7 and Nightline service for
all residents.

Welfare checks and ongoing support using remote
access channels, as well as support on a case-by-case
basis.

In-person suppart delivered safely to students when
required, including bespoke support to vulnerable
groups.

Human rights

We believe human rights are universal and recognise that
the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights
set a standard of conduct expected of companies. We do
our best to ensure that everyone involved or associated
with our business is protected, treated fairly and subject to
our anti-bribery and corruption, health and safety, anti-
slavery and other policies, including those covering data
protection, performance management, flexible working,
grievances, leave, and quality and diversity.

MIIAIDAD

The Common Room

Any student can read articles on our online blog
platform, the Common Room, on different aspects of
student life. We publish up to five new articles a week to
help students through University, so they feel settled,
achieve their goals and prepare for their future careers.
Articles are either written by our in-house team or by

a network of student journalists living with us. The
platform has had over a million page views over the
past 12 months.

The topics are driven by students themselves and
range from preparing for University, making friends
and settling in, to budgeting, staying healthy and
career planning.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

SOCIAL CONTINUED

Enhancing the health and wellbeing

of our employees and customers continued
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Leapskills: A free resource helping young
people prepare for independent living

In response to annual research with students
showing 61% of young people are apprehensive and
nervous about making the feap to independent living,
Unite Students has responded with an interactive
workshop used in schools to help better support
these yaung people. This better prepares 17 and
18-year olds for this impaortant transition and has
already been used by over 3,000 young people,

Usually run as a 45-minute classroom programme

as part of the Key Stage 5 PSHE programme, in 2020
Leapskills was adapted to an online format for use by
students with parents and carers during Covid-19.

Through the workshop, young people discover

what it is like living with new people, making new
friends, balancing work with fun and managing
their money. Those who use Leapskills say they feel
better prepared at the end of the session and report
increased fevels of confidence in their move away
from home. The Leapskills programme has been
endorsed by the Department for Education.

"Going to University ond living independently
for the first time can be daunting - Leapskills
workshops help Year 12 and 13 pupils prepare
for this jump and build the skills they need to
thrive at University.”

Michelle Donelan MP
Minister of State for Universities

“The Leapskills toolkit will provide an
additional but essential digitaf option for
those who need specific inspiration for
building their teen’s life skills for successful
communal fiving.”

Dr Dominique Thomson
GP and young persons’ mental health expert




Providing opportunities for all including
students, employees and communities

Qur teams are key to our business success. We are

driven by our values and culture and a commitment to
develop a diverse and inclusive organisation. We are

keen to do more to provide interesting career pathways
within our organisation and to ensure opportunities

for progression are available for all. We are focused on
greater representation of gender and ethnicity in senior
positions and creating a more diverse workforce across our
organisation, where everybody feeis valued and engaged.
We believe creating a more inclusive business improves
conditions for all, not just those under represented, and
will deliver tong-term value for business and soclety. In
support of Black Lives Matter, the business embarked

on a review of its diversity and inclusion strategy with
leadership training and support enabling leaders to
communicate, engage and listen to their teams, This work
will continue during 2021.

We work hard to act responsibly across all areas of the
business, and we are committed to ensuring that everyone
behaves with integrity and fairness. We regularly review
our policies and ways of working to ensure we are creating
an environment where our people can thrive. We know that
only by creating a healthy, happy, engaged and productive
team, can we go on to have a positive impact on young
people at one of the most exciting times of their lives.

We are committed to creating safe, welcoming and
inclusive communities for our students and supporting

the wider purpose build student accommeodation and
University accommodation sector to improve inclusiveness.
Activities over the coming years will include commissioning

KEY TARGETS

* A 50/50 gender split in the Unite
leadership team by the end of 2023

s Fill 60% of managerial roles internally
by the end of 2023

» Minority groups fairly represented in
employees and management by the
end of 2024

research into the needs of specific groups of students who
may be at risk of exciusion, sharing these insights across
the sector and taking positive action with our University
partners to address these issues.

Achievements and recent progress include:
The Business in the Community Race at Work Charter

was signed in 2020 with a commitment to:
- Capture ethnicity data and publicise progress.

- Azero-tolerance approach on harassment and
bullying.
~ Plans to support career progression of ethnic
minority employees.
+ Inresponse to Black Lives Matter, a Culture Matters ally
network was created in 2020,

+ Engagement with a leadership and diversity and
inclusions specialist, who is providing fresh thinking
and stimulus to our teams.

» Enhanced shared parental leave.
« Investorsin People - Gold award achieved.
* A RealLiving Wage employer.
« Emptoyee wellkeing champions network across the UK.
+ Qver the four years:
- £1.1 million donated through student and employee
fundraising.
- Provided 1,300 counselling sessions to our employees.
- Awarded over £95,000 to charities via emplayee

charity match scheme.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

SOCIAL CONTINUED

Providing opportunities for all including
students, employees and communities continued

Positive social impact in communities

In all of the 27 towns and cities where we operate, we
partner with more than 60 Universities and have a positive
impact by playing an active role in local communities. This
activity has been enhanced during Covid-19 and is still
going strong.

For example, by having our students living as part of
communities, this increases spending locally and helps
local businesses, creates employment opportunities

and supports spin-off companies, including educational,
cultural arts events, concerts, performances and sporting
facilities. Across the UK, student spending supports more
than £80bn of UK economic output and over 830,000 direct
and indirect jobs.

We work hard to engage with our local cemmunities,
having a positive impact on local residents and wider
communities. Every employee at Unite has the opportunity

to spend one full day or eight hours each year volunteering.

Although some activities were limited in 2020, this usually
involves supporting a group, community or charity which
benefits young people in the communities where we
operate, Over 83% of our volunteers have reported an
increase in job satisfaction through a post valunteering
survey, which has been completed an a roliing basis over
the past two years.

Unite Foundation

Unite has been the principal supporter of the Unite
Foundation since 2021 and has so far committed over

£10 million to its work. It is a charity that provides a unique
scholarship for care leavers and estranged young people
who want to go to University, providing free, purpose-built,
student accommodation and wrap around support for up to
three years of study. These young people do not have family
suppart, some of them have been in care, others have been
living independently, or with friends or extended family and
some have been homeless. The scholarship provides a place
for students to live throughout their studies so that they can
focus on embracing the full University experience and plan
their future. The Foundation, together with its 27 University
partners and teams on the ground, ensures that its scholars
have the opportunity to thrive at University and beyond.

* Each year, 80-100 new scholarships are awarded. This
means 256 students are currently being supported
through the scholarship programme.

*+ Since the programme started eight years ago, the
Foundation has provided suppert to over 500 students.

* The retention rate for students supported by the Unite
Foundation is significantly higher than that of care
experienced and estranged students in the general
student population, and 27% go on to undertake
pastgraduate study, which is higher than the national
average. Unite is the major donor to the Unite
Foundation each year.

[] Find out more about our Pasitive Impact programme at www.unite-group.co.uk
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GOVERNANCE

Leading the student housing sector by raising

standards

Qur ambition is to continue to lead the student housing
sector and to raise standards and deliver value to
customers, This has been demonstrated through Covid-19
when we have provided financial and wellbeing support
to students living with us. Our main focus will be to

build on established good practice to drive up standards
across the whole student accommodation and Higher
Education sector.

We will continue to put robust governance and
management processes in place to ensure compliance
with all relevant regulations, codes and other
requirements, backed up with training and engagement,
verification and reporting.

Our supply chain plays a key role in helping us achieve our
ambitions and we will continue to work closely with them,
and other partners who share our values to bring about
measurable improvements, ensuring sustainahle supply
chains are operational across the business.

We also contribute actively to the ANUK National Code for
purpose-built student accommodation and in recent years
have helped to raise standards around student welfare
support via the Code.

Cur annual Insight Report, delivered in partnership with
the Higher Education Policy Institute (HEP), shares key
insights and analysis around the attitudes, experiences
and needs of students. It makes a strong contribution to
the wark of PBSA providers and Universities, and many
of our University partners have used its findings in their
strategy development.

Key achievements:

« First PBSA provider to be accredited Covid Secure by the
British Safety Council and to achieve a BSC 5-star rating.

« Worked in partnership with the Scottish Government,
individual Universities and Public Health England to
develop guidance relating to Covid-19 for student
accommaodation providers.

KEY TARGETS

Improve scores from the Higher Education
sector on sustainability issues

Full alignment of health and safety
systems with 1SO-45001

Full compliance with the requirements of
the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD)

Year-on-year improvement of GRESB score,
to indicate overall performance against
ESG measures
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

To complement the launch of our new Sustainability Strategy,
we provide in the following pages statutory reporting for the

key impacts on our business.

Non-financial information statement

The table below summarises how we comply with non-financial performance reporting requirements.
All policies are aiso available on www.unite-group.co.uk/investors

Employees Group Health and Safety Policy
Employee Handbook

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion policy
Trans and gender identity policy
Whistleblowing palicy

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Read more about Employees on pages 38 and 39

Envirenmental
matters

Environment policy

Statement on carbon reduction/target

Human rights

Unite Group Code of Ethics
Modern Slavery statement

Data Protection Policy

E‘j Read more about Human rights on page 55

Social matters Volunteering Policy
Fundraising guidelines

Charity Policy including matched giving

L[] Read more on www.unite-group co.uk

Carhbon emissions and climate change

Carbon emissions and climate change remain a priority
area for focus. This year sees two major factors causing
significant changes to energy consumption and associated
carbon emissions.

Following the acquisition of Liberty Living, emissions
assaciated with these properties are in scope far the first
time. This acgquisition brought 55 additional properties
into the portfolio, totalling over 24,000 student beds and
€.700,000m? of floor area. In addition, these properties
have not benefited from the same levels of investment

in energy efficiency over recent years as the wider Unite
estate, and so typicaliy consume more energy per bed.
Properties in the Liberty Living pertfolio also make almast
exclusive use of electricity for both heating and hot water
(compared to the pre-existing portfolio where a significant
minority of properties use gas or district heat for these),
further changing the overall balance of scope 1 and scope
2 emissions. Furthermare until the end of September 2020
farmer Liberty Living properties operated under a legacy

60

Read maore about Environmental topics on pages 61 ta 63

Anti-corruption
and bribery

Anti-bribery policy

[ Read more on www unite-group.co.uk

Description of
principal risks
and impact of
business activity

Read more abeut Principal risks and
impact of business activity on pages
68 to 80

Pescription of
the business
mode|

Read more about Our business model
on pages 32 and 33

Non-financial
key performance
indicators

Read more about our Nen-financial
KPIs on page 41

electricity supply contract without any renewable element,
resulting in a significant increase in market-based scope 2
emissions. From October 2020 onward these sites all moved
across to the group supply contract with NPower and so
benefitted from 100% renewable REGO backed electricity.

The second major impact this year has been the Covid-19
pandemic. Government restrictions and the interruption
of narmal teaching in the Higher Education sector led to
significant changes in both overall levels of occupancy as
well as day-to-day patterns of usage. Overall, this led to a
significant reduction in consumption and corresponding
carbon emissions compared to budget expectations.
Disruption due to Covid-19 also meant that capital
investment in energy and water saving initiatives planned
for 2020 were unable to proceed as planned.

The interplay overall of these factors on net emissions is
complex, although the effect is an increase in absolute
energy consumption and emissions, but a reduction in
energy and emissions per bed and per m? basis.
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Subject to the easing of lockdown, we aim to undertake detailed energy surveys of the former Liberty Living properties
during 2021 to identify energy efficiency opportunities that will help deliver our net zero carbon ambition.

Full details of energy consumption and carban emissions are set out below:

Energy consumption carbon emissions data

MIIAIIAD

2018 2019 2024

Changevs Change vs Change vs base Change vs
ESTATE DATA Data prior year Data prior year Data year (2014) prior year
Year-end bed numbers 48,622 -1.6% W 49,692 28% M 75,531 75.45% M 51.0% 4
Carbon contributing bed numbers 48,706 4% W 46,242 1.1% 74193 §9.53% A 50.6% dw
Carbon contributing floor area (m? 1,381,923 -1.4% W 1,400,011 0.5% & 2,118,807 84.64% . S1.3% M

2018 2019 2020
Change vs base
year (2014 for

Changevs Change vs energy, 2015 Change vs
ENERGY & WATER USE Consumption prior year Consumption prior year Consumption for water) prior year
Natural Gas
Absolute (KWh) 36,632,735 19.3% 39,616,444 8.1% 55,242,941 13681% M 30.4% M
Relative to bed numbers (k¥h/bed) 752.12 21.1% M 804.53 7.0% A 744.58 24.88% 4 25% W
Relative to floor area (kWh/m?) 26.30 21.0% 28.30 75% 4 26.10 28.26% A -T9% W
Electricity
Absolute (kwh) 109,881,655 -55% W 106,148,132 -34% W 140,535,318 25.55% 32.4% M
Reiative to bed numbers {kWh/bed) 2,256.03 -4.0% W 2,155.66 -4.4% W 1,894.43 -33.7%% W 2% W
Relative ta floor area (kWh/m?) 78.94 41% W 75.82 -40% W 66,33 SR00% W -12.5% W
Heat
Absolute (kWh) 11,793,033 28.2% M 11,775,682 0% W 12,091,340 277.81% 4 2% M
Relative to bed numbers (kWh/bed) 24213 30.2% M 23514 1.2% W 162,97 99.13% A -31.9% W
Relative te floor area (kWh/m?) 8.47 300% M 8.4 -07% W 5.71 104.52% 4w 322% W
TOTAL ENERGY {gas + electricity + heat)
Absolute (kWh) 158,307,423 1.4% 4 167,540,259  -0.5% W 207,888,468 5012% M 32.0% M
Relative to bed numbers (kWh/bed) 3.25Q.29 29% Ja 3,199.33 -1.6% W 2,801.73 -20.83% W -12.4% W
Relative te floor area (kWh/m?) 113.73 28% M 112.53 1% W 98.12 -18.69% W -12.8% W
Water
Absolute (m?) 2,452,769 11.8% 1,954,648 -203% W 2,716,738 45.31% . 39.0% A&
Relative to bed numbers {m¥*bed) 50.40 13.5% 39.70 -21.2% W 36,60 -13.30% W 7.8% W
Relative to floor area {(m3*/m?) 1.80 13.4% A 1.40 -22.69% W 1.30 -2269% W -8.2% W
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

2018 2019 2020
Change vs prior Change vs Change vs base Change vs

GREENHCUSE GAS EMISSIONS Emissions year Emissions prior year Emissions year (2014) prior year
Total Scope 1 emissions
Absolute (tonnes CO.¢) 6,851 18.8% M 7,397 8.0% r's 10,328 135.10%  aw 39.6% M
Relative 1o bed numbers (tonnhes COe/bed) 0.2 206% M Q.15 6.8% A a.14 240% M 7.3% W
Relative to floor area (kg CO,e/m?) 4.92 20.5% A 5.28 7.3% -~ 4.87 27.3% A Sk T 4
Total Scope 2 emisslons (location based)
Absolute (tannes CO,e) 33,315 -22.0% W 29,205 -12.3% W 34,856 -37.8% W 19.4% 4w
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes CO,e/bed) 0.68 -208% W 0.59 13.3% W 0.47 -67.2% W -20.8% W
Relative to floor area thg CO,e/m) 23.93 208% W 20.86 -12.8% W 16.45 -66,3% W 210% W
Total Scope 2 emissions {market based)
Abselute {tonnes CO,e) 2,359 -89.7% W 3,128 32.6% 10,694 -80.7% W 2419% 4
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes CO_e/bed) 0.05 -B36% W 0.06 311% A 0.14 -85.8% W 126.9%
Relative to floar area (kg €8 e/} 1.69 -85.6% W 2.23 31.8% i 5.05 -89.5% W 125.5% 4
Tatal Scope 1+2 entissions (location based}
Absolute {ronnes CO.e} 40166 RYAL T 4 36,602 8% W 45,184 252% W 23.4% Mw
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes CO e/bed) 0.82 -15.8% W 0.74 -9.9% W 0.61 -606% W S18.1% W
Relative to floor area (kg CO,e/m?) 28.86 -15.9% W 26.14 -g94% W 21,33 59.5% W -18.8% W
Total Scope 1+2 emissions (market based)
Absolute (tonnes CO,e) 9,210 -67.9% W 10,524 14.3% 4 21,023 -64.9% W 99.8% 4
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes CO e/bed) 019 -67.4% W 0.21 13.0% 0.28 -81.5% W 32.6% A
Relative to floor area (kg CO,e/m?} 6.62 -67.4% W 7.52 13.6% M 9.92 -81.0% W 32.0% M
Total veriflable Scope 2 emissions
Absolute (tonnes CQ_e) 11,666 -20.1% W 9,859 -15.5% W 12,326 -16.6% W 25.2% &
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes CO e/bed) 0.24 (18.9% W 0.20 -16.4% W 07 -56.0% W -16.9% W
Relative to floor area (kg CO,e/m?) 8.38 19.0% W 7.04 -16.0% W 5.83 548% W -17.3% W
Total non-verifiable Scope 3 emissions
Absolute (tonnes £O,e} 6,610 Nodata Nadata 170,688 1579.1% 76,285 nia nla -33.1% W
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes CO e/bed) 0.14 Nodata Nodata 2.25 1560.9% 4 1.03 nfa nfa -55.6% W
Relative to fioor area (kg COe/m?) 475 Nodata Nodata 79.28 1562.4% 35.00 nfa nfa -55.8% W
Total of verifiable and non-verifiable Scope 3 emissions
Absalute (tonnes CO.e} 18,276 Nodata Nodata 123,847 561.2% A 88,631 nfa n/a -28.4% W
Relative to bed numbers (tonnes COe/bed) 0.38 Nodata Nodata 2.45 554.1% M 119 n/a nfa -52.5% W
Relative to floor area (kg CO,e/m?) 13.13 Nodata Nodata 86.32 557.4% M 41.83 nfa nfa -527% W

Notes:

GHG emissions have been calculated using rethodology set outin HM
Government's ‘Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including streomlined energy ongd
corbon reporting March 2613 (Updated Introduction and Chapters 1 and 2} in line

with the GHG Protocol's ‘A Corperate Accounting and Reporting Standard {Reviseg
Edition)". Energy censumption and GHG emissions reperted here cover 100% of
Unite aperations, which all accur in the UK, and have been independently verified to
aleve! of ‘Reasonable Assurance’ against the requirements of 15014064-3:2006 by
SGS UK Ltd.

“Per bed’ emissions and energy consumption have been calculated using
‘carbon contnbuting bed numbers', which are a pro rata share of each sites
total bed numbers kased on the number of menths it was in scope during the
reporting period. E.g. a 100 bed site that was only in scope for six months due
to disposal would be taken to have only 50 carbon contributing beds during the
reporting period.

Scope 1 emissions include gas consumed in properties, and fuef consumed n
business vehicles.

Scope 2 emissions include grid electricity consumption, and district heating
consumptionin properties.
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Verifiable Scope 3 emissions include Category 1 (Purchased goods and services

- water), Category 3 (Fuel and energy-related activities including T&D and WTT
emissions), Category & {Business travel - including direct and indirect (WTT and T&D)
emissions from flights (including RF), and rail travel), where venfiable data sources exist.

Non-verifiable Scope 3 emlssions include Category 1 (Purchased goods and
services - gperation and management of real estate assets, calcylated using
QUANTIS Scope 3 evaluator tool based on spend), Category 2 (Capital goods ~ new
praperties, calculated using a detailed embodied carbon assessment of areal and
representative new build property, Category 5 (Waste Generated in Cperatons
calculated using QUANTIS Scope 3 evaluator tool based on spend), and Categary
7 (Employee commuting calculated using QUANTIS Scope 3 evaluator tool), where
insufficient data is available to verify in accordance with the requirements of IS0
14064-3:2006.

Emissions factors used are the 2020 ‘UK Government emission conversion facters
for greenfouse gas company reparting’. Locacion Based Scope 2 emissians are
calculated using the UK national average grid emissions factar as per the above
guidance, whifst Market Based Scope Z emissions are calcufated using the suppiler's
contractual emissions factor which is zero for 96.5% of electricity. This amount s fully
backed by REGOs. This portion 1s from renewabie sources and fully backed by REGOs,

More detailed breakdown of emissions, including by asset and categery, are
reported via schemes including the COP Chimate Change Disclosure and GRESB Real
Estate Assessment, and at www,unj:e-grcupm,uk



Managing climate-related risks

Climate change represents a material risk to our business,
which is why we have committed to fully implement the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosure (TCFD). As we work to become

net zero carbon by 2030, we will increase our focus an

the management and disclosure of climate-related risks
and opportunities. We plan to share mare details tater
this year including a detailed net zero carbon pathway
showing how we intend to achieve our target. An overview
against the four core elements of the TCFD guidelines are
set out below.

1. Governance

Our new Sustainability Committee will meet regularly

to ensure Board oversight of environmental, social and
governance issues, and hold the business to account

for performance in this area including the management

of climate-related risk. Our Chief Executive has overall
responsibility for our climate-related risks and opportunities
with ongoing oversight of climate-related issues with

our Sustainability Committee, a sub-Committee of the
Board. The Board also undertakes a twice-yearly formal

risk review (see page 64). Our new Sustainability Steering
Group, chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, coordinates
the implementation of our new Sustainability Strategy
across the business, drives continual improvement, and is
responsible for the assessment, management, and reporting
of climate-related risks and opportunities.

2. Strategy

We will undertake annual assessments of climate-related
physical, transition and social risks under different climate
scenarios over a short, medium and longer term, which will
inform business planning and operational decisions. We
already track climate change as a principal risk (see page
79), but will disclose more detail later in 2021, Areas for
focus are likely to include:

+  Acute climate impacts: Increased freqguency and severity
of extreme weather (storms, flooding) resulting in
damage to assets and disruption to operations and
value chain.

+ Chronic climate impacts: More frequent heatwaves
and increased risk of overheating, potentially leading
to customer dissatisfactian, risks to health, safety
and wellbeing, reduced summer business, and capital
expenditure to mitigate.

+ Asset stranding: Capital investment required to ensure
all assets follow a 1,5°C decarbonisation trajectory
and remain compliant with evolving minimum energy
standards to avoid asset stranding and negative impacts
on asset values.

+ Energy/carbon costs: Ongoing increases and volatility in
energy costs and potential new carbon charges resulting
in increased operating costs.

« Changing customer behaviours: driven by shifting
social norms, direct climate impacts, or increased costs
resulting from the transition to a low carbon economy.

More detailed assessment of climate-related risks under
different potential climate scenarios will be completed this
year and inform ongoing business strategy and planning to
ensure effective management and mitigation. This will be
published during 2021.

3. Risk Management

We are creating individual Asset Transition Plans charting
each property's journey to net zero carbon, and a Net
Zero Carbon Pathway setting out our overall approach to
becoming net zero carbon by 2030. These, along with our
annual assessment of climate-related risks undertaken

by our Sustainability Steering Group, will inform asset
management and business planning decisions and so help
build resilience and deliver the decarbonisation needed to
limit warming to 1.5°C or lower.

4. Metrics and Targets

As we strengthen aur climate-related risk management, we
will publish more detailed targets for this area. These are
likely to include absolute and intensity metrics based
onscope 1, 2 {market and location based) and 3 GHG
emissions {see pages 61 and 62), utilities consumption and
costs, EPC rating, flood risk and metrological data.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

RISK MANAGEMENT

A resilient and agile risk
management approach
is helping us navigate
Covid-19.

“Our risk management framework is
designed to ensure the Board can clearly
identify our risks and assess our risk
profile and risk appetite.”

Chris Szpojnarowicz Company Secretary
and Group Legal Director

Our risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the oversight

of risk as well as maintaining a robust risk management
framework and internal control system, with the Audit
Committee reviewing the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control processes. Our risk
management framework is designed to ensure the Board
can clearly identify our risks, assess our risk profile and
risk appetite, and ensure these risks are being managed
and mitigated transparently and effectively. integral to this
design is ensuring we are agile and resilient, which proved
especially critical through 2020 as we navigated the huge
challenges of Covid-19 whilst overseeing the successful
integration of the Liberty Living business.

The Board conducts a twice yearly dedicated risk review.
This cansiders risks with both a top-down review
(identifying a wide range of strategic and emerging

risks and opportunities) as well as a bottom-up review
{challenging the detailed risk trackers produced by the
Operations and Property Boards). As part of this focused
risk review, the Board undertakes its annual assessment
of the principal risks facing the Group, taking account of
those that would threaten our business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity as well as the Group’s
strategic objectives,



1 Board leads risk review

Assessing our risk profile and our principal risks
and the impact of Covid-19 on these risks.

2 Top-down review

Identifying a wide range of strategic and emerging
risks and ocpportunities.

3 Bottom-up review

Challenging risks identified by operational
management and more technical risks such
as information technology, security, business
continuity, GDPR, financing and treasury.

4 Board searches externally for best practice

Engaging with senior leaders in the Higher Education
sector and technical experts on key issues such as
Covid-19 and fire safety.

MIIAIIAD

Output - five risk categories

Market risks
{supply and demand)

Read more

onpages 72ta 74

Operational risks
risks

Read more Read more

aon pages 75 and 76

Property/development

on pages77and 78

ESG risks Financial risks
Read more Read more
on page 79 on page 80

Whilst the Board considered there were no fundamental
changes to our principal risks due to Covid-19, most of our
risks were elevated directly as a result of the pandemic
and the challenging economic environment, the safety
and wellbeing of our customers and employees and the
impact of lockdowns on how students study and how we
operate aur business.

Our values are the foundation for our risk management
framewaork and ultimately combine in our purpose to
provide a Home for Success, We recognise that risk cannot
be entirely eliminated, but rather use our decision making
process to ensure an approgpriate balance between risk
and opportunity. We are conscious to be risk-aware,
defining our risk appetite as we face challenges and
embrace new opportunities.

QOur risk management framework and how we assess
our principal risks, identify emerging risks and ultimately
manage and mitigate risk are set out on the following pages.

Our Covid-19 risk response

The Group took a proactive and pre-emptive approach

to managing the business in response to the dynamic

and widespread nature of the pandemic. The health,

safety and welibeing of our customers and employees

has always been a principal risk and Covid-19 underlined
the importance of putting this first. This safety risk was
especially elevated when the first lockdown happened (with
Universities closing) and then into the 2020/2021 academic
year (with Covid-19 prevalent in student accommodation
and the wider community). As the pandemic spread further
in 2020 and now in early 2021, alongside physical health,
the risk to mental health and wellbeing of our student
custorners and our people has significantly increased. The
Board oversees a comprehensive safety risk management
plan which included Unite becoming the first student
accommodation provider to achieve Covid Secure status
accredited by the British Safety Council.

To pratect the risk to our reputation, the Board's Covid-19
risk plan ensured clear dialogue and engagement with
our custamers, Public Health England, local authaorities,
Universities and other stakeholders as well as direct

Government engagement. As we navigated the impact

of the pandemic for our business, staying loyal to our
value ‘doing what's right’ guided our decision making. This
was demonstrated with the measures we putin place to
respond to Covid-19 for our customers and employees.
This included protecting our long-term reputation and
enhancing our University partnerships through the
pandemic, with Unite waiving rent for students who choose
to return home during the third term of 2019/20 academic
year, as well as offering rent discounts to those not using
their accormmodation during the third national lockdown
in early 2021. We also ensured a safe working environment
for our employees (as detailed on page 53).

To manage the income risk which flowed from doing

the right thing by waiving 7 offering discounted rents,

the Board took decisive action to protect our cash and
financial position. These actions included: deferring
development and non-essential operational capex and
delivering cost savings, a 30% reduction to salaries and
pension contributions for Executive Directors, 10-20% for
senior management and a 30% reduction in fees payable
to Non-Executive Directors {effective for a four-month
period from 1 April), cancelling our 20192 final dividend and
suspending our 2020 interim dividend, realising additional
cost synergies from the Liberty Living acquisition,
in-sourcing work for summer 2020 turnaround and
cleaning as well as savings to utility and broadband

costs with a halt to discretionary overhead spending

and non-essential recruitment.

To manrage our Financing risks, the Board increased the
monitoring of our headroom under our banking covenants
under various stress tested scenarios. Covenants vary
between facilities but are principally based on LTV and
interest cover ratios (ICRs). The ICR ratios were especially
challenged by the widespread nature of the pandemic

and its impact on income. The Board ensured proactive
engagement with lenders.

The table on pages 66 and 67 set out in more detail the
impact of Covid-19 on our principal risks and what the
Board did to address this.
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Covid-19 impact on our principal risks in 2020

OPERATIONAL RISK - SAFETY

Covid-19 impact - what happened

Covid-19 and its widespread impact on the safety and wefibeing of cur customers, our employees and the communities we operate in,

Our Covid-19 risk response - what we did

Managed our Covid-19 safety risk through a comprehensive We have:
risk management plan as well as seeking expert Covid-19 third
party assurance. We were the first accommodation provider
to achieve Covid Secure status accredited by the British Safety
Council. To protect our reputation, our Covid-19 plans included
clear dialogue and engagerment with Public Health England,
local autharities, our various stakeholders as well as direct
Government engagement.

« increased two-way channels to listen to our employees and
give them direct and frequent access to senior leaders so we
can respond to situations

* held regular Unite Live forums enabling all empioyees in the
business to speak to and ask questions of the leadership
team and through regular Covid updates

+ c¢onducted regular pulse surveys with our teams to
Read more about our Covid-19 risk respense on page 65 and in understand their needs during this difficult time

the Heath and Safety Committee report on page 115, « supported all office-based employees to work from home,

During Covid-19 it has been especially important to fully engage supported by a health and safety assessment of their workplace
with all employegs in light of the rapidly evolving situation and + increased our Special Leave to support teams with balancing
the changing University calendar, work life and home life.

Read more about Covid-19 safety response on pages 2 and 3

DEVELOPMENT RISK

Our Covid-19 risk response - what we did

Covid-19 impact on development, including programme risk in delivering schemes on time and to budget.

Qur Covid-19 risk response - what we did

Covid-19 created unique challenges to securing new sites as well 559-bed 30-year nomination agreement with the University of
as delivering schemes on time and to budget (temporary site Leeds (completed on time and budget for student arrivals in
closyres and reduced levels of operatives on site as a result of September 2020) plus Arch View Haouse, London and Artisan
social distancing measures). Notwithstanding this, we delivered Heights, Manchester delivered in Q4 2020.

2,257 beds across three development schemes for the 2020/21

ido1 A
academic year. This includes White Rose View in Leeds with a In response to Covid-19, deferred delivery of twa schemes

{Middlesex Street, London and Qld BRI, Bristol) to 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) RISK

Covid-12 impact - what happened
Key stakeholders' focus on ESG risk has increased and is likely to continue because of Covid-19.
Our Covid-12 risk respanse - what we did

Through 2020 we developed our new Sustainability Strategy following extensive engagement with investors and other stakeholders.
This strategy will play an impaortant role in the fonger-term sustainability of the business.

Read more aboyt our Sustainability Strategy on pages 46 to 63



MARKET RISK

Covid-19 impact - what happened

Increasing risk of macro events reducing demand for UK HE and student accommodation (such as the Covid-19 pandemic,
Government palicy around HE or immigration and uncertainty related to Brexit).

Our Covid-19 risk response - what we did

This demand risk was amplified by the sudden and
unprecedented nature of the global pandemic with Covid-19
impacting us directly and materially in the 2019/20 and 2020/21
academic years leading to a material loss of income. Risk
mitigated primarily through suspending dividends, conserving
cash, drawing bank facilities and reducing costs wherever
possible whilst ensuring safety remained paramount,

Worked directly with the Government and public health
authorities on Covid-19 as well as with Universities on their

Covid-19 impact - what happened

dynamic aperating plans for the 2020/21 and 2021/22
academic years,

High and medium- tariff Universities have demonstrated the
most resilience through Covid-19 and this supports our strategy
1o align with these Universities through our acquisitions,
disposals and development activity.

Read more in the Market overview on pages 27 to 31

Customer expectations of value-far-money and affordability - Covid-19 impacting student experience.

Our Covid-19 risk response - what we did

Demonstrated value-for-money and affordability through
Unite's focus on doing the right thing for all stakeholders,
especially students, during the unigquely challenging period.

Decisive action to enhance our reputation with students,
parents and Universities building on our strong University
partnerships, including;

« firstin the sector to refund students the cost of the third
term's accommodation fees for the 2019/20 Academic Year
if they left accommodation early because of the pandemic
as well as first in the sector to offer discounted rents early in
2021 and a complimentary four weeks to extend their stay
into summer 2021

» provided rent-free homes for those students who did
not want or were unable to return home in summer
2020, ensuring the continuity of a safe and secure living
environment during an otherwise uncertain time in their lives

+ worked closely with Universities to share best practice
Covid-19 operating procedures

= offered flexible booking particularly at the start of the
new academic year given regional lockdowns,

Bj Read more about Operations review on page 17

FINANCIAL RISK

Covid-19 impact - what happened

Covid-19 increasing level of uncertainty around inceme. This impacts balance sheet liquidity and compliance with debt covenants.

Our Covid-19 risk response - what we did

Our debt covenants, like for many other borrowers, were
fundamentally tested by the sudden, unexpected and wide
ranging nature of Covid-19. This especially so for ICR covenants,
not historically a risk and not designed to absorb a change

such as this. To manage this risk, the Board took rapid action

ta ensure that the Group had sufficient liquidity through
deferral of development activity, cancellation and suspension
of dividends, cost saving activity and drawing bank facilities.

This provided the Group with meaningful liquidity headrcom

to be able to withstand severe downside scenarios. In addition,
we have engaged more proactively with our lenders and
increased our covenant menitoring across a range of scenarios,
This ensured that as risks emerged, we were ready to identify
further action and share regular updates with lenders. Also,
external audit review of covenant compliance through the Going
Concern process.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our risk appetite and Covid-19

The Group's risk appetite Is considered as a fundamental part
of the Board's strategy setting and annual budget - it does
not happen in isolation. Our risk appetite is underpinned

by our principal financial aim of delivering attractive total
returns through recurring income and capital growth, while
maintaining a strong capital structure.

During the year, the Board regularly reviewed and assessed
our risk appetite with frequent Covid-19 calls in addition

to the scheduled Board meetings. This risk appetite was
assessed against the context of the especially dynamic

and volatile Covid-19 situation with a primary focus on the
resilience of the business and its agility. This considered
both threats to - and opportunities in - our business as
well as wider macro risk developments impacting the PBSA
sector and the broader Higher Education sector, property
market and economy.

Our overall risk appetite in the year was broadly unchanged
from the previous financial year, although the Board
ensured a more prudent approach to risk and opportunity
whilst the impact and duration of the pandemic continues
as uncertain.

Risks - and the related benefits of our actions - are reviewed
and assessed with a greater emphasis on their impact on

all stakeholders - employees, customers, Universities,
investors and suppliers - along with wider society in the
context of Covid-19 and its impact on the economy.

Stress testing / scenario planning and our
Strategic Plan

Each year, the Board develops and refreshes the Group's
Strategic Plan. This is based on detailed three-year
strategic/financial projections (with related scenario
planning) and rolis forward for a further two years using
mare generic assumptions. The Board maps our strategic
objectives against our risk profile. Then, always conscious
that risk events de not necessarily happen inisolation,
the Board stress tests these projections against multiple
combined risk events. Through this process, a base case
and stress-tested Strategic Plan are developed.

During 2024, this scenario planning closely monitored
Government and public health authorities guidance on
Covid-19 as weli as the ongoing and dynamic operating
plans of Universities for 2020/21 and 2021/22 academic
years. The Board developed a wider range of scenarios
and stress tests to assess our preparedness and ability to
withstand adverse market conditions.

Creating the right corporate culture for

effective risk management

The Group’s risk management framework is designed to
identify the principal and emerging risks, ensure that risks
are being appropriately monitored, controls are in place
and required actions have clear ownership with requisite
accountability.

63

The organisation has an open and accountable culture, led
by an experienced leadership team operating in the sector
for a number of years. This culture is set by the Board in
the way it conducts its Board and Committee meetings
and cascades through the organisation enabling a suitable
culture for risk management.

The culture of the organisation recognises - and accepts

- that risk is inherent in business and encourages an open
and proactive approach to risk management as opposed
to a blame culture, By viewing our risks through the lens
of our strategic objectives, the Group is able to ensure risk
management is pro-active and pre-emptive and not a tick
box exercise.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the governance
of risks and ensures there are adequate and effective
systems in place. It does this in various ways:

» During 2020 and into 2021, regular Covid-19 Board
calls in addition to the scheduled Board meetings. This
supports an appropriate balance between a Covid-19
response and other key business areas {such as
overseeing ongoing fire safety and a successful Liberty
Living integration).

+ Risks are considered by the Board as an intrinsic part of
strategy setting and consideration of new opportunities
- risk is recognised as an inherent part of each
opportunity.

» Atwice yearly formal review by the Board of principal
risks, how they are changing and considering any
emerging risks.

+ Enhanced stress testing/scenario planning to reflect the
dynamic nature of Covid-19.

» Risk Committee reviews the principal and emerging risks
that the Group is facing or should consider.

» Specific risk management in dedicated Board sub-
Committees allowing focus on specific risk areas (for
example, the Audit Committee and Health and Safety
Committee).

* Risk Committee scrutiny and challenge of management
activity allowing a forused forum for risk identification
and review,

« Risk assurance through external and internal auditors
as well as specialist third party risk assurance where
appropriate {e.g. British Safety Council providing
specialist independent health and safety assurance).

ESG Risks and our Sustainability Strategy

As aresponsible and trusted business, cur wider
stakehalders demand we proactively address
environmental, social and governance risks. This is
consistent with one of our values 'doing what's right’.
The pace of change in this area has only intensified

with Covid-19 with an increasing focus on longer term
sustainability. Our overarching ambition is for Unite to
clearly lead the student housing sector on sustainability



issues and be in the leading pack of real estate companies
in the wider sector. This is what our customers and
employees expect of us and is ¢ritical to Unite being

their Home for Success, If we do not do this fast and / or
successfully enough, we risk losing the support of our
investors and wider stakeholders. In addition, we risk
regufatory non-compliance and the resulting increased cost
of trying to keep up with fast-paced regulatory change.

To mitigate this risk, during 2020 we conducted extensive
stakeholder engagement and a materiality assessment to
develop our detailed sustainability objectives and targets.
The Board needed to better understand our stakeholder
expectations; otherwise we risk not meeting them.

In addition, we assessed our ongoing ESG regulatory and
reporting compliance. The Board used this engagement

to develop our new Sustainabitity Strategy. This provides

a clear structure with objectives, flagship targets and
governance to help ensure its successful delivery. We

are especially conscious we risk non-delivery of our
Sustainability Strategy if we do not engage and ensure the
business owns and leads change through business as usual
activity. This a care aspect of the implementation of this
strategy and a key focus for 2021.

Read more about our Sustainability Strategy on pages 46 to 63

Environmental

worstimpacts of climate change.

students to encourage sustainable living habits,

physical health and wellbeing.

succeed, whatever their background, gender or ethnicity.

Governance

Our new Sustainability Strategy sets out five key objectives designed to address our most material ESG risks:

1. Becoming net zero carbon in our operations and developments by 2030 - reducing the carbaon emissions from new and
existing buildings in line with climate science, ahead of the timescale set out in the Paris Climate Agreement to avoid the

2. Creating resilient, resource efficient assets and operations - reducing the environmental impact of our new and existing
buildings through investment in energy and water efficiency, maving away from the use of fossil fuels, and working with

3. Enhancing the health and wellbeing of our employees and students - engaging and listening to improve mental and

4. Providing opportunities for all - including students, employees and in the communities where we work, where all can

5. Leading the student housing sector - raising standards and delivering value to our customers and investors and providing
a great place to work for our employees wil! ensure we further build on our reputation. This will ensure we support UK
Universities to build on their reputation nationally and internationally.

Climate change risks

In 2020, we formally signed up as a supporter of the

Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure {TCFD)
and will be aligning with their requirements for managing
and reporting climate-related risks {(see page 63 for more
information).

Our Chief Executive has overall responsibility for our
climate-related risks and opportunities with ongoing
oversight of climate-related issues provided by our newly
established Sustainability Committee, a sub-Committee

of the Board. Risks are tracked, managed and mitigated by
our Sustainability Steering Group and the relevant business
functions.

Addressing climate-related risks to our businessis a
fundamental part of our new Sustainability Strategy and
specifically our objectives of: (1) becoming net zero carbon
in our operations and developments by end of 2030 and (2)

creating resilient, resource efficient assets and operations.
Reducing the environmental impact of our buildings and
operations, including energy and water consumption,
carbon emissions, and waste and resource use, helps
ensure our business is resilient and can withstand the
impacts of climate change and the transition to a low
carbon economy over the coming years.

We will continue to focus on climate-related risks as we
move to align fully with the TCFD's recommendations
throughout 2021 and will be publishing more details of
potential impacts and our approach to managing and
mitigating them later in the year.

The Board has identified the following climate-related
risks: Regulatory; Physical; Transition and Stakeholder
risks. For more detait see Principal risk 8 ~ Climate-related
risks: challenge to our longer term sustainability caused by
climate change, page 79.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Our risk management framework

Composition of
The Board Risk Committee

Risks assessed as part of strategy setting and risk oversight Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
Owned by the Board and its Committees
Joe Lister

Twice yearly formal risk review and ongoing monitoring of risk
wice yeary w going g Chief Financial Officer

integral to Board meetings

Nick Hayes
v Group Property Director
Chris Szpojnarowicz
. Company Scerctary and
Risk management Policies and controls Group Legal Director

Owned by the Risk Committee and Underpinning risk management
the Operations/Property Boards (such as Capital Operating
Guidelines; Treasury Policy;

Investment Committee and the
internal controis framework)

Monthly risk tracker review at
Operations/Property Boards

Risk Committee review and
challenge of alt risk trackers and
related risk and opportunity activity

People and culture

Embedded risk management culture

Openness, transparency and clear ownership of risk management
(supported by risk trackers) cascades through the organisation

Our Key Risk Indicators (KRIs)

Quality service platform Quality properties Quality University partnerships

Safety Gross Asset Value Safety
Customer satisfaction Asset age Higher Educatien trust
Employee engagement Occupancy Customer satisfactian

Rental Growth % Noms v. Direct-let
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Robust assessment of principal risks

The Directors confirm that they have conducted a robust
assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing the
Group together with an assessment of the procedures to
identify emerging risks. The process for how the Board
determined these risks is explained above and these risks
are set out on pages 72 to 80.

Viability statement

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Group over
a three year period to December 2023, taking account of
the Group's current position and the potential impact of

its principal risks, The Directors consider the three year
lookout period to be the most appropriate as this aligns
with the Group's own strategic planning period combined
with the levels of planning certainty that can be derived
from the development pipeline. Based on this assessment,
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the period to December 2023,

The outlock and future prospects beyond the viability
period for the business remains strong, reflecting the
underlying strength of student demand, our alignment
to the strongest Universities and the capabilities of our
best-in-class operating platform. There are significant
growth opportunities for the business created by the
ongoing shortage of high quality and affordable purpose
built student accommodation, Universities’ need to
deliver an exceptional student experience through their
accommodation and the growing awareness of the benefits
of PBSA among non-1st year students. In particular, we
see opportunities for new developments and University
partnerships, building on the strength of our enhanced
reputation in the sector.

The Group expects an improvement in financial
performance from the 2021/22 academic year reflecting
progress around vaccinations for Covid-19 and the
Government's plans to remove lockdown restrictions
over the coming meonths. The Directors believe that UK
Universities will continue to experience strong demand
from UK students as the 18 year old demographic profile
becomes increasingly favourable and the relaxation of
international travel restrictions allows increased numbers
of International students to study in the UK compared

to the 2020/21 academic year. The Group has an annual
business planning process, which comprises a Strategic
Plan, a financial forecast for the current year and a
financial projection for the forthcoming three years (which
includes stress testing and scenario planning and also rolls
forwards for another two years). This plan is reviewed each
year by the Board as part of its strategy setting process.
Once approved by the Board, the plan is cascaded down
across the Group and provides a basis for setting all
detailed financial budgets and strategic actions that are
subsequently used by the Board to monitor performance,
The forecast performance outlook is also used by the
Remuneration Committee to establish the targets for both
the annual and longer-term incentive schemes.

The financing risks of the Group are considered to have the
greatest potential impact on the Group’s financial viability.
The three principal financing risks for the Group are:

+ short term debt covenance compliance

+ the Group's ability to arrange new debt/replace expiring
debt facilities; and

any adverse interest rate movements

As outlined in the Going Concern disclosure, the Group
expects ICR covenants to improve rapidly from March
2021 as the impact of the initial lockdown and Term 3 2020
rent forbearance is excluded from 12 month historic tests.
Debt covenants are therefore not expected to impact the
Group's viahility.

The Group has secured funding for the committed future
development pipeline, which includes the Unite and Liberty
Living unsecured loan facilities, and prepares its Strategic
Plan on a fully funded basis in line with the three year
outlook period. Disposals are an important part of our
strategy with the recycling of assets out of our portfolia
generating capital to invest in development activity and
other investment opportunities.

To hedge against the potential of adverse interest rate
movements the Group manages its exposure with a
combination of fixed rate facilities and using interest rate
swaps for its floating rate debt. During the year the Group
has complied with all covenant requirements attached to
its financing facilities.

Fj Read our Financial review on page 42
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

MARKET RISK

bemand reduction: driven by macro events (such as Covid-19,

Government policy around HE or immigration and Brexit uncertainty)

o

Movement

Possible Events

+ Covid-19 pandemic

« Changes in Government policy on Higher Education funding

+ Immigration policy changes affecting international student
numbers and behaviour

+ Brexitimpacting numbers of EU students coming to study in
the UK

Strategic objective

Impact

Covid-19 impacted Untte directly in 2019/20 and 2020/21
academic years leading to a loss of income compared to plans
Potential reduction in demand and hence profitability and
asset values

Departure from EU impacting EU research grants and EU
students coming to the UK

Read Our business model on page 32

+ Offering great customer service is key to helping us address any reduction in demand. Ensuring we have high quality properties
aligned to Universities with a growing share of student demand mitigates demand reduction

What happened in 2020

» Covid-19 pandemic: direct impact for Unite alongside wider
and indirect global impact

¢+ Student applications; The number of applicants and the
number of students accepted cnto courses in 2020 was 729,000
and 570,000 respectively (2019: 706,000 and 541,000). A 5.4%
year on year increase in acceptances was driven by a record
participation rate among UK 18-year-olds and a 17% increase
in acceptances from non-EU students

« Brexit alongside wider political uncertainty continued through
2020

+ UK continued as second mast popular international destination
for students after the US

Risk mitigation in 2020

* Mitigated the Covid-19 reduced income primarily by suspending
our dividends, conserving cash, drawing bank facilities and
reducing costs where possible whilst always protecting safety
and the longer term health of the business

« Closely monitored Covid-19 guidance from the Governrment
and public health autherities as well s extensive dialogue
with our HE partners on their dynamic operating plans for
both 2020421 and 2021/22 academic years, Prepared budgets
and business plans under a variety of scenarios and stress
tests to assess cur preparedness and abitity to withstand the
adverse market conditions

Focus for 2021

+ Mitigating impact of reduced income / accupancy from the
ongoing pandemic through dividend / cash / third party cost
management and our related stress testing / scenario planning

+ Continuing te work with our HE partners on their dynamic
cperating plans
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Read more about Market review on page 27

The UK Government's international education strategy is
targeting an increase in the number of international students to
at least 600,000 by 2030, In September 2019, the Government
announced a new two-year post-study work visa for
international students (three years for postgraduates),

starting from the 2020/21 academic year

UK leaves EU Erasmus scheme and launches the UK's own
Turing Scheme

Uncertainty continues as to when any of the recommendations
in The Higher Education Funding Review (published in May
2019) will be implemented

Increased focus on quality and length of nomination agreements

Government dialogue and ongoing monitoring of Government
HE and immigration pelicy and its impact on UK, EU and
international student numbers studying in the UK
Implemented our plan for our key Brexit operational risks -
People, Procurement and Development - through our Brexit
Disruption Plan

Regularly reviewing our portfolio - especially conscious it has
grown through the Liberty Living acquisition - to ensure we
have the highest quality portfolio, appropriately sized and in
the right locations

Continued to deliver Home for Success, our core purpose to
provide homes that help students achieve more during their
time at University which was especially challenging for them
through 2020

Ongoing monitaring of Government HE funding and
immigration poticy

Continued focus on partfolio management, using disposals to
reduce exposure in higher risk markets



2 Demand reduction: value-for-money/affordability

Possible Events

* Increasing focus on the cost of a University education -
affordabitity and value-for-money - especially chatlenged in
2020 due to Covid-19

« Increasing risk of blended University learning (digital plusin
person) accelerated by Covid-19

+ Emerging risk of shorter/more semester-led courses and
increasing home study

+ Emerging risk of monitoring or regulation of the costs, rents,
profitability and value-for-money of student accommodation

+ Emerging risk of Further Education being promoted over HE

Strategic objective

A

Movement

Impact

* Covid-19 has directly impacted the student experience and
elevated concerns around University education affordability
and value-for-maoney. This has generally focused on questions
around the value of the student experience with students
studying on-line through the pandemic and limitations on
their in-person study and wider University life experience

+ More competition and reduced demand for year-round
student accommaodation in the longer-term resulting in lower
profitability and asset values

Read more about Qur business madel on page 32

= Offering quality service is key to ensuring we have relationships with the high and mid ranked Universities (the ones most likely
to sustain a reduction in demand). Our PRISM operating platform helps us deliver the best customer service efficiently

+ Offering a wider range of praduct enables students te have maore choice

What happened in 2020

* Covid-19 materially increased media attention on the cost of
University education (both tuition fees and accommadation).
This largely centred on complaints that the costs remained the
same despite students studying on-line through the pandemic
and were not able to physically attend University and enjoy the
wider University experience

Risk mitigation in 2020

* Waived 2020 summer rents for students returning home due to
Covid-19 during the first national lockdawn. Unite was the first
PBSA operator to do so. Likewise, early in 2021, the first PBSA
operator to offer 50% discounted rents and a complimentary
four week extension in the summer to allow students to enjoy
the summer in their University cities conscious this was an
especially challenging time for them

* Provided flexible check-in for students during September/
October 2020

* Allowed international students to move to a January 2021
start date, forgeing September - December 2020 rent

¢+ Option to check-in early, at no-extra cost, where students
needed to quarantine having arrived from a Covid-
restricted area

* Connected students via the MyUnite digital app before they
moved in so they could get to know each other in advance

+ Helped foster a sense of community by intreducing a Home
Charter creating a healthy and supportive living environment

Focus for 2021

* Working with our HE partners on their dynamic operating plans
during the pandemic and ensuring we still provide the best and
valued customer experience, whilst keeping everyone safe

* Demonstrating the value-for-money of our offer compared
to alternatives, including leading the market forgoing rents/
offering discounts and complimentary extensions through
summer 2021

Read more about Operations review on pages 17 to 21

Increasing propartion of second and third years choosing PBSA.
Over two thirds of Unite’s direct-lets are returning students
Continued our Student Ambassador programme and
University-adopted Welcome programme

Integrated the Liberty Living beds, providing us with a wider
range of product and price points and more affordable product

Increased provision and access to student wellbeing and
mental health support, including:

- Enhanced student welfare services, including bespcke
support for students who are shietding, support for those
self-isolating, online welfare checks and a pilot peer-to-peer
scheme

- Online chat reoms for students in the same building, and
online events run by student ambassadars

- MyUnite App: students communicate remotely with Unite’s
teams without having tc leave their rooms

- 24/7 support through Unite's Emergency Contact Centre and
a partnership with Nightline

- Dedicated welfare leads for all students including those in
guarantine and/or self-isolation

- Worked ctesely with our University partners supporting
students and maintaining our focus to keep all students and
staff safe across our properties through the pandemic

Ongeing monitering of Government HE funding
Cngoeing review of our services, product proposition and
specification

Greater segmentation of product for customers
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

MARKET RISK

3 Supply increase: maturing PBSA sector and increasing suppiy of PBSA beds

w

Movement

Possible Events

* New supply of beds as sustained high levels of investment
demand filter into the development market, primarily
through investors providing forward commitments to
smaller developers

Strategic objective

Impact

¢+ More competition for the best sites
« Potential impact on rental growth and occupancy

« Offering great service as well as having high quality properties is critical to mitigating any supply surplus

What happened in 2020

* The outlook for levels of new supply started to moderate.
This was largely due to Covid-19 uncertainty, companies
conserving cash and challenges proceeding with plans prior
to the pandemic

« New supply is also slowing due to more challenging planning
environments and the emergence of the private rent sector
{PRS) as an alternative option for sites that could have been
developed for PBSA

Risk mitigation in 2020

« Disciptined investment approach to markets with supply/
demand imbalance

+ June 2020 share placing raising £300 millien for Unite's
continued investment in its best-in-class portfolio. Deploying
these placing proceeds by exchanging contracts for a 300-
bed develocpment site in central Edinburgh, an 800-bed
development in Paddington, London and exploring other sites

Focus for 2021

* Qur portfolio: delivering our development pipeline
underpinned with strong University partnerships

* Qur people and our operating platform PRISM. Ensure our
people and systemns continue to help us deliver consistently
high levels of service to students and Universities alike

74

Read more about our Operations review on page 17 and Property review on page 22

The PBSA sector continues to mature and is becoming
increasingly professionalised

Unite delivered three new properties in 2020 alongside active
property recycling, resulting in a higher-quality Unite portfolio

Exposure to the best Universities underpinned with our new
developments secured with nomination agreements
Investmentin our brand and student experience - creating
better environments within our new developments through
Home for Success

Maintaining strong relationships with key Higher Education
partners

Qur capital structure: ensuring we have a strong yet flexible
capital structure so we can adapt appropriately as supply grows



OPERATIONAL RISK

4 Major health and safety (H&S) incident in a property or a development site

“

Movement

Possible Events

* Covid-19 impacting our customers, employees and contractors
= Fatality or major injury from a fire or other incident

ata property
= Multiple contractor injuries at a development or

operational site

Strategic objective

Impact

« Covid-19impacting both the physical and mental health of
aur customers and employees

* Fire ar similar safety incident impacting the students living
with us, contractors working on-site and visitors

* Reputational damage and trust in Unite Students as a
reliable partner

Read more about Qur husiness model on page 32

* Ensuring the safety of our customers, contractors and employees is fundamental to us offering quality service

What happened in 2020

+ Covid-19 has impacted our safety risk in unprecedented
ways, whilst our other risks (such as fire and contractor
safety) continue and in some cases are evenincreasing (e.g.,
increasing since more students are cooking in their student
accommodation so there is an increased risk of kitchen fires and
other behavioural challenges). Along with the physical health
irmpacts of Covid-19, our students’ and employees’ wellbeing and
mental health are being chaflenged even mare than usual

» Changes to Building Regulations continued the focus on fire
safety especially in high-rise residential properties

Risk mitigation in 2020

* H&S has direct Beoard supervision by the H&S Committee (&
sub-Committee of the Board) which actively supervises H&S,
ensuring robust policies and procedures are in place and
cansistently complied with

+ HR&Sis also actively reviewed in the Operations and Property
Boards, ensuring that H&S is top of mind in our day-to-day
operations and regularly assessed and validated

« First accommodation provider to achieve Covid Secure status
accredited by the British Safety Council

» Regular dialogue and engagement with PHE, local authorities,
our various stakehotlders as well as direct Government
engagement on Covid-19

» Comprehensive Covid-15 risk management program, including:

- Covid Response Team, Covid Secure Workplace and Covid
Secure BSC Assurance

- Covid audits by our Regional H&S Managers (these audits
consist of 20 questions checking whether we are compliant
with our Covid safe requirements e.g. staff are wearing
facemasks; sanitiser stations are stocked, and additional
cleaning regimes arein place)

- Our Covid Wiki page (our enline employee repository for
Covid infarmation) with working safely guidance, change
of lay cut and 'how-to' videos

Focus for 2021
+ Monitoring the dynamic Covid-19 situation and proactively
revising our cperating practices

+ Continued focus on the safety and wellbeing of our
customers, employees and contractors

Read more about Qperations review on pages 17 to 21

Focus on combustible materials continued, with high-pressure
Jaminates (HFL) and other materials under review

Fire safety management - despite Covid-19, continued focus on
our policies and procedures, risk assessments, training and fire
records

Continued working closely with Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and lecal fire
authorities and fire safety experts to ensure fire safety and
address any remedial actions following Grenfell Tower [earnings

Read more about Health and Safety Committee report on pages 115to 119

- Recognising the increasing mental health risk, we
expanded our H&S wellbeing for employees and appointed
Healthy Work Company to work with our operational and
safety teams

Appointed Faithful & Gould for assurance on Development
safety risk (this includes specific Covid-19 audits on sites as
well as a Wellbeing focus)

Refreshed our Values, including a focus on 'Keeping uS safe’
and ensuring pecple know they are able to speak out and help
us create a Safety culture

Finding ways to show visible leadership for Safety & Wellbeing
driven by our senior leaders. We measure how our teams feel
safe and well at work through Glint employee surveys and how
our customers feel safe and securein their homes (NP5)
Well-resourced health and safety team, working with our
customer facing teams on a continual basis

Use of audits and external consultants to ensure that we are
maintaining high standards

Implemented the British Safety Council recommendations from
our 2019 BSC safety audits {namely, an Occupaticnal Health
and Safety audit spanning 39 operating properties and our
Bristol head office - achieved BSC 5-star audit rating;

a dedicated fire safety audit; and a construction audit)

Removal of HPL cladding, with activity prioritised according tc our
risk assessments, starting with those over 18 metres in height

Monitoring and preparing for the anticipated more stringent
fire safety regulations
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

5 Informatian Security and Cyber threat

Possible Events

* Significant loss of personal or confidential data or disruption
to the corporate systems either through cyber attack or
internal theft/error

Strategic objective

OPERATIONAL RISK

o~

Movement

Impact

+ Results in reputational darmage, financial damage and 7 or
increased scrutiny including sanctions and fines

Read more about Our business model on pages 32 and 33

» Having strong but proportionate controls, to minimise risk of data loss and to ensure we are compliant with information security

and / or data protection regulations

What happened in 2020

« External Cyber Maturity Assessment completed in Q4 2020
acknowledged good progress in eur Information Security
approach and controls as well as provided key priorities for
further improvement

+ Technical security controls aligned ta industry standard
security controls which was suppeorted through external
security testing and renewal of our certification under the
Cyber Essentials Pius scheme

* Agreed Information Security Strategy and Technica! Security
Roadmap

Risk mitigation in 2020

* Responded to increasing risk challenges presented by Covid-19,
such as technical improvements to support increased remote
working, improved awareness for employees on infermation
risks of working from home and ensuring the increase in
personal data collected for tracking was handled appropriately

v Data protection risks increasing due te the processing of
Covid-19 health related data and mitigated through cross-
functional collaboration, strict access and data retention
contrels and new procedural controls

* Responded to increasing threat of Ranscmware

+ Conducted the Security Awareness Far Everyone (SAFE)
Programme driving new initiatives and education campaigns

Focus for 2021

» To continue alighment with the 1S027001 Information
Security standard, which provides a framework for a risk-
based approach to identifying, implementing and improving
security controls

= Strengthening the Information Security Committee {I1SC)
and ISC Working Group enahling business level engagement
with tnformation owners
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Progressed improvement in security controls through
implementing the Informaticn Security Management System
aligned to 15027001

Ongoing programme of training and awareness to promaote
everyane's responsibility to protect information, especially
personal data

Significant increase in customer and employee data processed
due to the acquisition of Liberty Living

Captured custemers’ self-isolation status data to support with
Covid-19 response activity

Monitoring of emerging cyber threats to identify any issues
that required a response

Informaticn Security and Data protection paliciesin place to
define rules for protecting information, Range of policies and
supperting procedures are being expanded

Developed Information security vulnerability assessment
and threat hunting capability

Improved Information Security Incident Management
procedures

Conducted a review and gap assessment of the Data Protection
activities ta define an improved framework approach

Renewed Cyber Insurance policy

« Expand the perpetual security monitoring and testing activities
= Monitor the processing of and controls in place for Covid-19
health related data



PROPERTY / DEVELOPMENT RISK

Inability to secure the best sites on the right terms. Failure or delay to complete y N

a development within budget and on time for the scheduled academic year

Possible Events

s Covid-19 impacting delivery of schemes to programme

« Site acquisition risk - increasing competition for the best sites

* Planning risk - delays or failure to get planning

» Construction risk - build cost inflation due to increasing
development {albeit tempered by Covid-19 / economic
uncertainty)

« Construction execution risk - delivery delays impacting
labour/materials coming from outside the UK

* Disposals risk - inability to execute cur disposals programme

* Climate risk - physical, regulatory and transactional risks
associated with climate change and the environmental impact
of our development activity

Strategic objective

* Quality properties
* High-quality service for students and Universities
« Reduce our negative environmental impacts

What happenedin 2020

* Covid-19 led to the deferral of some development activity
through 2020 to conserve cash {Middlesex Street, London and
Old BRI, Bristol)

= Delivered 2,257 beds across three development schemes for
the 2020/21 academic year. White Rose View in Leeds (559-
bed 30-year nomination agreement with the University of
teeds) completed on time and budget for student arrivals in
September. Following temporary site closures and reduced
levels of operatives on site as a result of social distancing
measures, Arch View House, Londen and Artisan Heights,
Manchester delivered irt Q4 2020

Risk mitigation in 2020

» Experienced development team with extensive site selection
and planning expertise, coupled with strong track record
and focus on project delivery and strong refationships with
constructicn partners with appropriate risk sharing. Group
Board approval for commitments above a certain threshold

s Financial investment in schemes carefully managed prior to
grant of planning

« Managed development delivery despite Covid-19 as well as
managed Brexit-related disruption

* Regular development team and property review, with Group
Board Director oversight to ensure failure to secure sites or
complete on time are managed in the budget

Focus for 2021
» Ensuring delivery of our two deferred schemes for delivery
in2022

= Deployment of remaining June 2020 share placing proceeds
into new schemes at attractive returns

Mavement

Impact

+ NTA and EPS affected by deferred schemes and/or reduced
financial returns, with cash tied up in development

+ Reputational impact of delivering a scheme late and leaving
students without accommodation

+ Recycling our portfolio through disposals is a critical aspect
of our development strategy and failure to deliver planned
disposals results in a deteriorating net debt pasiticn and
negatively impacts eur ability to commit to all of our planned
develepment pipeline

» Potential increases in construction costs as we seek to reduce
the carbon intensity of our develocpments and comply with
maore stringent building regulations

Read more about our Sustainability Strategy on page 46

Read more about our Property review on pages 22 to 26

+ £300 million placing in June 2020 enabling continued

investment in cur best-in-class platform {(exchanged contracts
for a 300-bed development site in central Edinburgh and a
new 800-bed development site in Paddington on a subject to
contract basis)

+ Completed a new University Partnership with the University of
Bristol, covering around 3,000 beds in Bristol. This will include
a large proportion of our existing operational assets in the city
following targeted investments as well as the 431-bed Old 8RI
development and the 596-bed Temple Quay development in
close proximity to the University's new Temple Quarter campus

Read more about Development pipeline and University partnerships pipeline on page 25

* Detailed planning pre-applications and due diligence before
site acquisition

« Build costinflation regularly appraised and refreshed.
Mid-sized framework contractors used and longer-term
relationships established to mitigate cyclical swings

* Engagement with our supply chain regarding future reductions
in embodied carbon through cur development activity, for
example through building design and material specification

Read more about Secured development and partnerships pipeline on page 25

« Securing more sites to build the pipeline for 2023 and beyond
+ Reducing the impact of cur operational carbon emissions
as well as embodied carbon from our development and
refurbishment activity
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Property markets are cyclical and performance depends

on general economic conditions

Possible Events

Buying, developing or selling properties at the wrong pointin
the cycle

Strategic ohjective

PERTY / DEVELOPMENT RISK

A

Mavement

Impact

= Reduction in asset values reducing financial returns and

leading to anincrease in LTV

Read more about Qur business model on pages 32 and 23

* Quality properties - managing the guality of our portfolio and our balance sheet leverage by recycling capital through disposals
and reinvesting into developments and acquisitions of assets aligned to the best Universities

¢ Greater focus on delivering attractive total returns through recurring income and capital growth, while maintaining a strong

capital structure

What happened in 2020

Read more about Property portfolio on page 22 and Disposals on page 26

The purpose-built student accommodation sector continued to deliver strong performance relative to the wider UK real estate
sector amid the disruption caused by Covid-19. Strong sector fundamentals and a track record of consistent rental growth continue

to attract significant volumes of capital to the sector

Earlier in the Covid-19 pandemic, transaction activity slowed (due to practical problems with buyers accessing sites as well as wider
economic considerations) but later in the year a portfolio of provincial assets sold to an international buyer at pricing broadly in line
with pre-Covid-19 levels. Given greater uncertainty over occupancy for the 2020/21 acadernic year, pricing is likely to be stronger
where sellers are willing to provide a one-year income guarantee to buyers

The average net initial yield across the portfolio is 5.0% (December 2019: 5.0%). At a city level, there was yield compression in
London and other super prime provincial markets, offset by a further increase in yields in more fully-supplied provincial markets

Risk mitigation in 2020

Group Board and Property Board ongoing maonitoring of
property market, direction and values

Ensuring we have a strong yet flexible capital structure
so we can adapt appropriately to market conditions

Clear and active asset management strategy

Focus for 2021

78

Cngoing monitoring of Covid-19, Government and central bank
policies and their impact on the property market and general
economic conditions. Ensuring a strong yet flexible capitai
structure to manage the property cycie

+ Acquisitions - disciplined acquisitions strategy exercising

caution aver portfclio premiums being paid in the market.
Careful management of net debtand LTV

Maintaining discipiined approach to new development
transactions by maintaining Group hurdle rates

Continued focus on Home for Success and our partnerships
with stronger Universities




8 Climate-related risks: chalienges to our longer-term sustainability

caused by climate change

Possible Events

Climate change risks include:

« Regulatory risks: ongoing evolution of more stringent climate related
regulations such as energy efficiency standards and reporting
standards

« Physical risks: increased frequency and severity of extreme weather

events such as high winds, intense rainfall and heatwaves

Transition risks: risk associated with the transition to a low carben

economy such as rising stakeholder expectations on performance and

disclosure, reducing embodied carbon, asset stranding, and energy
supply challenges and rising non-commaodity costs

Stakeholders risks: not being prepared and / or able to meet increasing

expectations around reducing our contribution to climate change from

our investors, Higher Education partners and our student customers

\ g

Movement

Impact

Reputational and financial impacts arising from
tack of clarity and environmental targets and
enforcement actien for non-compliance, such as cn
minimum standards for EPCs

Damage to properties and disruption to customer
experience, operations and supply chain due to
extreme weather events

Reduced investor confidence and access to finance
Requirement for significant capital investment
and asset management activity to address these
environmental risks

MIIAIDAQ |

Strategic objective

Develop and communicate a <lear Sustainability Strategy

Read more asbout Dur Sustainability Strategy on page 46

* Develop Science Based Carbon Targets, which also include our enlarged portfolio following the Liberty Living acquisition
+ Deliver energy and carbon performance improvements required to follow UK decarbonisation targets

What happened in 2020

Government consultations in England and Wales on more
stringent EPC minimum standards

Continued increased stakeholder expectation around ESG
performance and disclosure, and themes such as Task Force on
Climate-related Financiaf Disclosures (TCFD), GRESB and Net
Zero carbon emissions

Volatile wholesale energy markets with ongoing uncertainty
and complexity, and increasing non-commodity costs

Risk mitigation in 2020

Developed a new Sustainability Strategy in 2020 following
extensive wider stakeholder engagement

Cngoing development and implementation of building energy
performance strategy to manage EPC risk exposure and deliver
performance improvements across the enlarged portfolio

as well as closer integration with asset management and
development activity

Stakeholder dizlogue to determine preferred climate change
{and wider ESG) disclosures

Enhanced facus in the wider business on improving
sustainability performance and reporting

Focus for 2021

* Publication of a net zero carbon pathway, as we look to

provide greater transparency and accountability around

our Sustainability Strategy

Update our 'Up to uS' Sustainability Strategy with stretching
new targets including reduction in carbon emissions. Our new
Sustainability Report will also address the recommendations of
the TCFC

Flooding including several cities in which the business operates
{no direct impacts on our properties)

Integration of Liberty Living portfolio brings new climate
related risks and opportunities

MSCI ESG rating: AA and CDP Climate Change rating:B

GRESB score and rating: 81 {Four-star)

Unite sighed up as TCFD Supporter

Unite

Impiementing further corporate power purchase agreements
{PPAs) linking a proportion of our baseload energy
consumption directly to renawable energy generation assets
Submitted responses to EPC consultations via the British
Property Federation (BPF)

Continued investment in energy efficiency initiatives to deliver
real world energy and carbon savings

Disclosed in line with EPRA sBPR, achieving Silver rating

Develop an energy performance strategy across whole portfolio

including Liberty Living properties to better manage exposure to
climate related risks such as future EPC minimum standards, and
identify energy and carbon reduction opportunities
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

FINANCING RISK

A

9 Balance sheet [iquidity risk / compliance with debt covenants

Possible Events

« Unite breaches a debt covenant .
* Inability to replace debt on expiry

* Interest rate increase

* Unite unable to meet future financial commitments

Impact

Movement

Breaching a debt covenant may lead to an event of default foliowed by
2 repayment demand which could be substantial

Inability to replace debt on expiry may lead to a possible forced sale of
assets potentially below valuation. Slowdown of development activity

+ Adverse interest rate movements can lead to reduced profitability and
reduction in property values (through resulting expansion of valuation
yields and lower valuations)

Strategic objective

Read more about Our business model on page 32

+ Deliver attractive total returns through recurring income and capital growth, while maintaining a strong capital structure
* Quality properties - managing the quality of our portfolio and our balance sheet leverage by recycling capital through disposals
and reinvesting into developments and acquisitions of assets aligned to the best Universities

What happened in 2020

+ Due to Covid-19, our debt covenants (like for so many
borrowers) were fundamentally tested by the sudden,
unexpected and wide ranging shock of the pandemic. There
has been a specific focus on ICR covenants, not historically a
risk and not necessarily designed for a shock such as this

+ Maintained our disciplined approach to leverage,
with see-through LTV of 34% at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: 37%)

Risk mitigation in 2020

* Mitigated the Covid-19 reduced income by {among other things)
suspending our dividends, conserving cash, increasing hank
facilities and reducing costs where possible

* Cash headroom and liquidity: as at 31 December 2020, the
Group had £379 million of unrestricted cash reserves, having
fully drawn its revolving credit facilities during the period and
received £294 million in net proceeds from the June 2020 share
placing. Unite was confirmed as an eligible issuer under the
HM Treasury and Bank of England Covid Corporate Financing
Facility {CCFF) although no current plans to drawdown under
the CCFF. In addition, received credit approval for a £100 million
extension tg our unsecured Group debt facility

« Due to Covid-19 and specifically ICR covenants, increased our
covenant monitoring across a range of income / stress scenarios

Focus for 2021
+ Ongoing monitoring of cash headreom, liquidity and covenant
headroom / compliance in light of the fluid Covid-19 situation

* Following repayment of secured debt in 2020, Treasury focus
now moves to earliest debt maturity of November 2022

.

Unite Group PLC maintained investment grade corporate ratings
of BBB from Standard & Poor's and Baa2 fram Moady's, reflecting
Unite's robust capital position, cash flows and track record
See-through average cost of debt reduced to 3.1%

{31 December 2019: 3.3%) and 75% of see-threugh investment
debt is subject to a fixed interest rate (31 December 2019: 93%)
for an average term of 4.2 years (31 December 2019: 5.4 years)
Successful June 2020 share placing raising £300 millien

Repaid £207 million of Group secured debt at a blended
coupon of 4.8%

Read more about Financial review on page 42

to ensure that if any risks emerge, we are ready to identify
further action and work with lenders well in advance of formatly
reporting a covenant breach, In addition, external audit review of
covenant compliance through the Going Concern process
Preactive engagerment with all our lenders

Contra) of future cash commitments in line with progress of
disposals.

Interest rates monitored by the funding team as an integral
part of our refinancing activity - owned by the CFO and with
Group Board oversight

Gearing ratios defined in our Capital Operating Guidelines

and reviewed and approved by the Group Board

Interest rate exposure hedged through interest rate swaps
and caps and fixed rate debt

Raise further debt through 2021 to extend the maturity profile
of our debt and diversify our funding sources

Funding future development acguisitions beyond 2023

The Strategic Report on pages 4 to 80 was approved on 16 March 2021 by the Board and is signed on its behaif by:

Richard Smith
Chief Executive
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

The Board’s governance
is focused on delivering
a long term sustainable
and resilient strategy for

the Group.

"Ensuring we have the right governance and
resources in place has been more critical
than ever due to the dynamic nature of
Covid-19."

Phil White Chairman

2020 brought unprecedented challenges to the business
with the significant disruption caused by Covid-19, The
Board respanded by quickly assessing the key impact

of the pandemic to the business and ensuring the right
governance and resources were in place to oversee the
rapidly evolving situation.

The Board took immediate steps to ensure the Group was
both resilient and agile so the business could perform as
well as possible through the pandemic whilst also being in
as good a place as possible once we emerge from it.

Safety, one of our key risks, was especially challenged by
the pandemic. To ensure the safety and wellbeing of our
76,000 customers and our employees, the Board sought
third party assurance, obtaining British Safety Council
Covid Secure accreditation. The business took a number
of other key steps to ensure the safety and welibeing of
our customers, employees and visitors to our sites. These
are detailed in the Health and Safety Committee repart on
page 115.

The Board focused on ensuring the business’s financial
safety by taking decisive action to conserve cash and reduce
costs. These actions included deferring development and
non-essential operational capex, a reduction in Board

and senior management salaries, cancelling our 2019 final
dividend and suspending our 2020 interim dividend and
realising further cost savings.



The challenges of Covid-19 have weighed heavily on our
key stakeholders. In particular, to protect the interests

of students and with a focus on doing what's right for
students whose lives and studies have been significantly
impacted by Covid-19, the Board took the decision to waive
2020 summer term rents for students returning home due
to Covid-19 during the initial lockdown and then offered
further rental discounts for the 2020/21 academic year in
early 2021. In parallel to our Covid-19 response, the Board
also ensured there were dedicated resources to focus on
integrating the Liberty Living business, as well other key
priorities such as fire safety and cladding. Continuing to
keep our properties open through Covid-19 alongside
integrating Liberty Living is only possible due to the talent
and hard wark of our teams across the business. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank them for their dedication
and hard work in uniquely challenging times.

During 2020, the Board approved a new Sustainability
Strategy recognising the need for the business to do more.
This Sustainability Strategy includes targets for net zero
carbon operations and development by 2030, equality of
opportunity for our employees and a commitment to raise
standards across the student housing sector, Governance
of our Sustainability Strategy is provided by our newly
established Board Sustainability Committee.

During 2020, t was delighted to welcome Professor Sir Steve
Smith to the Board who brings a wealth of experience in
the Higher Education sector. Steve was also appointed
Chair of our Health & Safety Committee. His extensive
experience in Universities and campus life has proved
especially helpful as this Committee navigates the volatile
and unprecedented challenges of Covid-19.

See our Sustainability Report on page 46 for more information about our
Environmental, Sustainability and Governance strategy for the coming vear

As previously announced, | will retire as Chairman and
step down from the Board with effect from 31 March
2021, | will be succeeded as Chairman by Richard
Huntingford. My tenure as Chairman was extended to
oversee the integration of the Liberty Living acquisition,
which completed on schedule in 2020. It has been a
privilege to Chair the Board of Unite and play a small role
in its success over the past decade.

Engagement with our wider stakeholders continues

as key to our growth, along with robust and effective
governance especially as the HE sector and the wider
market faces the uncertainties ahead from Covid-19 and
the wider economic impacts. Our governance framework
has been designed to ensure our resilience through
these uncertainties whilst ensuring our agility to seize
opportunities ahead of us.

The following pages explain how our governance and
stakeholder engagement have supported us through
2020 and how it will continue to support our growth and
longer-term sustainability.

Phil White
Chairman
16 March 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Phil White
Chairman

N IO R OO

Richard Huntingford
Non-Executive Director
and Chairman Desighate

QARE®

Relevant skills, experience and contribution

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

OIOHOL H 1 s

Phil has served as Chairman since May
2009 and it was announced earlier
(November 2019) that Phil will be retiring
from the Board on 31 March 2021, He was
Chief Executive of National Express Group
plc fram 1997 to 2006 and led the businass
through growth in the UK and overseas.
He gained extensive executive experience
in the public transport sector during the
period of deregulation and privatisation,
He is Chair of Lookers plc as well as a Non-
Executive Director of VP plc.

Phil brings his wealth of experience as

a Chair of FTSE and ather companies to
Unite, ensuring best practice in board
effectiveness and corporate governanca,
Within the Beard, he helps ensure clarity,
critical thinking, constructive debate and
challenge and the running of an effective
Board. Externally, he ensures there is
effective engagement with our investors
over our strategy, long-term sustainability
and corporate governance. The Board
would like to thank Phil for his service.
During his Chairmanship, the Group has,
among other things, grown within the
FTSE 250 and become a leading European
REIT and, more recently, completed the
successful acquisition and integration of
Liberty Living and maintained the Group’s
market leadership. This is all testament

to Phil's governance leadership. This
leadership has been especially critical ag
the Board navigated Covid-19 through
2020 and into 2021. Phil has ensured the
business is ready and resilient to embrace
the risks and opportunities ahead.
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Richard joined the Board as Non-Executive
Director and Chairman Designate on 1
December 2020 and will assume the role of
Chairman on 1 April 2021. He is a chartered
accountant, and has over 30 years of

plc board experience including as Chief
Executive of Chrysalis Group plc between
2000 and 2007 and as a Non-Executive
Director of Virgin Mobile Holdings (UK)

plc. His Chair roles have included Wireless
Group plc (formerly UTV Media plc),
Creston plc and Crown Place VCT plc.

In addition to chairing Future plc (since
February 2018}, Richard is a Non-Executive
Director of JP Morgan Mid Cap Investment
Trust plc and The Bankers Investment
Trust plc.

Richard's proven FTSE chair, wider non-
executive and executive experience will
help us ensure best practice in board
effectiveness and corporate governance.
His wealth of experience in public
company governance and leadership,
corporate finance, investment, business
development, investor relations and media
will help drive our strategy development
and effective engagement with wider
stakehaolders.

Richard was appeinted Chief Executive

in June 2016. Prior to this, he was Unite’s
Managing Director of Operations from
2011, a role that involved Richard leading
the service provided to our customers,
and managing maintenance and facilities
management across the Group's portfolio.

Richard joined Unite as Deputy Chief
Financial Officer in 2010. Prior to this, he
spent 19 years in the transportindustry,
working in the UK, Europe, Australia and
Narth America. Richard spent 14 years
at National Express Group where he
held a range of senior finance, strategy
and operations roles, including Group
Development Director and Chief Financial
Qfficer, North America. Richard is a Non-
Executive Director at Stenprop Limited.

Richard continues to lead the successful
development, communication and
implementation of the Group's strategy,
providing clear and valued leadership and
delivery of the Group KPIs. His engagement
with our investors helps ensure cur
strategy is well understood and valued. His
operational expertise has helped ensure
the business's resilience and cngoing
delivery through the challenges of Covid-19
whilst ensuring the Group is well-placed to
be ready for the future.



Joe Lister
Chief Financial Officer

MNORHE

{N} Nomination Committee Member
@ Audit Committee Member

—
[R) Remuneraticn Committee Member

Elizabeth McMeikan
Senior Independent Director

0RRO®

® Health & Safety Committee Member
@ Sustainability Committee Member
@ Committee Chairman

Ross Paterson
Non-Executive Director

INEALRIGHs )

Joe joined Unite in 2002 having

qualified as a chartered accountant

with PricewaterhouseCoopers. He was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer in
January 2008 having previously held a
variety of roles including Investment
Director and Corporate Finance Director,
Joe is a Non-Executive Director at

Helical PLC.

Joe has continued to lead the design

and delivery of the Group's sustainahle
growth and financial performance, which
was especialty tested during 2020 by
Covid-19. Joe's deep experience of our
business and especially our funding
arrangements has been critical through
this difficult time, Together with Richard,
Joe ensures the development and
communication of the Group's ongoing
performance and strategy with our
investors. In addition, Joe has an expanded
remitover Property and a critical role in
developing and strengthening the Group's
University relatianships and the Group's
Sustainability Strategy.

Elizabeth was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in February 2014, She has
significant experience in customer-
focused businesses Tesco and Colgate
Palmolive, where she was successful in
driving growth thraugh an understanding
of customer needs and an innovative
marketing approach.

Elizabeth is a Non-Executive Director

at Dalata Hotel Group Pl¢, McBride plc,
Fresca Group Ltd, an import/export fruit
and vegetable company, and a director of
Second Growth Community Investment
Company. Previously she was a Non-
Executive Director of |D Wetherspoon plc,
the chair of Moat Momes Ltd, a leading
housing association in the South East,
ang CH & Co Ltd, a privately ewned
catering company.

Elizabeth brings her extensive consumer-
focused experience, both as an executive
and also on the beards of other FTSE
companies, to help oversee the design
and development of our custormer
proposition and enhanced customer
service. As Senior Independent Director
of Unite, Elizabeth supports the Chair in
the effective running of the Board, led the
Nominations Subcommittee for the search
of the Chair’s successor and, as Chair of the
Remuneration Committee, helps ensure

the Executive Directors’ and broader senior

leadership’s remuneration is aligned to the

long-term sustainable success of the Group.

Ross was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director in September 2017. He is Finance
Director of Stagecoach Group pic, and

as 2 member of Stageccach’s Board

is respensible for finance, business
development and legal. In addition, he is
a Non-Executive Director and the Audit
Committee Chair of Virgin Rail Group
Holdings Limited, and a member of the
Business Policy Committee of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.

Ross contributes to Unite’s Board using

his many years' experience of managing
finance in a complex eperational business
like eur own. He also brings valued insight
to innovation as we continue to enhance
our service offer to our student customers.
Ross uses his financial and hreader
business experience as Chair of the Audit
Cornmittee, helping oversee the Group's
financial rigour and delivery.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Richard Akers
Nen-Executive Director

000He

llaria del Beato
Non-Executive Director

(NI A QOO H TS )

Relevant skills, experience and contribution

Dame Shirley Pearce
Non-Executive Director

02000

Richard was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in September 2018. From 1995 to
2014 Richard worked at Land Securities plc,
where he had various positions including
as an Executive Director on the main
board and Managing Director of Retail.
Richard has over 30 years' experience in
the real estate industry, with a focus on
retail. He is currently Senior Independent
Director and Chair of the Health & Safety
and Remuneration Committees at Barratt
Developments Plc and a Non-Executive
Director at Shaftasbury Plc. Previously
Richard was a Non-Executive Director at
Emaar Malls PJSC.

Richard brings a wealth of real estate
experience as both an executive and Non-
Executive Director on the beards of FTSE
companies. This experience will be critical
te help the Group manage the change and
uncertainty in the wider real estate sector
as well as the broader economy.
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llaria was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in Decemher 2018, She is CEC

of Frasers Property UK, part of Frasers
Property, a global real estate group. llaria
was formerly CEQ of GE Capital UK, a
regulated Bank and corporate lender and
ted GE Capital Real Estate UK, a commercial
real estate investor, developer and lender.

llaria brings her 30 years of experience in
reai estate, including asset management,
investment and lending, te the Group.
This experience is vital to the Group as
we navigate the ongoing and upcoming
market uncertainties and increasing
professionalisation of the sector.

Dame Shirley joined the Board in
November 2019 as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairs our newly established
Sustainability Committee. She has held
chair, seniar executive and non-executive
roles at board level in Higher Education,
health and policing with experience of
both the public and private sectors. She

is currently an independent member of
the Committee on Standards in Public
Life, a member of the Higher Education
Quality Assurance Panel for the Ministry
of Education in Singapore, 2 Trustee for
the Royat Anniversary Trust, a member of
the advisory board of HCA and the Hon
President of the Association of University
Administrators AUA. Shirley was Vice
Chanceflor of Laughbarough University
from 2006-2012 and was board member
at the Higher Education Funding Council
for England, the UCEA, and the Healthcare
commission, as well as being a Non-
Executive Director of Health Education
England, and the Norfolk, Suffolk and
Cambridgeshire Strategic Health Authority.
She has held senior governance roles at the
LSE, and was appointed an independent
reviewer of the TEF. She was appointed
CBE in 2005 for services to education in
the NHS and in 2014 appointed DBE for
services to Higher Education.

Dame Shirley brings her wide ranging

and hands on experience in the HE sector
to the Beard. This is especially critical at
atime of ongoing change in the sector,
where her insight and knowledge of HE and
breader palicy initiatives will help inform
the Board on our strategic direction.



Thomas jackson
Non-Executive Director

QARHO

@ Nomination Committee Member
@ Audit Committee Member

@) Remuneration Committee Member

Professor Sir Steve Smith
Non-Executive Director

QORO®

E@ Health & Safety Committee Member
@ Sustainability Committee Member
@ Committee Chairman

Chris Szpojnarowicz
Company Secretary

NE®R®E

Thomas joined as a Non-Executive Director
in Novernber 2019. He has been the

head of CPP Investments’ UK real estate
business since 2015 and is responsible for
CPP Investments’ entry into a number of
new real estate sectors, including student
housing, life sciences and the build-to-
rent sector, In addition to sitting on the
Board of The Unite Group PLC, Thomas
also sits on a number of CPP Investments'
office, retail and logistics Joint Venture
boards. Beyond the UK, Thomas is also
responsible for CPP Investments’ real
estate investment activity in Germany
and the CEE regions. Themas originally
jeined CPP Investments in 2011 and was
instrumental in its transaction activity in
Spain, the Nordics and India.

Prior to joining CPP Investments, Thomas
was a Vice President in the real estate
investrment banking team at Macquarie
bank and focused on M&A transactions
within the UK and Eurepean public and
private real estate companies.

Thomas brings wide ranging real estate
experience, not only from the student
housing sector, but also his wider build-
to-rent, retail and logistics real estate
experience to the Board. His international
experience will also be invaluable for

the Board, helping provide a wider
perspective on developments in real
estate as the Board progresses further
its strategic thinking.

Sir Steve joined the Board on 1 April
2020. He brings with him a wealth of
experience in the HE sector. He was the
Vice-Chancellor and Chief Executive of
the University of Exeter from 2002 to
August 2020, Sir Steve was the president
of Universities UK {2009-2011), Chair of
UCAS (2012-2019), served on the Boards
of UUK and the Russell Group, and was
Chair of the UUK International Policy
Network (2014-2020}. He is currently the
UK Government International Education
Champion, and the Prime Minister's
Special Representative to Saudi Arabia
on Education.

Between 2007 and 2010, Sir Steve led for
Higher Education on the Prime Minister's
National Council of Excellence in Education,
which provided advice to Government
about strategy and measures to achieve
waorld-class education performance for all
children and young people. Sir Steve was
knighted in 2011 for services to Higher
Education locally and nationally.

Sir Steve’s extensive experience in the

HE sector contributes to how the Board
navigates a changing HE sector. In
addition, his hands on knowledge and
insight into how Universities operate
help us develop stronger University
partnerships. Sir Steve also Chairs our
Health and Safety Committee and his on-
campus knowledge helps us ensure our
approach to safety is well aligned with our
customers, Universities, employees and
wider stakeholders.

Chris was appointed Company Secretary
and Group Legal Director in 2013,
fallowing General Counsel roles at GE,
MTV Networks and other multinationals.
He was previously an M&A/corporate and
commercial lawyer at Clifford Chance and
Baker McKenzie. Chris uses his general
counse| and corporate/commercial legal
experience to fuse our ¢orporate and risk
governance with our business activity.
Chris links his Company Secretary and
risk/governance leadership role with his
legal and commercial experience which
has been especially critical as the Group
navigated the chalienges of the pandemic.

Chris is a Board Trustee of The West

of England Friends Housing Society, a
residential care home which alsc provides
supported housing and independent flats
as part of an integrated care community.
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BOARD STATEMENTS

Under the Corporate Governance Code, the Board
is required to make a number of statements.
These statements are set out below.

Requirement

Board statement

More information

Compliance with the Code

The Unite Group PLC is listed on the
London Stock Exchange and is subject to
the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code. The Board is required
to comply with the provisions of the Code
and to apply the principies of the Code
and where it does not, explain the reasons
for non-compliance.

The code is available at www.frc.org.uk

The Board considers that the Company
has, throughout the year ended 31
December 2020, applied the principles
and complied with the provisions set
outin the Code exceptin relation to (a)
Chair tenure {see explanation on page 96,
Chair tenure and successor appointment)
and (b) alignment of Executive Directer
pension contributions with the workforce
{see explanation on page 122 of the
Directors’ Remuneration report).

Details on how the Company has applied
the principles and complied with the Code
can be found throughout this Corporate
Governance section of the Annual Repart.

The table belaw on page 8% details where
disclosure against the principles of the
Code can be found in this Corporate
Governance report.

Going Concern

The Board is required to confirm that

the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operation for the foreseeable
future.

After making enquiries and having
considered forecasts and appropriate
sensitivities, the Directors have formed

a Judgment, at the time of approving

the financial statements, that there is a
reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future, being at least 12 months from the
date of these financial statements.

More details on the Going Concern
statement can be found on pages 172
and 173,

Viability Statement

The Board is required to assess the
viability of the Company taking into
account the current positicn and the
potential impact of the principal risks and
uncertainties set out on pages 66 to 80.

The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able
to continue in operaticn and meet its
liahilities as they falf due over the three-
year period to Decermber 2023,

More details on the Viability statement can
be found on page 71.

Principal and emerging risks facing the Group

The Board is required to confirm that it
has carried out a robust assessment of
the principal and emerging risks facing
the Company and include a description

of these principal risks, what pracedures
are in place to identify emerging risks, and
an explanation of how these are being
managed or mitigated.

A robust assessment of the principal and
emerging risks facing the Company was
undertaken during the year, including
those arising from the Covid-19 pandemic
and those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity, together with an assessment of
the procedures to identify emerging risks.

Information around key risks and risk
management processes and how they are
being managed or mitigated car be found
on pages 64 to 80, and on page 113 of the
Audit Committee report.
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Requirement

Beoard statement

More information

Risk management and internal control

The Board is required to monitor the
Company's risk management and internal
control systems and, at least annually,
carry out a review of their effectiveness.

The Beard conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the systems of risk
management and internal control during
the year, and considers that there is a
sound system of internal control which
accords with the ‘Financial Reporting
Council's Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Cantrof and Related Financial and
Business Reporting.'

Details on the systems of risk management
and internal control can be found on pages
64 to 80 and 113,

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board should confirm that it considers
the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance, business
model and strategy.

The Directors consider, to the best of
each person’s knowledge and belief, that
the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance, business
mode! and strategy.

See the Audit Committee report on pages
109 to 114,

Compliance with the Code

The Company's disclosures an its application of the principles of the Code can be found on the following pages:

Board leadership and Company purpose

A, Long-term sustainable success and contribution

. Purpose, values and culture

. Rescurces and control framewaork

m o n®

. Workforce policies and practices

. Engagement with shareholders and stakeholders

Pages 36, 46 to 63

Pages 90 and 91
Pages 64 to 70, 92

Pages 36 to 39, 95

Pages 38, 53 to 58, 60 and 94 and 95

Division of responsibilities

F. Board leadership
G. Board composition and respensibilities

H. Role and commitment of Non-Executive Directors

I. Board effectiveness

Page 97

Pages 96 and 97

Page 97
Page 98

Composition, succession and evaluation

J. Board appointments, succession plans and diversity

K. Board experience, skills and knowledge

L. Board evaluation

Pages 106 to 108

Pages 84 to 87, 97

Page 104

Audit, risk and internal control

M. Internal and external audit - independence and effectiveness

N. Fair, halanced and understandable

0. Risk management and internal controls

Pages 113 and 114

Pages 109to 114
Pages 641tc 70,113

Remuneration

P. Remuneration policies and practices - long-term strategy and success

Q. Development of palicy on remuneration

R. Judgmentand discretion

Pages 120 to 148

Pages 125 and 126, 135
Pages 122, 125, 128 and 129
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BOARD LEADERSHIP AND PURPOSE

Governance leadership

and corporate culture.

The Board is responsible for establishing the Company's
purpose, values and strategy, promoting its culture,
overseeing its conduct and affairs, and for promoting the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members
and stakehalders.

Our Purpose - Home for Success

The Board has set our purpose to provide a Home for
Success for our students, University partners, our people
and our wider stakeholders. Qur purpose describes our
shared commitment and motivation and helps us articulate
our business model, develop strategy, operating practices,
approach to risk and how we engage with our stakeholders.

Home for Success is about providing the right home
envireonment for all the tens of thousands of students
that come to live with us each year from across the globe,
to enable them to achieve whatever goals and ambitions
they aspire to. we focus on delivering an excellent service,
as well as keeping our students safe and secure. We aim
to make each Unite property a home. During 2020, our
purpose of Home for Success directly led to the Board's
decision to waive rents for students who left our properties
early in term three of the academic year 2019/20 due to
Covid-19 and then later the Board offering rent discounts
to students in early 2021 due to Covid-19.

Home for Success is also about facilitating the right
platform for our University partners by understanding
their long-term aspirations, accommeodation requirements
and service expectations. This means our offer is built
around the priorities of students and Universities alike.
Our purpose of Home for Success for our University
partners led the Board's decision making in the way it
worked with Universities on their dynamic operating plans
due to the challenges of Covid-19.

With our peaple being at the heart of our business, Home
for Success is about creating an environment enabling
them to grow, develop and succeed. Again, through

2020, this led to the Board's decision making in how

we responded to keep our people safe, whether they
continued to wark in our properties or were working
from home,

The Board has ultimate responsibility to Unite’s
shareholders for all the Group's activities as well as a
broader responsibility to censider the views of other
key stakeholders including our customers, Universities,
employees and the communities we operate in as well
as considering environmental and social issues when
making decisions. This responsibility is intertwined into
our comman purpose of Home for Success.
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Our Values and Culture

We have remained committed to our purpose, continuing

to evolve through our stakeholder engagement and our |
people. The Beard's ambition is to have a ‘One Team’ culture,
where our values can reflect the mindset, behaviours and
attitudes we aspire to role madel across the Unite business.
These continue to shape our culture, capture who we are,
the things we believe in and how we act. They connectus
and drive our behaviours. As we progress on our journey, we
do so with an enhanced commitment to deing what's right.
This goes beyond regulatory compliance and relates to all
aspects of the business including the impact on our people
and communities.

Through 2020, the Board led the development of our new
Sustainability Strategy which provides a framework across
our aperations, making sure our decision making process
has responsibility and sustainability at its heart and helping
support a safe future for the planet. See more on our
Sustainability Strategy on page 46. As we continue to align
ourselves with the Sustainable Development Goals set by
the United Nations, we hope to achieve a better and more
sustainable future for everyone.

The Board led the develepment of our refreshed values,
which guide the organisation in delivering our purpose of
a Home for Success, where everyone feels they belong and
are treated equally.

Creating room for everyone

Being authentic and striving for a truly diverse and
inclusive environment

Unite is a business that strives to be welcoming and
inclusive to all, creating an opportunity to participate and
feel valued. The Board has zero tolerance of any form of
discrimination and embraces cultural diversity to provide
an environment that enables everyone to be their true
selves, creating a sense of belanging for everyone.

Keeping us safe

Safety is at the heart of our brand and at the core of
everything we do

The Board believes we are at our best when all around us
are at their best. Looking after everyone's wellbeing, both
physically and mentally remains the Board's key priority.
Safety is not something else we do, it is part of everything
we do and is weaved through the entire business. Itis
driven by attitude and behaviour and is part of our culture.



Doing what's right

Always operate with a highly ethical, coffaborative and
solution driven mindset

Being a responsible business is part of our DNA. The Board
always looks to do the right thing in the right way, creating
trust for our people, our students, our University partners
and the communities we operate in. This drives the Board's
actions and decisions as demonstrated by the Board's
leadership in the decision to waive rent for students who
chose to return home for the remainder of the 2019/20
academic year as well as the rent discounts offered to
students in early 2021. The Board challenges the status quo
when needed and takes accountability for its actions.

Raising the bar together

Continuously focused on impraving the way things
are done

The Board’s ambition is to canstantly strive to be better,

by embracing an inquisitive mindset and exploring the
potential of our people’s own development. This does not
mean constantly trying new ideas but focusing on our own
expertise and building on that. The Board uses clear insight
and data to help inform us and understand what really
matters to students, driving efficiency, effectiveness and

a great customer experience every time.

Our culture defines what makes Unite a great place to
work and a great company to do business with and forms
the fundamental basis for aur governance. This is driven
by our core purpose of providing a Home for Success to
our people as well as our customers. The Board manitors
corporate culture through interaction and dialogue with
our people and alsa through regular employee engagement
surveys. Whilst mere challenging through 2020 due to the
absence of physical Board meetings and City visits, this
opened up the opportunity for more informat interaction
through video conference calls. This Board interaction
takes place right through the organisation, helping ensure
our values and culture are well understaod and giving our
people the opportunity for frank and open feedback and
the sharing of different views. Our employee surveys help
measure engagement through their participation rates as
well as the feedback received across the broad range of
topics surveyed. For example, during Covid-19 the Board
responded to feedback relating to additional wellbeing
measures and provided support for greater flexible
working. We are moving towards evolving a more inclusive
and listening culture through various platforms such as
Unite Live (see following), ‘Ask Richard’ emails (a dedicated
email address for the Chief Executive which provides
employees an opportunity to contact him directly with
questions they have) and a refreshed Employee Panel, We
also operate an ‘open chair’ at eur Operations Board, which
provide further opportunities for aur people to engage
with our leadership teams.

Unite Live

We launched ‘Unite Live' during 2020. This provides
employees with an opportunity to engage with our Chief
Executive and senior leadership directly through an online
forum, Any question can be tabled about working in Unite
with regular questions relating to safety, wellbeing and
diversity. We update our people on business developments
through weekly updates from our Communications team
and via a range of platforms including the employee
intranet, the Hub.

Daily Updates - key messages

Daily updates are communicated via email round ups.
These are circulated at all levels of the business with
content from across the business, which in 2020 was
especially focused on Covid-19 developments, updates on
safety and wellbeing.

The Board assess and monitors culture to ensure its
alignment with our purpose of Home for Success and our
values in the constant changing environment. In addition,
the Board monitors and measures our corporate culture
through the interaction with other key stakeholders,

such as our customers and our University partners. See
Stakeholder engagement on pages 38 to 39 which provides
more details on how we engage, and measure and monitor
our performance, with our customers and University
partners and other key stakeholders.

Strategy

The Board agrees, and has collective responsibility for,

the strategy of the Company, which is outlined in the
Strategic Report. Execution of the strategy and day-to-day
management of the Company's business is delegated to
the Operations and Property Boards, with the Group Board
retaining responsibility for overseeing, guiding and holding
management to account.

In 2020 the Board approved our new Sustainability
Strategy following extensive engagement with investars
and other stakehalders. As a responsible and trusted
business, our wider stakeholders demand we proactively
address environmental, social and governance risks, This
is consistent with one of our values, 'doing what's right".
The pace of change has only intensified with Covid-19 with
anincreasing focus on lenger term sustainability. Our
overarching ambition is for Unite to ciearty lead the student
housing sector on sustainability issues and be in the
leading pack of real estate companies in the wider sector.
See our Sustainahility Strategy on pages 46 to 63 for more
detail. In 2020, we formally signed up as a supporter of the
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure (TCFD)
and will be aligning with their requirements for managing
and reporting climate-related risks.
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BOARD LEADERSHIP AND PURPOSE CONTINUED

Board oversight

The Board discharges some of its responsibilities directly
and others through Committees and senior management.
Terms of Reference for the Committees are available in our
Governance Framework, published on www.unite-group.
co.uk/about-us/corporate-governance. To discharge their
broader responsibility effectively, the Group operates in
an open, harmonious and transparent manner, ensuring
open communication between the Board and the business
and its stakeholders. This communication has been more
challenging during 2020 due to Covid-19 and the inability to
meet and spend time together in person at our properties
and in the cities in which we operate. Nevertheless,

the Board ensured there was ample opportunity to

listen and hear directly from the leadership team, the
wider business and our stakeholders. During 2020, this
included comprehensive engagement with our employees,
customers and Universities on the impact of Covid-19 and
updates on business performance more generally from
the Chief Customer Officer, Group Property Director,
Deputy Chief Financial Officer, Group Investment Director,

Property Services Director, Head of Health & Safety, Group
Communications Director, Director of Strategy & Investor
Relations, Group Energy & Environment Manager, Higher
Education Engagement Director and Group Legal Director
& Company Secretary {among others).

The Board is also responsible for:

» Assessing, monitoring and pramoting the Company’s
culture, and ensuring that this closely aligns with its
purpose, values and strategy (see page 90, Our Values
and Culture).

+ Ensuring the necessary resources are in place for
the business to meet its strategic objectives. During
2020, this required the Board to ensure there was an
appropriate balance between dedicated resources to
focus on Covid-19 whilst ensuring other teams could
focus on other strategic priorities such as the Liberty
Living integration and Fire Safety.

+ Establishing workplace policies and business practices
that align with the Company's culture and values and
supportits strategy (see page 94).

Board structure
Board Committees

in the chart below:

(© Ross Paterson
Richard Akers
llaria de! Beato
Steve Smith

© Steve Smith
Elizabeth McMeikan

llaria del Beato
Shirley Pearce
Richard Smith

{© Elizabeth McMeikan
Phil White
Ross Paterson
Richard Akers

Shirley Pearce

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to its Committees, as detailed on the following pages. The terms of
reference for each Committee are reviewed annually. The current membership of each Committee of the Board is set out

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

(© Phil White
Richard Huntingford
Elizabeth McMeikan

Ross Paterson

Richard Akers

Ilaria del Beato
Steve Smith
Shirley Pearce

Thomas Jackson

Health & Safety Committee Sustainability Committee

© Shirley Pearce
Richard Smith
Ross Paterson
Richard Akers
llaria del Beato

Thomas Jackson
@ Committee Chair
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+ Overseeing the implementation of a robust controls
framework to allow effective management of risk, with
this oversight delegated to the Audit Committee (see
pages 113).

» Effective succession planning for key senior personnel,
much of which is delegated to the Nemination
Committee (see page 106 to 108).

The Board has ultimate responsibility to Unite's
shareholders for all the Group's activities as well as a
broader responsibility to consider the views of other

key stakeholders including our custamers, Universities,
employees and the communities we operate in as well as
considering environmental and social issues when making
decisions. All of the Board's significant decisions are
considered having regard to Section 172 and specifically
the likely consequences of these decisions in the long term
and their impact on our stakeholders. Pages 36 to 39 of

the Strategic Report highlight how the Board has sought to
effectively consider and engage with our shareholders and
wider stakeholders.

While the above summarises the key areas of Board
responsibility, it is not intended to be exhaustive.

Board operating rhythm

Covid-19

During 2020, the Board had regular video conference calls
in addition to its scheduled Board meeting calendar. These
allowed the Board to focus on managing the business
through the pandemic whilst also allowing the Board to
step back and view the bigger picture and prepare for
longer term sustainable growth.

The table on pages 66 and 67 sets out what the Board did
in response to the impact of Covid-19 on our principal risks.

Regular updates from the Board Committees on

their activities and recommendations

Ensure that the detailed work performed in the
Board Committees is considered by the Board
as awhole.

Strategy and flve-year plan

Discuss, review and approve our strategy and five-
year plan, and track how we are performing against
our current strategy and five-year plan.

Review key Group policies to ensure they are
appropriate and implemented effectively.

Review and discuss our principal and emerging risks
at a Group level and also review operational tevel
risks {the Board's operational risk review is to verify
that risks have been properly identified and that
appropriate risk-mitigation plans are being correctly
managed with clear actions and ownership).

Review and challenge disposals being recommended
by management and ensuring appropriate value in
recycling our portfolio,

SIUBLLBIRIS [BIIURULY .

Review of Group policies

UORBWIOMU SISO ‘

Board compaosition and management succession

Review the composition of the Board to ensure
appropriate combination of skills, experience and
knowledge and effective succession planning for key
seniar personnel,

Operational, property and financial updates

Provide the Board with the necessary information
to track the Group’s performance and challenge any
problems with performance.

Market and Higher Education sector updates

Ensure the Board has the latest market and sector
knowledge.

New development schemes

Review and challenge new development schemes
heing recommended by management and, due to
the significant capital expenditure involved and key
strategic decisions required, approve these new
development schemes.

Training

Review the Board's training needs and ensure that
the Board is up to date on key legal and regulatory
changes.
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BOARD LEADERSHIP AND PURPOSE CONTINUED

How the Board operates and stakeholder
engagement

The Board has an annual operating rhythm with an agenda
of items for the forthcoming year built around our strategic
objectives, In 2020, this operating rhythm was directly
impacted by Covid-19 and the intense focus on managing
the business through the pandemic. In paralle! to this,

the Board still maintained its usual business rhythm to
help ensure the Group can emerge from the pandemic

in a sustainable way and ready for growth. The Board's
meetings are split between strategy (considered in light
of principal and emerging risks, opportunities and the
approval of specific investments above certain thresholds
as well as ESG and longer term sustainability) and routine
operational, property and financial updates (providing
context for the strategic discussions as well as governance
oversight of in-year activity). During 2020 and into 2021,
regular Covid-19 Board calls are held in addition to the
scheduled Board meetings to ensure sufficient time
allocation and appropriate balance between a Covid-19
response and our wider strategic and business priorities.

Normally meetings take place throughout the UK, often
at Universities or in our operating cities, so the Board can
meet Vice-Chanceliors and learn about their experiences
with Unite, their accommodation requirements more
generally and broader developments in the Higher
Education sector. This year these meetings took place
virtually due to the pandemic.

Senior leaders are regularly invited to attend meetings
and present to the Board. During 2020 these took place
through video conferencing. These meetings provide the
Board, and in particular the Non-Executive Directors, with
direct and open access to leaders throughout the Group
and helps build a cu'ture of openness and directness.

in addition, external experts are also invited to present
to the Board (such as University Vice-Chancellors and
property valuers) to give the Directors a broader and
independent perspective.

Stakeholder engagement on pages 36 to 39 explains how
the Board engages and measures the views of our key
stakeholders and the outcomes from this engagement.

Workforce engagement

The Board has designated one of its Non-Executive
Directars (Elizabeth McMeikan, the Senior independent
Directar and Chair of the Remuneration Committee) to
help ensure the views and concerns of the workforce are
brought to the Board and taken into account.

By attending the Employee Panel Forum meetings,
engaging with people across the organisation and with the
benefit of the regular employment engagement surveys,
Elizabeth McMeikan is able to:

94

» understand the concerns of the workforce and explain
these at Board meetings;

+ ensure the Board, and in particular the Executive
Directors, take appropriate steps to evaluate the impact
of proposals and developments on the workforce and
consider what steps should be taken to mitigate any
adverse impact; and

+ ensure plans are fed back to the workforce.

Workforce engagement has led to shaping the Board's
decision making. Through 2020, these decisions were
primarily focused on the challenges of Covid-19 for

our people and an increased focus on their safety and
wellbeing. This applied to both those employees who
continued to work in our properties and to those employees
working from home. This resulted in the following:

= arevised Flexible Working Policy and wWorking from
Home Guidelines supporting employees with how to
balance work and home life, as well as ensuring they
were equinped to work remotely from home and stay
connected.

« sharing a platform with our people to raise and discuss
health and wellbeing concerns as well as promoting
existing rescurces and suggesting improvements.

» launched 'Unite Live' to provide employees with
an oppartunity to engage with our Chief Executive
and senior leaders directly through an online forum
where gquestions are submitted digitally and can be
anonymous. See mare on Unite Live on page 91.

= providing additional special leave to those employees
with caring responsibilities.

= extending our cycle to work scheme to be available
all year round, which was especially helpful for those
employees who continued to work in our properties
through the year.

+ roliing out healthcare cash plan, Medicash for all
employees which also gives access to virtual GP,
particularly heipful in the current climate. This included
free cover for our employees’ children.

+ delivering training focused on the wellbeing of our
employees, partnering with The Healthy Work Company.

+ rolling out a specific ‘home working’ DSE Assessment
and e-Learning in line with Covid-19 safe guidelines.

+ rolling out PPE, reception Perspex screens, social
distancing fioor marking and the use of temperature
checks and anti-viral fogging machines to ensure
we continue to provide a safe environment for our
employees.

» providing professional counselling support for any
team members as part of our Employee Assistance
Programme.



The Board, through the detailed work of the Remuneration
Committee, also monitors pay and practices across the
wider workforce with the Group People Director attending
these meetings to update on workforce initiatives and offer
an employee perspective to the Committee’s deliberations.

The Board also considers diversity, inclusivity and
belonging across the workforce, by considering (among
other things) our gender and ethnic diversity throughout
the Group as well as our gender pay gap.

Investment in workforce

The Company invests in our people, conscious that we can
only deliver a home for our students, and ultimately cur
purpose of Home for Success, through our people. Our
people are a key stakehalder and how we engage with
them and measure this is set out on pages 38 t0 39. The
Company is a fully accredited Living Wage employer and
provides recognition through pay awards, annual bonuses
for all employees and our annual employee scheme,

Stars Awards, recognising individuals and teams. Seniar
managers are eligible to participate in the Long Term
tncentive Plans. All employees are eligible to participate

in the Company’'s SAYE scheme. As a responsible and
sustainable business, creating diverse and engaged
teams is critical to our on going success. Our approach to
investing in and rewarding our warkforce, is set out on
pages 53 and 123.

Whistleblowing programme

The Board annually reviews our Whistleblowing programme.
Our Whistleblowing policy and a clear exptanation as to

how to raise a concern in confidence is readily available

and published on our intranet. Following the Liberty Living
acquisition, we integrated both whistlieblowing programmes.

Our employees are able to raise concerns via various
channels, which includes via an independent third-party
if they feel this is necessary. Matters raised are then
investigated by the Company Secretary and escalated as
appropriate.

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (Section 172)

Section 172 requires the Directors to take into
consideration the interests of stakeholders in their decision
making. In particular, Section 172(1} states that regard
should be had to the long-term consequences of decisions,
the interests of the Company’s employees, the need to
foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others, the impact of the Company's
operations on the community and the environment, the
impact of the Company maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct and the need to act fairly as
between members of the Company. Page 36 explains how
this was considered during 2020. Further, pages 100 to 103
explain Board activity and decision making during the year
which flowed from our stakeholder engagement and how
this is aligned to our strategic objectives.

How we engage with our investors

The Board values effective communication with
shareholders and other providers of capital te the business
and welcomes their views on the Group's approach to
corporate governance. This year this has been especially
critical as we navigated the pandernic and maintained
extensive dialogue and engagement with our shareholders
regarding the oengoing performance of the business, the
suspension of dividends as well as engagement with our
lenders on our Financing covenants compliance and our
financing commitments mare generally.

The Board is made aware of the views of major
shareholders concerning the Company through, among
other means, regular analyst and broker briefings and
surveys of shareholder opinion. These will continue
throughout 2021.

The Company maintains a corporate website containing
extensive infarmation of interest to both institutional

and private investors. The Company has frequent
discussions with shareholders on a range of issues
affecting its performance, both following the Company's
announcements and in response to specific requests. The
Company regularly seeks feedback on the perception of the
Company among its shareholders, the investor community
more broadly and its stakeholders.

Save in exceptional circumstances (which was the case

for our May 2020 Annual General Meeting due to Covid-19
restrictions on physical meetings), all members of the
Board attend the Company’'s Annual General Meeting

and shareholders are invited to ask questions during the
meeting and to meet with Directors prior to, and after, the
formal proceedings. At the meeting, the Chairman reviews
the Group’s current trading. The results of the votes at
the Annual General Meeting, together with details of the
level of proxy votes lodged for each resolution are made
available on a regulatory information service and on the
Company's website at www.unite-group.co.uk. There were
no resolutions with tess than 80% voting in favour and
therefore Code Provision 4 did not apply.

During the upcoming Annual General Meeting, the Board
is proposing that shareholders of the Company approve
an amendment of the Companys’ Articles of Association
to allow hybrid general meetings. This will facilitate
shareholders to attend, participate and vote in general
meetings electronically using technolegy in addition to
their current ability to attend the meeting physically. For
more details, please refer to the Notice of Annuai Generaf
Meeting which is issued separately.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board is set out in the table on
page 99.

The Board currently consists of the Chairman, two
Executive Directors and eight Non-Executive Directors
(one of whom is Chairman Designate).

Apart from Phil White who is stepping down from the
Board on 31 March 2021, each of the other Directors

offers themselves for election or re-election at the Annual
General Meeting, to be convened this year on 13 May 2021,
in accordance with the requirements of the Code, Brief
biographies of all the Directors and their skiils, experience
and contribution, are set out on pages 84 to 87. Following
the individual performance evaluations of each of the
Non-Executive Directors seeking re-election, it is confirmed
that the performance of each of these Non-Executive
Directors continues to be effective. They each demanstrate
commitment to the role and add value and relevant
expearience to the Board.

Independence

The Board considers seven of its eight Non-Executive
Directors to be independent. Thomas Jackson is not
considered to be independent, having been nominated
as a Director of the Company by its largest shareholder
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board (CPPIB) pursuant
1o a Relationship Agreement signed as part of the Liberty
Living acquisition. Accordingly, the Company meets the
requirement of the Code that at least half of the Board
{excluding the Chairman) is made-up of independent
Non-Executive Directors. In addition, Phil White (Chairman
of the Board) was considered independent on his
appointment to that role.

Composition of the Board
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Chair tenure and successor appointment

The Board is acutely aware that Phil White has been

Chair of the Board for more than ten years. Phil White
considered not offering himself for re-election as a Director
at the previous Annual General Meeting, but at this time

he -~ along with the rest of the Board - were conscious

that the Group was working intensively on the potential
acquisition of Liberty Living. lt was felt, on balance, stability
and continuity of the Chair position at that time was
preferable in the longer-term interests of the Group and

so Phil White continued as Chair during this critical stage
of the acquisition process. Following cormpietion of the
acquisition, and conscious that the Chair had written to
sharehalders on behalf of the Board recommending the
acquisition, it was felt on balance preferable that Phil White
continues as Chair to oversee delivery of the Liberty Living
integration and synergies. As such, it was agreed that Phil
white would continue as Chair through 2020 and then step
down as Chair by not offering himself for re-etection at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting. This continuity through
2020 was even more helpful as the Board had to focus on
the immediate demands of Covid-19.

During 2020, the Nomination Committee (through a
subcommittee chaired by Elizabeth McMeikan, the Senior
Independent Director) conducted a thorough process for
the saarch, recruitment and on-boarding of the Chair's
role and recruited Richard Huntingford as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairman Designate. Phil White was not a
member of this subcommittee. Richard Huntingford was
appointed as a Director on 1 December 2020 and will
assume the rofe of Chairman on 1 April 2021,

Heidrick & Struggles was engaged as the external search
consuftancy for this role. The firm has no other connection
with the Company or any of the individua} Directors.
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Roles

The Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors
constructively challenge and help develop proposals

on strategy, and bring strong, independent judgement,
knowledge and experience to the Board's deliberations.

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are clearly separated.
Summaries of the responsibilities of the Chairman,

CEO and Senior Independent Director are set out in the
table below.

Role: Chairman

Phil White’s' principal responsibilities are:

+ to establish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the
strategic objectives of the Group for approval by the Board

« to organise the business of the Board

+ to enhance the standing of the Company by communicating

with shareholders, the financial community and the Group’s
stakehclders generally

Role: Chief Executive
Richard Smith has responsibility for:

+ establishing, in conjunction with the Chairman, the strategic
objectives of the Group, for approval by the Board

+ implementing the Group's business plan and annual budget

+ the overall operaticnal and financial performance of the Group

Role: Senior Independent Director

As Senior Independent Directar, Elizabeth McMeikan's principal
responsibilities are to:

« act as Chairman of the Board if the Chairman is conflicted

+ actas a conduit to the Board for the communication of
shareholder concerns if other channels of communication
are inappropriate

» ensure that the Chairman is provided with effective feedback
on his performance

1. These will be taken over by Richard Huntingford from 1 Apni| 2021.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-
Executive Directors are available for inspection at
the Company's registered office and at the Annual
General Meeting.

Time commitment

Directors are expected to commit approximately 20 days
per annum to the business of the Group. We have reviewed
the responsibilities of all Directors and are satisfied that
they can fully fulfil this commitment. During 2020 and into
2021 additional time commitment is needed as a result

of Covid-19 and the Directors attended regular Covid-19
Board calls in addition to the scheduled Board meetings to
ensure an appropriate balance between a focused Covid-19
response and an ongoing focus on other key business areas.

It's the Board's policy to allow Executive Directors to accept
directorships of other unconnected companies so long

as the time commitments do not have any detrimental
impact on the ability of the Director to fulfit his duties. It

is considered this will broaden and enrich the business
skills of Directors. Any such directorships must be formally
approved by the Board.

0On 4 November 2020, Richard Smith became a Non-
Executive Director of Stenprop Limited. No potential
conflict has been identified in relation to Richard's
appointment. Richard's total time commitment with
Stenprop Limited is anticipated to be ¢.22 days per year.
There are no timing issues identified with Unites’ Board
dates and Stenprop Limited. Stenprop Limited has a March
financial year-end.

The Board approved this appaintment in advance and
agreed that it would not impact Richard’s commitment
as an Executive Director of Unite.

Board tenure’

Richard Huntingford
Elizaheth MrMeikan
Ross Paterson

ilaria del Beato
Richard Akers
Shirley Pearce

Tom Jacksan:

Steve Smith

a 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

NED Tenure
1. Phil White steps down on 31 March 2021.

2. Notindependent.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES CONTINUED

Each of the Executive Directors has a rolling contract
of employment with a 12-month notice period, while
Non-Executive Directors are, subject to re-election by
shareholders, appointed to the Board for a term of
approximately three years. The chart on the preceding
page shows the current tenure of the Non-Executive
Directors (rounded up to the nearest year).

Professional advice and training

Directars are given access to independent professional
advice at the Company's expense when the Directors

deem it necessary in order for them to carry out their
respansibilities. The Directors also have regular dialogue
with, and direct access to, the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who ensures that Board processes and
corporate governance practices are followed.

The Board considers it important that the Committee
Chairs continue to receive sector and relevant functional
training {such as on accounting, corporate governance
and executive remuneration reporting developments)
and accordingly the Committee Chairs attend relevant
external semninars. The Board as a whole receives angoing
training on corporate governance and other relevant
developments.

Richard Huntingford - Chair Induction

Richard Huntingford joined the Board on

1 December 2020 as Non-Executive Director and
Chairman Designate. Despite the challenges of Covid-19,
Richard received a comprehensive induction to the
organisation and the sector, spread across 10 days with
over 25 induction meetings with different leaders across
the business and also externally. The primary objectives
of the induction were to:

-
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Board induction

On appointment to the Board, each Director takes partin
a comprehensive and personalised induction programme.
This induction is also supplemented with ongoing training
throughout the year to ensure the 8oard is kept up to date
with key legal, regulatory and industry updates. Richard
Huntingford and Sir Steve Smith, who joined the Board in
2020, underwent an induction programme following this
framework:

+ The business and operations of the Group and the
Higher Education sector; the role of the Board and
matters reserved for its decisions; the terms of
reference and membership of Board Committees; and
powers delegated to those Committees

+ The Group's corporate governance practices and
procedures and the latest financia! information about
the Group. The legal and regulatery responsibilities as
a Director and, specifically, as a Director and Chair of a
listed company.

As part of the induction programme, they virtually met
with key senfor executives, so from the outset they have
access to people throughout the organisation to help
them form their own independent views on the Group, its
performance and the sector we operate in. In addition,
they meet with representatives of the Company's key
advisers. Arrangements will be made when possible (post
pandemic) for each Director to visit key locations to see
our business operations and properties first-hand and the
Higher Education institutions with which we partner.

+ Gain a thorough understanding of our strategy and
business.

= Startto build refationships with the Board, wider
leadership team and key external paople.

* Understand our organisational design
and structure,

* Understand how we are tackling the current
challenges around Covid-19, ensuring our resilience
whilst seizing any opportunities.

N —



Board activities in 2020
Directors’ attendance at meetings

Date of appointment Audit Remuneration Nomination &2::;::
Current Directors Status to the Board Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Phil White! Chairman 21 January 2009 RFAN - 4/4 3/3 -
Richard Huntingfard? Independent 1 December 2020 11 - - 0/0 -
Elizabeth McMeikan Independent 01 February 2014 11/11 - 4/4 373 3/3
Joe Lister Executive 02 January 2608 11/11 - - - -
Richard Smith Executive 01 January 2012 11/11 - - - 3/3
Ross Paterson Independent 21 September 2017 11711 4/4 4/4 373 -
Richard Akers Independent 01 September 2018 11/11 4/4 4/4 3/3 -
llaria del Beato independent 01 December 2018 11/11 4/4 - 3/3 3/3
Dame Shirley Pearce Independent 01 November 2019 11/11 - 4/4 3/3 3/3
Thomas Jackson Non-independent 29 November 2019 11/11 - - 3/3 -
Sir Steve Smith? Independent 1 April 2020 8/8 3/3 - 3/3 212

1. Resigning effective 31 March 2021.

2. Appointed on 1 December 2020 and will assume the role of Chairman on 1 April 2021.

3, Appointed an 1 April 2020,

In addition to the scheduled Board meetings mentioned in the table above, this year there were regular Board video
conference calls allowing focus on the very dynamic situation caused by Covid-19, the safety of our customers and people
and our business/financial performance, as well as the wider impact on the Higher Education sector and the economy

more generally.
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BOARD ACTIVITIES

Beoard activity and annual programme

In addition to regular updates on Covid-19 being considered at each Board meeting, the Board also considered:

February

March

May

June

July

September

October

November

December

100

Governance

Approve Annual Report

IR review

Chair Succession

Assess auditors

Equity placing

Refreshing our OKR's
{Objectives and Key
Results in light of Covid-19}

internal Audit Cyber

Security review

Chair Succession

External Board &
Committee Evaluation

Higher Education
engagement

Internal Auditand
Assurance

Strategy

Higher Education
sector engagement

Leadership through
Covid-19

Strategy refresh, focusing
on economic recovery and
student numbers forecast
post Covid-19

Developing our
Sustainability Strategy

Equity Placing

Higher Educatien Update

HE sector and Covid-19

Refreshing our
Sustatnability Strategy

Debt strategy

Sustarnability Strategy
review and approval

Annual Tax strategy review
and approval

Financial and
risk management

Preliminary results

Group cashflow review

Review internal controls
{including Cyber Security)

Funding options

Principal and emerging
risks review

tnterim results

Interims feedback

Return of students for
academic year 202072021
and the Covid-19 impact

2021 budget scenario
planning

Principal and emerging
risks review

Infarmation Security
2021 budget approval

Prospective year-end
out-turn

People

Liberty Living
peopte integration

Response to Covid-19.

Liberty Living integration
review

Group Board Safety Day
facusing on: Covid-19,
our Safe and Secure
promise, ensuring safe
Development and Fire
Safety

Plans for our 2029 external
Board evaluation

Student welfare and
mental health

Executive succession
planning

QOrganisational people
design to deliver our
Strategy

Employee and student
wellbeing

whistleblowing review

Operational
and commercial

Property - development
approval

Post-completion review -
review of 2019 property
completions

Lovid-19 cperational
review

Operating safely through
Covid-19

Covid-19 operational
review

Development approval

Property Investment
Market Update

Recormmence deferred
development schemes

Disposals

Operational incidents
safety review and
organisational learning



Board's decision making during 2020

Board's governance role Link to principal risk

What the Board did in 2020 and Its decision making

Strategic objective: Safe and Secure

Safety, Health and Wellbeing Operational risk -

Governance to ensure the health, safety, Major health and safety

wellbeing and security of aur 76,000
custemers and 1,900 employees is
paramount. Covid-19 impacted us (like
so many businesses) in unprecedented
and unforeseen ways, whilst our other
safety risks (such as fire and contractor
safety) continue.

incident in a property
or a development site
on page 75

The Board reviews the safety of cur students, visitors and
employees, as well as contractors at our development sites,
at each Board meeting.

In addition, during 2020, the Board had regular Covid-19 calls to
discuss our Covid-19 measures and the rapidly evolving situation
to ensure the safety and wellbeing of cur custemers and people.

The Health & Safety Committee, a sub-Committee of the Board,
focuses on:

+  Covid-19, oversight and deep dives inte our Covid-19 risk
management

» fire, our main safety risk, and our work with the Avon Fire
Authority, our Primary Fire Authority lead as well as our
comprehensive ctadding review and remedial plan

» external safety assurance through The British Safety
Council, our external safety auditor

+ physical security review of our properties by WSP Parsons
Brinckerhaoff.

Read more about the Health & Safety Cornmittee report on page 115

Strategic objective: Quality service platform

Ensuring our product is affordable
and provides good value-for-money
for cur customers.

Market risks - supply
and demand on pages
F2ta74

Board governance leadership of the decision to waive rent for
students who chose to return home for the remainder of the
2019/20 academic year as well as the 50% rent discount offered
to students in early 2021.

Board analysis of the Higher Education accommodation sector
and ensuring we continue to offer an affordable and value-for-
maney product,

Read more about Operations review on pages 17 to 21

Governance to ensure our market-
leading service platform meets our
customers’ and University partners’
needs and expectations as well as
ensuring it is robust, relizble and
scelable for the increasing number
of customners following the Liberty
Living acquisition.

Market risks - supply
and demand on pages
72t074

Through our direct engagement with VCs and other levels of
management within Universities, the Board is able to take into
account the views of these stakeholders as well as monitoring
and measuring our performance.

Board cversight that PRISM, our service platform and our
customer facing operational apps {such as the MyUnite app)
deliver:

- arobust booking system

+ animproved and scalable platform for revenue management
and customer engagement

+ enhanced service levels far both Universities and students
+  market differentiation.

Read more about the Operations review on page 17

Read more about our Stakeholder engagement on pages 36 to 3%
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

BOARD ACTIVITIES CONTINUED

Board’s decision making during 2020 continued

Board's governance role Link to principal risk

What the Board did in 2020 and its decision making

Strategic objective: Quality service platform cononued
Ensuring our 'safe and secure’ brand
promise extends to keeping our
customers' and empioyees’ personal
data safe and secure,

Operations risk -
Information Security
and cyber threat on
page 78

Ongeing review of our information security and its governance,
in particuiar having regard to the General Data Protection
Reguiation {GDFR).

Achieved CyberEssentials+ in 2020 providing us with assurance
of our information security.

Leadership development and succession
planning/talent pipeline.

Market risk - supply
and demand on pages

7
Diversity and Inclusion 72to74

During 2020, the Nomination Committee focused not only

on Chair succession, appointing Richard Huntingford as the
Nen-Executive Director and Chairman Designate, but also our
broader talent pipeline and leadership development.

The Board considers the output from cur employee
engagement surveys when making decisions on wider
employee issues,

Strategic objective: Quality properties
Liberty Living integration

Ensuring the integration is delivered to
plan and timetable and oversight of the
delivery of the integration benefits.

Property market cycle
risk on page 78

The Board reviewed management actions on various elements
of tha integration and assessed these against the competing
demands of the pandemic.

E Read more about Liberty Living integration on page 12

Development pipeline

Board scrutiny of city and site selection
for new developments against a
hackdrep of increasing competition for
the best sites,

Property/Development
risk on page 77

Governance of developments/
acquisitions to ensure they run to

budget and schedule and are earnings
accretive whilst - during 2020 - balancing
development exposure against the
demands of Covid-19.

Deployment of the June 2020 share placing proceeds,
Exchanged contracts on:

+  a300-bed development site in central Edinburgh
= an 800-bed development site in Paddington, central London.
The Board takes inte account its engagement with Universities

about these developrments when making a decision whether to
proceed or not with these development schemes.

Deciding to defer develcpment at two sites (Middlesex
Street, London and Qld BRI, Bristol) to conserve cash due to
Covid-19 uncertainty.

Read more about Pevelopment and partnership activity on page 26

Disposals

Board governance of our portfolio
recycling as we increase our exposure
to the UK's best Universities, while
generating capital to investin further
develepment activity.

Property/Development
risk on page 78

Completed the disposal of one property for £10 miliion in 2020
{Unite share £10 million) in line with book value.

Read more about Pisposals on page 26

Strategic objective: Quality University partnerships

Board scrutiny of our developments and
portfolio recycling to ensure we partner
with the right Universities and enhance
our long standing relationships,

Market risk - supply and
demand and Property/
Development risk on
pages 72to 74 and 77

d7
Building University relationships through and78

ongoing engagement and dialogue with
Universities.

Portfolic activity focused onincreasing cur alignment to high
and mid-ranked Universities and being in the best locations.
For the 2020/21 academic year, 87% of our income is generated
by students attending such Universities (2019/20: 88%),
increasing to B8% on delivery of our secured development
pipeline and contracted disposals.

Read more #bout Development and University partnership activity on
pages 24 and 25
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Board's governance role Link to principal risk

What the Board did In 2020 and its decision making

Strategic objective: A responsible and resilient business

Market Risk - supply
and demand on page 72

HE Government Policy and Brexit
Continued focus on petential HE
Government policy changes as well
as our Brexit disruption planning.

Ongoing Board monitoring of HE Government policy and

its impact for PBSA and more widely as well as continued
monitoring of cur Brexit Disruption Plan in which we prepare
for the operational disruption following the end of the Brexit
transition period.

Market risk and
Property/Development
risks on pages 72 to 74
and 77 and 78

High-quality income for the
2020/21 academic year

Oversight of Nominations and
operational performance and
University partnership transactions,

88% let across our portfalio for the 2020/21 academic year of
which 60% is underpinned by nomination agreements.

@ Read more about Operations review on page 17

Financing risk on
page 80

Covenants compliance
Group Board ieadership for
our Covenants compliance.

Board leadership over our Financing Covenants compliance
tested by the sudden, unexpected and wide ranging impact
of Covid-19. This year, there has been a specific focus on ICR
covenants.

The Board monitars Covenants compliance across arange of
income / stress scenarios to ensure that if any risks emerge, the
Board is ready to identify further action and work with lenders
well in advance,

Covenant compliance also has oversight in the Audit Committee
and by the external audit review of cur Covenant compliance
through the Going Concern process.

Read more about Financial review on page 42

Financing risk on
page 80

Capital structure

Group Board focus on a strong and
flexible capital structure, which can
adapt to market conditions, and reducing
and diversifying the cost of funding.

Board aversight on our capital structure, inciuding the June
2020 share placing, and the decisien/timing to proceed and the
deployment of the placing proceeds.

Read more about Financlal review on page 42

Strategic objective: A responsible and resilient business

Climate-related change
risk on page 79

As a listed plc and responsible / trusted
business, our wider stakeholders
demand we proactively manage
environmental, social and governance
risks. The Board develops and oversees
the implermentation of our Sustainability
Strategy which has the overarching
armbition for Unite to clearly lead the
student housing secter on sustainability
issues and be in the leading pack of real
estate companies in the wider sector.

During 2020, the Board led the development of our new
Sustainability Strategy. The Board developed this following
extensive stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessments. This was needed to better understand our
stakeholder expectations otherwise the Board risked not
meeting them.

This new Sustainability Strategy provides a clear structure
with objectives, flagship targets and governance to ensure its
successful delivery.

In addition to developing the new Sustainability Strategy,
the Board &lso interrogated our ongoing ESG regulatory and
reporting compliance.

The Board also considered the Board's specific climate change
risks, identifying them across: Regulatory risk; Physical risk;
Transition risk; and Stakeholder risk. The Board considered
the impact of these risks and oversees the assurance of the
correspending risk management.,
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BOARD ACTIVITIES CONTINUED

2020 performance evaluation

Each year a review of the performance of the Board, its
Committees and Directors is undertaken. During 2020,
the evaluation was conducted by Belinda Hudson Limited
in line with the Company’s policy to conduct an externally
facilitated evaluation every third year.

The evaluation - building on prior years - explored all
aspects of performance including Board composition,
diversity and dynamics, Board processes and the extent
to which the Board fulfils its role and responsibilities. It
also covered the effectiveness of the Committees and
the Chairman, To conduct the evaluation in a Covid-19
safe environment, a questionnaire-based approach was
adopted using Thinking Board, provided by Independent
Audit Limited. Belinda Hudson tailored the questionnaires
to the specific circumstances of Unite, analysed the
output and prepared a report which set out the findings
and recommendations, The report was presented to and
discussed with the Board.

The feedback was that the Board and its Committees have
continued to operate effectively and to fulfil their oversight
and governance respansibilities taking inta account the
interests of all stakeholders. In particular, there is clarity as
to the Board's role in shaping, embedding and overseeing
Horne for Success and our values,

2021 governance priorities

Suggested areas for potential development included:

1. Consider setting up a Sustainability Committee,
reporting to the Board, to have oversight of the
development, integration and communication of the
Sustainability Strategy and review how climate-related
change and environmental concerns are integrated inta
the strategy.

2. Create space in the Board agenda for mare
unstructured strategic discussion, blue-sky thinking
and Non-Executive Director only discussion.

3. Continue to develop the Board's oversight of the
Company's culture and approach to employee
engagement.

4. Create more opportunities for the Board members
to spend more informal time together when
circumstances permit.

The Board and each of its Committees have reviewed the
suggestions and outcomes of the Board evaluation and
developed an implementation plan. Good progress is
being made.

The Board considered its and the Committees’ current
composition. None of them required any change currently
but the Nomination Committee will continue to review the
Board's structure, size and compaosition to ensure the Board
has the right balante of skills, diversity and experience.

Belinda Hudson Limited and Independent Audit
Limited has no other connection with the Company or
individual Directors.

Continued delivery of high-quality income and earnings with oversight and assurance of:

Safe and secure

Macro/Market dynamics

Development

Financing

Qur people

Covid-19: ensuring we
continue t provide
asafe and secure
operating environment
and workplace. An
increased focus on
wellbeing.

Fire safety: ensuring our
Properties continue to
be safe and oversight

of the ongoing
emerging risk around
the dynamic fire and
building regulations
environment.

104

The impact of Covig-19
on the Group's income /
occupancy, Government
HE policy, UK plc and
the UK economy and
global economy more
generally.

Continuing to look for
development with the
right sites in the best
locations. Security of
high quality income
through high-quality
properties with quality
long-term University
partnerships.

Ongoing Board
oversight of the Group's
Covenants compliance,
monitoring across a
range of income / stress
scenarios to ensure the
Board can manage the
Covenants proactively
and pre-emptively.

Governance to ensure
the Group embraces the
opportunities a truly
diverse and inclusive
workforce brings
across all levels of our
business, creating a
sanse of belonging and
ensuring our people can
bring their trye selves
to work.

Developing our talent
pipeline and future
leaders to help ensure a
sustainable future.



NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As part of our executive and
wider succession planning,

the Committee also
continued its focus
on our diversity
and inclusion.

Nomination Committee Chair's overview

Succession planning for the Chairman through a dedicated
sub-committee of the Nomination Committee, led by
Elizabeth McMeikan our Senior Independent Director, has
been a key focus during 2020, This fed to the successful
appointment of Richard Huntingford as Non-Executive
Director and Chairman Designate on 1 December 2020.
Richard will take over as Chair when | step down on

31 March 2021,

The Committee has also continued its focus on executive
succession planning and our talent development. This year
this has especially focused on building a resilient and agite
leadership team as we manage the competing priorities of
Covid-19 and future growth.

As part of this executive and wider succession planning,
the Committee also continued its focus on our diversity,
and inclusivity, conscious a diverse leadership team needs
to reflect our wider stakeholders and is key to the Group's
long-term sustainable success.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Nomination Committee Members

Phil White
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Richard Huntingford
WNon-Executive Director and Chairman Desighate

Elizabeth McMeikan
Seniar independent Director

Ross Paterson
Non-Executive Director

Richard Akers
Non-Executive Director

ttaria del Beato
Non-Executive Director

Dame Shiriey Pearce
Non-Executive Director

Thomas Jackson
Non-Executive Director

Professor Sir Steve Smith

Non-Executive Director

Number of Meetings

3

Attendance

100%
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Composition

The Committee consists entirely of Non-Executive
Directors. At the invitation of the Cutnimittee, any other
Director or other person may be invited to attend meetings
of the Cormmittee if considered desirable in assisting the
Committee in fulfilling its role.

Role
The role of the Committee is to:

« Ensure that appropriate procedures are adopted
and followed in the nomination, selection, training,
evaluation and re-election of Directors and for
succession planning, with due regard in all cases to the
benefits of diversity an the Board, including gender

« Regularly review the structure, size, composition,
skills and experience of the Board and to make
receammendations with regard to any adjustments
considered necessary

» When it is agreed that an appointment to the Board
shiauld be made, lead a selection process that is farmal,
rigorous and transparent

« Be responsible for identifying, reviewing and
recommending candidates for appointment to the Board

Nomination Committee meetings

The Nomination Committee met three times during the
year with 100% attendance at these meetings,

Activities in 2020

Review of Board composition and succession planning

Succession planning for the Chairman through a dedicated
sub-cemmittee of the Nomination Committee, led by
Elizabeth McMeikan our Senior independent Director,

was a key focus during 2020. This led to the successful
appointment of Richard Huntingford as Non-Executive
Director and Chairman Designate on 1 December 2020,
Richard will take over as Chair when Phil White steps down
on 31 March 2021.

Heidrick & Struggles, an external search consultancy, led
the search for the new Chairman. Heidrick & Struggles
has no other connection with the Company or individual
Directors.



The Committee also reviewed the Board's composition

to ensure it has the carrect balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge. The Committee noted the
Board had recently been strengthened by the appointment
of two Non-Executive Directors with strong HE experience
{Dame Shirley Pearce and Professor Sir Steve Smith}, which
has proved especially helpful for HE insight as the Board
navigated the wider impact of the pandemic on the sector.
The Committee believes the Board has the carrect balance
of skills, experience, independence and knowledge but
continues to monitor this,

As per prior years, the Committee also reviewed the
Board's succession planning for executive roles, to ensure
we have a deep, diverse and inclusive talent pipeline for
future Board appointments, As an integral part of our
executive succession planning, the Committee oversees
the talent mapping to ensure we are growing and nurturing
our talent and developing our high-performers’ potential.
Qur diversity and inclusivity initiatives {outlined below) are
aligned with this succession planning.

Diversity and inclusion

The Board recognises that diversity and inclusion is
fundamental to the culture of the Group, our purpose

of Home for Success and ultimately our long term
sustainability. Following the Bilack Lives Matter movement,
we formed an employee Culture Matters Netwark in 2020
giving employees a platfarm to share their experiences and
explore how we can develop our diversity and inclusivity
initiatives with a renewed vigour. The Board's focus has been
on creating a workplace where people feel they belong and
can bring their whole and true selves into the workplace.
Our refreshed value, Creating Room for Everyone, launched
following the completion of the Liberty Living acquisition,
gives focus to this. To help our teams and particularly our
leadership understand their role in making Unite a more
diverse and inclusive employer, during 2020 we started
working with an external culture specialist, René Carayol.
As part of our evolving diversity and inclusivity strategy, the
Board has set new Diversity Targets (see further below).

To support the embedding of our new value, Creating
Room for Everyone, and our angaing focus on diversity and
inclusian, the Board led the following key initiatives:

+ signed the Business in the Community Race at Work
Charter, with a commitment to capture ethnicity data
and publicise progress; a zero-tolerance approach on
harassment and bullying and action to support ethnic
minority career progression. The Board believes signing
this Charter is a significant moment for our business

- established a Culture Matters Netwark in respanse to
Black Lives Matter

= new D&l training sessions commenced

+ engagement with a leadership and diversity and
inclusions specialist, who is providing fresh thinking and
stimulus to our leadership team

« committed to new diversity targets as part of our
renewed Talent Development Programme, which is
focused on promaotion, recruitment and talentand
reaching beyond our existing gender targets. Qur new
Talent Development Programme for 2021 will include
creating opportunities for minority groups

Diversity targets

Threugh this process, the Board set the following diversity
and inclusivity targets for the business:

+ A 50/50 gender split in the Unite Students leadership
team by the end of 2023

Fill 60% of managerial roles internally by the end of 2023

Minority groups fairly represented in employees and
management by the end of 2024

These targets underline the Board's belief that as a
service-hased business, our people are as important as
our customers. We are driven by our values and culture
and a passion and commitment to develop a diverse

and inclusive organisation, providing interesting career
pathways within our organisation to ensure opportunities
for progression are available for all and - critically - with
greater representation of women and ethnicity in senior
positions and a diverse workforce across our organisation,
where everybody feels valued, engaged and they belong.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board and Nomination Committee drive the agenda
for diversity across the business. We are making progress,
but recognise we need to do more, As a result, the Board
set the diversity targets and launched the key initiatives
listed above.

The Board’s diversity policy is that Board appointments (a)
are made on merit and relevant experience, while taking
into account the broadest definition of diversity and (b)
ensure Unite has, on an ongaoing basis, the most effective
Board and leadership team to operate the business for the
benefit of all its stakeholders. The Committee ensures that
when making Board appointments the retained search
firm places an emphasis on putting forward candidates
who would enhance the overall diversity of the Board. On
an ongaing basis, the Caommittee keeps under review the
tenure and experience of the Exacutive and Non-Executive
Directors to ensure the Board has an appropriate and
diverse mix of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Board and senior leadership diversity

The Board embraces the Code’s underlying principles with
regard to Board balance and diversity, including in respect
of ethnicity, gender and age. The Board is also mindful of
the aims of the Hampton-Alexander Review, an independent
review body which aims to improve women's representation
at board level and in leadership roles.

For the major part of the year, the Board comprised three
women and seven men representing female gender diversity
of 30%. As a consequence of the orderly Chair succession
handover process, following Richard Huntingford's
appointment to the Board on 1 December 2020 the gender
diversity temporarily reduced to 27.3% until Phil White's
retirerment on 31 March 2021 when it returns to 30%.

The Nomination Committee continues to consider Board
balance and diversity and intends to align the compaosition
of the Board with the recommendations of the Hampton-
Alexander Review, as it was in 2019 and at the start of 2020,
with our Board comprising one-third women by our 2622
Annual General Meeting.

As of 31 December 2020, the number of women in the
Executive Committee and their direct reports (including the
Company Secretary as required by the Code) is 15 (out of &
total of 44) representing 34% of this Group. Our diversity
targets listed above will help us grow this percentage of
women in leadership positions.

Qur diversity targets focus an the wider business, but the
Nomination Committee is aiso conscious of the Parker
Review and in particular one of its key recommendations
that each FTSE 250 Board should have at least one director
of colour by 2024, Building on our diversity targets and
initiatives and having regard to this recommendation, the
Nomination Committee will build a pipeline of candidates
working towards the goal of making a Board appointment no
later than 2024.

In addition to this Board target, the Committee will continue
to focus on setting and achieving diversity targets for the
wider business to help the Company develop a deep and
diverse succession plan at more senior levels within the
organisation.

Phil White
Chair - Nomination Committee
16 March 2021
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee continued
its key oversight role for the
Board in respect of the

Group's financial

management and

reporting.

Audit Committee Chair's overview

During the year, the Audit Cornmittee continued its key
oversight role for the Board with its specific duties as set
out in its terms of reference to reassure shareholders that
their interests are properly protected in respect of the
Group's financial management and reporting.

The Audit Committee works to a structured programme of
activities, with agenda items focused to coincide with key
events in the annual financial reporting cycle. The Audit
Committee reports regularly to the Board on its work.

During the year, the Audit Committee has continued to
monitor the integrity of the Group's financial statements
and supported the Board with its ongeing monitoring

of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems in line with the requirements under the Corporate
Governance Code,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Audit Committee Members

Ross Paterson
Chair of the Audit Committee

Richard Akers
Non-Executive Director

llaria del Beato
Non-Executive Director

Professor Steve Smith
Non-Executive Director

Number of Meetings

4

Attendance

100%

The Audit Committee determined the focus of the Group's
internmal audit activity, reviewed findings, and verified

that management was appropriately implementing
recommendations. The Audit Committee also looked

at how to operate effectively in light of the Covid-19
pandemic, in particular, how the external audit could be
delivered in the current environment whilst maintaining
the expected high leve! of rigour. The Audit Committee als0
challenged the approach to assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and its likely loan covenant
compliance, by reviewing various scenarios for future
performance.

The Audit Committee undertook a review of its
effectiveness in September 2020. The review found

that the Audit Committee is working effectively. The
review identified areas in which we can strengthen our
performance and these are reflected in the Committea’s
priorities for 2021.

During 2020, the Audit Committee undertook the fifth

full evaluation exercise of the Deloitte audit approach to
ascertain the effectiveness of the external audit function.
Further to the completion of the evaluation of the external
audit process, we are satisfied with both the auditor's
independence and audit approach and have recommended
to the Board that Defoitte be re-appointed as auditor in
2021,
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We also reviewed the effectiveness of the internal auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC'), during 2020. We were
satlsfied with buth the independence and effectivencss

of the internal auditors. Nevertheless, in light of the

major acquisition of Liberty Living in November 2019, we
are reviewing the overall risk assurance arrangements,
including internal audit, to ensure they are appropriate and
effective for the enlarged Group.

As noted in this Corporate Governance Statement, the
Board delegates certain of its duties, responsibilities and
powers to the Audit Committee, so that these can receive
suitably focused attention. However, the Audit Committee
acts on behalf of the full Board, and the matters reviewed
and managed by the Audit Committee remain the
responsibiiity of the Directors as a whole.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has delegated authority from the
Board set out in its written terms of reference. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee take into account the
requirements of the Code and are available for inspection
at the registered office, at the Annual General Meeting and
on the Group website at http://www.unite-group.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance.

The key objectives of the Audit Committee are:

+ To provide effective governance and control over the
integrity of the Group's financial reporting and review
significant financial reporting judgements

» To support the Beard with its ongoing monitoring of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management systems

+ To monitor the effectiveness of the Group's internal
audit function and review its material findings

+ To oversee the relationship with the external auditor,
including making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment of the external auditor
and monitoring the external auditor's objectivity and
independence.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are set out on page
92 of this Corporate Governance Statement. The Audit
Committee members are all independent Non-Executives
and have been selected with the aim of providing the wide
range of financial and commercial expertise necessary to
fuifil the Audit Committee’s duties. The Board considers
that as a chartered accountant and serving Finance
Director of a UK-listed company, | have recent and relevant
financial experience.



Audit Committee meetings

The Audit Committee met four times during the year and
attendance at those meetings is shown on page 99 of this
Corporate Gavernance Statement. Meetings are scheduled
to coincide with key dates in the financial reporting cycle
and a forward agenda is agreed by the Committee and
reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Meetings are attended, by invitation, by the Chief Financial
Officer, the Deputy Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Controlier.

| also invite our external auditor, Deloitte, to each
meeting. The Audit Committee regularly meets
separately with Deloitte without others being present.
As appropriate, | also invite our internal auditor,

Pw(, to attend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC meet
independently of management to ensure alignment, to
update on respective findings and consider the impact
on the relative approaches of their work.

Main activities of the Audit Committee

during the year

Meetings of the Audit Committee generally take place just
priorto a Group Board meeting and | report to the Board,
as part of a separate agenda item, on the activity of the
Audit Committee and matters of particular relevance to
the Board in the conduct of its work. At its four meetings
during the year, the Audit Committee focused on the
following activities.

The Audit Committee reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements and the significant financial reporting
judgements. As part of this review, the Audit Committee
supported the Board by reviewing the financial viability and
the basis for preparing the accounts on a going concern
basis. This included challenging forecast cash headroom
and reviewing scenarios, which were determined by
management, to stress test the impact of a range of
performance outcomes upon the viability of the business,
in particular with regard to loan covenants. The Audit
Committee also reviewed and challenged the external
auditor's report on these financial statements.

As discussed above, the effectiveness of the external
audit function was considered during 2020. During the
evaluation process the Audit Committee considered: the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor;
the make-up and quality of the audit team; the proposed
audit approach and the scope of the audit; the execution
of the audit and the quality of the audit repart to the
shareholders; as well as ultimately the fee structure.

The Audit Committee discussed reports from Pw( as the
Group’s internal auditor on their audit and assessment of
the contro! environment. The Committee reviewed and
proposed areas of focus for the internal audit programme
of review including the approach ta ensure that the internal
audit activity continues to be aligned to the principal

Group risks.

Financial reporting

The primary focus of the Audit Committee, in relation

to financial reporting in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 was to review with both management and
the external auditor the appropriateness of the half-year
and annual financial statements concentrating on:

+ The quality and acceptability of accounting policies
and practices

« The integration of Liberty Living on to Unite systems,
processes and controls

» The clarity of the disclosures and compliance with
financial reporting standards and relevant financial and
governance reporting requirements

» The clarity and appropriateness of the disclosures in
respect of the impact of Covid-19

- Material areas in which significant judgements have
been applied or where there has been discussion with
the external auditor

= Whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as
awhole, is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's position and performance, business
mode! and strategy

The Audit Committee’s assessment of the Annual Report
to ensure that it is fair, batanced and understandable took
into account the following considerations:

+ A review of what fair, balanced and understandable
means for Unite

+ The high level of input from the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer with early opportunities for
the Board to review and comment on the Annual Report

» Ensuring consistency in the reporting of the Group’s
performance and management information (as
described on pages 40 and 41), risk reviews (as
described on pages 64 to 80}, business model and
strategy (as described on pages 32 to 35)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

+ A cross-check between Board Minutes and the Annual
Report is undertaken to ensure that reporting is
balanced

* Whether information is presented in a clear and concise
manner, illustrated by appropriate KPIs to facilitate
shareholders’ access to relevant information

To aid our review, the Audit Committee considers reports
from the Group Financial Controller and reports from the
external auditor on the outcomes of their half-year review
and annual audit. As an Audit Cormmittee, we support
Deloitte in displaying the necessary professional scepticism
its role requires.

Significant issues considered by the Audit Committee

After discussion with both management and the external

auditor, the Audit Committee determined that the key risk
of misstatement of the Group's 2020 financial statements
related to:

+ Property valuations
+ Joint venture accounting

* Going cancern

Property valuations

The Group's principal assets are investment properties
and investment properties under development that are
either owned on balance sheet or in USAF or LSAV. The
investment properties are carried at fair value based on
an appraisal by the Group’s external valuers who carry
out the valuations in accordance with the RICS Red Book
valuation guide, taking into account transactional evidence
during the year. The valuation of property assets involves
significant judgement and changes in the core assumptions
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of
these assets. The Audit Committee identified that the
uncertainty caused by the Covid-19 pandemic could cause
an increased level of judgement on property valuations as
at 31 December 2020.

Management discusses the underlying performance of
each asset with the external valuers and provides detailed
performance data to them including rents, University
lease agreements, occupancy, property costs and costs
to complete (for development properties). Management
recejves detailed reports from the valuers and performed
a detailed review of the valuations to ensure that
management considers the valuations to be appropriate.
The valuation report is reviewed by the Chief Financial
Officer and the Group Property Director prior to sign-off.

During the year, the Audit Committee and/or the Board met
with members of the Group's valuer panel and challenged
thern on the basis of their valuations and their core
assumptions, including the yield for each property, rental
growth and forecast costs.
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The Audit Committee questioned the external valuers on
markeat trends and transactional evidence that supports
the valuations. The Audit Committee was satisfied that the
Group’s valuers were appropriately qualified and provided
an independent assessment of the Group's assets. The
Audit Committee was satisfied that an appropriate
valuation process had taken place, the core assumptions
used were reasonable and hence the carrying value of
investrnent and development properties in the financial
statements was appropriate.

The external auditor explained the audit procedures to test
the valuation of investment and development properties
and the associated disclosures. On the basis of the audit
work, the external auditor reparted no inconsistencies or
misstatements that were material in the context of the
financial statements as a whole.

Further analysis and detail on asset valuations is set gut on
page 22.

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's significant assets are its investments in USAF
and LSAV which the Group has histarically accounted for as
joint ventures.

The Group reports under IFRS 10-12 which provides
guidance on how an investor should account for its
interests in other entities, including a definition of control
and guidance on how to classify and account for jointly
controlled arrangements. During the year, management
undertook a detailed review of its classification for both
USAF and LSAV, and following that analysis concluded that
poth USAF and LSAY should continue to be treated as joint
ventures.

The Audit Committee considered this and agreed there was
no material change and accordingly it was appropriate to
continue to account for USAF and LSAYV as joint ventures
under IFRS 11, with Unite recording its 22.0% share of the
results and net assets of USAF as a joint venture using
equity accounting and likewise 50% for LSAV.

Going Concern

The Audit Committee reviewed and challenged
management’s range of scenarios for future performance
with a focus on forecast liquidity and ICR covenant
performance. This review focussed on the assumptions
made regarding the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic,
specifically UK Universities’ ability to remain open and
provide a blend of online and face-to-face teaching,
demand for University accommodation in the UK and trave!
restrictions limiting the ability of International students to
travel to the UK. The Audit Committee concluded that the
scenarios had been carried out on an appropriate basis
and agreed to recommend to the Board that the Financial
Statements be prepared on a going concern basis.,

Further detail on going concern is set out on page 172,



Other issues considered by the Committee
LSAV performance fee

The Group is entitled to a LSAV performance fee if the
joint venture outperforms certain benchmarks over its
life ending in 2022. The Audit Committee discussed the
recognition of the LSAV performance fee in 2020 and
challenged the assessment of ‘highly probable’ used

to determine the amount to recognise. This included
discussion of the estimates used, being future rental
income and the discount rate (yield).

Risk management

The Group's risk assessment process and the way in which
significant business risks are managed is a key area of
focus for the Audit Committee.

Our work here was driven primarily by performing an
assessment of the approach taken by the Group's Risk
Committee. The Risk Commmittee is responsible for the
delivery of the Group’s Risk Management Framewark,
which the Audit Committee has approved, and the Group's
assessment of its principal risks and uncertainties, as set
out on pages 68 to 80.

The Board also formally reviewed the Group's principal
risks at two meetings during the year. Through these
reviews, the Audit Committee considered the risk
management procedures within the business and

was satisfied that the key Group risks were being
appropriately managed.

The risk assessment flags the importance of the internal
control framework to manage risk and this forms a
separate area of review for the Audit Committee.

Internal controls

Led by the Group's risk assessment process, we reviewed
the process by which the Group evaluated its controt
environment. Management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal controls. Internal
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding (among other things) the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of the financial statements
for external reporting purposes, A comprehensive strategic
planning, budgeting and forecasting process is in place.
Monthly financial information and performance insight is
reported to the Board.

The Audit Committee's work to review the effectiveness
of the internal controls was driven by the Deputy Chief
Financial Qfficer’s report on internal contrels, supported
by the work of the internal auditor and their reports to
the Audit Committee. The feedback from the Group’s
internal auditor on specific areas of control is tested on

a periodic basis and our external auditor is requested to
provide specific feedback and assessment of the Group’s
financial controls and highlight any areas of weakness. No
significant weaknesses were identified through the course
of the Audit Committee’s reviews, despite the impact of
Covid-19.

Internal audit

The Group engages PwC to perform internal audit activity,
with this internal audit function reporting directly to the
Audit Committee.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the 2020 internal audit
pian was adapted to a more flexible approach allowing

us to focus on key issues. This approach resulted in PwC
completing internal audit work cn cyber security in 2020.
Overall, PwC concluded that there were no significant
issues and controls were well designed, but noted there
were some areas of improvement to be made to maximise
controls and operational efficiency, which management is
in the process of implementing.

External audit

The effectiveness of the external audit process is facilitated
by appropriate audit risk identification at the start of the
audit cycle which we receive from Deloitte in a detailed
audit plan, identifying their assessment of these key risks.

For the 2020 financial year, the significant risks identified
were in relation to valuation of properties, classification
of joint ventures, going concern, revenue recognition
and management override of controls. These focus
areas were discussed at the Audit Committee and it was
agreed that they should be the principal areas of focus
as they represent the areas with the greatest level of
judgement and materially impact the overalt performance
of the Group. These risks are tracked through the year
and we challenged the work done by the auditor to test
management’s assumptions and estimates around these
areas.

We assess the effectiveness of the audit process in
addressing these matters through the reporting we receive
from Deloitte at both the half-year and year-end and also
reports from management on how these risks are being
addressed,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

For the 2020 financial year, the Audit Committee was
satisfied that there had been appropriate focus and
challenge on the primary areas of audit risk and assessed
the quality of the audit process to be good. We hold

private meetings with the external auditor at each Audit
Committee meeting to provide additional opportunity for
open dialogue and feedback from the Audit Committee and
the auditor without management being present. Matters
typically discussed include:

« The auditor’'s assessment of business and financial
statement risks and management activity thereof

+ The transparency and openness of interactions with
rmanagement, confirmation that there has been no
restriction in scope placed on them by management
and the independence of their audit

+ How they have exercised professional scepticism

| also meet with the external lead audit partner outside
the formal Audit Committee process.

Independence and external audit tender

The Audit Committee considers the re-appointment of the
external auditor, including the rotation of the audit partner
which is required every five years, each year and also
assesses their independence on an ongoing basis, 2020 is
the sixth year during which Deloitte has beenthe Group's
external auditor. in accordance with the requirements to
rotate the audit partner at least every five years, 2020 saw
Stephen Craig take over responsibility for the audit from
Judith Tacaon.

The Audit Committee reviewed Deloitte’s audit work and
determined that appropriate plans are in place to carry
out an effective and high quality audit. Deloitte confirmed
to the Audit Committee that it maintained appropriate
internal safeguards to ensure its independence and
objectivity. As part of the Audit Committee's assessment
of the ongoing independence of the auditor, the Audit
Committee receives details of any relationships between
the Group and Deloitte that may have a bearing on their
independence and receives confirmation that they are
independent of the Group.

As discussed above, an assessment of Deloitte's
effectiveness, its processes, audit quality and performance
was undertaken in May 2020 following completion of the
2019 audit.

The Committee confirms compliance with the provisions of
the Statutery Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee Responsibilities Order
2014) Order 2014.
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Non-audit services

To further safeguard the objectivity and independence

of the external auditor from becoming compromised, the
Committee has a formal policy governing the engagement
of the external auditor to provide non-audit services. No
material changes have been made to this policy during
the year, This precludes Deloitte from providing certain
services, such as valuation work ar the pravision of
accounting services.

For certain specific permitted services (such as reporting
accountant activities and compliance work), the Audit
Committee has pre-approved that Deloitte can be engaged
by management, subject to the policies set out above, and
subject to specified fee limits for individual engagements
and fee limits for each type of specific service. For all
other services, or those permitted services that exceed
the specified fee limits, | as Chairman, or in my absence,
another member, can pre-approve permitted services,

During the year, Deloitte was appointed to undertake
non-audit services. Fees for non-audit work performed by
Deloitte for the year ended 31 December 2020 were £0.1
million (2019: £2.0 million). The non-audit fees refated to
the work undertaken by Deloitte LLP in its rale as external
auditor to the Group for the review of the half year report.
Further disclosure of the non-audit fees incurred during
the year ended 31 December 2020 can be found in note
2.6 to the consolidated financial statements on page 187.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee was satisfied that both
the work performed by Deloitte LLP, and the level of non-
audit fees paid to it, were appropriate and did not raise
any concerns in terms of Deloitte LLP's independence as
auditor to the Group.

The Audit Committee approved the fees for audit services
for 2020 after a review of the level and nature of work

to be performed, including the impact of the acquisition
of Liberty Living, additicnal audit procedures required

as a result of Covid-19 and changes in the regulatory
environment, and after being satisfied by Deloitte that the
fees were appropriate for the scope of the work required.

Audit Committee evaluation

The Audit Committee’s activities formed part of the
evaluation of Board effectiveness performed in the year.
Details of this process can be found under ‘Performance
evaluation’.

Ross Paterson
Chair - Audit Committee
16 March 2021



HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE

Operating safely is

fundamental to being a

responsible business and
Covid-192 has underlined

the importance of
our safe and
secure promise.

Unite is home to 76,000 students. For many, this is their
first time living away from hame. This year our brand
promise of being 'Safe and Secure’ has been more
important than ever as students, our people and the
communities we operate in faced the unique chalienge
of living and working in the Covid-19 pandemic.

Covid-19 health and safety has been a key priority in

2020 with a focus not only on social distancing and other
measures to prevent and control the spread of the virus
but also on student and employee welibeing. Reflecting the
measures we had taken, Unite was recognised as the first
student accommodation provider to have its Covid secure
status accredited by the British Safety Council (BSC). We
could not have achieved this without the resilience and
agility of our teams whilst working in the very challenging
Covid-19 environment. Further information on our
Covid-19 response is detailed in this Committee report.
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Health & Safety Committee Members

Professor $ir Steve Smith
Chair of the Health & Safety Committee

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Dame Shirley Pearce
Non-Executive Director

Elizabeth McMeikan
Senior Independent Director

Haria del Beato
Non-Executive Director

Number of Meetings

3

Attendance

100%

Our focus on safety is not limited to Covid-19. Building on
our BSC 5-star rating achieved in 2019, Unite was honoured
to receive the BSC Sword of Honour in 2020 for excellence
in the management of occupational health and safety.

Fire safety remains a key safety priority and through

2020 we continued to engage with our primary authority,
the Avan Fire and Rescue Service, and local fire services,
especially conscious that students’ lives were changing

as they lived with us through the pandemic. All of our
properties have been confirmed as safe to operate by
independent fire safety experts, reflecting a wide range
of fire safety measures across our portfolio as well as the
special measures put in place at the affected buildings,
including increased building patrols by staff, additional
alarm measures and sprinklers. Cladding also remains a
priority and we continue to work closely with the Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government {(MHCLG)
to ensure our properties comply with emerging guidelines.
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During 2020, and in accordance with the Government's
Building Safety Advice of 20 January 2020, we undertook a
review of the use of High-Pressure Laminate {HPL) cladding
on our properties. We have identified 19 properties with
HPL across our estate, all but three of which are greater
than 18 metres in height. Having removed Aluminium
Composite Materials (ACM) cladding from our building,

we will continue to follow our values of doing what's right
and will now remove HPL cladding where it fails to meet
regulations, We are currently carrying out replacement

of properties with HPL cladding, with activity prioritised
according to our risk assessments, starting with those over
18 metres in height. The cost of replacing the HPL cladding
is expected to be £79.9 million (Unite share: £33.8 million),
which witl be incurred over the next 12 to 36 months

During 2020, we continued to expand and regionalise our
Health and Safety team, allowing closer and more ‘on the
ground’ support for aur Operations teams helping them
deliver our Safe and Secure brand promise. This also
allowed our strengthened regional teams to better support
the successful integration with Liberty Living, underlining
the safety of our teams and customers as our key priority.

Our focus for 2021 remains on providing absolute
confidence to our custamers, employees, visitors and
parents/guardians on the safety of our properties and

our workplace. This includes working closely with the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
to ensure our properties comply with emerging guidelines.
We will also concentrate on providing clear information
and education to our customers on how they can keep
themselves safe and secure in their homes.

Health and Safety Committee meetings

The Health and Safety Committee met three times during
the year and attendance at those meetings is shown on
page 99.



Covid-19 - 202072021

Covid-19 Secure Workplace -~ Unite was the first
student accommadation provider to be recognised
with the British Safety Council 'Covid Secure Workplace’
assurance. We have implemented subsequent controls
which are being reviewed and updated regularly to
ensure adherence to ongoing Government guidance.

Adapting to Covid-19 - we adapted and created new
policies and operating practices such as a new Clean+
Property Standard outlining our cleaning, quality and
safety standards, and a business-wide Covid-19 Risk
Assessment, We have also produced a Covid Secure
Contractor Guidance Document for our contractors and
third parties. This additiona! guidance has allowed us to
continue with key activities including construction work,
essential maintenance, and upgrades.

Working From Home - to ensure those working from
home have appropriate measures and equipment in
place to safely carry out their day-to-day activities, we
created an online DSE Assessment and e-Learning in
line with Covid-19 guidance. Office equipment has been
provided to those employees identified as requiring
additional equipment.

Getting ready for academic year 2020/21 - our teams
worked tirelessly through the Covid-19 pandemic to
clean rooms, commaon areas and kitchens over the
summer of 2020 to get our properties ready for the
academic year 2020/2021 intake. Our MyUnite app and
operating platform PRISM has helped facilitate digital
interactions between our teams and students with
bookings, maintenance requests, support for self-
isolating students, managing arrivals and check-ins.

Student welfare - we have worked closely with our
University partners to increase provision and access
to wellbeing and mental health support during the
pandemic, including online welfare checks, a pilot peer
to peer scheme as well as support for those shielding
and self-isolating.

Investment in equipment - we made key investments
in equipment to help us control Covid-19, these include:
temperature ray guns, Purifog (chemical fogging)
machines, PPE, screens, floor markings etc.

Highlights and achievements from 2020

The Covid-19 pandemic meant readjusting our H&5
focus for the year, making sure we remain Covid secure
whilst still ensuring the safety of our teams at work and
customers living with us. In addition, we rolled out the

following initiatives:

Safe & Secure Brand Proposition - we have created

and rolled out a Safe & Secure Brand Propasition which
explains how we keep our customers and teams safe.
This has been especially important for our teams as

it has given them the information and tools to have
conversations with students, parents, guardians and
University partners about the safety and security
measures that we have in place to ensure a safe place to
live.

Health and Safety training - we have delivered 40
training ceurses to over 1,300 employees on Health,
Safety, Security, Fire and Wellbeing. Alongside this, we
continued our mandatory e-learning madules for all
employees. We also received Senior Leadership Health
and Safety training from the British Safety Council.

Health and Safety Software - we have procured a new
H&S Software System which we will roll out to the
business in Q2 2021, The software is a market-leading
SAS (Software as a Service) system and reduces the
need for multiple, complex systems for reporting on
safety incident, inspections and audits. This will bring us
greater insight into our safety information and data and
help us be better, reflecting one of our values Raising
the Bar Together.

Working at Height Review - we completed our full review
of Working at Height, one of our 'Top 5 Safety Risks’.
Following this review, we now work in partnership with
Faithful and Gould for all safety related information
before any high-risk working at height.
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE CONTINUED

British Safety Council (BCS) audits

Following bur 5-star audit achievement last year, the BSC
has now awarded us the prestigious ‘Sword of Honour". The
Sword of Henour is reserved for elite organisations that
have clearly demonstrated excellence in the management
of occupational health, safety and environmental risk.
Unite is one of only 61 organisations globally who have
achieved this accolade.

Top-five safety focus areas will continue into
2020/2021

Following the completion of our Working at Height

safety review, we have revised out Top 5 Safety Risks by
replacing Working at Height with viclence and assault
against our team members in the workplace. Covid-19

has unfortunately exacerbated the prevalence of violence
against our team members and we are increasing our focus
on measures to protect our frontline teams,

ﬁ Fire safety

@ Electrical safety
?. Contractor safety
a Driving for work

_}i /_  Violence and assault against our
team members in the workplace

Incidents

There werg 12 RIDDOR reportable accidents in 2020. Five of
these were Covid-19 incidents reported under the category
‘Disease’in properties in Manchester and Liverpoo! during
October 2020. They occurred whilst Public Health England
supported both cities through initial unprecedented
outbreaks of Covid-19 in student accommodation in these
cities. Three of the RIDDOR accidents related to slip and
trip, one related to manual handling, one related to contact
with machinery, one related to being caught/carried away
in something and one related to being struck against
something, All incidents have been comprehensively
investigated, with preventative measures putin place to
prevent a reoccurrence and lessons learned communicated.

The introduction of our new H&S Software system and its
data analytics will help provide us clearer insight which will
assistin the trending and monitoring of safety incidents
data going forward with a focus on near miss reporting as a
leading indicator of potential areas of risk.
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Safety in our Development Sites

tn our development activity, there were three RIDDOR
reportable injuries and 50 minor incidents in 2020, This
represents good safety performance against the industry
norm which is especially pleasing with the pressures of the
Covid-19 pandemic. This performance is within our Unite
internat benchmarks - as follows:

Non-

Total Hours reportable Reportable
Property Worked Incidents Incidents
Artisan Heights 325,472 16 0
White Rose View Leeds 762,759 14 2
White Rose View House 545,590 15 1
Middlesex Street 53,182 3 0
BRI Bristo! 30,520 2 o]
Total 1,717,523 50 3
Incidents KPI' Benchmark
3 RIDDOR 0.7 0.30
50 Minor 0.29 5.00

' KPicalculated as: No of incidents worked x 100,000 hours / hours warked

Mental health and wellbeing

We launched our employee wellbeing strategy and training
in September 2020 starting with ‘Train the Trainer’ sessions
for our nominated Wellbeing champions across the
business.

‘The Healthy Work Company’ was appointed our new

external specialist partner for this important initiative and
they have rolled aut training to the operational leadership
team. We are also providing professional counselling
support for any team members who require it following a
Covid-19 outbreak at our properties as it is recognised that
the current ‘post-incident’ service currently on offer from
our Employee Assistance Programme would be beneficial
in these circumstances.

We have released our updated Flexible Working Policy,
Warking from Home Guidelines and home working DSE,

all of which have been updated in line with the latest
Government restrictions, The use of our head offices in
Bristol (South Quay House) and London {Swan House) will
continue to be on a strictly prioritised basis and in line
with Government restrictions, where team members have
highlighted a welfare need or do not have an adequate DSE
set-up/space at home.



Property development

Despite the Covid-19 disruption and lockdown restrictions,
we made progress in our development pipeline during 2020
and delivered three buildings for the 2020/21 academic
year. Throughout the pandemic, we worked closely with
our contractors to ensure our sites were safe to operate
and introduced various measures such as reducing the
number of operatives on site to help social distancing. We
have also worked closely with our supply chain to mitigate
delays in product and material delivery to cur development
sites. With testing becoming more available, we now
provide all construction operatives and management twice
weekly onsite tests.

In addition to our Covid-19 safety focus and delivering
schemes in a uniquely challenging environment, we also
focused on:

Wellbeing - started an operative wellbeing programme
through external specialists to promote the support
of British Safety Council audit recommendations
implemented across developments and supply chain
improving the way we deliver our developments

+ Reporting - overhaul of our management KPIs and
reporting, tracking trends, instigating target audits and
using monthly improvement drives

« Appointment of a new H&S CDM / Clients Rep -
Faithful+Gould Limited appointed to drive consistency
and improvement across all development and estates
projects

Integration of project delivery - bringing a unified
approach to the delivery of all construction across
Estates, refurbishment, development and asset
management

Review and caompletion of BSC Construction audit
actions - ane of the key actions from the audit was on
management of wellbeing on development sites. We
have engaged with an external specialistto help develop
a strategy and provide mental health and counselling
support to contractors and their sub-contractors.

« Continuing to deliver year-on-year improvement in our
H&S KPls across all our development sites

Professor Steve Smith
Chair - Health and Safety Committee
16 March 2021
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Like many companies,
our 2020 financial
year was disrupted
by Covid-19.

Remuneration Committee Chair's overview

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2020, As in previous
years, this report is split into three sections: this Annual
Statement, the Policy Report and the Annual Report

on Remuneration. Qur remuneration paolicy was last
submitted to shareholders at the 2019 AGM, receiving
96.85% votes in favour. No changes are proposed to the
policy this year, but we have reproduced the policy report
in full over pages 126 to 134 for both ease of reference
and in order to provide context to the decisions taken by
the Committee during the year.



Remuneration Committee Members

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Phil White
Chairman

Ross Paterson
Non-Executive Director

Richard Akers
Non-Executive Director

Dame Shirley Pearce

Non-Executive Director

Number of Meetings

4

Attendance

100%

2020 performance and reward

The Board and management agreed early on that the
safety and wellbeing of the students who live with us

and our employees should remain our top priority in any
response to the pandemic. With the impact on face-to-
face teaching becoming apparent, Unite acted quickly and
decisively to offer to forgo rent far the final semester for
any student chogsing to return home for the remainder

of the 2019/20 academic year - the first UK Student
Accommodation provider to do so, At the same time, we
recognised that for many students our accommodation is
their home, and the importance, therefore, of continuing to
keep all of our buildings open and our services and support
available, For those students unable to return home at the
end of their tenancies, we pledged to continue to provide
free accommodation over the summer months, with a
welfare support scheme established to respond to reports
of downward trends in student wellbeing and increased
toneliness as a result of the pandemic.

Qur response for the 2020/21 academic year has been
about flexibility in a time of continued uncertainty:
providing flexible booking dates and the ability to move
bookings to a different city where required, conducting

digital check-ins to reduce physical contact and providing
free early ¢check-ins to allow those arriving from Covid-
restricted areas to quarantine in time for the start of

the academic year. Working closely with University
partners, the Company will continue to adapt and evolve
its approach as the pandemic progresses, with a recent
example being the 50% discount offered to students who
do not take up residence announced in early 2021. The
Board strongly believes that our response to-date will
serve to enhance our long term brand reputation among
the student and Higher Education communities.

None of this would have been passible without the
dedication and hard work of our exceptional colleagues, and
I would like to thank alt Unite employees - including the 381
new joiners from the Liberty Living acquisition - for their
unerring commitment to our customers during this difficult
time. In recognition of our operations having continued at
full capacity this year, with no employees furloughed and
no Government support utilised, the management team
implemented a number of additional initiatives to assist our
colleagues during this period. Examples include providing
additional special leave to thase employees with caring
responsibilities, flexible working practices, supporting
working from home wherever possible with the purchase
of necessary equipment and appropriate health and safety
assessments, and extending our cycle to work scheme

to be available all year round.

Performance this year has understandably been impacted
by the pandemic, with most financial KPIs showing a
year-on-year decline. A short-term cash shortfall resulting
from our commitment to students to forgo rent during the
final semester of 2019/20 was mitigated by the deferral

of development and non-essential operational capital
expenditure, as well as a number of additional cost savings.
The Board also took the difficuit decision to cancel the
final dividend for 2019 and the interim dividend for 2020 to
preserve cash within the business. Despite the significant
disruption caused by Covid-19, the business has delivered
strong performance heading into the 2020/21 academic
year and we remain optimistic about the prospects for
future growth.

While Covid-19 particularly impacted our 2020 financial
results, there were a number of highlights for Unite

from an operations perspective, including the successful
integration of Liberty Living, the continued investment in
the safety and wellbeing of our people and assets through
implementation of learnings from our 2019 BSC 5-star
audit, and most recently, the develepment of an ambitious
new Sustainability Strategy with objectives linked to areas
including the environment, health and wellbeing, and
diversity and inclusion. The successful Placing undertaken
in june 2020 will support continued investment in Unite’s
market-leading platform to drive future growth, and
demonstrates the confidence of investors in our approach.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

With regards to remuneration for the year, the Board
agreed to a 30% reduction to salaries and pension
contributions for Executive Directors and a 30% reduction
in fees payable to Non-Executive Directors for a four-
month period from 1 April 2020. Similar salary reductions
of between 10% and 20% were volunteered by senior
management aver the same period.

The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer also felt it
would be inappropriate to participate in the annual bonus
scheme for 2020. Accardingty, as announced on 22 April
2020, this scheme was suspended far Richard Smith and
Joe Lister. With the agreement of the Board, the Executive
Directors proposed that a discretionary bonus scheme
should continue to operate, with payouts directed towards
front line employees and functional support teams to
reflect their hard work and commitment to custorner
service during this most difficult of years. A total of

c.£1.6 milfion (2019: ¢.£5.7 million - all employee bonus
excluding the Executive Directors) has been paid to eligible
employees as part of this arrangement.

LTIP awards made in April 2018 were tested for
performance at 31 December 2020. These awards were
based equally on EPS, TAR and TSR outperformance of

the FTSE350 Real Estate Supersector Index. Over the
three-year performance period Unite's relative TSR
outperformed the comparator Index, whilst TAR and EPS
performance were below threshold. Overall vesting of

the 2018 awards was therefare gne-third of maximum. In
approving this outcome, the Committee was satisfied that
the vesting level reflects the underlying performance of the
Company and the progress made over the last three years.
The Committee was also satisfied that the modest vesting
represented a fair outcome considering the Covid-19
context and the overall experience of stakeholders this
year, Awards vesting will be subject to a two-year holding
period following format vesting in Aprit 2021, and wili only
be released to Executive Directors in April 2023. Further
details are included on page 138.

Taken as a whole, the Committee is satisfied that overall
pay outcomes in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 are appropriate and accordingly we have not
applied any discretion to this year's incentive out-turns.
A significant propertion of Executive Director pay is
dependent on delivery against stretching short and
long-term targets aligned with Company strategy. The
Committee fully supported the decision to suspend the
annual bonus scheme far Executive Directors and focus
available funds on the broader workforce instead, whilst
modest vesting under the LTIP reflects, in our view, an
appropriate outcome for having continued to outperform
sector peers over the last three years.

Finalty, Executive Directors were each granted an award
under the LTIP in April 2020 which will vest based on
performance over the three financial years to 31 December
2022 measured against challenging EPS, relative TAR and
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relative TSR targets. Any award vesting is required to be
held for an additional two-year period, in line with our
remuneration policy. The Committee carefully considered
the appropriateness of making these awards in light of the
pandemic, concluding that as a share-based incentive with
no immediate cash cost, and with vesting dependent on
stretching three-year targets, the granting of these awards
remained appropriate and would help to incentivise
participants to drive Company performance at a time when
such focus was needed most. In making this decision, the
Committee agreed that there would be no change to the
performance canditions or targets originally intended to
apply to the awards (as disclosed in the 2013 Directors’
Remuneration Report), and that, therefore, any vesting

in 2023 would require truly exceptional performance

over the remainder of the performance period.

The Committee also noted its overarching discretion
under the Remuneration Policy and committed to review
any payout from these awards to ensure that it does not
reward windfall gains, and reflects the performance of
the Company and the experience of stakeholders over the
period. Further details are included on pages 142 and 143.

Implementation of Policy for 2021

The Committee believes that the remuneration policy
continues to effectively support Unite’s short and long-term
strategic objectives and promote shareholder alignment.

There will be no companywide pay increase for 2021 and
accordingly Executive Director salaries will remain at
£472,313 for the Chief Executive and £384,441 for the Chief
Financial Officer. Reflecting our commitment to being an
accredited Real Living Wage employer, entry level salaries
will increase in line with the rates set by the Living Wage
Foundation {c.1% in London and ¢.2% in the rest of the UK).

Following a review of Unite’s employee pension offering
in 2018, we revisited the contribution rates of Executive
Directors last year and committed that, consistent with
best practice, these would be aligned with the workforce
over a reasonable period. Accordingly, effective 1 January
2021, Richard Smith and Joe Lister will receive a maximum
pensian contribution of 17% of salary, with two further
reductions scheduled: to a maximum of 14% of salary
effective 1 January 2022 and to a maximum of 11% of
salary effective January 2023,

Executive Directors will be eligible to participate in the
annual bonus plan in 2021, with 2 maximum opportunity

of 140% of salary and with performance assessed against

a range of key financial and non-financial measures. There
will be two principal changes to the operation of the scheme
this year: Loan to Value (LTV) will replace net debt to EBITDA
in respect of 20% of the potential annual bonus and the 10%
weighting on personal / team objectives will be reallocated
to a new metric, Unite's Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB) rating. Use of our GRESB rating is
intended as a first step in introducing ESG metrics into



Unite's incentives and reflects the recent announcement

of the Group’s ambitious new Sustainability Strategy. The
Committee will, in approving outcomes under this element
of the annual bonus, also take into account performance
against a range of indicators linked to Diversity & Inclusian,
another key element of the Sustainability Strategy. The
operation of the LTIP will be unchanged, with awards of
200% of salary vesting based on three-year £PS, relative
TAR and relative TSR targets and a mandatory two-year
halding period applying. Refiecting continued uncertainty,
the Committee has taken the decision to delay target setting
for the Adjusted EPS element of the award and to instead
disclose details via a market announcement once these
targets have been determined. Further details, including
the approach we will take in assessing windfall gains on LTIP
outcomes, are included on page 144.

Following a review by the Chairman and Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Director fee levels will remain unchanged

for the 2021 financial year, save for one amendment. The
fee for the Chair of the Health and Safety Committee wilt be
increased from £7,285 to £10,300 per annum to align with
the fees for other Board Committee chairs and to reflect the
importance of this role and Committee to Unite’s business.
The new Chairman of the Board's fee has been set at
£225,000 per annum by the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 1 April 2021 to reflect his experience, a review of
the time commitment required of the role at Unite, and the
increase in size and complexity of the Group in recent years.
The Chair of our newly established Sustainability Committee
will also receive a Committee Chair fee of £10,300 per
annum, consistent with other Committee Chair fees. Full
details are included on page 145.

Workforce remuneration considerations

The Committee continues to monitor pay and practices
across the wider workforce when considering the
remuneration of Executive Directors. The Group People
Director is invited to attend Committee meetings on a
regular basis to provide updates on workforce initiatives
and offer an employee perspective to the Committee's
deliberations. This year the Committee’s work included
reviewing actions taken for employees as a result of

the pandemic and approving the proposal to operate a
discretionary bonus scheme to reward staff for their hard
work during the year.

For the second time, we have reported ratios of CEQ pay

to the wider population, as disclosed on page 140. The
headline ratios have fallen substantially this year, driven
predominantly by reduced vesting under the long-term
incentive plan and the cancellation of the bonus scheme

for Executive Directors. We have continued to also disciose
ratios of fixed pay and pay excluding long-term incentives
which we consider to be more comparable with employees
across the Group. During the year, the Committee assessed
the 2019 ratios against reported market data and noted that
our figures are higher than many other FTSE250 companies.

Although we recognise that this is very much a function
of differing staff models, it will nevertheless continue to
inform our decision-making around Executive Director
remuneration going farward.

Details of our gender diversity across the Group are
provided on page 53 and page 107 and the Committee is
pleased to note further progress in Unite’s mean gender
pay gap for 2019/20 as a result of a meaningful increase

in fernale representation in the upper quartile of pay.
Reflecting a step change in the focus on inclusion and
diversity, Unite has recently signed up to the Race at

Work Charter to help drive a sense of belonging for all

our employees across the organisation irrespective of
race and gender. In addition, from 1 January 2021, we will
include for the first time, gender and ethnicity in all senior
leaders' bonus KPIs. The Committee remains supportive
of Unite’s commitment to building a diverse, inclusive and
gender-balanced workforce and are encouraged by further
progress made in this area during 2020.

Board changes

As noted in last year's report, the Board added further
Higher Education sector experience this year with the
appointment of Professor Sir Steve Smith as a Non-
Executive Director and Chair of the Health and Safety
Committee in April 2020.

After extending his tenure following the Liberty Living
acquisition, we announced in October 2020 that Phil White,
Chairman, would step down from the Board on 31 March
2021. Phil will be succeeded as Chairman by Richard
Huntingford, who joined the Board as Chairman Designate
on 1 December 2020

Fees paid to Steve and Richard are in line with the fees paid to
the other Non-Executive Directors, as disclosed on page 145,

Looking ahead

Having been approved by shareholders in 2019, the 2022
AGM will mark the third anniversary of the adoption of the
current Directors’ Remuneration Policy. In accordance with
UK reparting regulations, we will be required to submit a
new Policy to shareholders for approval at this time. The
Committee is therefore planning to conduct a full review
of the existing remuneration arrangements during 2021
and will look to engage major shareholders to seek their
input in due course. We will continue to monitor market
developments throughout the 2021 AGM season and will
consider the appropriateness of any emerging trends for
Unite. | hope that you find this report a clear account of the
Committee’s decisions for the year and would be happy to
answer any questions you may have at the upcoming AGM.,

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of Remuneration Committee

16 March 2021
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Overview of Unite remuneration policy and implementation

Remuneration in respect of 2020

Overview of policy

Implementation of policy in 2021

Base salary

+ Salaries increased by 3.0% in line with
the broader employee population
effective 1 fanuary 2020, as follows:

- CEO, Richard Smith = £472,313
- CFO, Joe Lister = £384,441

+  Salaries voluntarity reduced by 30% for
a four-month period from 1 April 2020.

Seepage 126

Reviewed from time to time, with
reference to salary levels for similar rofes
atcomparable companies, to individual
contribution to performance; and to the
experience of each Executive.

Seepage 127

+ Salaries unchanged, as follows:

CEQ, Richard Smith = £472,313
- CFQ, Joe Lister = £384,441

B Seepage 143

Pension, benefits

' « Pension contributions (or equivalent
‘ cash allowance) of up ta:
- CEO, Richard Smith = £91,710
- CFO, Joe Lister = £74,650
+ Pensions voluntarily reduced by 30%
for a four-month peried from 1 April
2020.
«  Benefits in line with policy.

Seepage 136

Fer existing Executive Directors:
commitment ta phase down contributions
{or equivalent cash allowance) to the
workforce rate by 1 January 2023.

For new Executive Director appointees:
company pension contributions aligned
with the broader workforce {11% of salary).
Benefits typically consist of the provision
of a company car or & car allowance, and
private health care insurance.

Seepage 127

+  Pension contributiens (or equivalent
cash allowance) reduced to a maximum
of 17% of salary for CEO and CFO.

*  No change to benefits for 2021,

B See page 143

Annual bonus

« Annual bonus scheme cancelled for
Executive Directers in April 2020.

See page 137

Maximum annual bonus oppertunity for
all Executive Directors of 140% of salary.
Performance measures typically include
both financial and non-financial metrics,
as well as the achievement of individual
objectives,

Where an individual has met their
shareholding guidelines, any bonus over
100% of salary is deferred in shares for
twe years; where an individual has not
met their sharehalding guidelines, up o
50% of banus earned is deferred in shares
for three years.

Malus and clawback provisions apply.

B See page 128

*+  Maximum annual bonus opportunities
of 140% of salary.
+ 2021 bonuses to be based:

- 25% on adjusted EPS

- 25%on TAR per share

- 20% on Lean to Value

- 10% on customer satisfaction
- 10% on University reputation
- 10% on GRESB rating

l}: See page 143

LTIP

» 2018 LTIP vested at 33.33% based on:

- Relative TSR outperformance of the
FTSE350 Real Estate Index of 13.0%
p.2.vs. a stretch target of 9.0% p.a;

- Total Accounting Return aver the
period 2018-20 below the threshold
target; and

- 2020 adjusted EPS below the
threshold targer.

a See page 138

Maximum award size for all Executive
Directors of 200% of salary in normal
circumstances (up to 300% of salaryin
exceptional circumstances).

Awards vest subject to performance over
a three-year period. Vested shares are
typically subject to an additional two-year
holding period.

Malus and clawback provisions apply.

B See page 129

+  Awards of 200% of salary to be made to
each Executive Director in April 2021.

+ Performance to be measured over the
period 1 January 202% to 31 December
2023 against EPS, relative TAR and
relative TSR targets, each weighted
one-third.

+  Two-year halding period will apply to
all vested shares,

See age 144
Pag!

124



This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended). It also meets the
requirements of the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the Regulations, the following sections of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit: the Single
tatal figure of remuneration for Directors and accompanying notes (pages 136 to 138), Scheme interests awarded during
the financial year {page 142), Payments to past Directors (page 143), Payments for loss of office (page 143) and the
statement of Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (pages 145 and 146). The remaining sections of the report are

not subject to audit.

The 2018 UK Corporate Gavernance Code sets out principles against which the Cormmittee should determine the Policy for
executives. A summary of the principles and how the Unite’s Remuneration Policy reflects these is set out below:

Principle

Approach

Clarity - Remuneration arrangements should be
transparent and promote effective engagement
with shareholders and the workforce,

The Committee operates a consistent remuneraticn approach that is well-
understoed internally and externally. The Committee regularly engages with
major shareholders on executive remuneration and undertook a detailed
consultation during the design of the current Policy.

MIIAIDAD (

1oday 21891008 ‘ {

Simplicity - Remuneration structures should avoid
complexity, and their rationale and operation
should be easy to understand.

The Group operates a market-standard remuneration structure ¢consisting of
fixed pay, an annual bonus and a single long-term incentive. The annual benus
scheme was simplified as part of the last Policy review through the removal of the
personal performance multiplier and four-point performance schedule,

Risk - Remuneration arrangements should ensure
reputaticnal and other risks from excessive
rewards, and behavioural risks that can arise from
target-based incentive plans, are identified and
mitigated.

Each year, incentive targets will be set which the Committee believes are
stretching and achievable within the risk-appetite set by the Board. The
Committee retains full discretion to override formulaic incentive outcomes under
both the annual bonus and leng-term incentive in the event that this would
produce a result inconsistent with the Company's remuneration principles.

All variable incentives incorporate recovery provisions (malus and clawback)
that allow the Committee to reduce the outcomes, potentially down to zero, in
specified cases. The Committee believes that these triggers are appropriately
wide-ranging and enforceable.

Alignment to culture - Incentive schemes should
drive behaviours censistent with Company
purpose, values and strategy.

All permanent employees participate in the annual bonus, and share the same
corporate performance metrics to ensure cultural alignment across the Group.
We believe that aligning remuneration across the business is a key element of
aligning our culture, fulfilling our values and being a strong driver of business
performance.

Predictability - The range of possible values of
rewards to individual Directors and any Gther
limits or discretions should be identified and
explained at the time of approving the palicy.

The Committee maintains clear caps on incentive epportunities and will use its
avallable discretion if necessary.

Proportionality - The link between individual
awards, the delivery of strategy and the long-term
perfarmance of the Company should be clear.
Outcomes should not reward poor performance.

The Committee ensures performance metrics are clearly aligned with the Group’s
strategy each year, maintaining an appropriate balance between fixed pay,

short- and long-term incentive opportunities. Targets are set to be stretching but
achievable, within the Board’s risk appetite. Details of our approach to measure
selection and target setting is included as a note to the Policy Table.

Unite's remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at the 2019 AGM on @ May 2019. The report below, save for a
number of minor changes, is as disclosed in the 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Report, which is available to download from
the Company’'s wehsite at www.unite-group.co.uk/investors. The following changes have been made this year:

+ References to financial years have been updated where appropriate;

* Pay-for-performance scenario charts have been updated to reflect 2021 salaries and pension contributions; and

» New Non-Executive Director service contract dates have been added.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Directors’' Remuneration Policy

The Group aims to balance the need to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors and other senior executives of
an appropriate calibre with the need to be cost effective, whilst at the same time rewarding exceptional performance.
The Committee has designed a remuneration policy that balances those factors, taking account of prevailing best practice,
investor expectations and the level of remuneration and pay awards made generally to emplayees of the Group.

In addition to the above, the rernuneration policy for the Executive Directors and other senior executives is based on the
following key principles:

+ Asignificant proportion of remuneration shou!d be tied to the achievement of specific and stretching performance
conditions that align remuneration with the creation of shareholder value and the delivery of the Group’s strategic
plans, taking care to consider the needs of all stakeholders.

« There should be a focus on sustained long-term performance, with performance measured over clearly specified
timescales, encouraging executives to take action in line with the Group's strategic plan, using good business
management principles and taking well considered risks.

+ Individuals should be rewarded for success, but steps should be taken, within contractual obligations, to prevent
rewards for failure - whether financial or operational.

« Above a)), Executive Remuneration should support the values and culture of the Group. Pay should be simple and
easy to understand, with all aspects clear and openly communicated to stakeholders and with alignment with pay
philosophies across the Group.

This section of the report sets out the policy which the Company asked shareholders to approve at the 2019 AGM and
which came into effect from that date.
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Policy table
Function Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary Base salaries are reviewed from Any base salary increases are applied in None

To recognise the
individual's skilis and
experience and to
provide a competitive
base reward.

time to time, with reference to salary
levels for similar roles at comparable
companies, to individual contribution
to performance; and to the experience
of each Executive,

line with the outcome of the review as part
of which the Committee also considers
avarage increases across the Group.

In respect of existing Executive Directors,
it is anticipated that salary increases will
generally be in line with those of salaried
employees as a whole. In exceptional
circumstances (including, but net limited
to, a material increase in job size or
complexity) the Committee has discretion
to make appropriate adjustments to salary
levels tc ensure that they remain market
competitive,

Pension

To provide an
opportunity for
executives te build
up income upon
retirement.

All Executives are either members of
The UNITE Group Personal Pension
scheme or receive a cash pension
allowance.

Salary is the only element of
remuneration that is pensionable.

Existing Executive Directors receive a None
company pension contribution or an

equivalent cash allowance which is capped

in monetary terms at 20% of the salary

effective at 1 March 2019, as follows:

+ Richard Smith: £9%,710
+ Joe Lister: £74,650

Caompany contribution levels wi!l be
reduced from 1 January 2021, 2022 and
2023 to an equivalent of up te 17%, 14%
and 11% of salary respectively.

For future Executive Director appointees,
the maximum Company pension
contribution will be aligned to that offered
to a majority of employees across the
Group in percentage of salary terms
{currently 11% of salary).

Benefits

To provide non-cash
benefits which are
competitive in the
market in which the

executive is employed.

Executives receive benefits which
consist primarily of the provision of a
company car or a car allowance, and
private health care insurance, although
can include any such henefits that the
Committee deems apprepriate.

Benefits vary by role and individual None
circumstances; eligibility and costis
reviewed periodically.

The Committee retains the discretion
to approve a higher cost in certain
circumstances (e.g. relocation) orin
circumstances where factors outside
the Company’s control have changed
materially (e.g. increases in insurance
premiums}.

SAYE

To encourage the
ownership of shares
in Unite,

An HMRC approved scheme whereby
employees {(including Executive
Directors) may save up to the
maximum monthly savings limit

{as determined by prevailing HMRC
guidelines) over a period of three
years. Options granted at up to a 20%
discount,

Savings are capped at the prevailing HMRC  None
limit at the time employees are invited to
participate,
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Function

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Performance Related
Annual Bonus

To incentivise and
reward strong
performance
against financial

and non-financial
annual targets, thus
delivering vaiue to
shareholders and
being consistent with
the delivery of the
strategic plan.

Performance measures, targets
and weightings are set at the
start of the year.

At the end of the year, the
Remuneration Committee
determines the extent te which
targets have been achieved,

The delivery of bonus payments
is dependent on whether an
individual has achieved their
shareholding guideline at the end
of the relevant financial year, as
follows:

«  Sharehelding guideline
achieved: any annual bonus
earned over 100% of salary
will be deferred for two years;
and

+  Shareholding guideline not
achieved: up to 50% of the
annual bonus payable will be
deferred for three years.

In both cases, deferral is satisfied
by an allocation of shares in the
Company, which are held in the

Employee Share Ownership Trust.

Awards under the Performance
Related Annual Bonus are
subject to malus and clawback
pravisions, further details of
which are included as anote to
the policy table.

For Executive Directors, the
maximum annual bonus
opportunity is 140% of base salary.

Up to 30% of maximum will be paid
for Threshold performance under
each measure and up to 50% of
maximum will be paid for on-target
performance.

A payment equal to the value

of dividends which would have
accrued on vested deferred bonus
shares will be made following the
release of awards to participants,
either in the form of cash or

as additional shares. itis the
Committee's current intention

to make any future dividends
payments from the 2020 financial
year onwards in the form of shares.

Perfarmance is assessed on an
annual basis, as measured against
specific objectives set at the start of
each year.

Financial measures will make up at
least 70% of the total annual bonus
opportunity in any given year, The
remainder will be split between
non-financiai metrics and personal
/ tearn objectives according to
business priorities, with the
weighting on the latter being no
more than 20% of the total annual
bonus opportunity.

The Committee has discretion

to adjust the formulaic bonus
outcomes both upwards {within
the plan limits) and downwards
{including down to zero) to

ensure alignment of pay with
performance, e.g., in the event

of one of the targets under the
bonus being significantly missed
or unforeseen circumstances
outside management control. The
Committee also considers measures
cutside the bonus framework (e.g.
H&S) to ensure there is no reward
for failure.

For 2021, financial metrics and non-
financial metrics will make up 70%
and 30% of the total annual bonus
opportunity respectively. Further
details of the measures, weightings
and targets applicable are provided
on page 143,
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Function Operation Opportunity Performance metrics

LTIP The LTIP comprises a The LTIP provides for an award up Vesting of LTIP awards is subject
To drive sustained Perfarmance Share Flan {(PSP) to a normal aggregate limit of 200%  to continued employment and
long-term and an Approved Employee Share  of salary for Executive Directors, performance againstrelevant

performance that
supports the creation
of shareholder value.

Option Scheme (ESOS).

The ESOS is used to deliver a
proportion of the LTIP in a tax-
efficient manner, and is subject to
the same performance conditions
as awards made under the P5SP.

Award levels and performance
conditions are reviewed before
each award cycle to ensure they
remain appropriate and no less
stretching than the first cycle.

Awards under the LTIP are
subject to malus and clawback
provisions, further details of
which are included as a note to
the policy table,

with an overall limit of 300% of
salary in excepticnal circumstances.
The currentintention is to grant
each Executive Director awards
equivalent te 200% of salary.

Awards may include a grant of
HMRC approved options not
exceeding £6k per annum, valued
on a fair value exchange (currently
50-60% of a PSP award).

A payment equal to the value

of dividends which would have
accrued on vested shares will be
made following the release of
awards to participants, either in
the form of cash or as additional
shares. Itis the Committee’s current
intention to make any future
dividends payments from the 2020
financial year onwards in the form
of shares.

metrics measured over a period of
atleast three years. The Committee
will select performance measures
ahead of each cycle to ensure that
they continue to be linked to the
delivery of the Company strategy.

Under each measure, threshold
performance will result in up to
25% of maximurn vesting for that
element, rising on a straight-line to
full vesting.

If no entitlement has been

earned at the end of the relevant
performance period, awards will
lapse. A proportion of vested
awards may, at the discretion of
the Committee, be subjectto a
holding period following the end
of a three-year vesting period. The
Committee’s current intention is
that all awards will be required to
be held for an additional twe-year
period post-vesting.

As under the Performance Related
Annual Benus, the Committee has
discretion to adjust the foermulaic
LTIP cutcomes to ensure alignment
of pay with performance, ie to
ensure the gutcome is a true
refiection of the performance of the
Campany.

Details of the measures and targets
to be used for 2021 LTIP awards are
included in the Annual Report an
Remuneration on page 144,

Notes to the policy table

The Committee is satisfied that the above remuneration policy is in the best interests of shareholders and does not
promote excessive risk-taking,

For the avoidance of doubt, in approving this Directors' Remuneration Policy, authority is given to the Company te honour
any commitments entered into with current or former Directors (such as the vesting or exercise of past share awards).

Performance measure selection and approach to target setting

Measures used under the Performance Related Annual Bonus and LTIP are selected annually to reflect the Group’s main
short- and long-term objectives and reflect both financial and non-financial priorities, as appropriate.

The Committee considers that EPS {currently used in both the short- and long-term incentive) is an abjective and well-
accepted measure of the Company's performance which reinforces the strategic abjective of achieving profitable growth,
whilst a focus on Total Accounting Return {also currently used in both the short- and long-term incentive) is consistent with
one of our stated objectives and a key indicator of Company performance in the real estate sector. The use of relative TSR
is strongly aligned with shareholders and ensures that executives are rewarded only if they exceed the returns which an
investor could achieve elsewhere in our sector.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Targets applying to the Performance Related Annual Bonus and LTIP are reviewed annually, based on a number of internal
and external reference points. Performance targets are set to be stretching but achievable, with regard to the particular
strategic priorities and economic environment in a given year. Under the bonus, target performance typically requires
meaningful improvement on the previous year's outturn, and, for financial measures, targets are typically in line with

the upper end of market consensus.

Remuneration policy for other employees

Unite's approach to annual salary reviews is consistent across the Group, with consideration given to the leve! of
experience, responsibility, individual performance and salary levels in comparable companies. The Company is now a
fully accredited Living Wage employer.

In terms of variable incentives, all employees are eligible to participate in an annual bonus scheme with business area-
specific metrics incorporated where appropriate. Senior managers are eligible to participate in the LTIP with annual
awards currently up to 100% of salary. Performance conditions are consistent for all participants, while award sizes
vary by level. Specific cash incentives are also in place to motivate, reward and retain staff below Board level.

All employees are eligible to participate in the Company’s SAYE scheme on the same terms.

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee continues to recognise the impartance of Executive Directors aligning their interests with shareholders
through building up a significant shareholding in the Company. Shareholding guidelines are in place that require Executive
Directors to acquire a holding {excluding shares that remain subject to performance conditions) equivalent to 250% of
base salary for the Chief Executive and 200% of base salary for each of the other Executive Directors. Until the relevant
shareholding levels are acquired, up to 50% of the annual bonus payable to the relevant Director will be subject to deferral
inta shares. Details of the Executive Directors’ current shareholdings are provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration.

In order to provide further long-term alignment with shareholders and ensure a focus on successful succession planning,
Executive Directors will narmally be expected to maintain a holding of Unite shares for a period after their employment
as a Director of the Group. This shareholding guideline will be equal to the lower of a Director's actual shareholding at
the time of their departure and the shareholding requirement in effect at the date of their departure, with such shares
to be held for a period of at least two years from the date of ceasing to be a Director. The specific application of this
shareholding guideline will be at the Committee's discretion.

Malus and clawback

Awards under the Performance Related Annual Bonus and the LTIP are subject to malus and, from 2016, clawback
provisions which can be applied ta both vested and unvested awards. Malus and clawback provisions wil! apply for

a periad of at least two years post-vesting, Circumstances in which malus and clawback may be applied include a
material misstatement of the Company's financia! accaunts, gross misconduct on the part of the award-holder, error
in calculating the award vesting outcome and, from 2019 awards onwards, corporate failure as determined by the
Remuneration Committee.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

NED Date of service tontract
P White 10 January 2009

E McMeikan 13 November 2013

R Paterson 21 September 2017

R Akers 20 July 2018

| Beato 20 )uly 2018

S Pearce 14 October 2019

T Jackson 29 November 2019

S Smith 14 October 2019

R Huntingford 26 October 2020

Subject to annual re-election by shareholders, Non-Executive Directors are appeinted for an initial term of approximately
three years. Subsequent terms of three years may be awarded. The appointment, re.appointment and the remuneration
of Non-Executive Directors are matters reserved for the full Board.
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The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in the Company's performance-related bonus plan, long-term
incentive plans or pension arrangements.

Details of the policy on fees paid to our Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table below:

Function Operation Opportunity Performance metrics

Fees Fee levels are reviewed annually, with any  Non-Executive Director fee increases Nohe.
To attract and retain adjustments effective 1 Januaryin the year are applied in line with the cutcome of
Neon-Executive Directors  following review, the annual fee review. Fees for the year

of the highest calibre commencing 1 January 20621 are set out

with bread commercial In the Annual Report on Remuneration.

and other experience
relevant to the

Company.

The fees paid to the Chairman are
determined by the Committee, whilst the
fees of the Non-Executive Directors are
determined by the Board.

Fee levels will be next reviewed during
2021, with any increase effective 1

2022.
Additional fees are payable for acting January

as Senior Independent Director and as It is expected that increases to Non-

Chairman of any of the Board's Committees
(Audit, Remuneration, Nomination, Health
& Safety and, from 2021, Sustainability).

Fee levels are benchmarked against sector

Executive Director fee levels will be in
line with salaried employees over the iife
aof the policy. However, in the event that
there is a material misalignment with the

market or a change in the camplexity,
responsibility or time commitment
required to fulfil a Non-Executive
Director role, the Beard has discretion to
make an appropriate adjustment to the
fee level.

comparators and FTSE-listed companies
of similar size and compfexity. Time
commitment and respansibility are taken
into account when reviewing fee tevels.

Expenses incurred by the Chairman

and the Non-Executive Directors in the
performance of their duties (including
taxabie travel and accommedation
benefits} may be reimbursed or paid for
directly by the Company, as appropriate.

Pay for performance scenarios

The charts below provide an illustration of the potential future reward opportunities for the Executive Directors, and the
potential split between the different elements of remuneration under four different performance scenarios: "Minimum’,
‘On-target’, ‘Maximum' and ‘Maximum including the impact of a 50% share price appreciation on LTIP awards’.

Potential reward opportunities are based on Unite’s remuneration policy, applied to the base salaries effective 1 January
2021. Pension contributions reflect the agreed reduction to a maximum of 17% of salary effective 1 January 2021. The
annual banus and LTIP are based on the maxirmurn opportunities set out under the remuneration policy, being 140% of
salary under the annual bonus and a 2021 LTIP grant of 200% of salary. Note that the LTIP awards granted in a year do not
normaily vest untit the third anniversary of the date of grant, and the projected value is based on the face value at award
rather than vesting (ie the scenarios exclude the impact of any share price movement over the period). The exception

to this is the last scenario which, in line with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code, illustrates the
maximum outcome assuming 50% share price appreciation for the purpose of LTIP value.

Richard Smith Joe Lister
£3,000
£2,647
£2,500 " 53.5%
E £2,175 ) £2,159
W £2.000 + 43.4% ¢ $3.4%
s £1,774 :
a .
S eusoo L a33%
g £1,136
€ e 20 8% 30.4% 25.0% . ) E920
o 20.7%
f
£500 £467 25.0%
£0 n
Minimum On-target Maximum Maximum +50% Minimum On-larget Maximum Maximuem +50%
share price inc. share price inc.
forLTIP far LTIP
B salary, pensions, beneflts [ Annual banus LTIP
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Repart & Accounts 2020

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

The ‘minimum’ scenario reflects base salary, pension and benefits {ie fixed remuneration) which are the only elements of
the Executive's remuneration packages not linked to performance.

The 'on-target’ scenario reflects fixed remuneration as above, plus bonus paycut of 70% of salary and LTIP threshold
vesting at 25% of maximum award.

The ‘maximum’ scenario is shown on two bases: excluding and including the impact of share price appreciation on the
value of LTIP outcomes. In both cases, the scenario includes fixed remuneration and full payout of all incentives {(140% of
salary under the annual bonus and 200% of salary under the LTIP), with the final scenario also including the impact of a
50% increase in Unite's share price on the value of the LTIP (in effect valuing this element of pay at 300% of salary).

Approach to recruitment remuneration
External appointment to the Board

In the cases of hiring or appointing a new Executive Director from outside the Company, the Remuneration Committee
may make use of ail the existing components of remuneration, as follows:

Maximum annual
Component Approach grant value

Base salary The base salaries of new appointees will be determined by reference to relevant market
data, experience and skills of the individual, internal relativities and their current basic
salary. Where new appointees have initial basic salaries set below market, any shortfall
may be managed with phased increases over a period of two to three years subject to
the individuzl's development in the role,

Pension New appointees will receive Company pension contributians or 2n equivalent cash
supplement aligned to that offered to a majority of empleyees across the Group at the
time of appointment {currently 11% of salary).

Benefits New appointees will be eligible to receive benefits which may include (but are not limited
ta) the pravision of a company car or cash alternative, private medical insurance and any
SAYE necessary relocation expenses. New appointees will also be eligible to participate in all-

employee share schemes.

Performance Related The structure described in the policy table will apply to new appaintees with the relevant 140% of salary
Annual Bonus maximum being pro-rated to reflect the proportion of employment over the year. Targets
for the individual element will be tailored to each executive,

LTIP New appointees will be granted awards under the LTI? on the same terms as other 300% of salary
executives, as described in the policy table. The normal aggregate limit of 200% of
salary will apply, save in exceptional circumstances where up to 300% of salary may
be awarded.

In determining appropriate remuneration, the Remuneration Committee will take into consideration all relevant factors
(including quantum, nature of remuneration and the jurisdiction from which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that
arrangements are in the best interests of both Unite and its shareholders, The Committee may make an award in respect
of a new appointment to ‘buy out’ incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer on a like-for-like basis,
which may be awarded in addition to the remuneration structure autlined in the table above. In daing so, the Committee
will consider relevant factors including time to vesting, any performance conditions attached to these awards and the
likelihood of those conditions being met. Any such ‘buy-out’ awards will typically be made under the existing annual bonus
and LTIP schemes, although in exceptional circumstances the Committee may exercise the discretion available under
Listing Rule 9.4.2 R to make awards using a different structure. Any 'buy-out’ awards would have a fair value no higher
than the awards forfeited.
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Internal promotion to the Board

In cases of appointing a new Executive Director by way of internal promotion, the Remuneration Committee and Board will
be consistent with the policy for external appointees detailed above. Where an individual has contractual commitments
made prior to their promotion to Executive Director level, the Company will continue to honour these arrangements.

with regards to pension contributions, as above, this would be aligned to that offered to a majority of employees across
the Group at the time of promotion to the Board. The Remuneration Policy for other emplayees is set out on page 130.
Incentive opportunities for below Board employees are typically no higher than Executive Directors, but measures may
vary to provide better line-of-sight.

Non-Executive Directors

In recruiting a new Non-Executive Director, the Remuneration Cammittee will utilise the policy as set out in the table on
page 131. Abase fee in line with the prevailing fee schedule would be payable for Board membership, with additional
fees payable for acting as Senior Independent Director and /or as Chairman of the Board's Committees,

Service contracts and treatment for leavers and change of control

Executive Date of service contract
J Lister 28 March 2002
R 5mith 28 September 2011

Executive Director service contracts, including arrangements for early termination, are carefully considered by the
Committee. In accordance with general market practice, each of the Executive Directors has a rolling service contract
requiring 12 months’ notice of termination on either side. Such contracts contain no specific provision for compensation
for loss of office, other than an obligation to pay for any notice period waived by the Company, where pay is defined as
salary, benefits and any other statutory payments only. Where a payment is made in equal monthly instalments, the
Committee will expect the Director to mitigate his/her losses by undertaking to seek and take up, as soon as reasonably
practicable, any suitable/similar opportunity to earn alternative income over the period in which the instalments are to

be made. The instalment payments will be reduced {including to zero) by the amount of such income that the employee
earns and/or is entitled to earn over the applicable period. Executive Director service contracts are available to view at the
Company's registered office.

The Remuneration Committee will exercise discretion in making appropriate payments in the context of outplacement,
settling legal claims or potential legal claims by a departing Executive Director, including any other amounts reasonably
due to the Executive Director, for exampie to meet the iegal fees incurred by them in connection with the termination of
employment, where the Company wishes to enter into a settlement agreement and the individual must seek independent
legal advice.

When considering exit payments, the Committee reviews all potential incentive outcomes to ensure they are fair to both
shareholders and participants. The table below summarises how the awards under the annual bonus and LTIP are typically
treated in specific circumstances, with the final treatment remaining subject to the Committee’s discretion.

133

MIIALDAD ‘

yao0day 21831005

FILUBUIBACD

SIUBLWIEIS [e1dUeUld l

LOIBLIIOM| I3U10) !




The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Caleulation of vesting 7 payment

Annual honus

Cash element In the event of retirement, ill health, death, disability, redundancy or any other circumstance at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee, or in the event of a change of control, Executive Directors may
receive a bonus payment for the year in which they cease employment. This payment wilt narmally be pro-
rated for time and will anly be paid to the extent that financial and individual objectives set at the beginning
of the plan year have been met.

Otherwise, Executjve Oirectors must be employed at the date of payment to receive a bonus.

Deferred element Deferred bonus shares will normally be retained and will be released in ful! following completion of the
applicable two- or three-year deferral period.

LTIP

Leavers before the end of  In the event of retirement, ill health, death, disahility, redundancy or any other circumstance at the

the performance period discretion of the Remuneration Committee, or in the avent of a change of control, the Committee
determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards vest based on the extent to which
performance conditions have bheen achieved and the proportion of the vesting period worked. This
determination will be made as soon as reasonably practical following the end of the performance period or
such earlier date as the Committee may agree (within 12 months in the event of death).

In the event of a change of control, awards may alternatively be exchanged for new equivalent awards in
the acquirer where appropriate,

If participants leave for any other reason before the end of the performance period, their award will
normally lapse.

Leavers after the end of  Any awards in a holding period will normatly vest following completion of the holding period.
the performance period

External appointments

With the approval of the Board in each case, and subject to the overriding requirements of the Group, Executive Directors
may accept external appointments as Non-Executive Directors of other companies and retain any fees received. Joe
Lister was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Helical Plc effective 1 September 2018 and received a
fee of ¢.£57k in respect of his service for 2020, Richard Smith was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of
Stenprop Limited effective 4 November 2020 and received a fee of c.£6k in respect of his service for 2020,

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Company

When making decisions on Executive Director remuneration, the Committee considers pay and conditions across Unite.
Pricr to the annual salary review, the Group People Director provides the Committee with a summary of the proposed
leve| of increase for overall employee pay. Currently the Remuneration Committee does not formally consult with
employees on the executive remuneration policy and framework.

Consideration of shareholder views

During 2018, the Remuneration Committee consulted with investors representing around two-thirds of Unite’s issued
share capital and with proxy advisors (Glass Lewis, the Investment Assaciation and 155) to seek their views on the
proposed changes to the Remuneration Policy, as well as remuneration at Unite more broadly. The Committee was
grateful far investors taking the time to participate in the consultation and we welcomed the positive and constructive
feedback received. The Committee used the direct feedback, along with updates to investor body principles published
around the time of the review, to refine and further develop the final proposals. The Committee will continue to monitar
trends and developments in corporate governance and market practice to ensure the structure of the executive
remuneration remains appropriate. The Committee is planning to conduct a full review of the existing remuneration
arrangements during 2021, ahead of the triennial policy shareholder vote, and will look to engage major shareholders as
appropriate to seek their input in due course,

The following section provides details of how Unite’s remuneration policy was implemented during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 and how it will be implemented in 2021,
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Remuneration Committee membership in 2020

The primary role of the Committee is to:

* Review, recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for the Executive Directors and other senior
executives

= Approve the remuneration packages for the Executive Directors and ensure that pay outcomes reflect the performance
of the Company

« Determine the balance between base pay and performance-related elements of the package so as to align Directors’
interests to those of shareholders.

The Committee’s terms of reference are set out on the Company's website. As of 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee comprised five independent Non-Executive Directors.

» Elizabeth McMeikan (Committee Chair)

*  Phil White

* Ross Paterson

* Richard Akers

» Dame Shirley Pearce

Certain Executives, including Richard Smith (Chief Executive) and Ruth George (Group People Director), are invited

to attend meetings of the Committee, and the Company Secretary, Christopher Szpojnarowicz, acts as secretary to
the Committee. Thomas Jackson is also invited to attend meetings and Richard Huntingford was invited to attend the
December meeting following his appointment as Chairman Designate. No individuals are involved in decisions relating

to their own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee convened four times during the year and details of members
attendance at meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance section on page 99.

Key activities of the Remuneration Committee in 2020 included:

« Reviewed and approved the Executive Directors’ performance against 2019 annual objectives and 2017 LTIP targets;
determined bonuses payable, and approved LTIP vesting;

* Approved the Directors’' Remuneration Report for 2019;

* Reviewed and approved salary increases for the Executive Directors and senior management for 2020;

« Determined the Executive Directors’ bonus and LTIP performance targets for 2020 in line with the strategic plan and
approved grant of awards under the LTIP in April 2020;

+ Discussed and approved remuneration actions in respect of Covid-19, including temporary reductions to salaries and
pensions for Executive Directors, and temporary reductions to fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors;

» Considered remuneration market trends and corporate governance developments;
* Reviewed and approved the new Chairman’s fee with effect from 1 April 2021;
* Reviewed the CEO pay ratio and gender pay data and disclosures; and

* Commenced preparation of the 2021 Directors' Remuneration Report.

Advisors

Mercer | Kepler ({Mercer) was appointed as the Committee’s independent advisor foillowing a competitive tender process
in 2014, and was retained during the 2020 financial year. The Committee undertakes due diligence periodically to ensure
that Mercer remains independent and that the advice provided is impartial and objective. During 2020, Mercer provided
independent advice including support on the review of executive remuneration arrangements for 2620, updates on the
external remuneration environment, performance testing for long-term incentive plans and Directors’ Remuneration
Report drafting support. Mercer reports directly to the Chair of the Remuneration Committee and does not advise the
Company on any other issues. Their total fees for the provision of remuneration services to the Committee in 2020 were
£36,788 (2019: £60,830) on the basis of time and materials.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Foilowing the lead adviser moving to Ellason LLP, Ellason LLP was appointed as the independent remuneration advisor to
the Committee effective 1 January 2021. Both Mercer and Ellason are members and signatories of the Code of Conduct
for Remuneration Consuitants, details of which can be found at www.remunerationcansultantsgroup.com. None of the
individual Directors have a personal connection with either Mercer or Ellason.

Summary of shareholder voting at AGMs

The following table shows the resuits of the advisory vote on the 2019 Annual Repart on Remuneration at the 2020 AGM,
and the binding vote on the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the 2019 AGM:

2019 Annual Report on Remuneration Directors’' Remuneration Policy
For (including discretionary) 297,901,750 93.04% 213,670,741 96.85%
Against 22,290,928 6.96% 6,938,947 3.15%
Total votes cast (excluding withheld votes) 320,192,678 220,609,628
Votes withheid 3,961,254 g
Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 324,153,932 220,609,688

Single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received for 2019 and 2020 by each Executive Director
who served in the year ended 31 December 2020:

Taxable Annual Total
Salary benafits Pension Bonus LTIP QOther Single Total Total
Executives Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 Note 4 Note § KNote 6 Figure Fined Variable
R Smith 2020 425,082 16,202 73,738 Q 377,339 0 892,361 515,022 377,339
2019 456,692 16,195 80,957 519,361 1,258,704 4,459 2,336,408 553,844 1,782,564
] Lister 2020 345,997 17,498 58,626 a 307,166 2,248 732,535 423,120 309415
2019 371,726 16,928 66,084 422,736 1,024,722 0 1,902,196 454,738 1,447,458

1. 2020 figure reflects the 30% reduction to salaries for Executive Directors which applied for a four-month period from 1 April 2020.

~

. Taxable benefits for 2020 consist primarily of company car or car allowance and private health care insurance. The figures above include car benefits of £15,000 for
Messrs. Smith and Lister.

w

. Fension figures include contributions ta the UNITE Group Personal Pension Scheme and cash aliowances, where applicable. The 2020 figure reflacts the 30% reduction
te pension contributions for Executive Directors which applied for a four-month peried from 1 April 2020.

4. As announced on 22 April 2020, the 2020 annual bonus scheme was suspended for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer.

5. 2019 figures: The 2017 awards are valued based on the market price on the date of vesting (10 April 2020) of 874 0p. These 2mounts have been revised downwards frem
last year's report to reflect the actual share price on the date of vesting.

2020 figures: For the 2018 awards, the market price on the date of vesting is currently unknown and so the value shown is estimated using the average market value
over the last quarter of 2020 of 971.0p. See following sections for further details. The value of the vested 2018 awards shown reflects the impact of a €. 20% increase in
the vesting share price compared to the share price at grant. Qverall, the impact of the share price increase an the awards rapresenits c.16% of the LT(P value, equivalent
to c.£59k for Richard Smith and c.£48k for Joe Lister. For both 2019 and 2020, LTIP figures include the value of dividends for vested awards, in both cases paid as
additional shares, Awards in the form of HMRC-appreved options are valued based on the embedded gain at vesting {ie subtracting the applicable exercise price) and
attract no dividends.

6. ‘Geher’ includes the embedded value of SAYE options &t grant.
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Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration receijved for 2019 and 2020 by each Non-Executive

Director who served in the year ended 31 December 2020:

MIIAIIAG ‘

Committee
Non-Executives Base fee Chair 7 SiD fees Taxable benefits Total
Note t Note 2 Note 2 Note 3 Single Figure i
P White 2020 179,302 - 252 179,555 n
2019 193,420 - 1,630 195,050 5
E McMeikan 2020 44,496 14,508 133 59,137 g_
2019 48,000 15,650 334 63,984 %
R Paterson 2020 44,496 9,270 9 53,775 -_81
2019 48,000 10,000 - 58,000 -
R Akers 2020 44,496 - 9 44,505
2019 48,000 - 499 48,499
| Beato 2020 44,496 - - 44,496
2015 48,000 - 255 48,255
S Pearce® 2020 44 496 - 9 44,505
2019 8,000 - - 8,000
T Jacksonti 2020 - - - - o)
2019 - - - - g
S $mitht 2020 32,136 4,735 - 36,871 3
2019 - - - - a
R Huntingford® 2020 4,120 - - 4,120
2019 - - - -
1. Changes in Non-Executive Directors and responsibilities as follows:
i. Dame Shirley Pearce joined the Board on 1 Novermber 2019.
il. Thomas Jacksan joined the Board on completion of the acquisition of Liberty Living Group plc on 29 Novernber 2019. Refiecting the Relationship Agreement with
CPPIB Holdco, Thomas will not receive any fees in respect of his Non-Executive Director position with Unite.
iii. Professor Sir Steve Smith joined the Board on 1 April 2020 and became Chair of the Health and Safety Committee from this date,
iv, Richard Huntingford joined the Board as Chairman Designate on 1 December 2020. I
2. 2020 figures refiect the 30% reduction to base fees and additional fees far Non-Executive Directors which applied for a four-month periad from 1 April 2020, ;_:?
3. Taxable benefits relate primarily to certain travel exgenses and accommoadation, é
Incentive outcomes for the year ended 31 December 2020 (audited) §
Annual Bonus in respect of 2020 performance %
The maximum bonus opportunity for each Executive Director in 2020 would have been 140% of base salary. However, a*
reflecting the Covid-19 context and the decision to suspend dividends, Richard and Joe felt it would be inappropriate to
participate in the annual bonus scheme for 2020. Accordingly, as announced on 22 April 2020, this scheme was suspended
for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer.
Atotal of ¢.£1.6 million {2019: ¢.£5.7 million - all employee bonus excluding the Executive Directars) has been paid to
below-Board employees as part of a discretionary bonus arrangement proposed by management and approved by the
Committee, with payouts directed towards front line employees and functional support teams to reflect their hard work r—
and commitment to customer service during the year. g
1]
5
=)
S
g
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2018 LTIP vesting (vested on performance to 31 December 2020}

Awards in 2018 were made under the LTIP, consisting of the Unite Group Performance Share Plan and the Unite Group
Approved Employee Share Option Scheme, Vesting of the awards was dependent on three equally-weighted measures
over a three-year performance period: TAR per share, EPS and TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate
Supersector index. There was no retest provision. Further details, including vesting schedules and performance against
each of the metrics, are provided in the table below:

Measure Weight Targets Qutcome Vest%

0% vesting below 42.1 pence
25% vesting for 42.1 pence

2 j EP .5 .0%
2020 Adjusted EPS 3 100% vesting for 49.2 pence or more; 255 pence 0
Straight-line vesting between these points
0% vesting below 22.5% (7% p.a.)
TAR per share 3 25% vesting for 22.5% (7% p.a.) 21.5% 0.0%
(2018-2020) 100% vesting for 44.3% {13% p.a.) or more; (6.8% p.a.) .
Straight-line vesting between these points
0% vesting if Group underperfarms the Index
R
TSR outperformance 25% vesting for matching the Index Index+13.0% p.a.
of the FTSESS0 Real i 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.a.; 100.0%
Estate Supersector Index esting for outp 8 y 3% p.a.; {41.6% return]

Straight-line vesting between these paints

Note: As disclesed Inlast year's report, the EPS target range was increased to reflect the Liberty Living acquisition plan around earnings accretion and the positive benefit
of the IFRS 16 accounting standard change. The original target range was 40-46 pence.

Total LTIP vesting {sum product of weighting and vest %) 33.33%

The performance period for the each of the elements ended on 31 December 2020. The awards will veston the

third anniversary of the date of grant and will be subject to an additional two-year holding period. In approving an
overall outcome of 33.33% of maximum, the Committee satisfied itself that the vesting level reflects the underlying
performance of the Company and the progress made over the last three years. Although 2020 EPRA EPS and TAR have
been negatively impacted by the Cavid-19 pandemic resulting in no vesting under these elements, Unite has continued
to materially outperform sector peers in generating returns for shareholders over the longer-term, The Committee also
took into account the broader pandemic context and the overall experience of stakeholders this year, as outfined in the
Chair's Statement.

Interests Assumed Estimated ... of which, value due
Executive interests held Vesting % vesting Date vesting market price value... to share price growth
Note1 Note 2
£59,187
Richard Smith 110,597 36,999 10 April 2021 £377.339
(16% of total)
33.33% 971.0p
£48,242
Joe Lister 80,471 30,157 10 April 2021 £307,166

(16% of total)

1. Ineach case, interests held inciudes 733 HMRC-approved opticns under the £505.

2. Estimated value of HMRC-approved options Is based on embedded gain {ie after subtracting 811.0p exercise price). Value includes the accumulated dividends an
vested shares.

In line with regulations, the value disclosed above and in the single total figure of remuneration tatyle on page 136 captures
the full number of interests vesting (ie excluding the two-year holding period), As the market price on the date of vesting

is unknown at the time of reporting, the value is estimated using the average market value over the last quarter of

2020 of 971.0p. The actual value at vesting will be trued-up in the 2021 Annual Report on Remuneration. The estimated
values include the impact of a ¢.20% increase in the assumed market price compared to the share price at grant (811.0p).
Executives also hecame entitled to additional shares representing the dividends payable on vested LTIP shares over the
three-year parformance period. The value of these additional shares is included in the row entitled ‘LTIP' in the single total
figure of remuneration table on page 136, and equate to £20,086 and £16,346 for Messrs. Smith and Lister respectively.
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Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees

The Committee has previousty disclosed year-on-year changes in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive
Officer compared with that of all employees. In accordance with the Companies (Directors’ Remuneration Palicy and
Directors’ Remuneration Report) Regulations 2019 (applying to financial years commencing on or after 10 June 2019), this
analysis has now been expanded to cover each Executive Director and Non-Executive Director. This table will be built up
over time to display a five-year history.

Executive Director remuneration includes base salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus (where eligible). Non-
Executive Director remuneration includes base fee and any additional fees paid, and taxable benefits, The pay for all
employees is calculated using the increase in the earnings of full-time employees for tax years 2013 and 2020. The
analysis excludes part-time employees and is based on a consistent set of employees, ie the same individuals appear
inthe 2019 and 2020 populations.

Director Basic salary/total fee Taxable benefits Annuai bonus
Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 Note 4
R Smith (6.9)% 0.0% (100.0)%
] Lister (6.9)% 3.4% (100.0)%
P White {7.3)% (84.5)% n/a
E McMeikan (7.3)% (60.2)% n/a
R Paterson (7.3)% 100.0% n/a
R Akers (7.3)% (98.2)% n/a
| Beato (7.3)% (100.0)% n/a
5 Pearce (7.3)% 100.0% ni/a
T Jackson n/a n/a n/a
S Smith nfa n/a n/a
R Huntingford n/a n/a nfa
All employees 4.4% 2.3% (67.8)%

1. Changes in Directors and responsibilities during the 2019 and 2020 financial years as follows:

- Dame Shirley Pearce joined the Board on 1 November 2019.

- Thomas Jackson joined the Board on completion of the acquisition of Liberty Living Group plc on 28 Nevember 2019, Reflecting the Retationship Agreement with
CPPIB Holdco, Thomas will net receive any fees in respect of his Non-Executive Director position with Unite.

- Professor Sir Steve Smith joined the Board on 1 April 2020 and became Chair of the Health and 5afety Committee from this date.
- Richard Huntingford joined the Board as Chairman Designate on 1 December 2020.
2. The basic salary/total fee figures shown are based on full-time equivalent comparisons. All Directors agreed a temporary 30% reduction to their salary/fees for the

period of four menths ended 31 July 2020 which is reflected in the year-on-year comparison. Similar salary reductions of hetween 10% and 20% were agreed by senior
management over the same period.

3. For Executive Directors, taxable benefits consist primarily of company car or car allowance and private health care insurance. For Non-Executive Directors, taxable
benefits relate primarity to certain travel expenses and accommodation which, given the relatively small numbers involved, can produce sizeable % changes fram year
to year.

4. The figures shown are reflective of any bonus earned during the respective financial year. Non-Executive Birectors are not eligible to participate in the annual
bonus scheme.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below shows shareholder distributions (ie dividends and share buybacks) and total employee pay expenditure
for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, along with the percentage change in both.

20240 2019 % change

£m £m 2019-20

Total employee pay expenditure 64.7 51.6 25.4%
Distributians to shareholders 0 70.7 (100)%

Distributions to shareholders reflects actual payments made during the relevant financial year. Employee remuneration
excludes sacial security costs. A significant proportion of the % change in total employee expenditure between 2019 and
2020 reflects the Liberty Living acquisition and increased headcount.
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‘The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Relationship between the remuneration of the CEQ and all employees
The Company’s approach to remuneration is consistent for all employees.

As determined last year, given the significant undertaking required to calculate the single figure of remuneration for all UK
employees, the Committee opted to use data already available from the gender pay reporting as the basis far identifying
employees at P25, P50 and P75 (‘Option B'). We believe this provides a reasonable estimate for employees’ pay at these
levels within the organisation. Further details on the specific steps used in calculating the above ratios are as follows:

+ We used the most recent gender pay gap data from 5 April 2020 to rank the hourly rates of all UK employees. From
this initial ranking we identified those individuals positioned at P25, P50 and P75, as well as the immediate employees
either side of P25, P50 and P75.

« Employees selected as P25, PS0 and P75 were checked to confirm that they were employed for the whole of the 2020
financial year.

+ Total FTE remuneration for each of these individuals was then calculated to 31 December 2020 on the same basis
as used in the single figure table for our CEQ. All figures are total amounts paid to full-time employees covering the
whole 2020 financial year. Overtime pay, where received during the year, has been excluded so that the figures are
comparable with the Chief Executive.

*» Inreviewing the employee pay data, the Committee is comfortable that the P25, P50 and P75 individuals identified
appropriately reflect the employee pay profile at those quartiles, and that the overall picture presented by the ratios
is cansistent with our pay, reward and pragression policies.

CEO pay ratio 2020 2013
Note 1
Methodelogy used B B
Average number of employees 1,756 1,450
Ratio of CEO single figure total remuneration:
- To employee at the 25th percentile 42:1 131
- To employee at the 50th percentile 36:1 96:1
- To employee at the 75th percentile 28:1 701
Ratio of CEQ hase salary plus annual bonus figure:
- To employee at the 25th percentile 211 4511
- To employee at the 50th percentile 18:1 411
- To employee at the 75th percentile 14:1 301
Ratio of CEO base salary figure:
- To employee at the 25th percentile 221 2541
- To employee at the 50th percentile 19:1 211
- To employee at the 75th percentile 14:1 15:1
Additional details
CEO total single figure (£'000) B892 2,336
CEOQ base salary (£'000) 425 457
Employees total pay and benefits (£'000)
- at the 25th percentile 21.2 20.6
- at the 50th percentile 246 24.4
- at the 75th percentile 32.0 335
Employees base salary (£'000)
- atthe 25th percentile 19.6 18.1
- at the 50th percentile 22.6 217
- at the 75th percentile 29.4 296

1. 2019 CEQ single figure of remuneration has been trued-up from last year's report to reflect the actuai market price on the date of vesting for 2017 LTIP awards, with
ratios updated accordingly.
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The Committee notes that the statutory CEO pay ratios have fallen significantly in 2020 as compared to 2019, with the
ratio of CEO total remuneration to the median employee, for example, dropping from 96:1 to 36:1. This change reflects
a number of factors, most notably the suspension of the annual banus scheme for Executive Directors and lower overall

vesting under the long-term incentive scheme as compared to last year.

Along with the ratios comparing total remuneration, the Committee has committed to keep under review the ratios for
salary and salary plus annual bonus, and additionally track how these change over time. A significant proportion of the
CEO’s remuneration is linked to Group performance and share price movements over the longer-term and as a result, it is
expected that changes in the headline ratios may be volatile, Participation in the Group’s long-term incentives is currently
limited to ¢.60 senior leaders, with none of the individuals identified as P25, P50 and P75 in this group, On the other hand,
the significant majority of our employees are eligible to participate in annual bonus arrangements - and so the Committee
considers this ratio, as well as the ratio comparing just salaries, to provide helpful additional context,

Having reviewed these additional data points, the Committee is satisfied that the fluctuation in the headline ratios this
year reflects appropriate differences in the structure of remuneration at different levels of seniority. Small reductions in
the salary ratios at P25 and P50 reflect the salary reductions taken by Executive Directors between April and July this year,
whilst the ratios comparing salary plus annual bonus have improved at all levels as a result of payment of discretionary
annual bonuses to employees below senior management level.

Fimally, the Committee has reviewed Unite’s 2019 pay ratios against those reported by other UK-listed companies during
the year. On this measure, it is recognised that Unite’s 2019 tota! pay ratios were high relative to the broader FTSE250;
however, the Committee believes that these differences are driven primarily by the Group’s staffing model and the
proportion of the workforce employed in our frontline teams, rather than excessive pay outcomes at a senior level.

It is anticipated that the 2020 figures will be more market-aligned.

Review of past performance

The following graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FTSE350 Real Estate Supersector Index over the ten-year
period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020. Whiist there is no comparator index or group of companies that truly
reflects the activities of the Group, the FTSE350 Real Estate Supersector Index (the constituent members of which are
all property holding and / or development companies or real estate investment trusts within the UK), was chosen as

it reflacts trends within the UK property market generally and tends to be the index against which analysts judge the
performance of the Company. The table on page 142 details the Chief Executive’s single figure remuneration over the
same period.

Historical TSR performance
Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the 10 years to 31 December 2020
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 2018 2019 2026
M Allan
M Allan M Allan M Allan MAllan M Allan R Smith R Smith R Smith R Smith R Smith
Note 1 Note 2
CEQ single figure of £223
remuneration {£000) £1,476 £994 £1,944 £2,987 £2,382 £1,239 £1,456 £2,131 £2,336 £892
Annual bonus award
rates against n/a
maximum opportunity 75.8% 63.4% 84.0% 89.4% 88.2% 43.4% 63.6% 74.3% 80.9% n/a
LTIP award rates
against maximum n/a
opportunity 82.4% 26.3% 83.1% 95.2% 100.0% 100.0% 96.1% 81.9% 97.1% 33.33%

1. 2012 CED single figure of remuneration has been trued-up from last year's report to reflect the market price on the date of vesting for 2017 LTIF awards.

2. 2020 annual bonus scheme was cancelled for Executive Directors in April 2020,

Scheme interests awarded in 2020 (audited)
LTIP

In April 2020, Executive Directors were granted awards under the LTIP with a face value of 200% of their respective
salaries. The three-year performance period over which performance will be measured began on 1 January 2020 and wil!
end on 31 December 2022, Any awards vesting for performance will be subject to an additional two-year holding period.

Shares over which
awards granted

Market price at

Executive Date of grant Note 1 date of award Face value

Richard Smith ) 118,129 £949,167
23 April 2020 803.5p

Joe Lister 96,256 £773,417

1. Combination of HMRC-approved aptions under the ESOS {746} and nil cost options under the PSP calculated using a share price of 803.5p, being the closing mid-market

price on the day the awards were calculated.

As noted in the Chairman’s Statement, the Committee carefully considered the appropriateness of making these awards
in light of the pandemic, concluding that as a share-based incentive with no immediate cash cost, and with vesting
dependent on stretching three-year targets, the granting of these awards remained appropriate and would help to
incentivise participants to drive Company perfarmance at a time when such focus was needed most.

Vesting of the awards is dependent on three equally-weighted measures over a three-year performance period:
Adjusted EPS, relative TAR and relative TSR (in both cases measured against the constituents of the FTSE 350 Real Estate
Supersector Index}. Targets for each performance measure are consistent with those disclosed prospectively in the
2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report, with the Committee satisfied that any vesting in 2023 will require exceptional
performance over the remainder of the performance period. Details of the vesting schedules are provided below:

Measure Weight Targets

0% vesting helow 51,1 pence;
25% vesting for 51.1 pence;
100% vesting for 58.7 pence or more; 1

2022 Adjusted EPS 1/3

Straight-line vesting between these points,

0% vesting for performance below median;

TAR per share ranking vs. the FTSE350 Real 13

25% vesting for performance in line with median;

Estate Supersector Index (2020-2022) 100% vesting for performance at upper quartile or above;
Straight-line vesting between these points.
0% vesting for performance below median;
TSR ranking vs. the FTSE350 Rea! Estate 13 25% vesting for performance in line with median;
Supersector Index (2020-2022} 100% vesting for performance at upper quartile or above;

I
I
Straight-line vesting between these points. “
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The Committee retains overarching discretion under the Remuneration Policy to approve the vesting of these awards. Any
payout will be scrutinised by the Committee to ensure that it does not reward windfall gains, and reflects the performance
of the Company and the experience of stakeholders over the period. Factors which the Committee may consider in making
this assessment include (but are not limited to): the averall single figure of remuneration for each Executive Director in the
year of vesting, the proportion of LTIP value accounted for by share price appreciation, the shape of the market recovery
following Covid-19, absolute TSR levels as compared to historical FTSE and sector norms, financial and non-financiat
indicators, and how our shareholders, employees, customers and other stakeholders have fared over the period.

Deferred annual bonus

In accordance with the Remuneration Policy, and having already achieved their respective share ownership guidelines,
Messrs, Smith and Lister received £60,805 and £49,492 of their annual bonuses earned in respect of the 2019 financial
year in the form of Unite shares which are deferred for a period of two years, as follows:

Shares over which Market price at

Executive Date of grant awards granted date of awarg Date of vest
Richard Smith 27 February 2020 5,067 1,200p 27 February 2022
Joe Lister 27 February 2020 4124 1,200p 27 February 2022

SAYE

During 2020, joe Lister entered into a new savings contract under the SAYE plan. Details of all cutstanding awards under
this plan are included in the table on page 148.

Exit payments made in the year (audited)
There have been no exit payments during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Payments to past Directors (audited)

There have been no payments (2019 £Nil) in excess of the de minimis threshold to former Directors during the year ended
31 December 2020 in respect of their former roles as Directors. The Company has set a de minimis threshold of £5,000
under which it would not report such payments.

Implementation of Executive Director remuneration policy for 2021
Base salary
There will be no change to Executive Director salaries with effect from 1 January 2021:

Base salary from Base salary from Percentage
Executive 1January 2020 1)anuary 2023 increase
Richard Smith £472,313 £472,313 0%
Joe Lister £384,441 £384,441 0%

Reflecting our commitment to being an accredited Real Living Wage employer, entry level salaries will increase in line with
the rates set by the Living Wage Foundation (¢.1% in London and ¢.2% in the rest of the UK).

Pension

Executive Directors will continue to receive a pension scheme contribution, a cash allowance of equivalent cost to the
company or a combination of both. With effect from 1 fanuary 2021, total employer pension contributions will be reduced
to an equivalent of up to 17% of salary for both Executive Directors. Further reductions over the next two years will align
both Executive Directors with the wider workforce,

Performance Related Annual Bonus

Corporate measures Wegt.
Financial (70%) Adjusted EPS 25%
TAR per share 25%
Loan to Value (LTV) 20%
Non-financial (30%) Customer satisfaction 10%
University reputation 10%
GRESB rating 10%
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

For 2021, the maximum bonus opportunity for each executive will be 140% of salary, with threshold and target
performance paying 30% and 50% of maximum respectively under each performance measure.

The financial element of the bonus wiil be based on a combination of EPS, Total Accounting Return and Loan to Value (LTV),
with the latter replacing net debt to EBITDA ratio. The decision to revert to LTV (which had been used as an annual bonus
measure until 2014) reflects the Board's view that this measure is better understood by internal participants, more widely
used by the investment community to measure Unite's performance, and better reflects our focus on business resilience
and balance sheet strength foffowing Covid-19.

The non-financial measures will be split equally between customer satisfaction, University reputation and a metric

based on Unite’s Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (GRESE) rating, with the latter replacing individual / team
objectives. The use of the GRESB metric represents a first step in introducing £5G metrics into Unite’s incentives and
reflects the recent announcement of the Group’s ambitious new Sustainability Strategy which was approved by the Board
in 2020. GRESB is an externally-assessed benchmark of the ESG performance of real estate assets which the Committee
believes will lend itself to an objective and robust performance target for the year. Reflecting another of the Group’s
sustainability objactives linked to ‘providing opportunities for all’, the Committee will, in approving outcomes under

this element of the annual bonus, also take into account performance against a range of indicators linked to Diversity &
Inclusion, Further work around a suite of sustainability KPis targets and timescales is due to be completed during 2021 and
may inform changes to the way we target ESG performance in 2022 and beyond.

For both the financial and non-financial elements, proposed target levels have been set 10 be challenging relative to
business plan, although the specific targets are deemed to be commercially sensitive at this time. It is the Committee's
current intention to disclose these targets retrospectively in the 2021 Directors' Remuneration Report.

If a participant has met their shareholding guidelines at the time the 2021 banus is due to be paid, any amounts due in
excess of 100% of salary will be deferred in Unite shares for a period of two years, with the remainder paid in cash. If a
participant has not met their shareholding guidelines, up to 50% of the amount payable witl cantinue to be satisfied by an
allocation of shares in the Company deferred for three years. Clawback and malus provisions apply to all awards.

LTIP

For 2021, the LTIP will continue to operate on the same basis as in recent years. Executive Directors will each receive an
award equivalent to a maximum of 200% of salary detivered through a combination of the PSP and ESOS, with the final
level of vesting dependent on the achievement of three-year performance targets relating to EPS, TAR and TSR.

In (ine with the approach taken in 2020, the Committee will retain overarching discretion to approve the vesting of these
awards and wiil carefully scrutinise overall outcomes to ensure that they reflect the performance of the Company and the
experience of stakeholders over the period, and do not reward windfall gains. Factors which the Committee may consider in
making this assessment include {but are not limited to): the overall single figure of remuneration for each Executive Director
in the year of vesting, the proportion of LTIP value accounted for by share price appreciation, the shape of the market
recovery following Covid-19, absolute TSR levels as compared to historical FTSE and sector norms, financial and non-financial
indicators, and how our shareholders, employees, customers and other stakeholders have fared over the period.

Measure Weight Targets

2023 Adjusted EPS 1/3 To be determined and disclosed within six months of grant.
TAR per share ranking vs. the FTSE350 Real Estate 1/3 0% vesting for performance below median;

Supersector Index (2021-2023) 25% vesting for performance in line with median;

100% vesting for performance at upper gquartile or above;
Straight-line vesting between these points.

TSR ranking vs. the FTSE350 Real Estate Supersector 1/3 0% vesting for performance below median;

Index (2021-2023) 25% vesting for performance in line with median;
100% vesting far perfarmance at upper quartile or above;
Straight-line vesting between these points.

Due to continued uncertainty and the implications this has for being able to set credible and appropriately stretching
targets, the Committee has taken the decision to delay target setting for the Adjusted EPS element of the award. The
Committee expects that it will be in a position to set and dis¢lose targets for this one-third of the award within six months
of grant, and will provide details of the agreed targets via market announcement once determined.
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TSR and TAR targets are based on Unite’s relative performance, with threshold and maximum vesting requiring
performance in line with the median and upper quartile ranked canstituent respectively, in line with market best practice.

Any awards vesting for performance will be subject to an additional two-year holding period, during which time
clawback provisions will also apply. Further details of the grant date and number of interests awarded will be disclosed
in next year's report,

Implementation of Non-Executive Director remuneration policy for 2021

Chairman and Non-Executive Director Fees

There will be no change to Non-Executive Director fees with effect from 1 January 2021, save for an increase to the
additional fee for the Chair of the Health and Safety Committee, which will be aligned with the fees for other Board
Committee Chairs to reflect the importance of this role and Committee to Unite's operations. We're establishing a
Sustainability Committee and there will be a (new) Chair fee of £10,300 pa - same as other Committee Chair fees.

Richard Huntingford will succeed Phil White as Chairman of the Board with effect from 1 April 2021. His fee as Chairman of
the Board has been set at £225,000 per annum reflecting his experience, a review of the time commitment required of the
Chairman role at Unite, and the increase in size and complexity of the Group in recent years.

Position 2020 fees 2021 fees
Base fees

£199,220
Chairman Note 1 £199,220 £225,000
Non-Executive Director £49,440 £49,440
Additional fees
Senior Independent Director £5,820 £5,820
Audit Committee Chair £10,300 £10,300
Remuneration Cammittee Chair £10,300 £10,300
Nomination Committee Chair Note 2 nfa n/a
Health and Safety Committee Chair £7,285 £10,300
Sustainahility Committee Chair £10,300

1. Richard Huntingford will succeed Phil White as Chairman of the Board with effect fram 1 April 2021. His fee as Chairman of the Board has been set at £225 000 per annum.

2. Roleis undertaken by the Chairman cf the Board, with no any additional fee payable in respect of chairing this Committee.

Directors’ interests (audited)

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2020 is set out below. None of the Directors has a beneficial interest in the shares of any other Group
company. Since 31 December 2020, there have been no changes in the Directors’ interests in shares.

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares

of 25p each at of 25p each at

31 December 2020 31 Decemhber 2012

R Smith 232,361 226,614
J Lister 464,875 459,128
P White 15,290 13,566
E McMeikan 7,721 6,572
R Paterson 8,312 7163
R Akers 11,724 2,000
| Beato 1,724 a
S Pearce 1,149 0
T Jackson 0 0
55mith 0 n/a
R Huntingford 10,000 n/a
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Details of Executive Directors’ interests in share-based incentives are set out in the tables below.
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Share price information

As at 31 December 2020 the middle market price for ordinary shares in the Company was 1,045p per share. During the
course of the year, the market price of the Company's shares ranged from 634.5p t6 1,339p per ordinary share.

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (audited)
The table below shows the shareholding of each Executive Director against their respective shareholding requirement as

at 31 December 2020:

Intarests

outrignt S eimaparid o purt condiany_ STArehaldng - curret

Shares / nil- Options / Shares / nil- Options / % of salary / % of salary/ Requirement

cost options HMRC optians cost options HMRC options hase fee base fee maet?
Note 1 Note 2

R Smith 232,361 247,316 1,671 312,831 2,042 250% 806% Yes

J Lister 464,875 203,266 1,671 254,575 2,042 200% 1,556% Yes
P White 15,290 80%
E McMeikan 7.721 163%
R Paterson 8,312 176%
R Akers 11,724 248%
| Beato 1,724 36%
S Pearce 1,149 24%
T Jackson 0 0%
S Smith 4 05
R Huntingford 10,000 211%

1. Includes shares subject to a holding period under the 17IP and deferred bonus shares, where applicable,

2. Based on share price as at 31 Recember 2020 of 1,045.0p. Shares subject to deferral 7 holding periods are taken on a‘net of tax’ basis for the purposes of the current

shareholding calculation.

Executive Directors’ sharehoiding requirements

250%

Joe Lister

|
|
{ Richard Smith
|
?
|
| A
|
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Directors’ interests in shares and options under Unite incentives (audited)

Deferred bonus

Interests held
at1 January

Granted during

Lapsed during

Vested during

Interests held
at 31 December

End of deferral

Exacutive 2020 the year the year the year 2020 period
Joe Lister - 4,124 - - 4,124 27.02.22
Richard Smith - 5,067 - - 5,067 27.02,22
LTIP award>
Interests
Interests held Interests outstanding at Period of
at1)anuary awarded during ESOS exercise Interestsvested Interestslapsed 31 December qualifying
Executive Flan 2020 the year price durlng the year' duringthe year 2020 conditions
PSP 111,099 - - 107,877 3.222 - 10.04.17
ESOS 934 - 642.0p 906 28 - -10.04.20
psp 89,732 - - - - 85,732 10.04.18
Joe ESOS 739 - 811.0p - - 739 -10.04.21
Lister PSP 69,333 - - - - 69,333 24.07.19
ESDS 557 - 1076.0p - - 557 -24.07.22
PSP - 95,510 - - - 95,510 23.04.20
ESOS - 746 803.5p - - 746 -23.04.23
272,394 96,256 108,783 3,250 256,617
PSP 136,520 - - 132,560 3,960 - 10.04.17
ESOS 934 - 042.0p 906 28 - -10.04.20
PSP 110,258 - - - - 110,258 10.04.18
Richard ESOS 739 - 811.0p - - 739 -16.04.21
Smith psp 85,190 - - - - 85,190 24.07.19
ESGCS 557 - 1076.0p - - 557 -24.07.22
PSP - 117,383 - - - 117,383 23.04.20
ESGS - 746 803.5p - - 746 -23.04.23
334,198 118,129 133,466 3,988 314,873

1. All awards vesting for performance during the year are subject to an additional two-year holding period.
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SAYE

Options held at

31 December

Options heldat  Granted during Exercised Option price 2020
Executive 1January 2020 the year duringthe year per share Note 1 Maturity date
1,617 - - 556.4p 1,617 01.12.20
Joe Lister 1,266 - - 710.8p 1,266 01.12.21
- 1,182 - 760.8p 1,182 01,12.23
Richard Smith 2,122 - - B848.0p 2,122 01.12.22

1, As atyear-end, Joe Lister held 1,617 options under the 2017 scherme which had matured but not yet been exercised,
The highest, lowest and closing share prices for 2020 are shown on page 146.

Details of the qualifying performance conditions in relation to the above referred-to awards made in prior years are set
out on previous pages or in earlier reports,

Awards made in prior years took the form of a combination of nil cost options under the PSP and HMRC-approved options
under the ESOS. No variations have been made to the terms or conditions of any awards.

The fair value in respect of Directors’ share options and LTIP awards recognised in the Income Statement is as follows:

2020 2019
Executive £ £
Joe Lister 278,839 301,708
Richard Smith 342,046 369,182

The Directors’ Remuneration Report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and signed on its behalf by:

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair, Remuneration Committee
16 March 2021
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had received
notifications from the following companies and institutions
of themselves and their clients in 3% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company. There have been no significant
changes since that date through to 16 March 2021.

Shareholder Percentage of share capital

Canada Pension Plan Investment Board 18.23
BlackRock Inc 7.56
APG Asset Management NV 6.67
Standard Life Aberdeen 5.31
The Vanguard Group Inc 4.01
Royal London Asset Management Ltd 3.36
MFS Investment Management 315

Share capital

At the date of this report, there are 398,208,608 ordinary
shares of 2bp each inissue, all of which are fully paid-up
and quoted on the tondon Stock Exchange.

During the year and through to the date of this report, the
following numbers of ordinary shares of 25p each were
allotted and issued as follows:

+ 34,502,872 - June 2020 share placing;

« 83,634 - pursuant to the exercise of options under
The Unite Group PLC Savings - Related Share Option
Scheme; and

« 30,220 - pursuant to the exercise of options under the
Approved Scheme.

The rights attaching to the Company's ordinary shares, as
well as the powers of the Company's Directors, are set out
in the Company's Articles of Association.

There are no restrictions on the transfer or voting rights of
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (other than
those which may be imposed by law from time to time or
as set out in the Company’s Articles of Association).

The Directors have no authority to buy-back the
Company's shares.

In accordance with the Market Abuse Regulations, certain
employees are required to seek approval to deal in the
Company's shares.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that may result in restrictions on the
transfers of securities and/or voting rights. No person
holds securities in the Company carrying special rights
with regard to control of the Company. Unless expressly
specified to the contrary, the Company’s Articles of
Association may be amended by special resolution

of the shareholders.

Prior consultation with shareholders before the
June 2020 share placing

Prior to launch of the June 2020 share placing (the Placing),
the Cempany consulted with a significant number of its
shareholders to gauge their feedback on the terms of the
Placing. Feedback from this consultation was supportive
and as a result the Board chose to proceed with the Placing.
The Placing was structured as an accelerated bockbuild

to minimise execution and market risk. The Board

applied the principles of pre-emption when allocating the
Placing Shares to those investors that participated in the
Placing. The Placing Shares were issued pursuant to the
allotment and disapplication of pre-emption authorities
that shareholders granted to the Company at the Annual
General Meeting on 7 May 2020.

The net proceeds of £300 million were raised through

the Placing. To date, we have secured two development
schemes since the Placing (see page 43). We are also
targeting a further pipeline of developments and University
partnerships to deploy the remaining proceeds. The
Piacing Price of 870.0 pence per placing share represented
a discount of 3.1 per cent to the middie market closing
price of 897.5 pence on 24 June 2020, The Placing resulted
in an increase of 20.86% in issued share capital over the
three-year period preceding the issue. Prior to all placings
over this three year period, the Company consulted with a
significant number of its shareholders and then raised and
utilised the placing proceeds for specific reasons explained
in the placing terms of these respective placings.

Authority to issue shares

The Directars may only issue shares if authorised to do so
by the Articles of Association or the shareholders in general
meeting. At the Company's Annual General Meeting held
on 7 May 2020, shareholders granted an authority to

the Directors to allot ordinary shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £30,299,637 (which represented one-
third of the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 March 2020). In accordance with
guidelines issued by the Investment Association, this
resolution also granted the Directors authority to allot
further equity securities up to the aggregate amount of
£30,299,637 (representing one-third of the nominal value
of the issued share capita! of the Company as at 31 March
2020). This additional authority was only permitted for
fully pre-emptive rights issues. As at 31 December 2020,
the shares that had been allotted were to satisfy awards
under the Company’s share schemes and the June 2020
placing. As this authority is due to expire on 13 May 2021,
shareholders will be asked to renew and extend the
authority, given to the Directors at the last Annual General
Meeting, to allot shares in the Company, or grant rights to
subscribe for, or to convert any security into, shares in the
Company for the purposes of Section 551 of the Companies
Act 2006. Further details on the resolution will be provided
in the Notice of this year's Annual General Meeting and its
explanatory notes.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

DIRECTORS" REPORT CONTINUED

Disapplication of pre-emption rights

If the Directors wish to allot new shares and other equity
securities, or sell treasury shares, for cash {other than in
connection with an employee share scheme) company law
requires that these shares are offered first to shareholders
in proportion to their existing haldings. There may be
occasions, however, when the Directors need the flexibility
ta finance business opportunities by the issue of shares
without a pre-emptive offer to existing shareholders. This
cannot be done under the Companies Act 2006 unless the
shareholders have first waived their pre-emption rights.
At the forthcoming Annual General Megting, shareholders
will be asked to pass two special resolutions to grant the
Directors powers to disapply shareholders’ pre-emption
rights under certain circumstances. Further details an the
resolutions will be provided in the Notice of this year’s
Annual Genera! Meeting.

Change of control

All of the Company’s share schemes contain provisions
relating to a change of control. Outstanding rewards and
options would normally vest and become exercisable

on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of

any performance conditions, Other than certain of the
Group’s banking facilities, there are no other significant
agreements to which the Company is a party that affect,
alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover bid, Nor are there any
agreements between the Company and its Directars or
employees providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a takeover bid.

Going Concern and viability statement

The going concern statement and viability statement are
set out on pages 172 & 173 and page 71 respectively and
are incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approva! of
the Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and each Birector has taken
all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director
to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Campany’s auditor is
aware of thatinformation. This confirmation is given and
should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of
section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.
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Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Company has procedures in place for managing
conflicts of interest, A Director must notify the Chairman
(and the Chairman notifies the Chief Executive} if he/she
becomes aware that he/she, or any of his/her connected
parties, may have an interest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Company cr the Group. Directors have
a continuing duty to update any changes to these conflicts.

Political donations

No political danations, contributions or expenditure were
made during the year ending 2020.

Indemnities

There are no qualifying third party indemnity provisions
or qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions for the
benefit of any of the Directors.

Research and development

The Company is not currently carrying on any activities
in the field of research and development.

Branches outside the UK

The Company does not have any branches outside of
the UK.

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that
Directors may be appainted by the existing Directors or
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Any person
appointed by the Directors will hold office only until the
next general meeting, notice of which is first given after
their appointment and will then be eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. A Director may be removed by the
Company as provided for by applicable law and shall vacate
office in certain circumstances as set out in the Articles
of Association. In addition the Company may, by ordinary
resolution, remove a Director before the expiration of
his/her peried of office and, subject to the Articles of
Assaciation, may by ardinary resclution appaint another
person to be a Director instead. There is no requirement
for a Directer to retire on reaching any age.



Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8 4R

For the purposes of LR 9.8.4C, the information required to be disclosed by LR 9.8.4R can be found in the following

locations within the Annual Report:

Information required under LR 9.8.4R

Reference

m Amount of interest capitalised and tax relief

(2) Publication of unaudited financial information

4 Details of long term incentive schemes

(5) Waiver of emoluments by a Director

8) Waiver of future emoluments by a Director

(7) Non pre-emptive issues of equity for cash

8) Item (7) in relation to major subsidiary undertakings
9} Parent participation in a placing by a listed subsidiary

(10) Contracts of significance

(11) Provision of services by a controller shareholder
(12) Shareholder waiver of dividends

(13) Shareholder waiver of future dividends

(14) Agreements with controliing shareholders

Note 3.1, page 187
n/a

Pages 138 and 144 & 145
Pages 122

n/a

Pages 12 and 149
n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

All the informatian referenced above is incarporated by reference into the Directors’ Report.

Other information incorporated by reference
The following information in the Strategic Reportis
incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference:
+ Results and Dividend on page 1

+ Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy Consumption
Disclosures on page 61

+ Financial instruments and financial risk management
on page 64 and Section 4 of the notes to the financial
statements on page 199

* Future developments on page 25

= Employment of disabled persons/Employee
invalvement on page 57

= Workforce engagement on page 94

* Engagement with customers, partners and others
on page 36

The Corporate Governance report on pages 82 to 151,
the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities on page 152
and details of post balance sheet events on page 216 are
incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Management Report

This Directors’ Report together with the Strategic Report
and other sections from the Annuat Report forms the
Management report for the purposes of DTR 4.1.8 R.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
at the Company's registered office at South Quay, Temple
Back, Bristol, BS1 6FL at 9.30am on 13 May 2021. Farmal
notice of the meeting is given separately and is available
on the Company’s website at https:/www.unite-group.
co.uk/investors.

This report was approved by the Board on 16 March 2021
and signed on its behalf by

Christopher Szpojnarowicz
Company Secretary
16 March 2021
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts and the Group and Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and
Parent Company financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law they are required to prepare the
Group financial statements in accordance with [FRSs as
adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to
prepare the Parent Company financial statements on the
same basis.

uUnder company law, the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
Parent Company and of their profit or (oss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company
financial statements, the Directors are required {o:

+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

+ Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

+ State whether they have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company will continue in
business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parent Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They have general responsibility for taking such steps

as are reasonahly open to them to safeguard the assets

of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

152

Under applicable Jaw and regulations, the Directors
are alsa responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that comply with that law and
those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in

the UK governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, the names of whom are set out
on pages 84 to 87, confirms that to the best of his or her
knowledge:

+ The Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy

= Thefinancial statements, prepared in accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole

« The Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings inciuded
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

R S Smith
Director
16 March 2021

J] Lister
Director
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of the Unite Groug PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In our opinion:

*» the financial statements of The Unite Group PLC (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

¢ the consolidated income statement;

+ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

* the consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets;

» the consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity;

» the consolidated and Parent Company statements of cash flows; and

* therelated sections 1t0 9,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable
law, international accounting standards in canformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the

Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatienal Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard
as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. The non-audit services provided to the Group and Parent Company for the year are disclosed in section

2.6 to the financial statements. We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
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3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were;
«  Going concern;
+ Investment property and development property valuation; and

*  Accounting for Joint Ventures.
Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

o Newly identified @ Increased level of risk @ Simitar level of risk

Materiality

The materiality that we used far the Group financial statements was £32.5m which was determined on the basis of
nel assets. However, we use a lower materiality threshold ot £4.6m for balances which impact EPRA earnings.

Scoping

Qur Group audit scope comprises the audit of The Unite Group PLC as well as Group's joint ventures: The Unite UK
Student Accommodation Fund (‘USAF') and The London Student Accommodation Vehicle (‘LSAV'). All audit work was
completed by the group audit team.

Significant changes
inour approach

We na longer consider Liberty Living plc (Liberty Living') to be a separate component following the completion of
its full integration into the Group's systems, process and contrels; we have not therefore audited Liberty Living as a
separate component. Changes to our key audit matters are setin section 5 below,

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting is discussed in section 5.1,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and Parent Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In relation to the reporting on how the group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material
to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

To the members of the Unite Group PLC

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Group has a number of borrowing facilities which contain covenants that require the Group to maintain specific
financial ratios. As a result of Covid-19 the outlook remains uncertain, and there are a range of potential outcomes
which are wide-ranging and unknown and therefore judgements about future potential financial impacts are inherently
uncertain. On this basis, in the year we have identified going concern as a new key audit matter.

In the prior year our report inciuded key matters relating to REIT compliance and acquisition accounting in respect of
Liberty Living. REIT compliance is no longer identified as a key audit matter as we have not historically identified any
issues with the Groug’s compliance with the REIT regime and it has now been a number years following the Group's
conversion to a REIT. The acquisition accounting of Liberty Living was specific to the prior year.

5.1. Going concern @

Key audit
matter
description

In assessing whether the financial statements should be prepared on the going cancern basis, the Directors are
required to consider all available information about the future for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements. In conducting their assessment, the Directors have concluded that there are no
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group's or Parent Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern over this 12 month period.

At 31 December 2020 the Group had c.£1,689m of borrowings drawn down across different facilities, as well as available
undrawn facilities of £50.0m and a further overdraft facility of £10.0m available. There is liguidity headroom within

the Group's forecast across the period of assessment for going concern. The borrowing facilities contain covenants

that require the Group to maintain specific financial ratios and the focus of our work has been on forecast covenant
compliance. In addition, at 31 December 2020 the Group held net cash and cash equivalents of £338.3m.

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is described on pages 10 to 12. The Group's properties have remained open and
operational throughout the pandermic. However, following the introductions of local and national lockdowns most
UK Universities during 2020 and also in early 2021 suspended face-to-face teaching; this has adversely impacted the
occupation of the Group's properties. Furthermore, the Group released students from their tenancies in the summer
term of 2020 and has offered students further tenancy concessions in early 2021. Together, these factors have
adversely affected the trading performance of the Group.

The Directors have updated their forecasts to take into account, to the extent possible given the current uncertain
environment, the impact of Covid-19 on current and future trading performance, net debt and liquidity. As at the
date of this repert, the outlaok as a result of Covid-19 remains uncertain, and there are a range of potential outcomes
which are wide-ranging and unknown and therefore judgements about future potential financial impacts are
inherently uncertain; as a result, this is an area where potential fraud could occur. In particular, there is significant
judgement in the Directors’ assessment of the length of time over which the impact on performance and cash inflows
might be felt, particularly with regards to accupation of its properties. Occupation of its properties is affected by the
ac¢tions of both the UK government and Universities which is outside of the Group’s control.

As outlined in their statement on going concern on pages 172 and 173, the Directors have considered different
scenarios in assessing the impact of Covid-19 including a base case and a reasonable worse case. In addition, the
Directors have modelled a reverse stress test to assess what would need to cccur for the Group to breach its most
sensitive financial covenant. This covenant is for the Interest Cover Ratio ('|CR’) which should not be below a range
of 1.5 to 2.0 depending on the borrowing facility. The assumptions in the reverse stress test model reduced income
fram the base case te such a level that the Directors determine that the probability of them accurring is remote. As
set out on page 173 the Group is required to collect less than 10% of rents due or outstanding for the balance of the
2020/21 academic year to maintain covenant compliance.

This is below of that modeiled in the reasonable worse case scenaria, Should the impact of the pandemic on trading
conditions be more prolonged or severe than currently forecast by the Directors under its reasonable worse case, the
Group would need to implement additional operational or financial measures.

As a result of the current and potential future impact of Covid-19 or the Group and the uncertainties regarding
covenant compliance forecasting, we identified a key audit matter related to going concern due to the significant
Judgement required to conclude that there is not a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s or Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Further details of the judgements considered and the conclusions are included in Section 1 of the financial
statements and as part of the Audit Committee dischosure of significant items on page 112.
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How the scope
of aur audit
responded to
the key audit

We performed the following audit procedures which consider the impact of the uncertainty of the Covid-19 pandemic
on the gaing concern assessment:

Obtained an understanding of the relevant centrols over the going concern process;
Challenged the revenue assumptions, for the cutturn of the 2020/21 academic year and the assumptions for

matter L .
the 2021/22 academic year, which included the following:
- Assessed the Group's forward sales bookings for next academic year;
- Assessed UCAS application data for the next academic year;
- Agreed a sample of nomination contracts (NOMs} where a University is contracted to take an agreed number
of beds in a property, for the current and next academic years to supporting documentation;
- Assessed the contract enforceability of the NOMs agreements;
- Assessed Universities’ financial positions, including vouching any debtor positions; and
- Held discussions with internal Deloitte Higher Education sector specialists to assess tha reasonableness of
the assumptions used against the Higher Education sector data.
* Challenged the cost assumptions within the forecasts, including consideration of previous incurred costs and
the effectiveness of any cost savings,;
+ Challenged the reasonableness of the scenario analysis performed and reverse stress test with reference to the
income and cost assumptions;
« Determined the Group's liquidity and headroom positions with reference to borrowing facility agreements;
+ Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the models used to prepare the Group's forecast and related scenarios;
+ Assessed the reasonableness of key mitigations available; and
+ Assessed the sufficiency of the Group's disclosure concerning the going concern basis and uncertainties arising.
Key We are satisfied that the directors’ base case forecasts, reasonable worse case and reverse stress test scenarios
observations indicate that the Group has sufficient financial resources over the going concern period and that they are not forecast

to breach their key financizl covenants over the pericd of assessment.

We are satisfied that the Directors’ conclusion that there are no material uncertainties over the Group and Parent
Company’s ahility to continue as a going concern is appropriate. The associated disclosures set out on pages 172 and
173 are in accordance with the accounting standards and we censider them to be appropriate.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

To the members of the Unite Group PLC

5. Key audit matters continued

5.2. Investment property and development property valuation 6

Key audit
matter
description

The Group's principal assets are investment properties (2020: £3,716.5m; 2019: £3,517.3m) and investment
properties under development (2020: £187.2; 2019: £411.8m). The Group also holds investments in its joint ventures,
USAF and LSAV, with their principal assets also being investment properties. The investment properties are carried
at fair value based on an appraisal by the Group's independent external valuers. Valuations are carried out at six-
monthly intervals for the Group in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (‘RICS') Valuation -
Professional Standards (the ‘Red Book’), taking into account transactional evidence during the year.

The valuation is underpinned by a nurmber of estimates and assumptions as it reguires the estimation of property
yieids, rental growth, occupancy and property management costs. Due to the impact of Covid-19 there is more
uncertainty in these assumptions compared with the pricr year. A small change in these assumptions could have a
significant impact on the valuation of properties and there is an associated fraud risk due to the risk of management
override of controls relating to the valuation process. With regards to the valuation of the USAF and LSAV praperties,
small changes could also have a significant impact on a key input to the calculation of 2 performance fee which could
be recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020 if the hurdle rate is achieved as this is based on the net asset
values of the funds.

With regards to the investment properties under development, additional estimate is required to ferecast discounted
cash flows with a deduction for construction costs to complete.

Refer to page 112 (Audit Committee Statement) and section 3.1: Wholly owned property assets and section 3.4
Investments in joint ventures. Significant accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty disclosures relating to
Irvestment property and development property valuaticen are set out in Section 1.

Howv the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

We performed testing on the property valuations and assessed the estimates that had been made. This work
included:

* Obtained an understanding and tested the relevant controls over the investment property and development
property valuation process;

* Understood and challenged the assumptions used in relation to key drivers such as rental income and growth,
occupancy, yields and praperty management costs with reference to the trends at the end of the year and the
following year's budget. Our assessment as to the appropriateness of the assumptions included consideration
of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic upon forecast occupancy and rental income;

+ Challenged the accuracy, completeness and consistency of the infarmation provided to the external valuers
which included testing a sample of income and tenancy data back to Group held information;

+  Metwith the Group's external valuers to understand the assumptions being taken and consistency of the
estimates with prior year. We also assessed the competency and capability of the Group's valuers;

* Involved our valuation specialists within our Deloitte Real Estate team to benchmark the assumptions used
against market data, including relevant transactions;

*  Reconciled the external valuation reports to underlying financial records;

+ Assessed the appropriateness of the external valuers approach with respect to replacement cladding and the
impact on valuations and Unite's valuation related disclosures;

» Assessed the Group's develepment appraisal process through meeting with the development team and
assessing the forecast cost te complete against budget and substantive testing of costs incurred to date.
We challenged the appropriateness of cost to complete information and reconciled the valuation reports to
underlying financial records; and

+ Assessed the sufficiency of the Group's valuation disclosures, including the related sensitivities.

Key
observations

We are satisfied with the approach and methodalogy adopted in valuing the property portfolio and consider the
investment property and development property valuations to be suitable for inclusion in the financial statements at
31 December 2020,
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5.3. Accounting for Joint ventures Q

Key audit matter
description

Asignificant proportion of the Group's assets is held within USAF and LSAY, jointly owned entities that are
accounted for under the equity method as joint ventures (2020: £849.0m; 2016: £875.2m), on the basis that Unite
does not cantrol the entities. At 31 December 2020 Unite had a 22% (2019: 22%) ownership of USAF and 50.0%
(2019; 50,0%) ownership of LSAV, and acts as manager of both jeint venture vehicles,

Due to the complexity of the contractual arrangements, and the Group’s role as manager of the jointventure
vehicles, the assessment of control involves judgements around a number of significant factors, particularly with
regard to USAF, USAF is a multi-investor fund with an Advisory Committee and the Group's ownership stake is
subject to change. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, there is a
need to assess cantrol with regards to the ability to direct relevant activities, to have exposure to variable returns
and the ability to use power to affect returns at each reporting period. Management have assessed {in line with
the priar year) that the Group does nat have control over USAF and LSAV, but has joint control. Conseguently
Managerment has accounted for the joint ventures under the eguity method rather than consolidating them within
the Group's financial statements.

Refer to page 112 (Audit Committee Statement) and section 3.4: Investments in joint ventures. Significant
accounting judgements disclosure relating to accounting for joint ventures are set outin Section 1,

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures on this area focused on assessing the activities of the businesses, understanding the
contractual agreements in place and identifying the methodclogy applied by Management in reaching their
business decisions in crder t¢ consider the appropriateness of the classification of these arrangements as joint
ventures in accordance with the requirerents of IFRS.

With regards to both USAF and LSAV, we have:

* Obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the accounting for joint ventures process;

» Assessed the key activities and how they impact the returns to the Group from the funds and challenged
Management's own consideration of these factors in their application of IFRS, including whether there was
evidence of contradictory evidence;

* Assessed the Group’s monitoring of its role and the three key factors relating to control in accordance with
the judgement required under IFRS 10. This included whether control had been exercised; and

»  Reviewed the fund agreement in the year to confirm that there have been no changes.

Given the particular focus on USAF, we have:

+  Assessed the role of the USAF Advisory Committee and whether the Group has the sole power to direct the
activities that are likely to most significantly affect the returns of USAF in the future, and therefore whether
Unite does have control of USAF; and

+ Evaluated the impact of the percentage ownership on a regular basis.

Key observations

We are satisfied with Management’s canclusicn that there has been no changes to the structure and the role
played by the Group as investor and asset / development manager or to the fund agreements in the year.

We are satisfied with Management’s conclusicn that the Group dees not have control of the Joint Ventures.
Therefore, treatment as joint ventures is considered to be appropriate.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

To the members of the Unite Group PLC

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows;

Group financlal statements

Parent company financial statements

Materiality

£32.5m (2019: £31.0m)

EPRA Earnings impacting measures: £4.6m
{2019: £5.5m)

£31.2m{2019: £29.5m)

Basis for
determining
materiality

Materiality: 1% (2019: 1%) of net assels

EPRA Earnings impacting measures: 5%
(2019: 5%) of EPRA Earnings

1% {2019: 1%) of Net Assets

Rationale for the
benchmark applied

We determined materiality for the Group based on
1% of net assets as the balance sheetis considered
ta be a key driver of a property group.

In addition to net assets, we consider the EPRA

earnings measure to be a critical financial performance
measure for the Group and we have applied a lower

threshold based on 5% of EPRA earnings for testing

of those items impacting EPRA earnings.

As the parent holding company the principal activity is
to hold the investments in subsidiaries. Therefore, the
net assets balance is considered to be the key driver
of the company’s performance and the most relevant
henchmark for materiality.

Materiality

Net assets
£3,260.0m

@ Netassets

{0 Group materiality

Group materiality
£32.5m

Audit Committee
reporting threshold
£1.60m

£97.3m

@ EPRAEarnings

EPRA Earnings impacting measures

EPRA earnings

") Group EPRA Earnings Impacting
Measures materiality

Group EPRA Earnings
impacting measures
materiality

£4.6m

Audit Committee
reporting threshold
£0.2m
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6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group and Parent Company performance materiality was set at 70% (2019: 70%) of Group and Parent Company
materiality. In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

= our risk assessment, including our assessment of the Group's overall control environment, including the impact of
Covid-19, and that we consider it appropriate to rely on controls over a number of business processes; and

*» our past experience of the audit, which has indicated a low number of corrected and uncorrected misstatements
identified in prior periods.
6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £1.6m (2015:
£1.5m) and for EPRA impacting measures we would report differences in excess of £231,000 (2019: £275,000), as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. identification and scoping of compenents

Qur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the group level,

The Group is audited by one audit team, led by the Senior Statutory Auditor. The audit has been performed remotely due to
the impact of Covid-19 measures. We have continued to engage with staff at the Group's Bristol head office, as the books and
records for each entity within the Group are maintained at this location. The Group only operates within the United Kingdom
- this includes The Unite Group PLC and its related subsidiaries, as well as the two joint ventures, USAF and LSAV.

We audit all of the results of the Group together with USAF and LSAV, for the purposes of our group audit. We have also
tested the consolidation process to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant risks of material misstatement

of the aggregated financial information.

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment

From our understanding of the relevant controls we took a controls reliance approach in the following business cycles:

* Investment property; and

* Revenue.

Reliance on general IT controls was taken for the Group, excluding the legacy Living Liberty systems which were retired in
July 2020 following Liberty Living’s full integration into Unite's systems.

The Group uses the following application systems for the recording and reporting of its financial statements:

» Oracle EBS - general ledger and room booking system;

« Portal Agent Desktop (PAD) - room booking portal used by students and implemented on top of Oracle EBS and
therefore where revenue transactions are initiated; and

+ HFM - used to prepare the Group consolidation at the Group’s Head Office.

We involved IT specialists to assess the relevant controls over the three systems set out above. Working with IT specialists we
identified and assessed relevant risks arising from each relevant IT system and the supporting infrastructure technologies
based on the role of application in the Group’s flow of transactions. We obtained an understanding of the IT environment

as part of these risk assessment procedures. Relevant controls were identified and tested to address those IT risks and
involving our IT specialists we performed the following procedures:

+ Determined whether each general IT control, individually or in combination with other controls, was appropriately
designed to address the risk;

» Obtained sufficient evidence to assess the operating effectiveness of the controls across the full audit period; and

» Performed additional procedures where required if there were exceptions to the operation of those contrals.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

To the members of the Unite Group PLC

8. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9, Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsihilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditar’s report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design pracedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance

with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

» the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business perfarmance including the design of the
Group's remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

« results of our enquiries of Management, internal audit, the Group’s internal legal counsel and the Audit Committee
about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities;
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* any matters we identified having chtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures
relating to:

- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of
non-compliance;

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud;

- theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

* the matters discussed among the audit engagement team involving relevant internal specialists, including tax,
valuations and IT specialists regarding how and whiere lraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential
indicators of fraud.

As aresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for
fraud and identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: going concern, owing to significant judgements
within the forecast period of assessment; investment property and development property valuation owing to the risk

of management override of controls relating to the valuation process; and revenue recognition owing to the risk of
management override of controls relating specifically to the Covid-19 discounts and refunds offered to students which
were processed outside of the Greup’s automated revenue system. in common with all audits under I1SAs (UK}, we are also
required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override,

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatery framework that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions
of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statemenits. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, Listing
Rules, and tax legislation,

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.
These included the Group’s compliance with health and safety matters, including fire safety and fire cladding.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified going concern and investment property and development property
valuation as key audit matters related to the potential risks of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains
the matter in more detail and also describes the specific procedures we performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition te the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

+ reviewed the financial statement disclosures and testing te supperting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

* made enquiries of management, the Audit Committee and in-house and external legal counsel concerning actual and
potential litigation and claims;

+ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud:;

* read minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing
correspondence with HMRC;

* inaddressing the identified revenue fraud risk relating to the Covid-19 discounts and refunds offered to students:
understoad the relevant controls over the processing and approval of the discounts and refunds; reconciled the manual
revenue adjustments to supparting schedules; and vouched a sample of refunds to tenancy agreement and cash refunds;
and

* in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative
of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the
normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members
including internal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

To the members of the Unite Group PLC

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our apinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and their envirenment obtainedin
the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

13. Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Group's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the
Corporate Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained
during the audit:

the directors’ staterment with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified set out on page 88;

the directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the
period is appropriate set out on page 71;

the directors’ statement an fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 89;

the board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on
page 88;

the section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems set out on page 89; and

the section describing the work of the Audit Committee set qut an pages 109 ta 114,
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14. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in cur opinion certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration have not been made or the part of the directors’' remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement
with the accounting recerds and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15. Other matters which we are required to address
15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appeinted by the Board 10 June 2015 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2015 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 6 years, covering the years
ended 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2020.

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance
with ISAs (UK).

16. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Stephen Craig (Senior statutory auditor)

For and Behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

16 March 2021
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Note £m £m
Rental income 2.4 1926.1 1341
Otherincome 24 19.5 221
Total revenue 215.6 156.2
Cost of sales (53.3) {32.1}
Expected credit losses (8.6) (0.9
Operating expenses (34.7) {26.6)
Results from operating activities 119.0 96.6
Loss on disposal of property (1.9) {7.3)
Net valuation (losses)/gains on property (owned and under development}) 31 (124.2) 154.8
Net valuation losses on property (leased) 31 {(11.2) 8.0
Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset - (384.7)
Integration/acquisition costs (9.2) {22.8)
Loss hefare net financing costs and share of joint venture {loss)/profit (27.5) {170.9)
Loan interest and similar charges 4.3 (41.9) {23.8)
Interest on lease liabiity 4.3 (8.8) (9.2}
Mark to market changes on interest rate swaps 4.3 (5.8) (2.7}
Swap cancellation and loan break costs 4.3 (30.1) 2.0
Finance costs (86.6) (38.4)
Finance income 4.3 5.6 55
Net financing costs (81.0) (32.9)
Share of joint venture {loss)/profit 3.4b (11.6) 102.6
Loss befare tax {120.1) {101.2)
Current tax 2.5a {(1.2) (0.1)
Deferred tax 2.5a (0.9) 13.7
Loss for the year (122.2) (87.6)
Loss for the year attributable te
Qwners of the parent company (121.0) {89.2}
Minority interest {1.2) 16
{122.2) (87.6)
Loss per share
Basic 2.2¢ (31.8p) {31.5p)
Diluted 2.2¢ (31.8p) {31.4p)
All results are derived from continuing activities.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
2020 2019
Note £m £m
Loss for the year (122.2) (87.6)
Mark to market movements on hedged instruments 4.5a (12.8) (4.8)
Hedges reclassified to profit or loss 25 -
Share of joint venture mark to market movements on hedged instruments 3.4b (0.1) {0.5)
Cther comprehensive loss for the year {10.4) {5.3)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (132.6) (92.9)
Attributable to
Owners of the parent company {131.4) {94.5}
Minority interest {1.2) 1.6
(132.6) {92.9)

All other comprehensive income may be classified as profit and loss in the future.

There are no tax effects on items of other comprehensive income.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note £m £m
Assets
Investment property (owned) 3.1 3,614.7 3,406.9
Investment property (leased} 31 101.8 110.4
Investment property (under development) 3.1 187.2 411.8
Investmentinjoint ventures 3.4b 849.0 8752
Other nen-current assets 3.3b 219 26.0
Right of use assets 3.3a 4.3 5.5
Deferred tax asset 2.5d 1.9 29
Total non-current assets 4,780.8 4,838.7
Inventories 32 8.8 40
Trade and other receivables 5.2 104.0 871
Cash and cash equivalents 51 338.3 86.9
Total current assets 4511 178.0
Total assets 5,231.9 5.016.7
Liabilities
Borrowings 4.1 - (1.4)
Interest rate swaps 4.2 (5.8) -
Lease liabilities 4.6a (4.4) (3.9)
Trade and other payables 5.4 {141.3) (234.4)
Current tax liability 0.3 (4.0}
Provisions 5.5 {15.7) (0.3}
Total current liabilities {167.5) (244.0)
Borrowings 4.1 {1,689.9) (1,566.2)
Lease liabilities 4.6a (96.7) (100.9}
Interest rate swaps 4.2 {17.8) (7.6}
Total non-current liabilities (1,804.4) {1,674.7)
Total liabilities (1,971.9) (1,918.7)
Net assets 3,260.0 3,098.0
Equity
Issuedshare capital 4.8 99.5 90.9
Share premium 4.8 2,160.3 1,874.9
Merger reserve 40.2 40.2
Retained earnings 949.0 1,069.0
Hedging reserve (14.1} (3.5)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company 3,2349 3,071.5
Minority interest 25.1 26.5
Total equity 3,260.0 3,098.0

The financial statements of The Unite Group PLC, registered number 03139160, were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 16 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

R 5 Smith JJ Lister
Director Director
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The Unite Group PLC Annuai Report & Accounts 2020

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2020

2020 201%
Note £m £m

Assets
investments in subsidiaries 35 1.826.7 2,213.7
Total non-current assets 1.826.7 2,2137
Trade and other receivables 5.2 2,386.1 1,208.1
Cash and cash equivalents 2.0 9.4
Total current assets 2,3881 1,217.5
Total assets 4,214.8 3,431.2
Current liabilities
Borrowings 4.1 - -
Interest rate swaps 4.2 (5.8) -
Amounts due to Group undertakings 5.4 {0.6) (19.1)
Other payables 5.4 (3.8) (7.0
Total current tiabilities (10.2) {26.1}
Borrowings 4.1 {1,066.6) (442.2)
Interest rate swaps 4.2 {17.8) {7.6)
Total non-current liabilities {1,084.4) (449.8)
Total liabilities {1,094.6) {475.9)
Net assets 3120.2 2,955.3
Equity
Issued share capital 4.8 99.5 909
Share premium 48 2,160.3 1,8749
Merger reserve 40.2 40.2
Hedging reserve (13.3) {3.0)
Retained earnings 833.5 952.3
Total equity 3,120.2 2,955.3

Total equity is wholly attributable to equity holders of The Unite Group PLC, The [oss {2019: loss) of The Unite Group PLC in
2020 was £118.8 million (2019; £139.3 million).

The financial statements of The Unite Group PLC, registered number 03199160, were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 16 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

R S Smith J ] Lister
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable

Issued 10 owners
share Share Merger Retained Hedging ofthe  Minority
capital premium reserve  earnings reserve parent interest Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1January 2020 909 1,874.9 40.2 1,069.0 {3.5) 3,071.5 26.5 3,098.0
Loss for the year - - - (121.0) - {121.0) {1.2) {122.2)
Other comprehensive
loss for the year:
Mark to market movements on
hedged instruments - - - - {12.8) {12.8) - (12.8)
Hedges reclassified to profit or loss - - - - 2.5 2.5 - 2.5
Share of joint venture mark to market
maovements on hedged instruments 3.4hb - - - - (0.1} {0.1) - (0.1}
Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - {121.0) {10.4) {(131.4) (1.2} (132.6}
Shares issued 4.8 8.6 285.4 - - - 294.0 - 294.0
Deferred tax on
share-based payments - - - 01 - 0.1 - 0.1
Fair value of
share-based payments - - - 1.6 - 1.6 - 1.6
Own shares acquired - - - {0.7) - {0.7) - (0.7}
Unwind of realised swap gain - - - - (0.2) (0.2} - (0.2)
Dividends paid to owners
of the parent company 4.9 - - - - - - - -
Dividends to minority interest - - - - - - {0.2) (0.2)
At 31 December 2020 99,5 2,160.3 40.2 949.0 {14.1) 32,2349 251 3,260.0
Attributable
Issued to owners
share Share Merger Retained Hedging of the  Minority
capital premium reserve  earnings reserve parent interest Total
Nota £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1]anuary 2019 65.9 740.5 40.2 1,227.6 2.0 2,076.2 258 2,102.0
(Loss)/profit for the year - - - (89.2} - (89.2) 1.6 (87.6)
Other comprehensive
loss for the year:
Mark to market movements
cn hedged instruments - - - - {4.8) (4.8) - (4.8)
Share of joint venture mark to market
movements on hedged instruments 3.4b - - - - (0.5) (0.5) - (C.5)
Total comprehensive
{lossyprofit for the year - - - (89.2) (5.3) (94.5) 1.6 (92.,9)
Shares issued 4.8 250 11344 - - - 1,159.4 - 1,159.4
Deferred tax on
share-based payments - - - 0.2 - 0.2 - 0.2
Fair value of
share-based payments - - - 19 - 19 - 1.9
Own shares acquired - - - (0.8) - {0.8) - (0.8}
Unwind of realised swap gain - - - - (0.2) {0.2) - 0.2
Dividends paid to owners
of the parent company 4.9 - - - (70.7) - (70.7) - (70.7}
Dividends to minority interest - - - - - - 0.9 (0.9}
At 31 December 2019 209 1,874.9 40.2 1,069.0 (3.5) 3,071.5 26.5 3,098.0

The notes on pages 172 to 222 form part of the financial statements.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Issued Share Merger Hedging Retained
share capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
Note £m £m Em £m £m £m
At 1 January 2020 90.9 1,874.9 40.2 (3.0) 952.3 2,955.3
Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (12.6) {118.8} (121.4}
Hedges reclassified to profit or loss - - - 2.5 - 25
Shares issued 4.8 8.6 285.4 - - - 294.0
Unwind of realised swap gain - - - (0.2) - (0.2)
Dividends to shareholders 4.9 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 99.5 2160.3 40.2 {13.3) 8335 3120.2
Issued Share Merger Hedging Retained
share capitai premium reserve reserve earnings Total
Note £m £m £m £Em £m £m
At 1 January 2019 65.9 740.5 40.2 2.2 1,162.3 2,011
Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - {5.0) (139.3) (144.3)
Shares issued 4.8 25,0 1,134.4 - - - 1,159.4
Unwind of realised swap gain - - - 0.2 - 0.2)
Dividends to shareholders 4.9 - - - - (70.7) (70.7)
At 31 December 2019 50.9 1,874.9 40.2 (3.0 952.3 2,955.3

The notes on pages 172 to 222 form part of the financial statements,
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H
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS %
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2
Group Company
2020 20198 2020 2018
Note £m £m £m £m
Net cash flows from operating activities 5.1 73.3 78.5 {0.7) {2.5)
Investing activities
Cash consideration for acquisition Liberty Living - (492.0) - (492.0) _
Cash acguired on acquisition of Liberty Living - 22.4 - - "
Acquisition costs - (17.5} - - Er
Investment in joint ventures (7.5) - - - J‘F‘:'
Capital expenditure on properties (148.5) (179.9} - - _?‘gu
Acquisition of intangible assets 2.7 4.6} - - g
Acquisition of plant and equipment (0.7) (0.4} - -
Proceeds from sale of investment property - 295.4 - -
Interest received 0.1 0.9 - -
Dividends received 10.2 32.8 - -
Payments to/on behalf of subsidiaries - - {539.1) (301.5)
Payments from subsidiaries - - 35.8 5535
Net cash flows from investing activities (149.1) {342.9) {503.3) {240.0) O—
Financing activities %
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 294.0 2547 2940 254.7 é
Payments to acquire own shares (0.7) 0.8} - - 5
Interest paid in respect of financing activities (54.2) (32.09 {17.5) (17.4)
Swap cancellation and debt exit costs {30.1) (2.7} (1.5) -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 355.1 175.0 225.0 175.0
Repayment of borrowings {233.3) (96.0) - (90.3)
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company - 68.5) - (68.5)
Withholding tax paid on distributions (3.4) {1.1) (3.4} (1.1}
Dividends paid to minority interest (0.2) (0.9} - -
Net cash flows from financing activities 327.2 227.7 496.6 252.4
Net increase/(decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents 251.4 (36.7) (7.4) 99
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 26.9 123.6 9.4 (0.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 338.3 86.9 2.0 9.4
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basis of preparation

This section lays out the Group's accounting policies that relate to the financial statements as a whole.
Where an accounting policy is specific to a particular note to the financial statements, the policy is
described in the nete to which it relates and has been clearly identified in a box.

Basis of cansolidation

The financial statements consolidate those of The Unite Group PLC (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the Group) and include the Group's interests in jointly controlled entities. The parent company financial statements
present information about the Company as a separate entity and not as a group.

Subsidiaries are these entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has an existing right that
gives it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary, has expasure or right to variable returns from
its involvement in the subsidiary and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases,

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intra-group transactions, such as
property disposals and management fees, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's retained interest in the
entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains except where the loss provides evidence of

a reduction in the netrealisable value of current assets or an impairment in the value of non-current assets,

Both the parent company financial statements and the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRS) and approved by the Directors.

On publishing the parent company financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the Company
is taking advantage of the exemption in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement
and related notes.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a public company limited by shares and is registered in England, United Kingdom, where it is also domiciled.

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment property (owned), investment
property {leased), investment property (under development}, investments in subsidiaries and interest rate swaps alt of
which are stated at their fair value.

Going concern

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements, the Directors are required to consider
whether the Group can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2020 The Group had
£338 million of cash 2nd expects to maintain significant liguidity headroom, both now and through the medium term.
The Group is continuing to coliect cash from students in line with previcus years and has the ability to withstand severe
downside scenarios from a cash headroom perspective. Our response to Covid-19 is described on pages 2-3 and inthe
Operations Review.

In response to Covid-19, the Directors have considered a range of scenarios for future performance, with a focus on
forecast liquidity and ICR covenant performance. The Directors’ Base Case scenario is informed by their reasoned opinion
that UK Universities will remain open, providing a blend of online and face-to-face teaching for the remainder of the
2020/217 academic year consistent with the government roadmap announced on 22 February. Universities are expected to
open for the 2021/22 academic year and, accordingly, there will be demand for student accommodation from both UK and
international students. The greater level of uncertainty around international students’ behaviour and their ability to travel
to the UK could lead to a reduction in demand from this customer group. The Directors have considered a Reasonable
Worst Case scenario involving a decline in income compared to the Base Case as follows:
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+ Significant disruption to the remainder of the 2020/21 academic year, with around half of students not returning te
their accommodation in the third term

+ Significantly reduced income for the 2021/22 academic year as a result of travel restrictions, limiting the ability of
international students to travel to the UK

Under each of these scenarios, the Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient liquidity and will maintain covenant
compliance over the next 12 months. To further support the Directors’ going concern assessment, a ‘Reverse Stress Test’
was performed to determine the level of performance at which adopting the going concern basis of preparation may not
be appropriate. This involved assessing the minimum amount of income required to ensure financial covenants would not
be breached. Our tightest ICR covenant requires us to collect 70% of contracted rent for the 2020/21 academic year which
compares to 66% collected to date. This requires us to collect less than 10% of rents due or outstanding for the balance of
2020/21 to maintain covenant compliance.

The Directors are satisfied that the possibility of such an outcome is sufficiently remote that adopting the going concern
basis of preparation is appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the global outlook as a result of Covid-19 continues to be uncertain and the range of potential
outcomes is wide ranging and unknown. In particular, should the impacts of the pandemic on trading conditions be more
prolonged or severe than currently forecast by the Directors or considered under the Reascenable Worst Case referenced
above, namely if there is a further sustained national lockdown that results in Universities not opening physically and
students either not arriving at University or returning home, the Group’s geing concern status would be dependent on its
ability to seek interest cover covenant waivers from its lenders. The Directors consider this eventuality to be remote.

Accordingly, after making enquiries and having considered forecasts and appropriate sensitivities, the Directors have
formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being at least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements.

Impact of accounting standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective

At the balance sheet date there are a number of new standards and amendments to existing standards in issue but not
yet effective, The Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial
statements.

Other standards
The following new or amended standards and interpretations are not expecied to have a significant impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements:

« |FRS 3 (amendments) ‘Definition of a business’

* |FRS 10 and IAS 28 {amendments) ‘'Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture'
* |FRS 17 'Insurance contracts’

* |AS 1 and IAS 8 (amendments} ‘Definition of material’

= |AS 1 {amendments) ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-current’

* [FRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 {amendments) ‘Interest rate benchmark reform’

s |FRS 16 {amendments) ‘Covid-19 related rent concessions’

* |FRS Standards (amendments} ‘References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards’

» IFRS Standards (annual improvements}
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 1: Basis of preparation continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group's significant accounting polices are stated in the relevant notes to the Group financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting
policies. It also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses.

Significant accounting judgements

The areas which involve a high degree of judgement or complexity in applying the accounting policies of the Group are

explained in more detail in the accounting policy descriptions in the related notes to the financial statements.

The areas where accounting judgements have the most significant impact on the financial statements of the Group are
as follows:

+ valuation of investment property and investment property under development (note 3.1)

« classification of joint venture vehicles (note 3.4)

Estimation uncertainty

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis with revisions recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In 2020 these revisions include the impact of Covid-19.

The area involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the financial statements is set out
below and in more detail in the related note:

« valuation of investment property and investment property under development (note 3.1)
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Section 2: Results for the year

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group and provides a reconciliation between
the primary statements and EPRA performance measures. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group's results for the year, segmental information, taxation, earnings and net asset value
per share, In October 2019, EPRA issued updated best practice recommendations, including new definitions

o of NAV measures, which became effective for the Group on 1 January 2020. The revision includes the
introduction of EPRA Net Tangible Assets (NTA) which is the most relevant new NAV measure for the Group,
and this will be our primary NAV measure going forward. EPRA NTA adjusts EPRA NAV, our existing key NAV
measure, by excluding intangible assets. EPRA also introduced EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (NRV) and
EPRA Net Dispasal Value (NDV) metrics as set cut in note 2.3¢, The Group uses EPRA earnings and NAV and
NTA movement as key comparable indicators across other real estate companies in Europe.

IFRS performance measures

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note £m £m pPps pps

Loss aftertax 2.2c {(121.0) (B9.2} {31.8p) (31.5p)

Net assets 2.3d 3,234.9 £3,071.5 809p 845p
EPRA performance measures

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note Em £m Pps$ PPSs

EPRA earnings 2.2¢ 97.3 110.6 25.5p 38.1p

EPRA NAV 2.3d 3,285.2 3,109.7 823p 853p

EPRA NTA 2.3d 3,266.2 3,087.0 813p 847p

2.1 Segmental information

The Board of Directors monitors the business along two activity lines, Operations and Property. The reportable segments
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are Operations and Property.

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property activities directly and through joint ventures with third parties.
The joint ventures are an integral part of each segment and are included in the information used by the Beard to
monitor the businass,

Detailed analysis of the performance of each of these reportable segments is provided in the following sections 2.2
to 2.3.

The Group's properties are jocated exclusively in the United Kingdoem. The Group therefore has one geographical segment.

2.2 Earnings

EPRA earnings amends IFRS measures by removing principally the unrealised investment property valuation gains and
losses such that users of the financials are able to see the extent to which dividend payments (dividend per share) are
underpinned by earnings arising from purely operational activity. In 2020, in consideration of EPRA's focus an presenting
clear comparability in results from recurring aperational activities, EPRA earnings excludes integration costs. The
reconciliation between profit/loss attributable to owners of the parent company and EPRA earnings is available in note
2.2b.

The Operations segment manages rental properties, owned directly by the Group or by joint ventures. Its revenues are
derived from rental income and asset management fees earned from joint ventures. The way in which the Operations
segment adds value to the business is set out in the Operations review on pages 17 to 21. The Operations segment is the
main contributor to EPRA earnings and EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key indicators which are used by the Board
to monitor the Operations business.

The Board does not manage or monitor the Operations segment through the balance sheet and therefore no segmental
information for assets and liabilities is provided for the Operations segment.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.2a) EPRA earnings
2020

Share of joint ventures Groupon

EPRA basis

Unite USAF LSAV Total

£m £m £Em £m

Rental income 196.1 24.2 329 263.2
Property operating expenses {61.9) {12.8) (8.2) {82.9)
Net operating income 134,2 21.4 247 180.3
Management fees 2041 (2.8) (3.3) 14.0
Operating expenses {30.1) {0.3) 0.5) (30.9)
Interest on lease liabilities (8.8) - - (8.8)
Net financing costs {40.6} {6.6) {8.9) {56.1)
Operations segment result 74.8 "7 12.0 98.5
Property segment result (2.2} - - (2.2)
Unallocated to segments 7.1 {0.3) {5.8) 1.0
EPRA earnings 79.7 1.4 6.2 97.3

Included in the above is rental income of £14.6 million and property operating expenses of £7.3 million relating to sale and

leaseback properties.

The unallocated to segments balance includes the fair value of share-based payments of (£1.7 million), contributions to the
Unite Foundation of (£1.0 million), LSAV performance fee of £5.7 million, deferred tax charge of (£0.8 million} and current

tax charge of (1.2 million).

EPRA earnings excludes integrations costs associated with the acquisition of Liberty Living, which total £9.2 million in

the year.
2019
Share of joint ventures Group on
EPRA basis
Unite USAF LSAV Total
£m £m £m £m
Rentai income 134.1 41.5 38.3 2139
Property operating expenses 33.00 {12.2} {7.9) (53.1)
Net operating income 101.1 293 304 160.8
Management fees 210 (3.4) (3.2) 14.4
Operating expenses (21.1) {0.3) (0.4) (21.8)
Interest on lease liabilities {9.2) - - {9.2)
Net financing costs (18.7) (6.7} (9.3) {34.7}
Operations segment result 731 18.9 175 109.5
Property segment result {1.5) - - (1.5}
Unallocated to segments 8.7 (0.2) {5.9) 2,6
EPRA earnings 80.3 187 11.6 110.6

included in the above is rental income of £17.3 million and property operating expenses of £7.0 million relating 1o sale and

leaseback properties.

The unatiocated to segments balance includes the fair value of share-based payments of (£2.2 million), contributions to
the Unite Foundation of (£1.0 million), fees received from USAF relating to acquisitions of £2.2 million, LSAV performance
fee of £5.7 million, deferred tax charge of (£0.5 million) and current tax charge of (£0.4 million).
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2.2b} IFRS reconciliation to EPRA earnings

EPRA earnings excludes movements relating to changes in values of investment properties {owned, leased and under

development), profits/losses from the disposal of properties, swap/debt break costs, impairment of goodwill and

acquisition/integration costs, which are included in the loss/profit reported under IFRS. EPRA earnings reconcile to the loss

attributable to owners of the parent company as follows:

2020 2018
Note £m Em
Loss attributable to owners of the parent company {121.0) (89.2)
Net valuation losses/{gains) on investment property (owned) 3.1 124.2 {154.8)
Property dispusals (Vwned) 1.9 6.2
Netvaluation losses on investment property (leased) 31 1.2 8.1
Property disposals (leased) - 11
Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible asset - 38441
Integration/acquisition costs 9.2 228
Amortisation of fair value of debt recognised on acquisition (4.3) (0.4)
Share of joint venture losses/(gains) on investment property 3.4b 41.5 (58.3)
Share of jeint venture property disposals 3.4b - (0.4)
Swap cancellation and loan break costs 4.3 301 27
Mark to market changes oninterest rate swaps 4.3 5.8 2.7
Current tax relating to impairment of goodwill - (0.5)
Deferred tax 2.5d 0.1 (14.3)
Minority interest share of reconciling items* (1.4) 0.8
EPRA earnings 2.2a 97.3 110.6

* The minority interest share, or non-contralling interest, arises as a result of the Company not cwning 100% of the share capital of one of its subsidiaries,

USAF (Feeder) Guernsey Limited. More detall is provided in note 3.4.

2.2c¢) Earnings per share

The Basic EPS calculation is based on the earnings/loss attributable to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group PLC
and the weighted average number of shares which have been in issue during the year. Basic EPS is adjusted in line with
EPRA guidelines in order to allow users to compare the business performance of the Group with other listed real estate
companies in a consistent manner and to reflect how the business is managed on a day-to-day basis.

The calculations of basic and EPRA EPS far the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
Note £m £m PPs pps
{Loss)/earnings

Basic {121.0) (89.2) (31.8p) {31.5p)
Diluted (121.0) (89.2) (31.8p) (31.4p}
EPRA 2.2a 97.3 110.6 25.5p 39.p
2020 2019

Weighted average number of shares (thousands)
Basic 381,379 282,802
Dilutive potential ordinary shares (share opticns) 872 1,156
Diluted 382,251 283,958

Movements in the weighted average number of shares have resulted from the issue of shares arising from the employee

share-based payment schemes and the equity raise.

In 2020, there were 11,278 (2019: 15,545} options excluded from the potential dilutive shares that did not affect the diluted

weighted average number of shares.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.3 Net assets
2.3a) EPRA NAV and NTA

EPRA NTA makes adjustments to IFRS measures by removing the fair value of financial instruments and the carrying value
of intangibles. The reconciliation between [FRS NAY and EPRA NTA is available in note 2.3c.

The Group's Property business undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The way in which the Property
segment adds value to the business is set out in the Property review on pages 22 to 25.

2020
Share of Vs Groupon
Unite USAF LSAV EPRA hasis
£m £m £m £m
Investment property {owned) 3,614.7 616.7 661.8 4,893.2
Investment property (leased) 101.8 - - 101.8
Investment property (under development) 187.2 - - 187.2
Total property portfolio 3,903.7 6167 661.8 5,182.2
Debt on properties (1,663.5) (201.1) (268.2) (2,132.8)
tease liabilities (96.3) - - (96.3}
Cash 338.2 15.4 37.3 391.0
Net debt {1,421.5} (185.7} {230.9) {1.838.1)
Other assets and (liabilities) 21.3} {13.2) {24.4) (58.9)
EPRA NAV 2,460.9 4178 4p6.5 3,285.2
Intangibles per IFRS balance sheet {19.0} - - {12.0)
EPRA NTA 2,441.9 412.8 406.5 3,266.2
Loan to value* 35% 30% 35% 34%
Loan to value post IFRS 16 36% 30% 35% 35%
* LTV calculated excluding investment properties (leased) and the corresponding lease liabilities.
2019
Share of jvs Groupon
Unite USAF LSAV EPRA basis
Em £m Em £m
Investment property (owned} 3,406.9 628.0 667.5 4702.4
Investment property (leased) 1104 - - 110.4
Investment property (under development) 411.8 - - 411.8
Total property portfolio 3,9294 628.0 667.5 5,224.6
Debt on properties (1,537.2) (194.4) (267.6} {1,599.2)
Lease liahilities (98.9) - - (58.9)
Cash 86.9 5.2 22.8 114.9
Net debt {1,549.2) (189.2) (244.8) (1,983.2)
Other assets and {liahilities) (119.3) {1.5) (10.9) (131.7)
EPRA NAV 2,260.6 437.3 411.8 3,109.7
Intangibles per IFRS balance sheet (22.7) - - (22.7)
EPRA NTA 2,237.9 437.3 4118 3,087.¢
Loan to value* 39% 30% 37% 37%
Loan to value post IFRS 16 40% 30% 37% 38%

* LTV calculated excluding investment properties {leased) and the corresponding lease liabilities.
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2.3b) Movement in EPRA NTA during the year
Contributions to EPRA NTA by each segment during the year is as follows:
2020
Share of joint ventures Group on
EPRAbasis
Unite USAF LSAV Total
Note £m £m £m £m —
Operations &
Operations segment result 2.2a 74.8 1.7 120 98.5 n%
Add back amortisation of intangibles 33b 6.4 - - 6.4 o
Total Operations 81.2 1m7 12.0 1049 '§
Property ~
Rental growth (102.4) (24.0) (15.0) (141.4)
Yield movement {17.6) {1.1) a1 {18.6}
Disposal losses (owned) {1.9) - - {1.9)
Investment property losses (owned) {(121.9) {25.1} [14.9) (161.9)
Investment property losses (leased) 31a {11.2) - - (11.2)
Investment property losses (under development) 3.1a (4.2) - - (4.2) ——
Pre-contract/other development costs 2.2a (2.2) - - (2.2) g‘
Total Property (139.5) (25.1) (14.9) (179.5) §
Unallocated §
Shares issued 294.0 - - 294.0 ®
Investmentin joint ventures 2.3 (5.7) 3.4 -
Dividends paid - - - -
Joint venture property acquisition fee - - - -
LSAV performance fee 11.4 - (5.7) 5.7
Swap cancellation and debt break costs 4.3 (30.1} - - {30.1)
Purchase of intangibles 3.3b (2.7} - - {(2.7)
Integration costs (9.2) - - (9.2)
Other (3.4) (0.4) (0.1) 3.9 ':—"
Total Unallocated 262.3 6.1) (2.4) 253.8 §
Total EPRA NTA movement in the year 204.0 {19.5) {5.3) 179.2 =
Total EPRA NTA brought forward 2,237.9 437.3 411.8 3,087.0 §
Total EPRA NTA carried forward 2,441.9 417.8 406.5 3,266.2 '3”

EPRA NAV brought forward at 1 January 2020 was £3,109.7 million, and closing EPRA NAV at 31 December 2020 was
£3,285.2 million. The movement of (£175.5 million} is shown in the table above by excluding the amortisation of intangibles
{(£6.4 million} and the purchase of intangibles £2.7 million.

The £3.9 million other balance within the unallocated segment includes a tax charge of £2.1 million, the purchase of own
shares of £0.7 million and £1.0 million for contributions to the Unite Foundation.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.3 Net assets continued
2.3by Movement in EPRA NTA during the year continued

2019
Share of joint ventures Group on
EPRA basis
Unite USAF LSAV Total
Naote £m £m £m £m
Operations
Cperations segment result 2.2a 731 13.9 17.5 109.5
Add back amortisation of intangibies 3.3b 5.6 - - 5.6
Totzl Operations 78.7 18.9 175 1151
Praperty
Rental growth 54,2 1.7 24.6 90.5
Yield movement 20.4 2.3 18.3 41.0
Disposal {losses)/gains (owned) (5.5) 0.2 - (5.3}
Investment property gains {owned) 69.1 14.2 42.9 126.2
Investment property gains (leased) 3.1a 8.1} - - 8.1
Disposal losses investment property {leased) 4R} - - {1.1)
Investment property gains (under development) 31a 80.2 - - 80.2
Pre-contract/other development costs 2.28 {1.5) - - (1.5)
Total Property 138.6 14.2 42.9 1957
Unallocated
Shares issued 254.3 - - 254.3
Investment in joint ventures 31.7 (18.2) {13.5) -
Acquisition of tiberty Living 531.0 - - 531.0
Dividends paid {(70.7) - - (70.7)
LSAV perfermance fee 11.4 - {5.7) 57
Joint venture property acquisition fee 2.8 {0.6) - 2.2
Swap cancellation and debt break costs 43 (2.7 - - (2.7
Purchase of intangibles 3.3b (5.5) - - (5.5)
Other (3.6) {0.2) 0.1} (3.9
Total Unallocated 7487 {19.0) (19.3) 710.4
Total EPRA NTA movement in the year 966.0 141 411 1,021.2
Total EPRA NTA brought forward 1,271.9 423.2 370.7 2,065.8
Total EPRA NTA carried forward 2,237.9 437.3 411.8 3,087.0

EPRA NAV brought forward at 1 January 2019 was £2,088.6 million and closing EPRA NAV at 31 December 2019 was
£3,109.7 million. The movement of £1,021.1 million is shown in the table above by excluding the amortisation of intangibles
{£5.6 million) and the purchase of intangibles £5.5 million.

The £3.9 million other balance within the unallocated segment includes a tax charge of £0.7 million, fair value of share-
based payments charge of £2.2 million and £1.0 million for contributions to the Unite Foundation.
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2.3¢) Reconciliation to IFRS

To determine EPRA NAV, net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the fair value of financial instruments

and associated tax.

To determine EPRA NTA, net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the fair value of financial instruments,

associated tax and the carrying value of intangibles.

To determine EPRA NRY, net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the fair value of financial instruments,

associated tax and real estate transfer tax.

lo determine EPRA NDV, net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the fair value of financial instruments,
but include the fair value of fixed interest rate debt and the carrying value of intangibles.

The net assets reported under IFRS reconcile to EPRA NAV, NTA, NRY and NDV {previously NNNAV} as follows:

2020
NAV NTA NRY NDV
£m £m £m £m
Net assets reported under IFRS 3,234.9 3,234.9 3,234.9 3,234.9
Mark to market interest rate swaps 24.4 24.4 24.4 -
Unameoertised swap gain (1.8) {1.8) (1.8} {1.8}
Mark to market of fixed rate debt - - - (85.2)
Unamortised fair value of debt recognised on acquisition 281 28.1 281 281
Current tax (0.4) {0.4) (0.4} -
Intangibles per {FRS balance sheet - (19.0) - -
Real estate transfer tax - - 312.0 -
EPRA reporting measure 3,285.2 3,266.2 3,597.2 3.176.0
2019
NAY NTA NRV NDV
£m £m £m £m

Net assets reported under IFRS 3,071.5 3,071.5 3.07t.5 3,071.5
Mark to market interest rate swaps 8.3 83 8.3 -
Unamortised swap gain (2.1 (2.1) {2.1) 2.1
Mark to market of fixed rate debt - - - (93.5)
Unamortised fair value of debt recognised on acquisition 32.4 324 324 324
Current tax 0.4 {C.4) (0.4) -
Intangibles per IFRS balance sheet - (22.7) - -
Real estate transfer tax - - 280.5 -
EPRA reporting measure 3,109.7 3,087.0 3,390.2 3.008.3
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.3 Net assets continued

2.3c) Reconciliation to IFRS continued

The previous EPRA NAV metric reconciles to the new EPRA NAV, NTA, NRV and NDV {(previously NNNAV) metrics as follows:

2020

NTA NRV NDV NTA NRV NDV

£m £m £m [:]:H] pps pps

EPRA NAV 3,285.2 3,285.2 3,285.2 823p 823p 823p
Intangibles per IFRS balance sheet (19.0) - - (5p - -
Real estate transfer tax - 312.0 - - 78p -
Mark to market of fixed rate debt - - (85.2) - - (21p)
Mark to market interest swaps - - {24.4) - - (6p)
Currenttax - - 0.4 - - -
EPRA reporting measure 3,266.2 3,597.2 3,176.0 818p 901p 796p

2019

NTA NRV NRV NTA NRV NRV

£m £m £m pps PPs pps

EPRA NAV (as previously reported) 3,109.7 3,109.7 3.109.7 853p 853p 853p
Intangibles per IFRS balance sheet (22.7) - - {6p) - -
Real estate transfer tax - 280.5 - - 77p -
Mark to market of fixed rate debt - - (93.5) - - {25p)
Mark to market interest swaps - - (8.3} - - 2p)
Currenttax - - 0.4 - - -
EPRA reporting measure 3,087.0 3,390.2 3,008.3 847p 930p 826p

2.3d) NAV, NTA, NRV and NDV per share

Basic NAV is based on the net assets attributable to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group PLC and the number of
shares in issue at the end of the year. The Board uses EPRA NAV and NTA to monitor the performance of the Property

segment on a day-to-day basis.

2020 2019 2020 2019
Note £m £m pps pps

Net assets
Basic NAY 3,234.9 3,071.5 809p 345p
EPRA NAV 2.3a 3,285.2 31097 825p B855p
EPRA NAV (diluted) 3,2%0.0 3,114.0 823p 853p
EPRA NTA 2.3a 3,266.2 3,087.0 820p 849p
EPRA NTA (diluted) 3,271.0 3,081.4 818p 847
EPRA NRV 2.3¢ 3,597.2 3,390.2 903p 932p
EPRA NRV (diluted) 3,601.9 3,394.5 201p 930p
EPRANDV 3,176.0 3,008.3 798p 827p
EPRA NDV (diluted) 3,180.7 30126 796p 826p
Number of shares (thousands) 2020 2019
Basic 398,226 363,618
Qutstanding share options 1,484 1,309
Diluted 399,710 364,927
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2.4 Revenue and costs

Accounting policies
The Group recegnises revenue from the following major sources:

¢ Rental income

+ Management and performance fees

+ Acquisition fees &

o
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a UE:.
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers @
control of its service to a customer. E
Rental income
Rental income comprises direct-lets to students and leases to Universities and commercial tenants. This revenue is
recognised in the income statement over the length of the tenancy period as the Group provides the services to its
customers. Included in the rental contract is the use of broadband facilities and room cleaning services. The Group
does not offer these services as stand-alone products. Under IFRS 15 the Group does not consider these services to be
individually material and has, consequently, bundled these obligations as a single contract. The transaction prices for
rental income are explicitly stated in each contract. A contract liakility can result from payments received in advance, —
until the date at which control is transferred to the customer and at that point the revenue begins to be recognised [m—
over the tenancy period. Lease incentives are sometimes recognised on commercial units, these are recognised as %
an integral part of the total rental income and spread over the term of the lease. §

=]

n

']

Management and performance fees

The Group acts as asset and property manager for USAF and LSAV and receives management fees in relation to these
services. Revenue from these fees is recognised over time as the joint ventures simultaneously receive and consume
benefits as the Group performs its management obligations. Detailed calculations in order to determine the transaction
prices for these revenue streams are held within the joint venture agreements.

The Group is entitled to a USAF performance fee if the joint venture outperforms certain benchmarks. The Group
recognises a USAF performance fee at a pointin time in the year to which the fee relates. The Group initially assesses
the probability of a fee being earned and its transaction price at half year and adjusts for any potential risks to receiving
this income at year-end, when the achieved outturn is known. The USAF performance fee is settled within 12 months of
the year to which the fee relates and the Group receives an enhanced equity interest in LISAF as consideration for the
performance fee.

The Group is entitled to a LSAV performance fee if the joint venture outperforms certain benchmarks over its life
ending in 2022. The Group recognises a LSAV performance fee at an amount which is considered ‘highly probable’ to
become due based upon estimates of the future performance of the joint venture; such estimates include future rental
incorme and the discount rate {yield). Prior to the maturity of the joint venture, the Group pro-rates the total LSAY
performance fee for the remaining life of the joint venture; at 31 December 2020, this was 80% based upeon eight years
of the joint venture’s life. The amount which is considered *highly probable’ to become due is reassessed annually with
reference to the latest performance of the joint venture and forecasts. The LSAV performance fee is settled at the end
of the life of the joint venture in cash.
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As per IFRS 15, the estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognised will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. As the performance fee is variable and dependent
on meeting specific performance targets it is not reasonably possible to determine the future contractual income
relating to this revenue,

Acquisition fees

The Group receives acquisition fees from its joint ven{ure partners. This revenue is linked to the acquisition of land or
property and is therefore recognised at the point in time that control of the asset is transferred to the joint venture.
The transaction price for this revenue strearn is stipulated in the joint venture agreement as a percentage of the value
of the acquisition.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.4 Revenue and casts continued
The Group earns revenue from the following activities:

2020 2019

Note £Em £m

Rental income* QOperations segment 2.2a 196.1 1341
Management fees Operations segment 2.2a 14.0 14.4
LSAV performance fee Unallocated 5.7 57
USAF acquisition fee Unallocated - 2.2
215.8 156.4
Impact of minority interest on management fees (0.2} {0.2)
Total revenue 215.6 156.2

* EPRAearningsincludes £263.2 millicn {2019: £213.¢ million) of rental income, which is comprised of £196.1 million (2019: £134.1 million) recognised on
wholly owned assets and a further £67.1 million (2013: £79.8 million} from jeint ventures, which is included in share of joint venture {loss)/profit in the
consolidated income statement.

The cost of sales included in the consolidated income statement includes property operating expenses of £53.3 million
{2019: £32.1 million}.

2.5 Tax

As a REIT, rental profits and gains on disposal of investment properties are exempt from corporation tax. The Group
pays UK corporation tax on the profits from its residual business, including profits arising on construction operations
and management fees received from joint ventures, together with UK income tax on rental income that arises from
investments held by offshore subsidiaries in which the Group holds a minority interest.

Accounting policies

The tax charge for the year is recognised in the income statement and the statement of comprehensive income,
according to the accounting treatment of the related transaction. The tax charge comprises both current and
deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years. The current tax charge is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the year-end.

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

for financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. Temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures are not provided for to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable
future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities. The applicable deferred tax rate increased from 17% to 19% due to the
enactment during the period of the Finance Act 2020, which cancelled the planned reduction in corporation tax to 17%
from 1 April 2020. This rate change increased the deferred tax assets recognised at the year-end by £0.1 million.

As a REIT, rental profits and gains on disposal of investment properties and property rich investments are exempt

from corporation tax. As a result, no deferred tax provision has been recognised at the balance sheet date in respect of

property assets or units in USAF and LSAV.
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2.5a) Tax - income statement
The total taxation charge/(credit) in the Income statement is analysed as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Corperation tax on residual business income arising in UK companies 1.2 21
Income tax on UK rental income arising in non-UK companies 0.3 0.4
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {0.3) (2.4)
Current tax charge 1.2 0.1
COrigination and reversal of tempoerary differences 0.9 {(13.9)
Effect of change in tax rate ©.1) -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.1 0.2
Deferred tax charge/{credit} 0.9 {13.7)
Total tax charge/{credit) in income statement 21 {13.6)

The movement in deferred tax provided is shown in more detail in note 2.5d.

In the income statement, a tax charge of £2.1 million arises ¢n a loss before tax of £120.1 million. The taxation credit that

would arise at the standard rate of UK corporation tax is reconciled toc the actual tax charge as follows:

2020 2013
£m £m
Loss before tax (120.1) (101.2)
Income tax using the UK carporation tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%) (22.8) (19.2}
Property rental business profits exempt from tax in the REIT Group {7.4} (15.2}
Release of deferred tax lizbility due to legislative change 0.1 (13.6}
Non-taxable itemns relating to the acquisition of Liberty Living (0.8} 76.7
Property revaluations not subject to tax 31.2 {40.5)
Mark to market changes in interest rate swaps not subject to tax 141 -
Effect of indexation on investments 0.7 -
Effect of statutory tax reliefs 0.1 0.1
Effect of tax deduction transferred to equity on share schemes - 02
Rate difference on deferred tax - 0.1
Prior year adjustments {0.1} (2.2)
Total tax charge/{credit) in income statement 24 (13.6)

As a UK REIT, the Group is exempt from UK carporation tax on the prefits from its property rental business. Accordingly,
the element of the Group’s profit before tax relating to its property rental business has been separately identified in the

reconciliation above.

Although the Group does not pay UK corporation tax on the profits from its property rental business, it is required to
distribute 90% of the profits from its property rental business after accounting for tax adjustments as a Property Income
Distribution (PID). PIDs are charged to tax in the same way as property income in the hands of the recipient. For the year

ended 31 December 2020 the required PID is expected to be fully paid by the end of 2021.

2.5b) Tax - other comprehensive income

Within other comprehensive income a tax charge totalling £nil (2019: £nil) has been recognised representing deferred tax.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.5 Tax continued
2.5¢) Tax - statement of changes in equity

Within the statement of changes in equity a tax charge totalling £0.1 million {2079: £1.1 million credit) has been recognised
representing deferred tax. An analysis of this is included below in the deferred tax movement table.

2.5d) Tax - balance sheet

The table below outlines the deferred tax (assets)/liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet, together with their

movements in the year:

2020
Charged/(credited) Charged/{credited)

At 31 December 2019 inincome in equity At 31 December 2020

£m Em Em £m

investments - - - -
Property, plant and machinery and provisions {0.9) 03 - (0.5)
Share schemes {1.3) 0.2) 0.2 {1.3)
Tax value of carried forward losses recognised (0.7} 0.8 (0.1) -
Net tax {assets)/liabilities (2.9) 0.9* 0.1 {1.9)

* The £0.9 million balance above includes tax movemnents totalling £0.8 millian in respect of Property, plant and machinery, share schemes and losses which
are included in EPRA earnings and therefore not shown as a reconciling item in the IFRS reconciliation in note 2.2b. Removing them results in the £0.1

milion movement shown in note 2.2b.

2019
Charged/{credited) Charged/(cradited)

At 31 December 2018 inincome in equity At 31 December 2019
Em £m £m £m
Investments 24.4 (24.4) _ _
Property, plant and machinery and provisions {0.7) 0.1 0.3) 0.9}
Share schemes {0.6) ©.1 (0.6} (1.3)
Tax value of carried forward losses recognised (11.2) 10.7 (0.2) {0.7)
Net tax liabilitiesHassets) 11.9 (137> (1.1} (2.9)

* The (£13.7 million) balance abave (ncludas tax maovements which are included in EPRA earnings and therefare not shown as 2 reconciling item in the IFRS

reconciliation in note 2.2 b. Removing them results in the £14.3 million movement shown in nete 2.2b.

Company

Deferred tax has not been recognised on temporary differences of £4.3 million (2019: £126.3 million) in respect
of revaluation of subsidiaries and investment in joint ventures as it is considered unlikely that these investments wili

be divested.

The decrease in the unprovided deferred tax amount is primarily driven by the enactment of provisions contained in
Finance Act 2019 that exernpt gains arising in accounting pericds beginning on or after 6 April 2019 on the disposal by a
REIT of shares and other sirmilar interests in entities that derive at least 75% of their value from land situated in the UK.
These provisions exempt the majority of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries from the charge to corporation tax.
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2.6 Audit fees
During the year, the Group obtained the following services from the Company’s auditor and its associates:

2020 2013
£m £m
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for the audit of the parent company and
consolidated financial statements 0.5 0.4
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for other services to the Group:
- Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries 01 0.1
Total audit fees payable to the Group’s auditors 0.6 0.5
Audit-related assurance services 01 0.1
Corporate finance services - 1.9
Other services - -
Total non-audit fees 0.1 2.0

Neon-audit fees in 2020 relate entirely to services provided in respect of the 2020 half year review. Non-audit fees in 2019
almost entirely related to Reporting Accountant services provided in respect of the acquisition of Liberty Living,

Details on the Company’s policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services is also set out in the Audit Committee
Report on pages 109 to 114,

No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.

Section 3: Asset management

The Group holds its property portfolio directly and through its joint ventures, The performance of the

o property portfolio, whether wholly owned or in joint ventures, is the key factor that drives net asset value
(NAV), ane of the Group's key performance indicators. The following pages provide disclosures about the
Group's investments in property assets and joint ventures and their performance over the year.

3.1 Wholly owned property assets
The Group's wholly owned property portfolio is held in three groups on the balance sheet at the carrying values detailed below.

In the Group's EPRA NTA and NAV, all these groups are shown at market value.

i} Investment property {owned}

These are assets that the Group intends to hold for a long period to earn rental income or capital appreciation. The assets
are held at fair value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement.

i) Investment property (leased}

These are assets the Group sold to institutional investors and simultaneously leased back. The assets are held at fair value
in the batance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement,

iii) Investment property (under development)

These are assets which are currently in the course of construction and which will be transferred to Investment property on
completion. The assets are held at fair value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement,
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued
3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued

Accounting policies
Investment property {owned) and investment property (under development)

Investment property (owned) and investment property (under development) are held at fair value.

The external valuation of property assets involves significant judgement and changes to the core assumptions: market
conditions, rental income, occupancy and preperty management costs, could have a significant impact on the carrying
value of these assets. Further details of the valuation process are included below.

Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of a property asset.
Capitalisation of borrowing casts commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and
borrowing costs are being incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs continues until the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use but stops if development activities are suspended. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised. The capitalisation rate is arrived at by reference to the actual

rate payable on borrowings for development purposes or, with regard to that part of the development cost financed out of
general borrowings, to the average rate. During the year the average capitalisation rate used was 2.8% (2019: 5.8%).

The recognition of acquisitions of investment property and land occurs on unconditional exchange of contracts, as this
is the date when control passes to Unite. The recognition of disposals of investment property occurs on legal completion.
In accordance with IFRS 15, revenue from the disposal of investment and other property is recognised at a point in time.

Investment property (leased)

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability (see note 4.6a) with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the
lessee. The assets are held at fair value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement.

Valuation process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of valuation reports prepared by external,
independent valuers, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The fair values are based on market
values as defined in the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manual, issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. CB
Richard Ellis Ltd, Jones Lang LaSalle Ltd and Messrs Knight Frank LLP, Chartered Surveyors were the valuers in the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The valuations are based on:

* Information provided by the Group such as current rents, occupancy, operating costs, terms and conditions of leases
and nomination agreements, capital expenditure, etc. This information is derived from the Group's financial systems
and is subject to the Group’s overall control environment.

* Assumptions and valuation models used by the valuers - the assumptions are typically market related, such as yield
and discount rates. These are hased on their professional judgement and market cbservation,

The information provided to the valuers - and the assumptions and the valuation models used by the vaiuers - are
reviewed by the Property Board and the CFO. This includes a review of the fair value movements over the year,
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The fair value of the Group's wholly owned properties and the movements in the carrying value of the Group’s wholly
owned property portfolie during the year ended 31 December 2020 are shown in the table helow.

MIIAIDAQ '

2020
Investment Investment Investment
property property  property {under
{owned) (leased} development) Total
£m £m £m £m e
At 1January 2020 3,406.9 110.4 411.8 3,929.1 W
Cost capitalised 25.0 2.6 87.6 115.2 %
Interost capitalised - - 4.6 4.6 S
Transfer from investment property under development 3126 - (312.6) - §
Transfer fromwork in progress - - - - .%
Disposals (9.8) - - (9.8)
Valuation gains 56.5 - 6.4 62,9
Valuation losses (176.5) (11.2) {10.6) {198.3)
Netvaluation losses {120.0) (1.2} {4.2) (135.4)
Carrying and market value at 31 December 2020 3,614.7 101.8 187.2 3,903.7
The fair value of the Group's wholly owned properties and the movements in the carrying value of the Group’s wholly p——
owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2019 are shown in the table below. g
2019 %
Investment Investment Investment F.:?
property property  property {under
(owned) (leased} development) Total
£m £m £m £m
At1January 2019 1.497.1 128.0 2789 1,904.0
Acquired through business combination 1,933.7 - 18.4 1,9521%
Cost capitalised 6.5 6.3 208.2 22190
interest capitalised - - 5.1 5.1
Transfer from investment property under development 189.8 - (189.8) -
Transfer from work in progress - - 6.8 6.8
Disposals (294.8) {15.8) - (310.6) %
Valuation gains 88.1 - 86.1 174.2 g
Valuation losses {13.5) (8.1) (5.9) (27.5) E
Net valuation gains 74.6 (8.1) 80.2 146.7 g
Carrying and market value at 31 December 2019 3,406.9 110.4 411.8 3,929.1 %
=
=
@

Included within investment properties at 31 December 2020 are £29.7 million (2019: £31.3 million) of assets held under a
long leasehold and £0.1 million (2019; £0.1 millien) of assets held under short leasehold.

Total interest capitalised in investment properties (owned) and investment properties under development at 31 December
2020 was £52.2 million {2019: £47.6 million) on a cumulative basis. Total internal costs capitalised in investment properties
{owned) and investment properties under development was £66.8 million at 31 December 2020 (2019: £63.4 million)on a

cumulative hasis.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued

3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued
Recurring fair value measurement
Allinvestment and development properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

2020 2019
Class of asset £Em £m
London - rental properties 1,137.0 1,015.0
Prime provincial - rental properties 949.3 876.5
Major provincial - rental properties 1,255.8 1,198.1
Other provincial - rental properties 2726 3173
London - development properties 158.8 2451
Prime provincial - development properties 25.6 76.1
Major provincial - development properties 2.8 0.6
Investment property (owned) 3,801.9 3.818.7
Investment property {leased} 101.8 110.4
Market value 3,903.7 39291

The valuation technique for investment properties is a discounted cash flow using the following inputs: net rental income,
estimated future costs, occupancy and property management COSts.

Where the asset is leased to a University, the valuations also reflect the length of the lease, the allocation of maintenance
and insurance responsibilities between the Group and the lessee, and the market's general perception of the lessee’s
creditworthiness,

The resulting valuations are cross-checked against the initial yields and the capital value per bed derived from actual
market transactions.

For development properties, the fair value is usually calculated by estimating the fair value of the completed property
{using the discounted cash flow method) less estimated costs to completion.

Fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3)

2020 2019

£Em £m

Qpening fair vaiue 3,9291 1,904.0
Acquired through business combination - 1,952.1
(Losses) and gains recognised in incame statement {135.4} 146.7
Capital expenditure 119.8 236.9
Disposals {9.8) (310.6)
Closing fair value 3,903.7 3,929
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Quantitative information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Level 3)

2020

Fairvalue Valuation Weighted
£m technigque Unobservable inputs Range average
Londen - 1,137.0 Discounted Net rental income {£ per week) £164-£370 £267
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%} 2%-3% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 3.5%-5.0% 4.0%
Prime provincial - 949.3 Discounted Net rental income {£ per week) £140-£229 £169
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 2%-3% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.0%-6.2% 4.8%
Major provincial - 1.255.8 Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £B2-£167 £132
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rentincrease (%) 1%-3% 2%
Discount rate (vield) (%) 4.7%-7.0% 5.7%
Other provincial - 272.6 Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £87-£188 £136
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 1%-3% 2%
Discount rate {yield) (36) 5.0%-13.8% 6.8%
London - 158.8 Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £84.9m-£147.9m £114.9m
development properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase {%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.0% 4.0%
Prime provincial - 25.6 Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £19.1m-£65.3m £40.8m
development properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase {%) 3% 3%
Disceunt rate (yield) (%) 4.3% 4.3%
Major provincial - 2.8 Discounted Estimated cost to complete (£Em) £45.5m £45.5m
development properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%) - -

3,801.9
Investment property 101.8 Discounted Net rental incame (£ per week) £129-£185 £147
(leased) cash flows Estimated future rent increase {%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 6.8% 6.8%

Fair value at 31 December 2020 3,903.7
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Acceunts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued

3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued
Quantitative information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Level 3) continued

2019
Fairvalue Valuation Weighted
£m  technique Unobservable inputs Range average
London - 1,015.0 Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £192-£367 £277
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 3%-5% 4%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 3.9%-5.0% 4.0%
Pritne provincial - 876.5 Discounted Net rental income {£ per week) £137-£212 £163
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 2%-5% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.5%-6.0% 5.0%
Major provincial - 1,198.1 Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £74-£157 £129
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 2%-5% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.8%-6.1% 57%
Other provincial - 317.3 Discounted Net rental incoma (£ per week) £107-£181 £138
rental properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 1%-4% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.0%-15.5% 6.6%
London - 245.1 Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £30.8m-£91.4m £65.6m
development properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 2% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.0% 4.0%
Prime provincial - 76.1 Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £16.8m-£76.4m £43.2m
development properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase {%) 3% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.8%=5.0% 4.9%
Major provincial - 90.6 Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £35,1m-£46.8m £39.6m
development properties cash flows Estimated future rent increase {%) 3% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.5% 4.5%
3,818.7

Investment property 110.4  Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £121-£167

({leased) cash flows Estimated future rent increase (%) 3%

Discount rate (yield) (%) 6.8%

Fair value at 31 December 2019 3,929

Fair value sensitivity analysis

A decrease in net rental income or occupancy will result in a decrease in the fair value, whereas a decrease in the discount
rate {yieldy will result in an increase in fair value. There are inter-relationships between these rates as they are partially
determined by market rate conditions.

Fair value at

31 December 2020

+5%

change in
estimated net
rental income

-5%

changein
estimated net
rantal income

+25 bps
change in nominal
equivalent yield

-25 bps
change in nominal
equivalent yield

Class of assets £m Em £m £m £m
Rental properties

London 1,137.0 1,.213.8 1,100.5 1,050.1 1,233.2
Prime provincial 949.3 1,019.3 §23.7 G238 1,024.5
Major provincial 1,255.8 1,350.3 1.222.6 1,232.5 1.345.4
Other provincial 2726 294.8 266.8 2704 2921
Development properties

Londaon 158.8 169.7 1479 142.6 168.0
Prime provincial © 256 30.4 20.9 18.5 342
Major provincial 2.8 2.8 2.8 4.7 11
Market value 3.801.9 4,081 3,685.2 3,682.6 4,098.5
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3.2 Inventories

Accounting policies

Inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. All costs directly
associated with the purchase and construction of a property, and all subsequent qualifying expenditure is capitalised.

2620 2019

£m £m

Interests in land 6.7 1.5
Cther stocks 21 2.5
Inventories 8.8 4.0

At 31 December 2020, the Group had interests in four pieces of land {2019: two pieces of land).

3.3 Right of use assets and other non-current assets

Accounting policies

Leased assets

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, atinception of the contract. The Group recognises a right
of use asset and a corresponding lease liability (see note 4.6a} with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the
lessee. Right of use assets have been measured following the approach in IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii}, whereby right of use assets
are set equal to the lease liability, adjusted for prepaid or accrued lease payments. They are subsequently measured at
this initial value less accumulated depreciation and impairment |osses.

Property, plant and equipment

Other than land and buildings, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see below). Land and buildings are stated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties.
Property, plant and equipment mainly comprise leasehold improvements at the Group's head office and London office
as well as computer hardware and software at these sites.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. Freehold land
is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

« Right of use assets Shorter of lease and economic life

* Property, plant and equipment 4-7 years

Intangible assets

Intangible assets predominantly comprise computer software which allows customers to book online and processes
transactions within the sales cycle. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. The assets are amartised on a straight-line basis over four to seven years, being
the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets, from the date they are available for use. Amortisation is charged to
the income statement within operating expenses.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued
3.3a) Right of use assets

2020 2019
Buildings Other Toral Buildings Other Total
£m £m Em £Em £m Em
Cost

At1January 5.8 0.8 6.6 3.7 0.6 43
Additions - 0.6 0.6 1.4 0.2 16
Acquired through business combination - - - 0.7 - 0.7
At 31 December 5.8 1.4 7.2 5.8 0.8 6.6

Amortisation
At 1 January {0.8) (0.3) {1.1) - - -
Amortisation charge for the year (1.4) (0.4) {1.8) (0.8} (0.3) [{B)}
AL 31 December (2.2) {0.7) {2.9) (0.8) {0.3) nn
Carrying value at 1 January 5.0 0.5 5.5 37 0.6 43
Erying value at 31 December 3.6 0.7 4.3 5.0 0.5 55

The Group leases several assets including office equipment and vehicles. The average lease term is three years.

Approximately 42% of the leases expired in the current financial year {2019: 10%). The expired contracts were replaced by
new leases for identical underlying assets. This resulted in additions to right of use assets of £0.6 million in 2020 (201%:
£0.2 million).

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 4.6a.

3.3b) Other non-current assets
The Group's other non-current assets can be analysed as follows:

2020 2019
Property, Property,
plantand Intangible plant and Intangible
equipment assets Total equipment assets Toral
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
AT January 11.4 59.1 70.5 10.7 53.6 64.3
Additions 0.7 2.7 3.4 0.4 51 5.5
Acquired through business combination - - - 03 0.4 0.7
AL 31 December 121 61.8 739 1.4 59.1 70.5
Depreciation and amortisation
At 1January (8.1) (36.4) {44.5) (7.2) {30.8) (38.0)
Depreciation/amortisation charge for the year nn (6.4) (7.5) (0.9) (5.6) {6.5)
At 31 December (9.2) (42.8) (52.0) 8.1 (36.4) (44.5)
Carrying value at 1 January 3.3 22.7 26.0 10.2 228 33.0
Carrying amount at 31 December 29 19.0 219 3.3 227 26.0

Intangible assets include £1.1 million (2019: £3.5 million) of assets not being amortised as they are not yet ready for use.
Property, plant and equipment assets include £0.1 million {2019: £0.8 million) of assets not being depreciated as they are
not ready for use. At 31 December 2020 the Group had capital commitments of £0.1 million (2019: £0.5 million) relating to
intangible assets and £0.3 million {2019: £nil) relating to Property, plant and equipment.
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3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group)

Accounting policies

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual
agreement. The cansolidated financial statements include joint ventures initially at cost subsequently, increased or
decreased by the Group's share of total gains and losses of joint ventures on an equity basis. Interest free joint venture
investment loans are initially recorded at fair value - the difference between the nominal amount and fair value

being treated as an investrment in the joint venture. The implied discount is amortised over the contracted life of the
investment loan.

The Directors consider that the agreements integral to its joint ventures result in the Group having joint control over the
key matters required to operate the joint ventures, A significant degree of judgement is exercised in this assessment
due to the complexity of the contractual arrangements.

USAF and LSAY are jointly owned entities that are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to the complexity of the
contractual arrangements and Unite's role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the assessment of joint control
following changes to acceunting standards (IFRS 10) involves judgements around a number of significant factors. These
factors include how Unite as fund manager has the ability to direct relevant activities such as acquisitions, disposals,
capital expenditure for refurbishments and funding whether through debt or equity. This assessment for USAF is
complex because of the number of unitholders and how their rights are represented through an Advisory Committee.
For some of the activities it is not clear who has definitive control of the activities: in some scenarios the Group can
control, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the activities which are considered to have the greatest impact
on the returns of USAF, acquisitions and equity financing, it has been determined that the Group and the Advisory
Committee has joint control in directing these activities and that on balance, it is appropriate to account for USAF as a
joint venture, The assessment for LSAV is mere straightforward because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint
venture and there is therefore much clearer eviderice that control over the key activities is shared by the two parties.

The Group has two joint ventures:

Group’s share of assets/ Legal entity in which
Joint venture results 2020 (2019) Objective Partner Group has interest
The UNITE UK Student 23.4%* (23.4%) Invest and cperate Consertium of investors UNITE UK Student
Accommodation Fund student accommeodation Accommmodation Fund,
{USAF) throughout the UK a Jersey Unit Trust
London Student 50% {50%) Operate student GIC Real Estate Pte, Ltd Real  LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit
Accommodation accommeodation estate investmentvehicle of  Trust and LSAV (Holdings) Ltd,
Venture (LSAV) in London and the Government of Singapore  incorporated in jersey

Birmingham

* Partof the Group’s interast is held through a subsidiary, USAF (Feeder) Guernsey Limited, tn which there is an external investor. A minority interast
therefore occurs on consolidation of the Group's results representing the external investor’s share of profits and assets relating te its investmentin USAF,
The ordinary shareholders of The Unite Group PLC are beneficially interested in 22.0% (2019: 22.0%) of USAF.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued

3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued
3.4a) Net assets and results of the joint ventures
The summarised batance sheets and results for the year, and the Group's share of these joint ventures are as follows:

2020
USAF LSAV Total
£m £m £m

Gross M Share Gross Share Gross Share

Investment property 2,798.3 38.3 616.7 1,323.6 661.3 4,121.9 1,316.8

Cash 697 1.0 15.4 74.6 37.3 144.3 53.7
Debt (912.7} {12.5) (201.1) {536.4) (268.2} (1,449.1) (481.8)
Swap liabilities - - - {1.2) (0.5} (1.2) {0.6)

Cther current assets 1.0 - 0.2 0.4 0.2 1.4 0.4
Other current liabilities {61.0) (1.5} {13.4) (49,2) (24.6) (110.2) {39.5)

Net assets 1,895.3 25.3 417.8 811.8 405.9 2,7071 £849.0
Minority interest - (25.3) - - - - {25.3}

Swap habilities - - - 1.2 0.6 1.2 0.6
EPRA NTA 1,895.3 - 417.8 813.0 406.5 2,708.3 824.3
{Loss)/profit for the year (42,6} {0.8) (11.1y 0.6 0.3 (42.0) {11.6)

2019
USAF LSAV Total
£m £m £m

Gross Mi Share Gross Share Gross Share

Investment property 2,8499 39.0 628.0 1,335.0 667.5 41849 1,334.5
Cash 237 03 5.2 45.6 22.8 69.3 28.3
Debt (882.1) (12.1) {194.4) (535.2) (267.6) (1.417.3) 474.1)
Swap liabilities - - - (1.2) {0.6) (1.2) {0.6)
Other current assets 151.8 21 334 2.7 1.3 154.5 36.8
Other current liabilities (160.6} {2.6) (34.9) (24.4) (12.2) (185.0) 49.7)
Net assets 1,982.7 26.7 437.3 822.5 411.2 2,805.2 875.2
Minority interest - (26.7} - - - - {26.7)
Swap liabilities - - - 1.2 0.6 1.2 0.6
EPRA NTA 1,982.7 - 437.3 823.7 411.8 2,806.4 8491
Profit for the year 144.0 21 371 126.9 63.4 270.9 102.6

Net assets and (loss)/profit for the year above include the minority interest, whereas EPRA NTA excludes the minerity

interest,
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3.4b) Movement in carrying value of the Group’s investments in joint ventures

The carrying value of the Group’s investment in joint ventures decreased by £26.2 million during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: £55.5 million increase), resulting in an overall carrying value of £849.0 million (2019:

£875.2 millicn).

The following table shows how the decrease has arisen.

2020 2019
£m £m
Recognised in the income statement:
Operations segment result 237 36.4
Minority interest share of Operaticns segment result 0.6 1.1
Management fee adjustment related to trading with joint venture 6.3 6.8
Net valuation (losses)/gains on investment property {41.5) 58.3
Property disposals - 0.4
Other {0.7) {c.4)
{11.6) 102.6
Recognised in equity:
Movement in effective hedges (0.1) {0.5)
Qther adjustments to the carrying value:
Profit adjustment related to trading with joint venture (6.3) 8.1
Additicnal capital invested in LSAV 7.5 -
LSAV performance fee (5.7) {5.7)
Distributions received (10.0) {32.8)
{Decrease)/increase in carrying value (26.2) 55.5
Carrying value at 1 January 875.2 819.7
Carrying value at 31 December 849.0 875.2

3.4¢) Transactions with joint ventures

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures and receives management fees in relation to

these services,
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In addition, the Group is entitled to performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform certain ;

benchmarks. The Group receives either cash or an enhanced equity interest in the joint ventures as consideration for w

the performance fee. The Group has recognised the following gross fees in its results for the year. =z

5

2020 2019 3

£m £m 3

s
USAF 13.5 14.6
LSAY 6.6 6.4
Asset and property management fees 201 21.0
LSAV performance fee 1.4 11.4
USAF acquisition fee - 2.8
Investment management fees 11.4 14.2
Total fees 31.5 35.2

On an EPRA basis, fees from joint ventures are shown net of the Group's share of the cost te the joint ventures,

The Group’s share of the cost to the joint ventures is £6.1 million (2018: £6.6 million), which results in management fees

from joint ventures of £14.0 million being shown in the Operating segment result in note 2.2a (2019: £14.4 million}).
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued

3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued
3.4¢) Transactions with joint ventures continued
Investment management fees are included within the unallocated to segments section in note 2.2a.

The Group did not sell any properties to USAF or LSAV in 2020. During 2019, the Group sold five properties to USAF for
gross proceeds of £202.3 million. All five properties had been held on balance sheet as investment property within non-
current assets. The proceeds and carrying value of the property are therefore recognised in profit on disposal of property
and the cash flows in investing activities. The profits relating to the sales, associated disposal costs and related cash flows
are set out below:

Profit and loss

2020 2019

USAF

£m £m

Included in profit on disposal of property (net of joint venture trading adjustment) - 1.8

Profit on disposal of property - 18
Cash flow

2020 2019

USAF

£m £m

Gross proceeds - 202.3

Net cash flows included in cash flows from investing activities - 2023

3.5 Investments in subsidiaries (Company)

Accounting policies

In the financial statements of the Company, investments in subsidiaries are held at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in Other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Carrying value of investment in subsidiaries
The movements in the Company's interest in unlisted subsidiaries and joint ventures during the year are as follows:

Investmentin subsidiaries

2020 2019

£m £m

At 1 January 2,213.7 1,189.4
Additions - 1,397.1
Revaluation {387.0) (372.8)
At 31 December 1,826.7 2,213.7

The carrying value of investment in subsidiaries has been calculated using the equity attributable to the owners of
the parent coampany from the consolidated balance sheet adjusted for the fair value of fixed rate loans. This includes

investment property, investment property under development and swaps at a fair value calculated by a third party expert.

Allinvestment properties and investment properties under development are classified as Level 3 in the IFRS 13 fair value
hierarchy and have been discussed on page 190. The fixed rate loans range between Level 1 and Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fair
value hierarchy and have been discussed further an page 260.

A full list of the Company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures can be found in note 9.
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Section 4: Funding

The Group finances its development and investment activities through a mixture of retained earnings,
borrowings and equity. The Group continuously monitors its financing arrangements to manage its gearing.

0 Interest rate swaps are used to manage the Group's risk to fluctuations in interest rate movements.

The following pages provide disclosures about the Group's funding position, including borrowings, gearing
and hedging instruments; its exposure to market risks; and its capital management policies.

The Merger reserve arose on the acquisition of the Unilodge portfolic in june 2001.

Accounting policies
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, less any attributable transaction costs, and
subsequently at amortised cost.

No financial assets or liabilities have been classified as either fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The accounting policies applicable to specific financial assets and liabilities, and financing costs, are set outin the
relevant notes.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

The accounting policy is set outin full in note 5.2.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk. Further details of
derivative financial instruments, including the relevant accounting policies, are disclosed in notes 4.2 and 4.5,

4.1 Borrowings

Accounting policies

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognised in the income statement cver the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

The table below analyses the Group’s barrowings which comprise bank and other leans by when they fall due for payment:

Group - Carrying value Company - Carrying value
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m Em £m £m
Current

In one year or less, or on demand - 1.4 - -

Non-current
In more than ane year but not more than twe years 795.9 1.5 795.9 -
In more than two years but not more than five years 297.3 964.7 - 172.2
In more than five years 568.6 567.6 270.7 270.0
1,661.8 1,533.8 1,066.6 442.2
Unamortised fair value of debt recognised on acquisition 28.1 324 - -
Total borrowings 1,689.9 1,567.6 1,066.6 442.2

in addition to the borrowings currently drawn as shown above, the Group has available undrawn facilities of £50.0 million
(2019: £305.0 million). A further overdraft facility of £10.0 million {2019: £10.0 million) is also available.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued

4.1 Borrowings continued

Properties with a carrying value of £nil (2019: £604.7 million} have been pledged as security against the Group's drawn
down borrowings. During the year the Group repaid all of its secured borrowings, retaining only unsecured borrowing at
31 Decermber 2020.

The carrying value and fair value of the Group’s borrowings is analysed below:

2020 2019
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

£m Em £m £m

Level 1 IFRS fair value hierarchy 903.1 932.2 9074 930.9
Level 2 IFRS fair value hierarchy - - 2318 2446
Other loans and unamortised arrangement fees 786.8 786.8 428.3 4283
Total borrowings 1,689.9 1,719.0 1,567.6 1,603.8

The fair value of loans classified as Level 1 in the IFRS fair value hierarchy is determined using quoted prices in active
markets for identical liabilities.

The fair value of loans classified as Level 2 in the IFRS fair value hierarchy has been calculated by a third party expert
discounting estimated future cash flows on the basis of market expectation of future interest rates. The fair value
represents the net present value of the difference between the contracted rate and the valuation rate when applied to the
projected balances for the period from the reported date to the contracted expiry date. Loans are valued using the mid-
point of the yield curve prevailing on the reparting date. The valuations do not include accrued interest from the previous
settlement date 1o the reporting date nor a credit valuation adjustment.

The following table shows the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2020
at 1January Financing Fair Value Other at21December
2020 cash flows adjustments  changes 2020
Borrowings 1,567.6 1217 (4.3) 4.9 1,689.9
Lease liabilities 104.8 4.3) - 0.6 1011
Interest rate swaps 7.6 - 16.0 - 23.6
Total liabilities from financing activities 1.680.0 117.4 nz 5.5 1,814.6
2019
Acquired
through business
at 31 December Financing combination Fair Value Other at31December
2018 cash flows (nota ) adjustments changes 2019
Borrowings 5926 79.0 861.7 324 1.9 1,567.6
Lease liabilities 109.5 (5.6) 09 - - 104.8
Interest rate swaps o1 - - 75 - 7.6
Total liabilities from financing activities 702.2 73.4 862.6 39.9 19 1,680.0
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4.2 Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations. In accordance with the
Group's treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue interest rate swaps for trading purposes and only holds swaps
which are considered to be commercially effective.

Accounting policies
Interest rate swaps are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value, with mark to market movements recognised
in the income statement unless cash flow hedge accounting is applied.

The Group designates certain irileresl rale derivatives as hedging instruments. |he interest rate swap is designated

as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variabllity in cash flows attributable to the interest risk of borrowings. At
inception the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with the
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

+ there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

+ the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship; and

» the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that
quantity of hedged item.

The effactive portion of changes in fair value of the interest rate swap is recognised in Other comprehensive income
and presented under the heading of Hedging reserve in equity, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the
hedged item from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. If the
Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that
amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship {or a part thereof) ceases to meet the
qualifying criteria. This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised.
The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in Other comprehensive income and
accurmulated in the hedging reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the forecast
transaction accurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumuiated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified immediately to profit or loss.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the
swap counterparties.

The following table shows the fair value of interest rate swaps:

2020 2018

£Em fm

Current 5.8 -
Non-current 17.8 7.6
Fair value of interest rate swaps 236 76

The fair value of interest rate swaps (a credit balance in 2020 and 2019) have been calculated by a third party expert,

discounting estimated future cash flows on the basis of market expectations of future interest rates, representing Level 2

in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued
4.3 Net financing costs

Accounting policies

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings and interest on lease liabilities, less interest receivable on
funds invested (both caiculated using the effective interest rate method) and gains and losses on hedging instruments

that are recognised in the income statement.

2020 2018
Recognised in the income statement: £m £m
Interestincome (5.6} (5.5)
Finance income (5.6) (5.5)
Gross interest expense on loans 50.8 329
Interest capitalised {4.6) (2.0
Amortisation of fair value of debt recognised on acquisition (4.3) -
Loan interest and similar charges 41.9 238
Interest on lease liabilities 8.8 g.2
Mark to market changes an interest rate swaps 5.8 2.7
Swap cancellation and loan break costs 3041 2.7
Finance costs 86.6 38.4
Net financing costs 81.0 32.9

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investment debt for the year ended 31 December 2020 is 3.2% (2019: 3.3%).
The overall average cost of investment debt on an EPRA hasis is 3.2% (2019: 3.3%).

4.4 Gearing

LTV is a key indicator that the Group uses to manage its indebtedness. The Group also monitors gearing, which is

calculated using EPRA net asset value (NAV) and adjusted net debt. Adjusted net debt excludes IFRS 16 lease liabilities,
the unamortised fair value of debt recognised on acquisition and mark to market of interest rate swaps as shown below.

The Group’s gearing ratios are calculated as follows:

2020 2018
Note £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 51 338.3 86.9
Current borrowings 4.1 - (1.4)
Non-current borrowings 4. (1,689.9) (1,566.2)
Lease liabilities 4.6a (101.1) (104.8)
Interest rate swaps 4.2 {23.6) (7.6)
Net debt per balance sheet {1,476.3) {1,593.1)
Lease liabilities 4.6a 1011 104.8
Unarmnortised fair value of debt recognised on acquisition 2.3¢c 281 324
Adjusted net debt (1.347.1) (1,448.3)
Reported netassetvalue 2.3¢ 3,2349 3,071.5
EPRA netassetvalue 2.3c 3,285.2 3,109.7
Gearing
Basic {net debt/reported net asset value) 46% 52%
Adjusted gearing {adjusted net debt/EPRA net asset value) 41% 47%
Loan to value 23a 34% 37%
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4.5 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks {(primarily interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's treasury policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Details on credit risk can be found in note 5.3.

4.5a) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, and
by the use of interest rate swap contracts and forward interest rate contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regulariy to
align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite; ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

The Group holds its debt finance under both floating and fixed rate arrangements. The majority of floating debt is hedged
through the use of interest rate swap agreements. The Group’s policy guideline has been to hedge 75%-95% of the
Group’s exposure for terms of approximately two to ten years.

At 31 December 2020, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 70% (2019; 93%) of the Group's borrowing was held at
fixed rates. Excluding the £250.0 million (2019: £342.3 million} of swaps and caps the fixed investment borrowing is at an
average rate of 3.2% (2019: 3.5%) for an average period of 6.8 years (2019: 6.9 years), including all debt with current or
forward starting swaps the average rate is 3.2% (2019: 3.2%).

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest
amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of
changing interest rates upon the issuance of forecast fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued
variable rate debt held. The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the
future cash flows using the curves at the reporting date and is disclosed below. The average interest rate is based on the
cutstanding balances at the end of the financial year,

As the critical terms of the hedge contracts and their corresponding hedged items are the same, the Group performs

a qualitative assessment of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the
value of the corresponding hedged items will systematically change in opposite direction in response to movements in
the underlying interest rates. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge relationships is the effect of the
counterparty and the Group's own credit risk on the fair value of the hedge contracts, which is not reflected in the fair
value of the hedged itern attributable to the change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from
these hedging relationships.

The Group holds interest rate swaps and caps at 31 December 2020 against £250.0 millien (2019: £342.3 million) of the
Group's borrowings. The maturity of these swaps and the applicable interest rates are shown below, in line with disclosure
under [FRS 7:24B(b). The following tables detail various information regarding interest rate swap contracts outstanding at
the end of the reporting period and their related hedged items.

Hedging instruments

Applicable interest rates Nominal amount hedged Carrying amaunt of hedge Change in fair value
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
% % £m £m £m £m £m Em
Within one year 1.6 - - - (5.8} - (5.8) -
Between ane and two years 01 - 250.0 - (4.2) ~ (4.2) -
Between two and five years - 0.9 - 342.3 - (2.5) 2.5 (2.4}
Maore than five years 1.6 1.6 50.0 $00.0 (13.6) (5.1 {8.5) (5.1}
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued

4.5 Financial risk factors continued
4.5a) Interest rate risk continued
Hedged items

Hedging reserve -

Nominal amount Change in value Hedging reserve - continuing discontinued*
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Variable rate borrowings 800.0 445.0 - - (15.8) {5.5) 1.8 2.0

* Balance in cash flow hedging reserve representing the unamartised value of the realised swap gain from hedging relationship for which hedge accounting
isno longer applied.

The following table details the effectiveness of the hedging relationship and the amounts reclassified from hedging
reserve to profit or loss:

Reclassified Reclassified
Hedge to P&L - to P&L-
Losses in OCI ineffectiveness discontinued continuing
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2018
£m £m £m £m Line item in P&L £m £m £m £m Line itemin P&L
. Mark to market
; . Other gains

Variable rate borrowings (12.8) (4.8 (3.3) (2.7) and losses 2.3 0.2 - - movements on

interest rate swaps

The interest rate swaps settle on a monthly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is one-month LIBOR.
The Group will settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Allinterest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated
as cash flow hedges to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The
interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan accur simultaneously and the amount accumulated in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss over the peried that the floating rate interest payments on debt affect profit or loss.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and
non-derivative instruments as at 31 December 2020. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A 1% increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant the Group's loss for the year ended

31 December 2020 would increase by £8.0 million (2019: £nil}. This is mainly attributable to the Group’s reduced
proportion of hedging. The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the year mainly due to the lower
proportion of debt hedged.

Phase 1 IBOR reform

At 31 December 2020 the Group had £800 million of floating rate debt that fixes on the basis of LIBOR together with related
derivative hedges fixing on the same basis with a notional value of £300 million. The Group has entered discussions with the
lenders to manage the transition of the debt and hedges to alternative benchmark rates during 2021, although exact timing is
uncertain. The debt will transition to the risk free rate coterminously with the related hedge instruments, and management do
not anticipate any significant impact on the existing hedging arrangements reparted at year-end as a result of the transition.

4.5b) Credit risk on financial instruments

In arder to minimise credit risk, the Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Group only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and investments in these
instruments, where the counterparties have minimum A- credit rating, are considered to have low credit risk for the
purpose of impairment assessment. The credit rating information is supplied by independent rating agencies where
available and, if not available, the Group uses other publicly available financial information including CDS price and its
own trading records to rate its major customers. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties in
line with Board policy.
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Before accepting any new customer, the finance team uses external credit ratings to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Monitoring procedures are also in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken when ratings deteriorate. The Group does not hold any credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable;

+ when thereis a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

= information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is uniikely to pay its
creditors, induding the Group, in full (without taking into account collateral held by the Group).

Details of the credit quality of the Group's financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by credit
risk rating grades are set out on note 5.3.

4.5¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Ultimate responsibility for liguidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liguidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Details of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has
atits disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set out below.

For development activities, the Group has a policy of raising substantially the full amount of equity required for each
development before drawing debt against the development. The funding requirements of developments are therefore
secured at the outset of works.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractua! maturity for its non-derivative financiai liabilities with
agreed repayment periods, The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

2020
Weighted
average
effective Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 5+ Carrying
Interest rate 1 month maonths - 1year years years Total amount
8% £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Variable interest rate instruments 1.7 - - - 800.0 - 800.0 800.0
Fixed interest rate instruments 3.2 - - - 300.0 575.0 875.0 875.0
Lease liabilities 4.2 0.4 0.7 3.3 23.0 737 10141 1011
Trade and other payables n/a - 141.3 - - - 141.3 141.3
Total 0.4 142.0 3.3 1,123.0 648.7 1,917.4 1,917.4
2019
Weighted
average
effective Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 5+ Carrying
interest rate 1 month months -1year years years Total amount
% £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Variable interest rate instruments 23 - - - 445.0 - 445.0 445.0
Fixed interest rate instruments 35 - - - 2319 875.0 1.106.9 1,106.9
Lease liabilities 4.2 0.3 0.6 3.0 20.4 80.5 104.8 104.8
Trade and other payables n/a - 2347 - - - 2347 2347
Total 0.3 235.3 3.0 697.3 955.5 1,891.4 1,891.4
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued

4.5 Financial risk factors continued
4.5¢} Liquidity risk continued

The Group has access to financing facilities as described below, of which £60.0 million were unused at the reporting date
(2019: £315.0 million). The Group expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows.

2020 2019
£m £m
Unsecured bank averdraft facility, reviewed annually and payable at call:

-amountused - -
- amount unused 10.0 10.0
10.0 10.0

Unsecured committed bank loan facilities which may be extended by mutual agreement:
-amountused 500.0 195.0
- amount unused 50.0 305.0
550.0 500.0

4.5d) Covenant compliance

The Group monitors its covenant position and the forecast beadroom available on a monthly basis. At 31 December 2020,
the Group was in full compliance with all of its borrowing covenants.

The Group’s unsecured borrowings carry several covenants. The covenant regime is IFRS based and gives the Group
substantial operational flexibility, allowing property acquisitions, disposals and developments to occur with relative freedom.

2020 2019

Covenant Actual Covenant Actual
Gearing <1.50 0.42 <1.50 6.50
Unencumbered assets ratio >1.70 2.81 >1.70 2.52
Secured gearing <0.25 0.0 <0.25 0.0%
Development assets ratio <30% 4% <30% 3%
Joint venture ratio < 55% 18% < 55% 19%
Interest cover >2.00 39 »>2.00 76

The Group also has bonds which carry several covenants which the Group was also in full compliance with as set out
below,

2020 2019
Weighted covenant Weighted actual Weighted covenant Weighted actual
Net gearing < 60% 35% < 60% 40%
Secured gearing < 25% 0% < 25% 0%
Ursecured gearing >1.67 2.87 =167 2.50
Interest cover >1.75 2.67 >175 3.87

The Group’s two secured loan facilities were repaid in full in 2020, The covenant headroom position on the secured loans
in 2019 is outlined below and assumes that the Group is able to use available cash within net debt.

2020 2019
Weighted covenant Weighted actual Weighted covenant Weighted actual
Loan ta value n/a n/a 75% 36%
Interest cover n/a n/a 1.5 26
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4.6 Leases
4.6a) Lease liabilities

Accounting policies

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right of use asset (see note 3.1a) and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which
itis the lessee.

[Ea]

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the =

commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, o

the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. &

m
o

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated balance sheet, g

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability

(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability whenever:

* The lease term has changed, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

« The lease payments change due to changes in an index, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by —
discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is g
due ta a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used). fg"

* Alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case %

{

the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the period presentad,

2020 2019
Lease liabilities Em £m
Analysed as:
Non-current 96.7 1009
Current 4.4 3.9
Total lease liahility 1011 104.8 %1
Lease liability maturity analysis §
Year 1 4.4 39 &
Year 2 4.8 4.4 =
Year 3 5.4 a6 g
Year 4 6.2 53 g
Year5 6.6 6.1 a
Onwards 73.7 805
Tatal 10141 104.8

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard te its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within
the Group's treasury function.

UONBULIOIU} 230 ‘
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Regort & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued

4.6 Leases continued
4.6b) Lease recelvables
The Group accounts for its tenancy contracts offered to commercial and individual tenants as operating leases.

Operating lease contracts with Universities contain RPi uplifts and market review clauses,
The lessee does not have an aption to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period,

Maturity analysis of operating lease receivables
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2020 2019

£m £m

Less than ane year 169.8 196.3
Between one and five years 296.7 241.3
Mare than five years 363.0 359.3
Total 829.5 796.9

4.7 Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders’ equity and adjusted net debt, including cash held on deposit.
The Group's equity is analysed into its various components in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The components and
calculation of adjusted net debt is set out in note 4.4. Capital is managed so as to continue as a going concern and to promote
the long-term suiccess of the business and to maintain sustainable returns for shareholders and joint venture partners.

The Group uses a number of key metrics to manage its capital structure:

+ adjusted net debt (note 4.4)
* adjusted gearing (note 4.4} LTV (note 2.3a)
* weighted average cost of investment debt (note 4.5a}

In order to manage levels of adjusted gearing over the medium term, the Group seeks to deliver NAV growth and to recycle
capital invested in lower performing assets intc new assets and property developments. £9.8 million of property assets
were sold in 2020 and we plan to sell £150-£200 million of property during 2021. The Group targets a yield on cost of
approximately 7% from investments in its development and University partnerships pipeline. The Group does not commit
to developing new sites until sufficient equity and funding to fulfil the full cost of the development is secure.

The Board monitors the ability of the Group to pay dividends out of available cash and distributable profits. Based on
the assumption that no shareholders take up the scrip dividend, the full year dividend will be covered by operating cash
flows. The full year dividend is expected to be £50.8 million compared to operating cash flow of £57.3 million.
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4.8 Equity

Accounting policies

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on
a business combination, are shown as a deduction, net of tax, in equity from the proceeds. Share issue costs incurred
directly in connection with a business combination are deducted from the proceeds of the issue.

MBIAIBAD ‘

The Company’s issued share capital has increased during the year as follows: W

g

D

2020 2019 pih

ial

Ordinary Share Ordinary Share (.;E'

Called up, allotted and fully paid No. of shares Premium No. of shares Premium o

ordinary shares of £0.25p each shares Em £m shares £m £m %
At 1 )anuary 363,591,882 920.9 1,874.9 263,515,151 65.9 740.5
Shares issued (placing) 34,502,872 8.6 2851 26,353,664 6.6 2476
Shares issued (scrip dividend) - - - 1,017,472 0.3 (0.3}
Shares issued (consideraticn for Liberty Living) - - - 72,582,286 18.1 887.0
Shares issued (options exercised) 75,678 - 0.3 123,309 - 0.1
At 37 December 398,170,432 99.5 2.160.3 363,591,882 90.9 1,874.9

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote o

per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. B

3

u

4.9 Dividends A

Accounting policies

Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment.

During the year, the Company cancelled the proposed final 2019 dividend and did not pay an interim 2020 dividend {2019:
£23.3 million interim dividend - 10.25p per share and £47.5 million final dividend - 19.5p per share relating to the year

ended 31 December 2018),

After the year-end, the Directors proposed a final dividend per share of 12.75p (2019: 22.95p which was subseguently
cancelled), bringing the total dividend per share for the year to 12.75p (2019: 10.25p). No provision has been made in

relation to this dividend.

The Group has modelled tax adjusted property business profits for 2620 and 2021 and the PID requirement in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2020 is expected to be satisfied by the end of 2021.
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The Unite Group PLC Ahnual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital

o operating cycle.

This section focuses on how the Group generates its operating cash flows. Careful management of working
capital is vital to ensure that the Group can meet its trading and financing obligations within its ordinary

On the following pages you will find disclosures around the Group's tash position and how cash is generated
from the Group's trading activities, and disclosures around trade receivables and payables.

Accounting policies

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and cali depaosits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash

management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group’s cash position at 31 December 2020 was £338.3 million {2019: £86.9 million).

The Group's cash balances include £1.2 million (2019: £2.6 million) whose use at the balance sheet date is restricted by

funding agreements to pay operating costs.

The Group generates cash from its operating activities as follows:

Group company
Mote 2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £Em £m £Em £m
Loss for the year (122.2) (87.61 (118.8} (139.9)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 9.2 76 - -
Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible asset - 3841 - -
Acquisition costs - 22.8 - -
Fair value of share-based payments 6.1 1.7 2.2 - -
Dividends received - - (300.0) {276.0)
Change in value of investrment property (owned and under development) 31 124.2 (154.8) - -
Change in value of investment property (teased) 3.1 11.2 8.1 - -
Change in value of investments 3.5 - - 387.0 3729
Net finance costs excluding interest on lease liabilities 4.3 451 183 26,7 13.9
Mark to market changes in interest rate swaps 4.3 5.8 2.7 - -
Swap break and debt exit costs 4.3 301 27 1.5 -
Loss on disposal of investment property {owned) 1.9 6.2 - -
Loss on disposal of investment property {leased) - 1.1 - -
Share of joint venture loss/{profit) 3.4b 11.6 (102.6) - -
Trading with joint venture adjustment 12.0 8.1 - -
Tax charge/{credit) 2.5z 21 (13.6) - -
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working capital 132.7 105.3 (3.6} (28.5)
(Increaseldecrease in trade and other receivables (0.3) {1.6) (0.1 0.4
{Increase) in inventories (4.5) (1.7) - -
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (53.3) (21.3) 3.0 25.9
Cash flows from operating activities 74.6 80.7 (0.7} (2.5)
Tax paid (1.3} 2.2 - -
Net cash flows from operating activities 73.3 78.5 {0.7) (2.5)

Cash flows consist of the folfowing segmental cash infiows/(cutflows): operations £57.3 miliion (2019: £85.4 million),

property (£78.2 million) {2019: £191.8 million} and unallocated £272.3 million (2019: £314.5 million).
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The unallocated amount includes a net cash outflow of £nil in respect of the acquisition of Liberty Living (2019: £487.1
million), amounts received from shares issued £294.0 million (2019; £254.7 million), dividends paid £nil (2019: (£69.6
million)), tax paid (£1.3 million) (2019: (£2.2 million)) and investment in joint ventures (£7.5 million} {2019 £nil}.

During the year the Company novated £400 million of debt (2019: nil) frem subsidiary undertakings and this forms the
significant proportion of non-cash movement in inter-company balances.

5.2 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policies

On the basis that trade receivables meet the business model and cash flow characteristics tests, they are initially
recognised at transaction price and then subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognising lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables as
these items do not have a significant financing component.

In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as they possess
shared credit risk characteristics. They have been grouped based on the days past due and also according to whether
the tenant is a commercial organisation {(including Universities) or an individual student.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profile for sales by academic year as well as the corresponding
historical credit losses during the period. The historical rate are adjusted to reflect any current and forwarding looking
macroeconomic factors affecting the customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding, however given the short
period exposed to credit risk, the impact of macroeconomic factors has not been considered significant within the
reporting period.

Trade receivables are written off (ie derecognised) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to
make payments within a reasaonable period from the invoice date and failure to engage with the Group on alternative
payment arrangements, amongst others are considered indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery precedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables can be analysed as follows; all trade and other receivables are current.

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£m £m £m £m

Trade receivables 16.4 305 - -
Amounts due from Group undertakings (note 5.6) - - 2,385.9 1,208.0
Amounts due from joint ventures 25.2 18.7 - -
LSAY performance fee 228 11.4 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 245 200 - -
Other receivables 151 6.5 0.2 0.1
Trade and other receivables 104.0 871 2,3861 1,2081

The Group offers tenancy contracts to commercial (Universities and retaii unit tenants) and individual tenants based on
the academic year. The Group monitors and manages the recoverability of its receivables based on the academic year to
which the amounts relate. Rental income is payable immediately, therefore all receivables relating to tenants are past the
payment due date.

We do not anticipate there to be any expected credit loss on amaounts receivable from jeint ventures as these remain
highly profitable.

Details of amounts due from Group undertakings to the Company are disclosed in note 5.6.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital continued

5.2 Trade and other receivables continued

2020
Ageing by academic year
Total 2020/2% 201%/20 Prior years
£m £m £m £m
Rental debtors
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) 1.4 1.0 0.3 041
Individual tenants {past due and impaired) 27.2 19.4 5.0 2.8
Expected credit ioss carried {12.2} {4.6) (5.3} {2.3)
Trade receivables 16.4 15.8 - 0.6
2019
Ageing by academic year
Total 201%/20 2018119 Prioryears
£m Em £m Em
Rental debtors
Commercial tenants {past due and impaired) 0.4 0.3 0.1 -
Individual tenants (past due and impaired) 34.0 29.6 1.8 26
Expected credit loss carried (3.9 - (1.6) {2.3)
Trade receivables 30.5 28.9 0.3 0.3
Movements in the Group's expected credit losses of trade receivables can be shown as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
At 1 ]anuary 39 21
Acquired on acguisition - 1.4
Expected creditloss charged to income statement in year 8.6 0.9
Receivables written off during the year {utilisation of expected credit loss) {0.3) {0.5)
At 31 December 12,2 39

The loss allowance for trade receivables is estimated as an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss {ECL).
This loss has been estimated using the Group’s history of loss for similar assets and takes into account current and

farecast conditions.

The impact of credit losses is not cansidered significant in respect of the financial statements.

5.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meetits
contractual obligations. 1t arises principally from the Group's cash balances, the Greup's receivables from customers and

jointventures and loans provided to the Group's joint ventures.

At the year-end, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk was as follows:

2020 2019

Note £Em £m

Cash 5.1 338.3 86.9
Trade receivables 5.2 16.4 305
Amounts due from jeoint ventures 5.2 43.0 3041
402.7 147.5
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5.3a)Cash

The Group operates investment guidelines with respect to surplus cash. Counterparty limits for cash deposits are largely
based upon long-term ratings published by credit rating agencies and credit default swap rates. Deposits were placed with
financial institutions with A- or better credit ratings.

5.3b} Trade receivables

The Group's customers can be split into two groups - (i) students (individuals) and (ii) commercial organisations including
Universities. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is infiluenced by the characteristics of each customer. The Group holds
customer deposits of £0.8 million (2019: £1.0 million) as collateral against individual customers.

5.3c) Joint ventures

Amounts receivable frem joint ventures fall into two categories - working capital balances and investment loans. The
Group has strong working relationships with its joint venture pariners and therefore views this as a low credit risk balance.

5.4 Trade and other payables

Accounting policies

Trade payables are initially recognised at the value of the invoice received from a supplier (fair value) and subsequently
at amortised cost. The carrying value of trade payables is considered approximate to fair value.

Trade and other payables due within one year can be analysed as follows:

Graup Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£m £m £m £m

Trade payahles 16.8 15.7 - -
Retentions on construction contracts for properties 5.8 5.8 - -
Amounts due to Group undertakings - - 0.6 194
Amounts due to joint venture - 12.0 - -
Other payables and accrued expenses 68.4 116.2 3.8 7.0
Deferred income 50.3 90.7 - -
Trade and other payables 141.3 234,4 4.4 26.1

Other payable and accrued expenses include £0.8 million (2019: £1.0 million) in relation to customer deposits. These will
be returned at the end of the tenancy subject to the condition of the accommodation and payment of any outstanding
amounts. Deferred income relates to rental income that has been collected in advance of it being recognised as revenue,

Included within accrued expenses is £nil of capital commitments, relating to investment properties under development
{2019: £50.5 million).

5.5 Provisions

Accounting policies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and itis probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors' best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

During 2020, and in accordance with the Government’s Building Safety Advice of 20 January 2020, we undertook a
thorough review of the use of High-Pressure Laminate {HPL} cladding on our properties. We have identified 19 properties
with HPL that needs replacing across our estate, four of which are wholly cwned. We are currently carrying out
replacement works for properties with HPL cladding, with activity prioritised according to our risk assessments, starting
with those over 18 metres in height. The overall cost of replacing the HPL cladding is expected to be £79.9 million {Unite
Share: £33.8 million), of which £15.7 million is in respect of wholly owned properties. Whilst the overall timetable for these
works is uncertain, we anticipate this will be incurred aver the next 3 years. The regulations continue to evolve in this area
and we will ensure that our buildings are safe for occupation and compliant with laws and regulations.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital continued
5.5 Pravisions continued

The Group has recognised provisions for the cost of these cladding works as follows:

Gross Unite Share
£m £m

Wholly owned USAF LSAV Tota| Wholly owned USAF LSAV Total
At 31 December 2018 1.5 4.8 1.2 15 1.5 11 0.6 3.2
Additions 1.4 0.4 - 1.8 1.4 01 - 15
Utitisation (2.6) (3.8) (1.2} {7.6) {2.6) {0.8} (0.6} (4.0}
At 31 December 2019 0.3 1.4 - 1.7 0.3 0.4 - 0.7
Additions 15.7 50.6 14.4 80.7 15.7 1.0 7.2 339
Utilisation 0.3} (2.0} {0.2) (2.5} {0.3) (0.4) {0.1) {0.8)
At 31 December 2020 15.7 50.0 14.2 79.9 15.7 1.0 71 33.8

5.6 Transactions with other Group companies

During the year, the Company entered into various interest-free, repayable on demand loans with its subsidiaries, the
aggregate of which are disclosed in the cash flow statement. In addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated
Solutions plc for corporate costs of £3.1 million (2019: £3.2 million}. As a result of these intercompany transactions, the
following amounts were due from/to the Company’s subsidiaries at the year end.

2020 2018

£m £m

Unite Hoidings Limited 141.5 141.5
LDC {Holdings) Limited 1,532.0 1,066.5
Liberty Living Group plc 712.4 -
Amounts due from Group undertakings 2,385.9 1,208.0
Unite integrated Solutions plc 0.6 9.1
Amounts due to Group undertakings 0.6 1941

The Company has had a number of transactions with its joint ventures, which are disclosed in note 3.4c.

Section 6: Key management and employee benefits

The Group's greatest resource is its staff and it works hard to develop and retain its pecple. The remuneration
policies in place are aimed to help recognise the contribution that Unite’s people make to the performance of

o the Group.

On the following pages you will find disclosures around wages and salaries and share option schemes which
allow employees of the Group to take an equity interestin the Group.

Accounting policies

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

6.1 Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year (calculated on a monthly

basis), analysed by category, was as follows:

Number of employees

2020 2019
Managerial and administrative 532 426
Site operatives 1,207 937

1,739 1,363
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The aggregate payroli costs of these persons were as follows:

2020 2019

£m Em

Wages and salaries 62.0 49.7
Social security costs 5.8 5.1
Pension ¢osts 27 1.9
Fair value of share-based payments 1.7 22
72,2 58.9

The wages and salaries costs include redundancy costs of £6.1 millien (2019: £1.3 million).

The total number of persons employed by the Group {including Directors) as at 31 December 2020 was 508 managerial
and administrative and 1,396 site operatives. There are no employees employed directly by the Company.

6.2 Key management personnel

The Board considers that the key management personnel within the Group are those appointed to the Board. As such,
the remuneration of key management personnel is contained within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 120
to 148, which covers the requirements of schedule 5 of the relevant legislation.

6.3 Share-based compensation

Atransactionis classified as a share-based transaction where the Group receives services from employees and pays
for these in shares or similar equity instruments. The Group operates a number of share-based compensation schemes
allowing employees to acquire shares in the Company.

a) Share schemes

The Group operates the following schemes:

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), comprising the:

- Performance Share Plan {P5P); and

Details can be found in the Directers’' Remuneration Report
- HMRC Approved Employee Share Option Scheme (ESOS)
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Save As You Earn Scheme (SAYE) Open to employees, vesting periads of three years, service condition

b) Outstanding share options -

The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and their average §

exercise price: e

Weighted Weighted E

average Number average Number =

exercise of aptions exercise of aptions m

price {thousands) price {thousands) ?u

2020 2020 2019 2019 E

[nd

Outstanding at 1 January £1.45 1,929 £2.06 1,751 “
Forfeited during the year £3.47 {159) £3.64 (179
Exercised during the year £2.38 {255) £2.53 (259}
Granted during the year £0.50 1,157 £0.81 616
Outstanding at 31 December £0.83 2,672 £1.45 1,929
Exercisable at 31 December £3.46 59 £2.44 43

For those options exercised in the year, the average share price during 2020 was £9.75 (2019: £10.78).

For those aptions still outstanding, the range of exercise prices at the year-end was Op to 1076p (2019: Op to 1076p) and
the weighted average remaining contractual life of these options was 2.5 years (2019: 2.2 years).

The Group funds the purchase of its own shares by the ‘Employee Share Ownership Trust’ to meet the obligations of
the LTIP and executive bonus scheme. The purchases are shown as ‘Own shares acquired’ in retained earnings. As at
31 December 2020, the number of shares held by the ESOT was 342,342 (2019: 428,017).

The accounting is in accordance with the relevant standards. No further information is given as the amounts for share-
based payments are immaterial.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 7: Post halance sheet events

On 12 March 2021, and in the normal course of business, the Group exchanged contracts for the disposal of a portfolio
of 8 properties within Investment Property and Investment Property held within its Investment in joint ventures for a
combined consideration of £132.5 million.

Section 8: Alternative performance measures

The Greoup uses alternative performance measures {'APMs"), which are not defined or specified under IFRS. These APMs,
which are not considered to be a substitute for IFRS measures, provide additional helpful information. APMs are consistent
with how business performance is planned, reported and assessed internally by management and the Board, and provide
comparable information across the Group. The APMs below have been calculated on a see through/Unite share basis, as
referenced to the notes to the financial statements. Reconciliations to equivalent IFRS measures are included in notes 2.2b
and 2.2¢. Definitions can also be found in the glossary.

2020 2019
Note £m £m
EBIT
Net operating income (NOI) 2.2a 180.3 160.8
Management fees 2.2a 14.0 14.4
Operating expenses 2.2a (30.9) (21.8)
163.4 153.4
EBIT margin %
Rental income 2.2a 263.2 213.9
EBIT 8 163.4 153.4
62.1% 71.7%
EBITDA
Net operating income (NCI) 2.2a 180.3 160.8
Management fees 2.2a 14.0 14.4
Operating expenses 2.2a (30.5) {21.8}
Depreciation and amortisation 8.4 76
171.8 161.0
Net debt
Cash 2.3a 391.0 114.9
Debt 2.3a {2,132.8) (1,99%.2)
(1,741.8) (1,884.3)
Net debt (adjusted)
Cash 2.3a 391.0 114.9
Bebt {adjusted)* {2,132.8) {1.209.3)
(1,741.8) {1,094.4)
* Calculated as Unite debt of £1,132,5 miliion and Liberty Living debt of £71.8 million (£861.7 million pra-rated for 33 days of ownership in 2619).
EBITDA : Net debt {adjusted)
EBITDA 171.8 161.0
Net debt {adjusted) 8 (1,741.8) {1,094.4)
Ratio 101 6.8
Interest cover {Unite share)
EBIT 8 163.4 1534
Net financing costs 2.2a {56.1) (34.7)
Interest on lease liability/operating lease rentals 2.2a (3.8) 9.2
Total interest {64.9) (43.9)
Ratio 2.5 3.5
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Reconciliation: IFRS loss before tax to EPRA earnings

2020 2019
Note £m £m
IFRS loss before tax {120.1) (101.2)
Net valuation losses/{gains) on investment property (owned) 2.2k 165.7 {213.1}
Property disposals (owned) 2.2b 1.9 5.8
Net valuation losses on investment property {leased) 2.2b 1.2 8.1
Property disposals (leased) 2.2b - 1.3
Impairment of goadwill 2.2b - 384
Integraticn/acquisition costs 2.2b 9.2 228
Amortisation of fair value of debt recognised on acquisition 2.2b {4.3) (C.4)
Changes in valuation of interest rate swaps 2.2b 5.8 2.7
Swap cancellation and loan break costs 2.2b 301 27
Minority interest and tax (2.2) {2.0}
EPRA earnings 97.3 110.6
EPRA Performance Measures
Summary of EPRA performance measures
2020 2019 2020 2019
Note £m £m pPpPs pps
EPRA Earnings 97.3 110.6 25.5p 39.1p
EPRA NTA 3.271.0 3,091.4 818p 847p
EPRA NRY 3,601.9 3,2945 901p 930p
EPRA NDV 3,180.7 3.0126 796p 826p
EPRA Net initial yield 3.8% 4.95%
EPRA Vacancy rate 13.0% 1.4%
EPRA Cost ratio (including vacancy costs) 40.0% 31.1%
EPRA Cost ratio (excluding vacancy costs) 36.2% 30.6%
EPRA like-for-like rental income
Properties
owned
thraughout Development Acquisitionsand Total EPRA
£m the period property disposals Earnings
2020
Rental income 144.9 124 105.9 263.2
Property cperating expenses {43.6) {3.9) (35.4) (82.9)
Net rental income 101.3 3.5 70.5 180.3
2019
Rental income 166.4 20.5 27.0 213.9
Property operating expenses {42.5) (4.5) (6.1) (53.1)
Netrental income 123.9 16.0 209 160.8
Like-for-like gross rental income {12.9%)
Like-for-like net rental income {18.2%)
EPRA Vacancy Rate
2020 2019
£&m £m
Estimated rental value of vacant space 321.5 3.5
Estimated rental value of the whole portfolio 241.8 247.1
EPRA Vacancy Rate 13.0% 1.4%
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 8: Alternative performance measures continued
EPRA Net Initial Yield

2020 2019
Net operating income (Erm* 197.7 2427
Property market value (£mj} 4,893.2 4,702 4
Notional acquisition costs {£m) 256.0 2377

5,149.2 4,940.1
Net initial yield {%) 3.8% 4.9%
* Net cperating income calculated by annualising rentat income for December,
EPRA Cost ratio
2020 2019
£m £Em
Property operating expenses 61.9 330
Operating expenses 301 211
Development/pre contract ¢osts 2.2 1.5
Unallocated expenses* 3.2 4.4
97.4 60.0
Share of JV property operating expenses 21.0 201
Share of [V operating expenses 0.8 0.7
Share of |V unallocated expenses* 0.4 -
119.6 80.8
Less: joint venture management fees (14.0) (14.4)
Total costs (A} 105.6 66.4
Group vacant property costs** (7.4) (0.7}
Share of JV¥ vacant property costs** (2.5} (0.4}
Total costs excluding vacant property costs (B) 95.7 65.3
Rentalincome 1961 1341
Shara of [V rentat income 671 75.8
Total gross rental income (C) 263.2 213.9
Total EPRA cost ratio (including vacant property costs) (A)/(C) 40% 31%
Total EPRA cost ratio (excluding vacant property costs)(B}/{C) 36% 31%

* Excludes amounts in respect of the LSAV performance fee.

** Vacant property costs reflect the per bed share of operating expenses allocated to vacant beds.

Unite's EBIT margin excludes non operational expenses which are included within the EPRA cost ratio above.

EPRA Valuation movement (Unite share)

Valuation Change

£m £m %
wWholly owned 3,288.7 (130.9) (3.9%)
USAF 616.7 {25.1) {4.0%)
LSAV 661.8 (14.9) (2.2%)
Rental properties 4,567.2 {170.9) {3.6%)
Leased properties 101.8
2020/21 development completions 326.0
Properties under develocpment 187.2
Properties held throughout the year 5,182.2
Total praperty portfolio 5,182.2
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EPRA Yield movement

NO# yield Yield movement (bps)
% H1 H2 FY
Wholly owned 5.0% - (4) {4)
USAF 5.3% - - -
LSAV 4.4% - (1 {1
Rental properties (Unite share) 5.0% - (3) 3)
Property related capital expenditure
2019
Wholly owned Share of J¥s Group share Wholly owned Share of JVs Group share
Acquisitions - - - - 51.0 51.0
Developments 87.6 - 87.6 208.2 6.5 2147
Rental properties 25.0 229 47.9 6.5 8.7 15.2
Other 4.6 - 4.6 9.1 - 9.1
Total property related capex 117.2 229 1401 223.8 66.2 290.0

Section 9: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of subsidiaries and equity accounted investments
as at 31 December 2020 is disclosed below. Unless otherwise stated, the Group’s ownership interest represents 100%
of the ordinary shares, units or partnership capital held indirectly by Unite Group PLC. No subsidiary undertakings have
been excluded from the consolidation. The Unite Foundation has a year-end of 30 September to facilitate academic year
reporting. All other subsidiaries have a year-end of 31 December.

Registered office and principal place of business: South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol, United Kingdom, BS1 6FL

LDC {AIB Warehouse) Limited (04872419)**

LDC {alscot Road) Limited {06176428)**

LDC {Brunel House) Limited (09760628)%*

LDC {Camden Court Leasehald) Limited (05140620)**
LDC {Camden Court) Limited (05082671)

LDC {Causewayend) Limited (08895966)**

LDC (Chantry Court Leasehold) Limited (05140258)**
LDC {Chaucer House) Limited (09898020)**

LDC {Censtitution Street) Limited (09210998)**

LDC {Censtruction Twe) Limited (04847268)

LDC{Euro Loan) Limited (06623603}**

LDC {Ferry Lane 2) GP3 Limited (07503842)**

LDC {Ferry Lane 2} GP4 Limited (07503913)**

LDC {Ferry Lane 2) Holdings Limited (07504099)

LDC {Finance) Limited (09760806)**

LDC {Greetham Street) Limited {08895825)**

LDC {Gt Suffelk St) GP1 Limited (07274156)

LDC{GE Suffelk 5t} GP2 Limited (07274000}

LDC {Gt Suffolk St} Holdings Limited (07353946)

LDC {Gt Suffolk St} Limited Partnership**

LDC {Gt Suffelk St) Management GP1 Limited (07354719)
LDC {Gt Suffolk St} Management GP2 Limited (07354728)
LDC {Gt Suffolk 5t} Management Limited Partnership**
LDC {Hampton Street) Limited (06415998}

LDC {Hillhead) Limited {06176554)

LDC {Holdings) Limited (02625007)*

LDC {Imperial Wharf) Limited (04541678)**

LDC {International House) Limited (10131362)**

LDC (Partfolio Five) Limited (06079581)**

LEC (Pertfolio Four} Limited {04985603)%*

LBC (Portfolio One) Limited {03005262)**

LBC (Portfolio) Limited (08419375)**

LBC (Project 110) Limited (05083580

LDC (Project 111) Limited (05791650)**

LDC (Radmarsh Road) Limited {05435220)**

LOC (Skelhorne) Limited (09898132)**

LCC (Smithfield) Limited (03373096)**

LOC (St Leonards) Limited (08895830)**

LEC (5t Pancras Way) GP1 Limited (07359501)

LDC (St Pancras Way} GP2 Limited (07353428)

LDC (St Pancras Way) GP3 Limited (07503268)

LDC (St Pancras Way} GP4 Limited (07503251)

LDC (St Pancras Way) Holdings Limited (07360734)
LDC (St Pancras Way) Limited Partnership*¥*

LDC (5t Pancras Way} Management Limited Partnership®*
LDC (St Vincent's) Limited (10218310)**

LDC (Swindon NHS) Limited (04207502)**

LOC (Tara House) Limited (§9214177)**

LDC (Thurso Street} GP1 Limited (07199022)

LDC (Thurso Street) GP2 Limited (07198979}

LDC (Thurso Street) GP3 Limited (07434001)

LDC (Thurso Street) GP4 Limited (07434133)

LDC (Thurso Street) Limited Partnership**

LDC {Thursa Street) Management Limited artnership**
LDC (Ventura) Limited (04444628)

1.DC (Vernon Squars) Limited (06444132)
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* Held directly by the Company.

** Company is exempt from the reguirements of the Companies Act relating to the audit of individual financial statements by virtue of s475A 219
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The Unite Group PLC Annua! Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 9: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Registered office and principal place of business: South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol, United Kingdom, BS1 6FL

LDC {Kelham Island} Limited (05152229)

LDC {Leasehold A) Limited (04066933)**

LDC (Leasehold B Limited (05978242 %*

LDC {Loughborough) Limited {04207522)**

LDC (Magnet Court Leasehold) Limited (05140255)%*

LDC (Millennium View) Limited (09890375)*+*

LDC {MTF Portfolio) Limited (05530557)*+

LDC (Nairn Street) GP3 Limited (07808933}

LDC{Nairn Street} GP4 Limited (07808919)

LDC {Nairn Street) Holdings Limited (07579402)**

LDC (New Wakefield Street) Limited (10436455)%*

LDC {(Newgate) Limited (08895869)**

LDC {Old Hospital) Limited (09702143)%*

LDC {Oxford Road Bournemouth) Limited (04407309)**
LBC (Portfalio 100} Limited (07%89369)%*

LDC {Portfolio 20} Limited (08803996)**

Liberty Living Investments 3 Limited Partnership**
Liberty Living Investments GP1 Limited (09375866)**
Liberty Living Investments GP2 Limited (09375868)**
Liberty Living Investments GP3 Limited (10518849)**
Liberty Living Investments |l Holdco 2 Limited (09574059)%*
Liberty Living Investmeants Il Holdco Limited {08929431)**
Liberty Living Investments Il Limited (0568093 1)**

Liberty Living investments Limited (09375870)%*

Liberty Living Investments Nominee 1 Limited (09375846)**
Liberty Living Investments Nominee 2 Limited {09375849)**
Liberty Living Investments Nominee 3 Limited (10519085)**
Liberty Living Limited (040558971)**

Liberty Living SpareCo Limited (04616115)**

Liberty Living UK Limited {06064187)**

Liberty Park (Bristel) Limited (07615601)**

Liberty Park {US Bristol) Limited (0761561G)**

Liberty Plaza (Londen) Limited (07745097}**

Liperty Point (Coventry} Limited {04992358)**

Liberty Point (Manchester) Limited (04828083)**

Liberty Paint Southatmpton (Block A} Limited (10314954)**
Liberty Prospect Point (Liverpool) Limited (04637570)*
tiberty Quay (Newcastle) Limited (05234174)**

Liberty Quay 2 (Newcastle) Limited {07376627)**

Liberty Severn Point (Cardiff) Limited (04313955)**
Liberty Village (Edinburgh) Limited (10323566)**

LL Midco 2 Limited(0B998308)*+

LSAV (Angel Lane) GP3 Limited (08646359

LSAV (Angel Lane) GP4 Limited {08646925)**

LSAV {Aston Student Village} GP3 Limited (10498217)**
LSAV [Aston Student Village) GP4 Limited (10498484)%*

LDC (William Morris |1} Limited (05999281 *

Liberty Atlantic Paint {Liverpoal) Limited (03885187)**
Liberty Heights (Manchester) Limited {07395622)%*

Liberty Living {HE) Holdings Limited (10977869)**

Liberty Living (LH Manchester) Limited (07120141)**

Liberty Living {Liberty AP} Limited {03633307)*

Liberty Living {Liberty PP) Limited (03591475)**

Liberty Living (LP Bristol} Limited {(7242607)%*

Liberty Living {LP Coventry) Limited (04330729)**

Liberty Living {LP Manchester) Limited {04314013}**

Liberty Living (LQ Newcastle) Limited (04302869)**

Liberty Living {LQ2 Newcastle) Limited (07298853)%*

Liberty Living Finance plc (10979349)**

Liberty Living Group Pic {BRO20813)*/%*

Liberty Living Investments 1 Limited Partnership**

Liberty Living Investments 2 Limited Partnership**

Uniite Finance One (Accommadation Services) Limited (04332937)**
Unite Finance One (Holdings) Limited (04316207 )%+

Unite Finance One (Property) Limited (04303331)**

Unite FM Limited (06807562)**

Unite For Success Limited (05157263)

Unite Holdings Limited (03148468)*/%*

Unite Homes Limited {05140262)

Unite integrated Solutions plc {02402714)

Unite Modular Selutiens Limited (05140259)

Unite Rent Collection Limited (05982935)**

Unite Student Living Limited (06204135)

USAF GP No 11 Management Limited {07351883)

USAF LP Limited (05860874)%*

USAF Management Limited (05862721}

USAF Management 6 Limited {06225945)

USAF Management & Limited (06387597)

USAF Management 10 Limited (06714695)

USAF Management 11 Limited (07082782)

USAF Management 12 Limited (07365681)

USAF Management 14 Limited (69222206}

USAF Management 18 Limited (10219775)

USAF Management GP No.14 Limited (09130985)**

USAF Management GP No.15 Limited (09749948)**

USAF Management GP No.15 Limited (09750068)**

USAF Management GP No 17 Limited (09750061y+*

USAF Management No.18 Limited Partnership

LDC (Capital Ciyes Nominee Ne.1) Limited (05347228) (50.0%)
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee No.2} Lirmited (05359457) (S0.0%;
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee Na.3) Limited (08792780) {50.0%)
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee No.4) Limited (08792688) (S0.0%)

* Held directly by the Company.

**Company is exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the audst of individual financial statements by virtue of 54794 far the financial

year ended 31 December 2020,
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Registered office and principal place of business: South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristel, United Kingdom, BS1 6FL

LSAV (Stapleton) GP3 Limited (08646819)**

LSAV (Stapleton) GP4 Limited {08647019)**

LSAV (Stratford) GP3 Limited (08751654)**

LSAV (Stratford) GP4 Limited (08751629)**

LSAV (Wembley} GP3 Limited (08725127 )**

LSAY (Wembley} GP4 Limited (08725235)**

LSAV Rent Collection Limited (08496230)%*

Stardesert Limited (04437102}

The Unite Foundation

Unite Accommodation Management Limited (06190505)**
Unite Accommadation Management 2 Limited (05193166)**
Unite Accommeodation Management & Limited {Q5077346)**
Unite Accommodation Management 9 Limited {06190863}**
Unite Accommedation Management 16 Limited (07061314)y%*
Unite Accommeodation Management 18 Limited (08328484)**
Unite Accommodation Management 19 Limited (08790504)
Unite Accommaodation Management 20 Limited (C8790642)
Unite Accommadation Management One Hundred Limited {07989080)**
Unite Construction (Angel Lane} Limited (08792704)%*
Unite Construction (Stapleton) Limited (09023406)

Unite Construction {Wembley) Limited (09023474)

Unite Finance Limited (02353305 /**

LSAV (Wembley) GP1 Limited (08635735) {50.0%}

LSAV {Wembley) GP2 Limited (08636051} (50.0%)

LSAY {(wembley) Limited Partnership (50.0%)

LSAY (Wembley) Management Limited Partnership (50.0%)
UNITE Capital Cities Heldings Limited (08801242} (50.0%)
Unite Capital Cities Limited Partnership (50.0%)

Unite Capita! Cities Two Limited Partnership (50.0%)

USAF Management 16 Limited {07735741) (22.2%)**

USAF Management 17 Limited (05591986) (22.2%)**

USAF Management Na. 14 Limited Partnership (22.0%}
USAF Management No. 15 Limited Partnership (22.2%)
USAF Management No. 16 Limited Partnership (22.2%)
USAF Management No. 17 Limited Partnership (22.2%)
USAF Nc.T Limited Partnership (22.0%)

USAF No.6 Limited Partnership (22.0%)

USAF No.8 Limited Partnership {22.0%)

USAF No.10 Limited Partnership {22.0%)

USAF No.11 Limited Partnership (22.0%)

USAF N¢.12Z Limited Partnership {22.0%)

USAF No.14 Limited Partnership (22.0%)

USAF No.15 Limited Partnership (22.2%)

USAF No.15A Limited Partnership (22.0%)

LDC (Capital Cities} Limited (05347220} {50.0%}

LDC (Ferry Lane 2) GP1 Limited (07353448) (50.0%)

LtDC (Ferry Lane 2) GP2 Limited (07359481) (50.0%)

LDC (Farry Lane 2) Limited Partnership (50.0%)

LDC {Farry Lane 2) Management Limited Partnership (50.0%)
LDC (Stratford) GP1 Limited {075475911) (50.0%)

LDC (Stratford) GP2 Limited {07547994) (50.0%}

LDC (Stratford) Limited Partnership (50.0%)

LDC Capital Cities Two {GP) Limited (08750742) (50.0%)

LSAV (Angel Lane) GP1 Limited (08533689 (50.0%)

LSAV {Angel Lane} GP2 Limited (085%3652} (50.0%)

Lsav fAngel Lane} Limited Partnership {50.0%)

LSAV (Angel Lane} Management Limited Partrnership (50.0%)
LSAY (Aston Student Village) GP1 Limited (10498478) (50.0%)
LSAV (Aston Student Village) GP2 Limited (10498481) (50.0%)
LSAY (Aston Student Village) Limited Partnership (50.0%)
LSAV (Aston Student Village) Management Limited Partnership {50.0%})
LSaV (Stapleton) GP1 Limited {68593695) (50.0%)

LSAV (Stapleton) GP2 Limited (08593699) {50.0%)

LSAV (Stapleton) Limited Partnership (50.0%}

LSAV (Stapleton) Managament Limited Partnership (50.0%)
LSAV (Stratford) Management Limited Partnership (50.0%)
USAFGP No 6 Limited (05897755} (13.3%}

USAFGP No 8 Limited (06381914) (13.3%}

USAF GP No 10 Limited {06714734) (13.3%)

USAF GP No 11 Limited (07075210} (13.3%)

USAF GP No 12 Limited {07368735) (13.3%)

USAF GP No 14 Limitec {09089977){13.3%)

USAF GP No 15 Limited {09585201) (13.3%)

LSAF GP No.15A Limited (12644211) (22.0%)

USAF GP No.16A Limited (12644210} (22.0%)

USAF GP No.17A Limited (12644208} (22.0%)

USAF GP No 18 Limited (10219336){13.3%)

USAF Holdings B Limlted (06324325) {13.3%)

USAF Holdings C Limited (06381882) (13.3%)

USAF Holdings H Limited (09083805} (13.3%)

USAF Holdings | Limited (09581882) (13.3%)

USAF Holdings | Limited (10215597} (13.3%)

USAF Holdings Limited (05870107) (13.3%}

USAF Nominee No.1 Limited (05855598} (13.3%)

USAF Nominee No.1A Limited {05835512){13.3%)

LSAF Nominee No.6 Limited (05855599) (13.3%)

USAF Nominee No.6A Limited (05885802) (13.3%)

USAF Nominee No.8 Limited {06381861}(13.3%)

* Held directly by the Company.

**Company is exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the audit of Individual financial statements by virtue of s479A for the financial

year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Section 9: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Registered office and principal place of business: South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol, United Kingdom, BST16FL

USAF No.16A Limited Partrership (22.0%)

USAF No.17A Limited Partnership (22.0%)

USAF No.18 Limited Partnership (22.0%)

USAF Ng.11 Managerment Limited Partrership {22.0%)

Filbert Village Student Accommaodation Limited Partnership {22.0%)
LDC (Nalrn Street} Limited Partnership (22.0%)

LDC (Nairn Street) Management Limited Partnership {22.0%}
Filbert Village GP Limited (06016554) {13.3%)

LDC (Nairn Street) GP1 Limited {07580262) (13.3%)

LDC (Nairn Street) GP2 Limited (07580257) (13.3%)

USAF Nominee No.BA Limited (06381869} (13.3%)
USAF Nominee No.10 Limited (06714650) (13.3%)
USAF Nominee No.10A Limited {(06714615) {13.3%)
USAF Nomineg No.11 Limited (07075251} {13.3%)
USAF Nominee No.11A Limited(07075213) {13.3%)
USAF Nominee No.12 Limited (07368733} (13.3%)
USAF Nominee No.12A Limited (07368755) {13.3%)
USAF Neminee No 14 Limited (09231609} (13.3%)
USAF Nominee Ne.14A Limited (09231604) (13.3%)
USAF Nominee No.18 Limited (10218595} (13.3%)

USAF Finance i Limited (08526474} (13.3%) USAF Naminee No.18A Limited {10219335) {13.3%)

USAF GP No 1 Limited (05897875){13.3%} USAF RCC Limited (05983554) {13.3%)

Registered office and principal place of business: 13 Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JEA5UT

LDC (Gt Suffolk St) Unit Trust LSAV (Aston Student Village) Unit Trust (50.0%)

LDC {5t Pancras Way) Unit Trust LSAV (Holdings) Limited (50.0%)
LSAV (Trustee) Limited {50.0%)

LSAV Unit Trust (50.0%)

LDC (Thursa Streer) Unit Trust
LSAV (Jersey Manager) Limited
Urite {(Capital Citles) Jersey Limited Unite Capital Cities Unit Trust (50.0%)
USAF lersey Investments Limited USAF Partfalic 18 Unit Trust (22.2%)
USAF Jersey Manager Limited LDC (Nairn Street) Unit Trust(21.9%)
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) Unit Trust (50.0%)

LDC (Stratford) Unit Trust (50.0%%)

Unita UK Student Accommaodation Fund(13.3%)

Registered office and principal place of business: Third Floor, La Plaiderie Chambers, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 TWG

USAF Feeder Guernsey Limited (45.2%) USAF Portfolio 17 Unit Trust (22.2%}

USAF Portfolio 15 Unit Trust {22.2%) USAF 15 NRL Uimited (22.2%)

USAF Portfolio 16 Unit Trust (22.2%)

Registered office and principal place of business: Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, EH12EN

LSAV {GP) Limited (SC431844) {50.0%) LSAY [Property Holdings) Limited Partnership (50.0%)

Registered office and principal place of business: Trident Chambers, Wickhams Cay, P.O. Box 146, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands

Liberty Park (Bedford) Limited Liberty Plaza (Newcastie) Limited

Registered office and principal place of business: Third Ficor, Barclays House, Victoria Street, Douglas, [sle of Man, IM12LE

Filbert Street Student Accommodation Unit Trust (21.9%)

Registered office and principal place of business: Room 507, Floor 5, Block 1, Building No. 10, Jintong Road West, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
People’s Republic of China

Unite Students Accommaedation (Beijing) Business Service Conpany Limited

* Held directly by the Company.

** Company is exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the audit of individual financial statements by virtue of s473A for the finandial
year ended 21 December 2020.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

FINANCIAL RECORD

2026 2019 2018 2617 2016
EPRA earnings {£m) 97 MM 88 71 &1
EPRA earnings per share (pence) 26 39 34 30 28
[FRS (lossiprofit before tax (Em} {120} (101) 246 229 207
IFRS (loss)/profit per share (pence} (32) (32) 91 95 101
EPRA net tangible assets (NTA)/net assets (NAV) (Em) 3,266 3,087 2,085 1,740 1,557
EPRA NTA/NAV per share {pence)’ 818 847 790 720 646
IFRS net assets {£m) 3,235 3,072 2,073 1,729 1,452
IFRS NAV per share {pence} 809 845 787 717 653
LTV (%) 34% 37% 29% 31% 34%
Managed portfolio value (Em) 7,838 7702 4,994 4,612 4,327

1. EPRANTA for 2020 and 2019. EPRA NAV for 2018 and prior.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt

Basis points (BPS)

Direct-let
EBIT

EBITDA

EBIT margin

EPRA

EPRA earnings

EPRA earnings per share
EPRA NAV

EPRA net asset value

per share

EPRA Net Tangible Assets
{NTA)

EPRA Net Tangible Assets
per share

EPRA Net Reinstatment

Value {NRV)

EPRA Net Disposal Value
(NDV)

EPRA Net Initial Yield (NIY)

EPRA Vacancy Rate

EPRA Cost Ratio

ESG

GRESE

Gross asset value {GAV)

Gross financing costs

The Group

Group debt

The Group’s debt, net of cash and unamortised debt raising costs, excluding the mark to market of
interest rates swaps.

A basis point is a term used to describe a small percentage, usually in the context of change,
and equates to 0.01%.

Properties where short-hold tenancy agreements are made directly between Unite and the student.
The Group's NOI plus management fees and less operating expenses.

The Group’s EPRA earnings before charging interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation. The profit
number is used to calculate the ratio to net debt,

The Group’s EBIT expressed as a percentage of rental income.

The Furopean Public Real Estate Association, who produce best practice recommendations for
financial reporting.

EPRA earnings exclude movements relating to changes in values of investment properties and
interest rate swaps and the related tax effects. In 2020, in consideration of EPRA's fecus on recurring
income, EPRA earnings excludes integration costs.

The earnings per share based on EPRA earnings.

EPRA NAV includes all property at market value but excludes the mark to market of financial instruments
and deferred tax. EPRA NAY provides a consistent measure of NAV on a going concern basis.

The diluted NAV per share figure based on EPRA NAV.

EPRA NTA includes all property at market value but excludes the mark to market of financial instruments,
deferred tax and intangible assets. EPRA NTA provides a consistent measure of tangible NAYV on a going
concern basis.

The diluted NTA per share figure based on EPRANTA.

EPRA NRV includes all property at market value but excludes the mark to market of financial instruments,
deferred tax and real estate transfer tax, EPRA NRV assumes that entities never sell assets and represents
the value required to rebuild the entity.

EPRA NDV includes all property at market value, excludes the mark to market of financial instruments, but
includes the fair value of fixed interest rate debt and the carrying value of intangible assets. EPRA NDV

represents the shareholders’ value in a disposal scenario.

The net operating inceme generated by a property expressed as a percentage of its value, taking into
account notional acquisition costs.

The ratio of the estimated market rental value of vacant spaces against the estimated market rental value of
the entire property portfolio (including vacant spaces).

The ratic of net overheads and operating expenses against gross rental income.

Environmental, Social and Governance.

GRESE is a benchmark of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) performance of real assets.
Rental properties, plus leased properties and development properties. GAV is reperted on a fair value basis.

Allinterest paid by the Group, including those capitalised into developments and operating lease rentals.

Itincludes all receipts and payments under interest rate swaps whether they are effective or ineffective
under IFRS,

Wholly owned balances plus Unite’s Interests relating to USAF and LSAV.

Wholly owned borrowings plus Unite's share of borrowings attributable to USAF and LSAV.
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The Unite Group PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2020

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Interest caver ratio (ICR)  Calculated as EBIT divided by the sum of net finanting costs and IFRS 16 lease liability interest costs.
Lease Properties which are leased to Unjversities for a number of years.

Like-for-like rental growth Like-for-like rental growth is the growth in gross rental income on propertias owned throughout the current
and previgus years under review.

Loan tovalue {(LTV) Net debt as a proportion of the carrying value of the total property portfolio, excluding balances recognised
in respect of leased properties under IFRS 16.

LSAV The London Student Accommodation Joint Venture (LSAV} is a joint venture between Unite and GIC,
in which both hold a 50% stake. LSAV has a maturity date of September 2022 and ASV has a maturity
date of January 2027.

Major Provincial Properties located in Aberdeen, Birmingham, Cardiff, Durham, Glasgow, Leeds, Leicester, Liverpool,

Newcastle, Nottingham, Sheffield and Southampton.

Net debt Group debt, net of cash and unamortised debt issue costs, excluding IFRS 16 investment property {leased)
and associated lease liabilities.

Net debt: EBITDA Net debt as a proportion of EBITDA.
Net financing costs (EPRA}  Gross financing costs net of interest capitalised into developments and interest received on deposits,

Net operating income (NOI) The Groug's rental income from rental properties {owned and Jeased) less those operating costs directly
related to the property, therefore excluding central overheads.

NO! margin The Group's NO| expressed as a percentage of rental income,

Nomination agreements  Agreements at properties where Universities have entered into a contract to reserve rooms for their
students, usually guaranteeing occupancy. The Universities usually either nominate students to live in the
building and Unite enters into short-hold tenancies with the students or the University enters into a contract
with Unite and makes payment directly to Unite.

Other provincial Properties located in Bedford, Bournemouth, Coventry, Exeter, Loughborough, Medway, Portsmouth,
Reading and Walverhampton.

Prime provincial Properties located in Bristol, Bath, Edinburgh, Manchester and Oxford.

Rental properties investment praperties whose construction has been completed and are used by the Operatiens segment
to generate NOI,

Rentai properties (leased)/ Properties that have been sold to a third party investor then leased back to the Group. Unite is alsa

Sale and leaseback responsible for the management of these assets on behalf of the owner.

See-through (also whofly owned balances pius Unite’s share of balances relating to USAF and L5AV.

Unite share}

TCFD The Task force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures develops voluntary, consistent climate-refated

finandial risk disciosures for use by companies in providing information ta investors, lenders, insurers and
other stakeholders.

Total accounting return Growth in EPRA NTA per share (previously NAY per share} plus dividends paid, expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NTA per share (previously EPRA NAV per share) at the beginning of the period.

Total shareholder return  The growth in value of a shareholding over a specified period, assuming dividends are reinvested to
purchase additional shares.

USAF/the fund The Unite UK Student Accommadation Fund (USAF) is Europe's largest fund focused purely on income-
producing student accommedation investment assets.

The fund is an open-ended infinite life vehicle with unique access to Unite's development pipeline.
Unite acts as fund manager for the fund, as well as owning a significant minority stake.

WAULT Weighted average unexpired lease term to expiry.

Wholly owned Balances relating to properties that are 100% owned by The Unite Group PLC or its 100% subsidiaries.
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COMPANY INFORMATION

The Unite Group PLC

Executive Team
Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Joe Lister
Chief Financial Officer

Registered Office
South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol BS1 6FL

Registered Number in England
03199160

Company Secretary
Christopher Szpojnarowicz

Auditor
Deloitte LLP
1 New Street Square, London EC4A 3HQ

L[] Find out more online at www.unite-group.co.uk

Financial Advisers

J.P. Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Street, London E14 5JP

Numis Securities

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LT

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services plc
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristo!

BS99 7NH

Financial PR Consulitants

Powerscourt
1 Tudor Street London EC4Y OAH

Cesigned and produced by IMPeror

Visit us at emperor.works
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The Unite Group PLC
South Quay House
Temple Back

Bristol BS1 6FL

+44 (0} 117 302 7000
info@unite-students.com

www.unite-group.co.uk
www.unitestudents.com



